mmoo

®

AGENDA
BLOUNT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
THURSDAY, MAY 21, 2015, 7:00 P.M.
Room 430, Blount County Courthouse

SETTING OF AGENDA.

CONSENT CALENDAR.
1. Minutes:
a. April 16, 2015 meeting.
b. May 12, 2015 zoning public hearing.
2. Approval of Deputy Sheriff and Notary Public bonds and oaths.
3. Election of Notaries.

PUBLIC INPUT ON ITEMS ON THE AGENDA.
ELECTIONS, APPOINTMENTS, AND CONFIRMATIONS.
UNFINISHED BUSINESS.

NEW BUSINESS.
1. Budget modifications:

a. Resolution to amend General Fund Budget - $9,000.00.

b. Resolution to amend Highway Fund Budget - $83,375.62.

C. Resolution to amend General School Fund Budget - $259,048.00.

d. Resolution to amend Debt Service Fund Budget - $28,985,652.92.

2. A resolution asking Federal Legislators to stop the expansion of EPA regulations over water and to repeal
stormwater regulations.

3. A resolution to award an agreement that extends beyond the end of the current fiscal year for emergency
medical services for Blount County, TN.

4, Zoning resolutions:

a. A resolution to amend the Zoning Resolution of Blount County, Tennessee, Section 7.18
regulating campgrounds or RV Parks by clarifying or specifying the following: responsibility for
required improvements for a deceleration lane; mandatory compliance with noise laws;
application of non-conforming (grandfather) provisions of state statutes and zoning regulations;
and limits of stay in a campground or RV park.

b. A resolution to amend the Zoning Resolution of Blount County, Tennessee, Section 7.18
regulating campgrounds or RV parks, specifying the following: setting ratio of camp worker
campsites that may be allowed; setting setbacks from perimeter parcel lines; and setting defined
density of campsites per gross acre.

C. A resolution to amend the Zoning Resolution of Blount County, Tennessee, Section 9.1.C
deleting allowance for commercial campground and recreational vehicle parks in the S-
Suburbanizing District.

d. A resolution to amend the Zoning Map of Blount County Tennessee, from R-1 (Rural District 1) to
RAC (Rural Arterial Commercial) for property located at 110 and 112 N. Spring View Road at the
corner of US Hwy 411 South and N. Spring View Road, the property is identified on Tax Map 089,
Parcel 109.00.

5. A resolution to implement the recommended classification and compensation system by Evergreen
Solutions.

6. Resolution to levy a tax rate in excess of the certified tax rate.

7. A resolution authorizing submission of application for litter and trash collecting grant from the State of
Tennessee, Department of Transportation and authorizing acceptance of the grant.

8. Resolution authorizing an agreement between Blount County, Tennessee and Bellsouth

Telecommunications, LLC, a Georgia corporation, d/b/a AT&T Tennessee, for the purpose of granting an
easement for a parcel of land lying off of 111 Main Road, Maryville, Tennessee, pursuant to Tennessee
Code Annotated § 65-21-201 and § 5- 7-101.

9. Setting of public hearing for 6:00 pm, June 9, 2015 in Room 430 on a resolution to amend the Zoning
Resolution of Blount County, Tennessee by adding a new RAC 2-Rural Arterial Commercial District 2.

10. A resolution to approve interlocal cooperation agreement relative to the Fifth Judicial District Drug and
Violent Crimes Task Force between Blount County, Tennessee; Maryville, Tennessee; and Alcoa,
Tennessee.

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND STATEMENTS.
PUBLIC INPUT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA.
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w SOTATE OF TENNESSEE
"\ COUNTY OF BLOUNT

BE IT REMEMBERED that a meeting of the Blount County Board of Commissioners was
held on Thursday, April 16, 2015 at 7:00 pm at the courthouse in Maryville, Tennessee.
Roll call was taken by Roy Crawford, Jr., County Clerk:

Mike Akard - present Mike Caylor - present Mike Lewis - present
Andy Allen - present Thomas Cole - present Kenneth Melton - present
Archie Archer - present Dodd Crowe - present Karen Miller - present
Brad Bowers - present Jamie Daly - present Tona Monroe - present
Shawn Carter - present Gary Farmer - present Jerome Moon - present
Rick Carver - present Ron French - present Steve Samples - present
Grady Caskey - present Jeff Headrick - present Tom Stinnett - present

There were 21 present and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared a quorum to exist. The following
proceedings were held to-wit:

IN RE: SETTING OF AGENDA.

Commissioner Headrick made a motion to set the agenda. Commissioner Carver seconded the
motion.

Commissioner Monroe requested that the appointments for the Ad Hoc Committee to Study the
Feasibility of Recycling in Blount County the appointment for the Planning Commission be dealt with

separately.

A vote was taken on the motion:
Akard - yes Caskey - yes French - yes Moon - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - yes
Carter - yes Daly - yes Miller - yes
Carver - yes Farmer - yes Monroe - yes

There were 21 voting yes, 0 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the
motion to have passed.

IN RE: CONSENT CALENDAR:
MINUTES OF MARCH 19, 2015 MEETING
MINUTES OF APRIL 7, 2015 5:45 PM ZONING PUBLIC HEARING
MINUTES OF APRIL 7, 2015, 6:00 PM ZONING PUBLIC HEARING
MINUTES OF APRIL 7, 2015, 6:15 PM ZONING PUBLIC HEARING
APPROVAL OF DEPUTY SHERIFF AND NOTARY PUBLIC BONDS AND OATHS
ELECTION OF NOTARIES
APPOINTMENTS TO SHERIFF'S MERIT BOARD (REAPPOINTMENTS) — GARY HALL,
CECIL “BUSTER” SAFFLES
APPOINTMENT TO BLOUNT COUNTY LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES - DR. CATHY
HAMMON
APPOINTMENT TO PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION (REAPPOINTMENT) —
NELSON RUSSELL.

Commissioner Lewis made a motion to approve the consent calendar. Commissioner Carter
seconded the motion.
A vote was taken on the motion:

Akard - yes Caskey - yes French - yes Moon - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - yes

Carter - no Daly - yes Miller - yes

Carver - yes Farmer - yes Monroe - yes

There were 20 voting yes, 1 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the
consent calendar to be adopted.
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IN RE: APPOINTMENTS TO AD HOC COMMITTEE TO STUDY THE FEASIBILITY OF RECYCLING
IN BLOUNT COUNTY — GRADY CASKEY, BRAD BOWERS, TONA MONROE, BRAD
ANSLEY, CHARLENE DESHA, DENNIS SILVERBERG, JUDY CLABOUGH.

Commissioner Samples made a motion to approve the appointments. Commissioner Carver

seconded the motion.
A vote was taken on the motion:

Akard - yes Caskey - abstain
Allen - yes Caylor - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes
Bowers - abstain Crowe - yes
Carter - no Daly - yes
Carver - yes Farmer - yes

French - yes Moon - yes
Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Melton - yes

Miller - yes

Monroe - abstain

There were 17 voting yes, 1 voting no, 3 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

appointments to be approved.

IN RE: APPOINTMENT TO PLANNING COMMISSION (REAPPOINTMENT) — GENEVA W.

Commissioner Melton made a motion to adopt the appointment. Commissioner Lewis seconded

HARRISON.
the motion.

A vote was taken on the motion:
Akard - no Caskey - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes
Archer - yes Cole - no
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes
Carter - yes Daly - no
Carver - yes Farmer - yes

French - yes Moon - yes
Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Lewis - yes Stinnett - abstain
Melton - yes

Miller - no

Monroe - no

There were 15 voting yes, 5 voting no, 1 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

appointment to be approved.

IN RE: A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A WATER QUALITY BUFFER AND RELATED
REGULATION OF STREAMS, RIVERS, WETLANDS, PONDS, AND LAKES, IN BLOUNT

COUNTY.

Commissioner Caskey made a motion to adopt the resolution. Commissioner Carter seconded

the motion.

Commissioner Cole made a motion to amend the resolution to change page 5 (under Section 2
APPLICABILITY) in the 3rd and 4th lines at the top of the page. Strike out the word “unincorporated” and
insert the words “outside of the City/Town limits”. Commissioner Daly seconded the motion.

A vote was taken on the motion to amend:

Akard - yes Caskey - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - no
Archer - yes Cole - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes
Carter - no Daly - yes
Carver - no Farmer - yes

French - yes Moon - yes
Headrick - no Samples - no
Lewis - yes Stinnett - no
Melton - no

Miller - yes

Monroe - yes

There were 14 voting yes, 7 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

amendment to be approved.

Commissioner Cole made a motion to amend the resolution to change page 6 (under Section 4
STANDARDS FOR BUFFER VEGETATION) Substitute Section 4 a. with: The vegetative targets for a
stream, river, spring, or wetland buffer shall include native trees, shrubs and herbaceous vegetation.
Vegetated, preferably native, water quality buffers protect water bodies by providing structural integrity
and canopy cover, as well as storm water infiltration. Commissioner Monroe seconded the motion.

A vote was taken on the motion to amend:

Akard - yes Bowers - yes
Allen - yes Carter - yes
Archer - yes Carver - yes

Caskey - yes Crowe - yes
Caylor - yes Daly - yes
Cole - yes Farmer - no
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French - yes Melton - no Moon - yes
Headrick - yes Miller - yes Samples - yes
Lewis - yes Monroe - yes Stinnett - yes

There were 19 voting yes, 2 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the
amendment to be approved.

Commissioner Cole made a motion to amend the resolution to change Page 7 (under Section 5
ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE WATER QUALITY BUFFER) In Section 5.a.5. Strike out the words “if used
primarily” and INSERT the words “and not used”. Commissioner Carter seconded the motion.

Commissioner Cole and Carter withdrew their motion to amend.

Commissioner Cole made a motion to amend the resolution to change page 9 (under Section 6
PROTECTION OF WATER QUALITY BUFFER) In the 4th paragraph under Section 6 beginning at the 4"
line - Strike out the last sentence which begins with the words “If the property owner....", and strike out all
of Section 6.a. and Section 6.b. Commissioner Monroe seconded the motion.

A vote was taken on the motion to amend:

Akard - yes Caskey - no French - yes Moon - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - no Headrick - no Samples - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - no Stinnett - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - no

Carter - no Daly - yes Miller - yes

Carver - no Farmer - yes Monroe - yes

There were 14 voting yes, 7 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

amendment to be approved.

Commissioner Monroe made a motion to amend the resolution to insert the word knowingly
between the words shall and be in item D-2. Commissioner Miller seconded the motion.

A vote was taken on the motion to amend:

Akard - yes Caskey - no French - no Moon - abstain
Allen - no Caylor - no Headrick - no Samples - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - no Stinnett - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - no

Carter - yes Daly - yes Miller - yes

Carver - no Farmer - no Monroe - yes

There were 11 voting yes, 9 voting no, 1 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

amendment to be approved.

Commissioner Allen made a motion to amend the resolution to change Page 7 (under Section 5
ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE WATER QUALITY BUFFER) In Section 5.a.5. Strike out the words “if used
primarily” and insert the words “and not used for recreational purposes”. Commissioner Caskey

seconded the motion.

A vote was taken on the motion to amend:

Akard - yes Caskey - yes French - yes Moon - abstain
Allen - yes Caylor - no Headrick - yes Samples - no
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - no Stinnett - no
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - abstain

Carter - yes Daly - no Miller - yes

Carver - no Farmer - no Monroe - yes

There were 12 voting yes, 7 voting no, 2 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

amendment to be approved.

Commissioner Monroe made a motion to amend the resolution to strike section 4 item D-3 and D-

4. Commissioner Akard seconded the motion.
A vote was taken on the motion to amend:

Akard - yes Caskey - no French - no Moon - no
Allen - no Caylor - no Headrick - no Samples - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - no Stinnett - no
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - no

Carter - no Daly - yes Miller - yes

Carver - no Farmer - no Monroe - yes
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There were 9 voting yes, 12 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

motion to amend to have failed.

Commissioner Farmer called for the previous question. Commissioner Carver seconded the

French - yes Moon - yes
Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Melton - yes

Miller - no

Monroe - no

motion.
A vote was taken on the motion for the previous question:
Akard - no Caskey - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes
Archer - no Cole - no
Bowers - no Crowe - yes
Carter - yes Daly - yes
Carver - yes Farmer - yes

There were 15 voting yes, 6 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared that

the motion for the previous question carried.

A vote was taken on the motion as amended:

Akard - no Caskey - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes
Archer - no Cole - no
Bowers - no Crowe - yes
Carter - yes Daly - yes
Carver - yes Farmer - yes

French - no Moon - yes
Headrick - yes Samples - abstain
Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Melton - yes

Miller - no

Monroe - no

There were 13 voting yes, 7 voting no, 1 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

resolution as amended to be adopted.

IN RE: RESOLUTION TO AMEND CENTRAL CAFETERIA FUND BUDGET - $20,000.00 and
RESOLUTION TO AMEND GENERAL COUNTY FUND BUDGET - $9,753.50 and
RESOLUTION TO AMEND GENERAL COUNTY FUND BUDGET - $26,206.00 and
RESOLUTION TO AMEND GENERAL COUNTY FUND BUDGET - $1,500.00.

Commissioner Samples made a motion to adopt the resolutions. Commissioner Lewis seconded

Commissioner Monroe made a motion to divide the question. Commissioner Miller seconded the

the motion.
motion.
A vote was taken on the motion to divide the question:
Akard - yes Caskey - no
Allen - yes Caylor - no
Archer - yes Cole - yes
Bowers - no Crowe - no
Carter - no Daly - yes
Carver - no Farmer - no

French - no Moon - no
Headrick - no Samples - no
Lewis - no Stinnett - no
Melton - yes

Miller - yes

Monroe - yes

There were 8 voting yes, 13 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

motion to have failed.
A vote was taken on the original motion:

Akard - yes Caskey - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes
Carter - yes Daly - yes
Carver - yes Farmer - yes

French - yes Moon - yes
Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Melton - yes

Miller - no

Monroe - no

There were 19 voting yes, 2 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the

resolutions to be adopted.

IN RE: 2015-16 BCSO ALCOHOL SATURATION PATROLS/ROADSIDE SOBRIETY CHECKPOINTS

GRANT APPLICATION and

2015-16 BCSO HIGH VISIBILITY CAMPAIGN GRANT APPLICATION and

2015-16 MOTORCYCLE/MOTORIST SAFETY — THE DRAGON GRANT APPLICATION and
2015-16- BCSO NETWORK COORDINATOR GRANT APPLICATION and

2015-16 BCSO NIGHTTIME SEATBELT DEMO PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION.
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Commissioner French made a motion to adopt the grant applications. Commissioner Caylor
seconded the motion.
A vote was taken on the motion:

Akard - no Caskey - yes French - yes Moon - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Archer - yes Cole - no Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - yes

Carter - yes Daly - yes Miller - no

Carver - yes Farmer - yes Monroe - no

There were 17 voting yes, 4 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the
applications to be approved.

IN RE: SETTING OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR MAY 12, 2015, ROOM 430, BLOUNT COUNTY
COURTHOUSE, 6:00P.M. FOR A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF BLOUNT
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, FROM R-1(RURAL DISTRICT ONE) TO RAC (RURAL ARTERIAL
COMMERCIAL) FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 110 AND112 N. SPRING VIEW ROAD, AT
THE CORNER OF US HWY 411 SOUTH AND N. SPRING VIEW ROAD, THE PROPERTY IS
IDENTIFIED ON TAX MAP 089, PARCEL 109.00.

Commissioner Bowers made a motion to set the public hearing. Commissioner French seconded
the motion.
A vote was taken on the motion:

Akard - yes Caskey - yes French - yes Moon - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - yes

Carter - yes Daly - yes Miller - yes

Carver - yes Farmer - yes Monroe - yes

There were 21 voting yes, 0 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the
public hearing to be set.

IN RE: A RESOLUTION BY THE BLOUNT COUNTY COMMISSION PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE
CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 54-10-216 TO CLOSE AND VACATE A SECTION OF THE
ROAD BED AND RIGHT-OF-WAY OF HOBERT HAYES ROAD, A COUNTY MAINTAINED
ROAD IN BLOUNT COUNTY, TENNESSEE.

Commissioner Bowers made a motion to adopt the resolution. Commissioner Allen seconded the
motion.
A vote was taken on the motion:

Akard - yes Caskey - yes French - yes Moon - yes
Allen - yes Caylor - yes Headrick - yes Samples - yes
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - yes Stinnett - yes
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - yes

Carter - yes Daly - yes Miller - yes

Carver - yes Farmer - yes Monroe - yes

There were 21 voting yes, 0 voting no, 0 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the
resolution to be adopted.

IN RE: A RESOLUTION ASKING FEDERAL LEGISLATORS TO STOP THE EXPANSION OF EPA
REGULATIONS OVERWATER AND TO REPEAL STORMWATER REGULATIONS.

Commissioner Monroe made a motion to adopt the resolution. Commissioner Carter seconded
the motion.
A vote was taken on the motion:

Akard - yes Carver - no Daly - yes Melton - no
Allen - no Caskey - yes Farmer - no Miller - yes
Archer - yes Caylor - no French - yes Monroe - yes
Bowers - yes Cole - yes Headrick - no Moon - abstain

Carter - yes Crowe - yes Lewis - no Samples - no
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Stinnett - no
There were 11 voting yes, 9 voting no, 1 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the
resolution to be adopted.

IN RE: ADJOURNMENT.

Chairman Moon declared the meeting to be adjourned.
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
"\ COUNTY OF BLOUNT

/ BE IT REMEMBERED that a zoning public hearing was held on Tuesday, May 12, 2015 at
6:00 pm at the courthouse in Maryville, Tennessee.
Roll call was taken by Roy Crawford, Jr., County Clerk:

Mike Akard - present Mike Caylor - absent Mike Lewis - absent
Andy Allen - present Thomas Cole - absent Kenneth Melton - present
Archie Archer - present Dodd Crowe - present Karen Miller - present
Brad Bowers - present Jamie Daly - present Tona Monroe - absent
Shawn Carter - present Gary Farmer - present Jerome Moon - present
Rick Carver - present Ron French - present Steve Samples - present
Grady Caskey - absent Jeff Headrick - present Tom Stinnett - present

There were 16 present and 5 absent Mike Lewis arrived after the roll was taken. Chairman
Moon declared a quorum to exist. The following proceedings were held to-wit:

IN RE: A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF BLOUNT COUNTY TENNESSEE, FROM
R-1(RURAL DISTRICT 1) TO RAC (RURAL ARTERIAL COMMERCIAL) FOR PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 110 AND 112 N. SPRING VIEW ROAD AT THE CORNER OF US HWY 411
SOUTH AND N. SPRING VIEW ROAD, THE PROPERTY IS IDENTIFIED ON TAX MAP 089,
PARCEL 109.00.

Chairman Moon opened the public hearing. The Chairman called for any public comments on the
resolution. There was no response.

IN RE: ADJOURNMENT.

Chairman Moon declared the meeting to be adjourned.



RESOLUTION No. 15-05-001
Sponsored by Commissioners Gary Farmer and Steve Samples

A RESOLUTION TO ACKNOWLEDGE AND ACCEPT THE BOND AND OATHS OF
DEPUTY SHERIFFS, AND THE BONDS AND OATHS OF NOTARIES OF BLOUNT COUNTY,
TENNESSEE.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Blount County, Tennessee, in session
assembled May 21, 2015:

WHEREAS, Roy Crawford, Jr., Blount County Clerk, has certified according to the records of his
office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS"
have taken their oaths of office; and

WHEREAS, said Roy Crawford, Jr. has certified according to the records of his office that the
persons named on the attached listing labeled "NOTARY PUBLIC BONDS AND OATHS" have
given approved bonds for the office of Notary Public and have taken their oaths of office.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BLOUNT
COUNTY, TENNESSEE:

1. That the persons named on the attached listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY
SHERIFFS" are hereby acknowledged for such and the bonds are accepted and their
oaths therefor are approved as taken; and

2. That the persons named on the attached listing labeled "NOTARY PUBLIC BONDS AND
OATHS" are hereby acknowledged for such and the bonds or sureties are accepted and
approved and their oaths therefor are approved as taken; and

3. That each such person named on the listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing is
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have been
individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION ATTEST

Commission Chairman County Clerk

Approved: ___

Vetoed:

County Mayor Date



REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK

Notary Name
Lisa Stremsterfer

Mark J. Young
Autumn R. Howell
Linda G. Shown
Brittany R. Heath
Steven W. Woolwine
Katie Taylor

Connie Clabough
Bonnie Walker

Callie D. Echols
Jessica L. Bender
Jerrie B. Mcabee
Vicki Lynn Williams
Lydia D. Jeter
Beverly Gail Howell
J. Astudillo

Robert Avery Moss Jr.
Christina Frances Percell
Lora Irwin

Hillary B. Bendle
Karolyn K. Wood
Elizabeth Jane Chambers
Tracy L. Carico
Mechelle S. Barton
Megan J. Howard
Scarlet A. Kelley
Cindy Winters
Kristie L. Bennie
Celena Wilson

W. Leann Webb
Nancy L. Kimball
Glenda B. Rayborn
Walter H. Warren llI
Kayla M. Warren
Kay Fuller

Mary Lawson

TO THE BLOUNT COUNTY COMMISSION

NOTARY PUBLIC BONDS & OATHS

May 21, 2015
The following Notaries Public Elect of Blount County appeared in the County Clerk’s Office to
receive their Commissions duly signed by the Honorable William Haslam, Governor, and
countersigned by approved bond of Ten Thousand Dollars and qualified as by law required:

Date Qualified
April 14, 2015

April 14, 2015
April 14, 2015
April 14, 2015
April 14, 2015
April 15, 2015
April 16, 2015
April 16, 2015
April 16, 2015
April 17, 2015
April 20, 2015
April 20, 2015
April 21, 2015
April 22, 2015
April 22, 2015
April 23, 2015
April 23, 2015
April 23, 2015
April 24, 2015
April 27, 2015
April 27, 2015
April 27, 2015
April 28, 2015
April 28, 2015
April 28, 2015
April 29, 2015
April 30, 2015
April 30, 2015
April 30, 2015
May 1, 2015

May 4, 2015

May 4, 2015

May 4, 2015

May 5, 2015

May 6, 2015

May 7, 2015

Surety
Western Surety Company

Western Surety Company

Surety Bonding Company of America
State Farm Fire & Casualty Company
Western Surety Company

Merchants Bonding Company
American Bankers Insurance Company
American Bankers Insurance Company
Western Surety Company

Western Surety Company

AMCO Insurance Company

Western Surety Company

Surety Bonding Company of America
State Farm Fire & Casualty Company
Western Surety Company

Old Republic Surety Company

Surety Bonding Company of America
Connie L. McCammon, Karen Miceli
Surety Bonding Company of America
Sherry Bales, Joe Sunderland

Old Republic Surety Company
Western Surety Company

Western Surety Company

Liberty Mutual Surety

Travelers Casualty & Surety Company
Chester Franklin, Gail Franklin
Travelers Casualty & Surety Company
Auto-Owners Mutual Insurance Company
American Bankers Insurance Company
Western Surety Company

Western Surety Company

Surety Bonding Company of America
Surety Bonding Company of America
RLI Insurance Company

Western Surety Company

American Bankers Insurance Company



Brittany Tippit
Monica Renee Todd
Supranee Haines Vollman
Deborah L. Sawyer
Billie M. Woods
Mary Denny

Lestina M. Sprague
Lynn K. Waters
Melody K. Mason
Rhonda Jan Taylor
Dwight Price

Selena E. Graves
Melissa Sue Pfitzner

May 7, 2015
May 8, 2015
May 8, 2015
May 8, 2015
May 8, 2015
May 8, 2015
May 8, 2015
May 11, 2015
May 12, 2015
May 13, 2015
May 13, 2015
May 14, 2015
May 15, 2015

RLI Insurance Company

Merchants Bonding Company
Merchants Bonding Company
Western Surety Company

Travelers Casualty & Surety Company
Surety Bonding Company of America
Merchants Bonding Company
Surety Bonding Company of America
Surety Bonding Company of America
State Farm Fire & Casualty Company
Deborah Campbell, Barbara Nease
Western Surety Company

Surety Bonding Company of America



REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK
TO THE BLOUNT COUNTY COMMISSION
OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS

May 21, 2015
Name Date of oath
Phillip Martin HOOd ...........ccovviiiieiiiineee April 16, 2015

Deah Ann Hatmaker...........ccococeeeiniieeene May 1, 2015



Roy Crawford, Jr.
County Clerk

BLOUNT COUNTY

Office of the County Clerk

345 COURT STREET, MARYVILLE, TENNESSEE 37804-5906

Telephone (865) 273-5800
Fax (865) 273-5815

NOTARIES TO BE ELECTED MAY 21, 2015

Brenda Alene Atkins
Jimmie Sue Ausmus
Rickey Lynn Bright
Clarence Paul Byrd
Deborah Jane Campbell
Rhonda Kelly Cardwell
Nikki Cox

Randi Jean Earley
Celeste Nicole Elias
Desiree Elena Fine
Lawrence Nicholas Goddard
Donna R. Henderson
Zak Tyler Henry
Terresa Gayle Hill

Leigh Renee Jenkins
Lori Jean Lane

Ronald Eugene Lehigh

Gina L. Massey

Dena M. McAfee

Kimberly Kris Mynatt

Delbert Christopher Poulopoulos
Benjamin James Reed

Nancy Faye Scates

Angela Dawn Stuart

Janet Sue Sullivan

Mona Taylor

Donna Marie Van Camp

Carla Joan Waple

Amber Lorraine Weltman

Amy Wilson

Kimberly Amanda Beth Wilson



RESOLUTION NO. 15-05-002

Sponsored by: Commissioners Jerome Moon/Mike Lewis

RESOLUTION TO AMEND GENERAL FUND BUDGET

WHEREAS, Blount County would like to amend the General Fund Budget to appropriate funds
for supplemental funding to the Youth Services Officers (YSOs) in Juvenile Court; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interest of Blount County to amend the General Fund
budget as requested.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Blount County,
Tennessee assembled in regular session this 21st day of May, 2015 that the General Fund Budget
shall be amended as follows:

Revenue:
101-0-489900

Appropriation:

101-53500-500112
101-53500-500204
101-53500-500212
101-53500-500206
101-53500-500201

Use of Fund Balance ...........cccceevveevveinnnnne $9000.00
Youth Services Officers Salaries.............. $7560.00
REIFEMENT ..o $859.00
V<o [0z T SRR $110.00
[N (T $2.00
FICA . ittt ss s see e e $469.00
TOTAL . $9000.00

Duly authorized and approved this 21st day of May, 2015.

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION: ATTEST:

Commission Chairman

Approved:
Vetoed:

County Clerk

County Mayor Date



Blount County Government
Budget Amendment Request

FY 14-15
Type of Amendment:
Transfer Department: Juvenile Court
Increase/Decrease Account: 101-53500
Account Number Description Amount
TO 101-53500-500112 Youth Services Officers 7,560.00
Used\with transfers 101-53500-500204 Retirement 859.00
101-53500-500206 Life 2.00
101-53500-500201 FICA 469.00
(or) 101-53500-500212 Medicare 110.00
APPROPRIATION
Used with Inc/dec
Total 9,000.00
Account Number Descrlption Amount
FROM 101-4-489900 Use of Fund Balance 9,000.00
Used with transfers
(or)
EST REVENUE
Used with inc/dec
Total 9,000.00
Explanation: To ensure Juvenile Court receives the YSO supplemental funds grant from

TN. Dept. of Children's Services

A 4

Qf’t 05005 | 2601 S

Sifinat )r' off)'l}l i/f)epa

rt;hent Head/Date

Signature of County Mayor/Date

*All requests are due to FInanclal Analyst’s Office by noon on the Tuesday before the Budget Committee Meeting.



KENLYN FOSTER
JupGE, GENERAL SESSIONS COURT, Division 11
JUVENILE COURT
Brount County, TENNESSEE

335 Court Street PHONE: 865-273-5952
Maryville, Tennessee 37804 FAX: 865-273-5965
kfoster@blounttn.org

May 4, 2015

TO: THE BLOUNT COUNTY BUDGET COMMITTEE

The Blount County Juvenile Court is the recipient of a grant funded by The Department
of Children’s Services, in the amount of $9000 per year. The grant title is JJ] SUPPLEMENTAL
COURT FUNDS. The purpose of the grant is to supplement Youth Service Officer’s salaries.

( Blount County Youth Service Officers are well below average in the pay range of surrounding
counties.) The goal of the funding is for Youth Service Officers to help prevent delinquent
children from going into state’s custody.

Upon taking office, I discovered that the County has been receiving these funds, but these
funds were not being dispersed to supplement the Youth Service Officer’s salaries. Our Youth
Services Officers are essential to our court. They work hard to offer significant, positive
services and strive to achieve better outcomes for delinquent juveniles. I am asking that you
please authorize a transfer of the grant funds from the general fund to the Youth Service Officer’s

salary line item in the Juvenile Court budget.

Enclosed please find a copy of the JJ SUPPLEMENTAL COURT FUNDS Grant Invoice.
I deeply appreciate your consideration of this request.

Sincerel

3

en 1}%@ “
Juvenile Judge




STATE OF TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN SERVICES
LINE-ITEM REIMBURSEMENT GRANT INVOICE

Name and Address of Grantee: Grant Contract Type: JJ Suoplemental Court Funds Invoice #:
‘ LY \ } Grant Contract # Inv End Date: December 31, 2014
24t 4.+ . Cortact Person: Ng Grant Period: July 1. 2074 - June 30, 2075
LN ACUIS TV AG E 1) SFRCU Telephone: QF& <8QL1R LA 4D Inv. Period: July 1-Dec 31, 2014
- 1 = -
Tetal Actua! Total Actual
Total DCS Expenditures Expenditures Amount Due from
Expense Line-ltem Category Total Budget | Contract Budgaet | YeartoDate This Month Agency Match State Commentsg
1.2 |Salaries, Benefitz & Taxes S.000.00 9,000.C0 4.500.00 4.500.00 450000

415 |Professionzl Fees/Grant & Award

5,6,7.8 |Supolies, Telephone, Postzage &
810 [Shipping, Occupancy, Equipmeant
Rental & Maintznance, Printing &

Publications
| 1112 [TraveliConterences & Meetings
13 |Interas:

14 linsurance

18 |Assistance io Individuzis

17 |Depreciation

'3 |Other Nen-Persorne!

20 [Capdal Purchase

22 |indirect Cost

| 24 |in-Kind Expense
L35 Grand Total 9.000.00 2.000 00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4.560.00
hereby certify, 1o the best of my knowledge the accuracy of the DCS OFFICE USE ONLY
‘nformation provided in this invoice. The amounis billed have nict been Contfract ID
Sr2visusly resuested and are in actordanca with Ihe contrast terms and
canditions PO endi
( i E: - [ l ’ L.{/ q/A-5-----'"Rnaw:aair.‘t Voucher
Grant@ Authorized Signature N ' ode DCS Autharized Signaturs Date

Cuidng Duale A¥3-34u4

Prin Name 7 Tiie #

Phens 8 Print Name / Title Phone #
CQL(H’ d\red'q‘



RESOLUTION NO. 15-05-009
Sponsored by: Commissioners Mike Lewis /Jerome Moon
RESOLUTION TO AMEND HIGHWAY FUND BUDGET

WHEREAS, Blount County would like to amend the Highway Fund Budget to appropriate
funds for a 4™ Quarter Housekeeping Entry to Reduce Use of Fund Balance; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interest of Blount County to amend the Highway
Fund budget as requested.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Blount County,
Tennessee assembled in regular session this 21st day of May, 2015 that the Highway Fund
Budget shall be amended as follows:

Revenue:

131-0-489900-0 Use of Fund Balance ............ccceeeuveeene. $83,375.62

Appropriation:

131-0-479900-0 Other Direct Federal Revenue................. $-9000.00

131-0-497000-0 Insurance RECOVEIY .......cocoevvivveeiiieininnns $1543.14

131-0-433500-0 COPY FEES vt $26.75

131-0-441700-0 Miscellaneous Refunds..........ccccoevvevvveeneen. $70.41

131-0-469900-0 Other State REVENUES .........cceeeevveeeneeenn $90,585.32

131-0-445600-0 Damages Recovered from Individuals........ $150.00
TOTAL ..o $83,375.62

Duly authorized and approved this 21st day of May, 2015.

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION: ATTEST:
Commission Chairman County Clerk
Approved:

Vetoed:

County Mayor Date



Type of Amendment:

Transfer

Blount County Government
Budget Amendment Request
FY 14-15

Department: hwy o

Increase/Decrease 72 Account: 131-revenues
Account Number Description Amount
TO
Used with transfers
131-0-479900-0 other dir fed rev -9,000.00
(or) 131-0-497000-0 ins recovery 1,5643.14
131-0-433500-0 copy fees 26.75
131-0-441700-0 misc rev 70.41
ARRRORRIATION 131-0-445600-0 damages recovered 150.00
Used with lne/dec 131-0-469900-0 other slale rev 90,585.32
|  83,375.62
Account Number Description Amount
FROM 131-0-489900-0 other 83,375.62 |
Used with transfers
(or)
EST REVENUE
Used with Inc/dec
Total 83,375.62

Explanation:

4th qtr adj--housekeeping entry to reduce the use of fund balance N

’i)( ( [;f __‘)(,1 Vs 4 ‘“{}/9;1 / 15 .

Slgh_:ilute of U]‘hrialfl)rrpmt'nmr"]liﬂﬁui;’li.'.;?u

Signature of County Mayor/Date

*All requests are due to Financial Analyst's Office by noon on the Tuesday before the Budget Comimittee Meeting.



RESOLUTION NO. 15-05-010
Sponsored by: Commissioners Jerome Moon/Mike Lewis
RESOLUTION TO AMEND GENERAL SCHOOL FUND BUDGET
WHEREAS, Blount County would like to amend the General School Fund Budget to

appropriate for a Surcharge for School Department’s share of underfunded Worker’s Comp
Insurance Fund and,

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interest of Blount County to amend the General
School Fund budget as requested.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Blount County,
Tennessee assembled in regular session this 21st day of May, 2015 that the General Fund Budget
shall be amended as follows:

Revenue:
141-0-489900-0 Use of Fund Balance ..........ccccccevvennee. $259,048.00

Appropriation:
141-72310-500513-0 Worker’s Compensation Insurance .....$259,048.00

Duly authorized and approved this 21st day of May, 2015.

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION: ATTEST:
Commission Chairman County Clerk
Approved:

Vetoed:

County Mayor Date



Blount County Government
Budget Amendment Request
FY 14-15

Type of Amendment:

Transfer Department: GPSF
Increase/Decrease Account: 141-72310
Account Number Description Amount
TO
Usedwithliransfers 141-72310-513 Workers Comp Insurance 259,048.00
{or)
APPROPRIATION
Used with inc/dec
Totall  259,048.00
Account Number Description Amount
FROM
Used with transfers 141-000000-489900 Use of Fund Balance 259,048.00
(or)
EST REVENUE
Used with inc/dec
Totaf  259,048.00
Explanation: Surcharge for School Departments’ share of underfunded workers comp
insurance fund.
1 /)

X/
Tioy plpn forts

Slgnature of Q@dalmepaé&ént Head/Date Signature of County Mayor/Date

*All requests are due to Financial Analyst’s Office by noon on the Tuesday before the Budget Committee Meeting.

“Apiove.! By The Beard Of Fdveatioe” 5 -7- /45—



Troy Logan

From: Ashley Spangler [aspangler@blounttn.org]

Sent: Friday, January 30, 2015 5:16 PM

To: Troy Logan

Subject: FY 15-16 Budget Request

Attachments: expn_req_141-71100.xls; expn_req_141-71200.xIs; expn_req_141-71300.xls; expn_req_

141-71600.xls; expn_req_141-71900.xls; expn_req_141-72110.xIs; expn_req_141-72120.xls;
expn_req_141-72130.xls; expn_req_141-72210.xIs; expn_req_141-72220.xIs; expn_req_
141-72230.xls; expn_req_141-72260.xIs; expn_req_141-72290.xls; expn_req_141-72310Q.xls;
expn_req_141-72320.xls; expn_req_141-72410.xls; expn_req_141-72510.xIs; expn_req_
141-72610.xis; expn_req_141-72620.xIs; expn_req_141-72710.xls; expn_req_141-72810.xls;
expn_req_141-73400.xls; expn_req_141-76100.xls; expn_req_141-82330.xls; expn_req_
142-71100-11501.xls; expn_req_142-71100-71501.xls; expn_req_142-71100-91501.xls;
expn_req_142-71200-31401.xls; expn_req_142-71200-31501.xls; expn_req_
142-71200-31502.xls; expn_req_142-71200-31503.xls; expn_req_142-71200-41401.xls;
expn_req_142-71200-41501.xls; expn_req_142-71300-61501.xis; expn_req_
142-71300-81501.xls; expn_req_142-72130-11501.xls; expn_req_142-72130-61501.xls;
expn_req_142-72130-71501.xls; expn_req_142-72210-11501.xls; expn_req_
142-72210-11503.xls; expn_req_142-72210-51404.xls; expn_req_142-72210-51502.xls;
expn_req_142-72210-71501.xls; expn_req_142-72210-91501.xls; expn_req_
142-72220-31401.xls; expn_req_142-72220-31501.xls; expn_req_142-72220-31502.xIs;
expn_req_142-72220-31503.xls; expn_req_142-72220-41501.xls; expn_req_
142-72230-61501.xls; expn_req_142-72710-31501.xls; expn_req_142-99100-11501.xIs;
expn_req_142-99100-71501.xls; expn_req_142-99100-91501.xls; expn_req_143-73100.xls;
expn_req_146-73300.xls; revn_rg_141.xIs; revn_rq_142.xls; revn_rq_143.xIs; revn_rq_
146.xls; Budget Manual.pdf; Budget Process Calendar.pdf

Good afternoon,
Attached are your expense and revenue request spreadsheets for FY 2015-16.

| have also attached the budget manual with the current rates for the year & the most recent calendar. Workers’
compensation is being charged differently this year than in previous years. The risk management department has
calculated a total of $442,182 for Schools (Decreased $51,008 from the current year). We previously calculated workers’
compensation based on salaries in each department and it was budgeted in each account, but we have now taken that
calculation out and it is up to you whether you pay it all from one account or split it up between all your accounts how
you choose. Please call me if you’re not sure on this & | cap.explainmore. There will aiso be a workers’ compensation
surcharge this year in order to balance the WC account of $259,048 for the Schools — any questions on this one please
call Don Stallions.

Please return all budget requests to me by Friday, February 13™ at 12 PM.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Thanks!

Ashley Spangler
Financial Analyst

Blount County Government
341 Court Street

Maryville, TN 37803
Phone: 865.273.5717



Tax / Benefit Line # Specific Guidelines Rate
Workers Comp 513 | FOR ALL FUNDS/EMPLOYEES /5~ J¥-75
General County (Excluding Sheriff’s Dept.) $155/Employee
Public Library $2,500
Sheriff’s Dept. $383,093
Highway Dept. $117,193 ]
Schools sa 182 A2, 157 Gt "7)
Surcharge Rate:
General County 101-51900-500513 $249,240
Highway 131-61000-500513 $68,656
Schools 141-72310-500513 $259,048
o —
General Liability 506 | FOR ALL FUNDS
Insurance
General Fund 101-51900-500506 $514,712
Library 115-56500-500506 $27,000
Highway Dept. 131-61000-500506 $99,199 )
G.P. Schools 14172310-500506  $s44383  4egece | 136,453
/415 /516
e — —————————
e 4 = 3mc00 7T 353, oo
LWe )47 = 5,50 [7? ¢é, o0
we J¥ = P oo 2 —
W Yk = jaﬂé’ﬂf;’ L) zz'/oé
jod /e
493 187 42 200



RESOLUTION NO._15-05-011
Sponsored by: Commissioners Jerome Moon/Mike Lewis
RESOLUTION TO AMEND DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET

WHEREAS, Blount County would like to amend the Debt Service Fund Budget to appropriate
funds to Account for the Expenses and Revenues associated with 2015A and 2015B and,

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interest of Blount County to amend the Debt Service
Fund budget as requested.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Blount County,
Tennessee assembled in regular session this 21st day of May, 2015 that the Debt Service Fund
Budget shall be amended as follows:

Revenue:
151-0-489900-0 Use of Fund Balance ..............c......... $1,394,499.97
151-0-491000-0 Bond Proceeds..........ccovvveeiivveneens $26,905,000.00
151-0-494100-0 Refunding Bonds........cccceeevieiiieeenneen, $686,152.95
TOTAL ..o $28,985,652.92
Appropriation:
151-82210-500603-0 Interest on Bonds..........ccoeevveeeevnnennn. $1,682,516.11
151-99300-500699-0 Other Debt Service .......ccccceevveeenee.. $20,233,051.77
151-82310-500605-0 Other Debt Underwriter Discount....... $182,646.57
151-82310-500606-0 Other Debt Issuance Charges................ $82,405.00
151-82310-500599-0 Other Charges........cccovveveeveieevecc e, $2200.00
151-82310-500699-0 Other Debt Service .......coeeeiiveeiinneens $6,802,833.47
TOTAL ..o $28,985,652.92

Duly authorized and approved this 21st day of May, 2015.

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION: ATTEST:
Commission Chairman County Clerk
Approved:

Vetoed:

County Mayor Date



Blount County Government
Budget Amendment Request

FY 14-15
Type of Amendment: .
Transfer Department: Accountlng
Increase/Decrease Account: Debt Service
Account Number Description Amount
TO
Used with transfers
151-82210-500603-0 Interest on Bonds 1,682,516.11
(or) 151-99300-500699-0 Other Debt Service 20,233,051.77
151-82310-500605-0 Other Debt Underwriter Discount 182,646.57
151-82310-500606-0 Other Debt Issuance Charges 82,405.00
APPROPRIATION 151-82310-500599-0 Other Charges 2,200.00
Used with inc/dec 151-82310-500699-0 Other Debt Service 6,802,833.47
Total| 28,985,652.92
Account Number Description Amount
FROM
Used with transfers
{or)
151-0-489900-0 Other-Use of Fund Balance 1,394,499.97
EST REVENUE 151-0-491000-0 Bond Proceeds 26,905,000.00
Used with Inc/dec 151-0-494100-0 Refunding Bonds 686,152.95
Tota| 28,985,652.92
Explanation: To account for the expenses and revenues associated with the 2015AB
refinancing
S5
Sigr}éture of Official/Department Head/Datd Signature of County Mayor/Date

*All requests are due to Financial Analyst’s Office by noon on the Tuesday before the Budget Committee Meeting.




Blount County Government

Memo

To: Budget Commlttee >

From: Randy Vineyard (, K }
Date: 5.11.15

Re: Debt Service Budget Amendment

The County recently took upon the task of refinancing its E-3-B piece of debt. The 6 month process to
refinance was ultimately completed in March 2015 and the E-3-B became two fixed rate pieces of debt,
2015A and 2015B. The attached Budget Amendment will properly account, per the Auditors, for the
various transactions associated with refinancing.

In effect, we are grossing up expense and revenues to reflect the accounting for both the taxable, Swap
Termination, and non-taxable transactions.

Thank you.



Stale Form Mo, CT-0253

Page1of3
Revised Effective 1/1/14
REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
{Pursuant taTennesses Code Annotated Section 9-21-151)
1, Public Entity:
Name: Blount County, Tennessee
Address 341 Court Strest
Maryville, Tennessee 37804
Debtissue Name:  Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Serles 2015A
I disclosing Inltlatly for @ program, attach the form specifled for updates, Indicating the freq y required.
2, Face Amount: $ 7,120,000.00
premium/Discount:  $ 0.00
3. Interest Cost: 1,7966 % I:Irax-exempt ETaxable
Fne  [Owe
DVarlable: Index plus basls polnts; or

DVarlable: Remarkellng Agent

DOther:

4, Debt Obligation:

[Jrean [Jran [Jeon
[Jean [Jeran  [Joan

Bond Dloan Agreement DCaplta| Lease

Hfany of the notes llsted abaye are [ssued pursuant to Titsa 8, Chapter 21, erclose a copy of the axecuted nole
with the fiing with the Office of State and Local Finance [“OSLF").

5, Ratings:

DUnrated

Moody’s stondard & Poor's  AA~ fitch AA-

6. Purpose:

BRIEF DESCRIPTION

E]General Government %
DEducatlon %

DUlilltles %
D()ther %

mRefundlng/Renewal 100.00 %

7. Security:

EGenerel Obligation DGen eral Obligation + Revenue/Tax
DRevenue : L__]Tax Increment Financing {TIF)
DAnnuaI Appropriatten (Capltal Lease Only) Do:her {Describe):

8. Type of Sale:

mCompeﬁtive Public Sale Dlntetfund Loan
DNegotla\ed Sale [:]Loan Program
Dlnformal Bid

9, Date:

Dated Date: 03/05/2015 Issue/Closing Date: 03/05/2015



Report on debt obligation added 5/20/15 


Page2of3 State Form No. CT-0253

Revised Effective 1/1/14
REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
{Pursvant to Tennessee Coda Annotated Sectlon 9-21-151}
10. Maturlty Dates, Amounts and Interest Rates *:
: Intarest : : ; Interast
Year .= iAmount Rate : Year Amount Rate
2018 151,135,000.00 0.5500 % $ %
2047 |$1.165,000.00 0.9000 % $ %
2018__| $1,175,000.00 1,2600 % $ %
2018 |$1,190,000.00 1.8100 % $ %
2020 $1,215,000.00 2.0000 % $ %
2021 $1,240,000.00 2.1500 % $ %
$ % 5 %
5 % $ %
$ % $ %
$ % $ %
$ % $ %

If more space Is needed, attach an additlonal sheet.

If (1) the debt has a final maturity of 31 or more years from the date of Issuance, (2) principal repayment Is delayed for two or more years, or (3) debt service
payments are nol level throughout the retirement perlod, then a cumulattve repayment schedule (grouped in 5year Increments out to 30 years) Including this and all
other entity debt secured by the same source MUST BE PREPARED AND ATTACHED. For purposes of this form, debt secured by an ad valorem tax pledge and debt
secured by a dual ad valorem tax and revenue pledge are secured by the same source. Also, debt secured by the same revenue stream, no matter what lten level, Is
considered secured by the same source,

* This sectlon Is not applicable to the initial Report for @ Borrowlng Program,

11. Cost of Issuance and Professionals:
DNo costs or professionals

AMOUNT - FRMINAMES

(Round tonearest $}
Flnanclal Advlsor Fees 11,092 Public Financlal Management
Legal Fees 0
Bond Counsel 9.791 Bass, Berry & Sims PLC

Issuer’s Counsel
Trustea's Counsel
Bank Counsel
Disclosure Counsel

Swap Advisor Fees

Public FInanclal Management

BB WBYLLLYLYLUVYLYY BN
o
=g
o
(=3
(=]

paylng Agent Fees 79 U.S. Bank National Association
Reglstrar Fees 0
Trustee Fees ]
Remarketing Agent Fees 0
Liquidity Fees 0
Rating Agency Fees 10,718 S&P, Filch
Credit Enhancement Fees 0
Bank Closing Costs 0
Undenwrlter’s Discount ____~~ %
Take Down $0
Management Fee $0
Risk Premium $ 0
Underwriter’s Counsel $0
Other expenses $0
Printing and Advertising Fees $ 483 World Printing, Ipreo
Issuer/Admin|strator Program Fees $0
Real Estate Fees $0
Sponsorship/Referral Fee $0
Other Cosls __ $ 1,835
TOTAL COSTS $ 43,978




Page3of3 State Form No, CT-0253
Revised Effective 1/1/14

REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION

{Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Sectton 9-21-151)

12, Recurring Costs:
ENO Recurring Costs

L JAMDUNT : : FiIRM NAME SerEN
(Basis points/$) : (i different from B11) :

Remarketing Agent

Paying Agent / Reglstrar
Trustee

Liquidity / Credit Enhancement
Escrow Agent

Sponsorship / Program / Admin
Other

13, Disclosure Document / Official Statement;

DNone Prepared
[Jemma ok or
Copv attached
14, Continuing Disclosure Obligations:
Is there an exlsting contlnuing disclosure obligation related to the security for this debt? E'ﬂ!s DNo
Is there a continuing disclosure obligation agr trefated to this debt? m'{es DNO

If yes 1o elther question, date that disclosure 1s due _June 30, 2015
Name and tille of person responsible for compliance_Blount Countly, Tennessee

15, Written Debt Management Policy:

Governing Bady's approval date of the current verslon of the written debt management policy O / /6 / R0/ ;{
Is the debt obllgation In compliance with and clearly suthorized under the pollcy? Yes DNo

16. Written Derlvative Management Policy:
MNo derlvative

Governing Body's approval date of the current verslon of the written derlvative management pollcy

Date of Letter of Compliance for derlvallve

Is the derlvative in compliance with and clearly authorlzed under the policy? DYes DNo
|—1_7. Submission of Report:
To the Governing Body: on 3/ 20 [XPIS and presented at publte meeting held on &th‘ /¢ fﬂp/&' 1
Copy to Director to OSLF: nOF E o2 S elther by:
[Z]Mat to: OR emalt to:
505 Deaderlck Street, Sulte 1600 StateAndlocalfinance.PublicDabiForm@cot. tn.gov

James K, Polk State Office 8ullding
Nashvllle, TN 37243-1402

1B, Signatures:

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
- Z o

/C; ..c.

Name G. Mark Mamantov

Title County Mayor Attorney

Firm _Bass, Berry & Slins PLC
Emell mmarmantov@bassberry.com

Date 03/05/2015 03/05/2015




Page 10f3

REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION

(Pursuant ta Tennessee Code Annoalated Section 9-21-151)

State Form No, CT-0253
Revised Effective 1/1/14

1. Public Entity: .
Mame: Blount County, Tennessee

Address 341 Court Streat
Maryville, Tennessee 37804
Debt Issue Name:  Goneral Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 20158
If disetosing Inttially for s program, attach the form specifled for upd Indlcating the fraq y required

2, Face Amount: $ 19,785,000.00
Premlum/Discount:  $ 686,152.95

MTax~exempt

3, Interest Cost: 2.7451

7 L

DVarlablez Index plus
DVarlable: Remarketing Agent

basls palnts; or

DTaxable

DOther:

4, Debt Obligation:
[Jrean [ran [Teow

C Oean  Oeran [Joan
Bond E]Loan Agreement DCapitaI lease

IMany of the notes Jisted above are Issued pursuant Lo Titke 9, Chapler 21, enclose a copy of the executed note
wiith the fifing with tha Ofkca of State and Local Finance ["OSLF*).

5. Ratings:

DUnraled

Moody’s Standard & Poor's

AA- Fitch AA-

6. Purpose:

DG eneral Government %

BRIEF. DESCRIPTION ; : ;. ;

DEdutallon #

[Juuities - %

DOther %

Refundlnglnenewal 100.00 %

7. Security:
General Obligation
DRevenue

DTnx Increment Financing (TIF}
D(}ther {Describe):

DGeneral Obligation + Revenue/Tex

DAnnual Appropiiatlon {Capital Lease Only}

8. Type of Sale:

mCompetlttve Public Sale Dlnterfund Loan

DNegotIated Sale DLoan Program

Dlnformal 8id

9, Date:

Dated Dage; 03/05/2015 tssue/Closing Date: 03/05/2015




Page20of 3 State Form No. CT-0253
Revised Effective 1/1/14
REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION
{Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Sectlon 9-21-151)
10, Maturity Dates, Amounts and interest Rates *:
I ‘Interast l Interest
Year f Amount ‘Rate Year, Amount Rate
2016 | $150,000.00 2.0000 % 2027 | $1,840,000.00 3.0000 %
2017 | $265,000.00 2 0000 % 2030 $2,010,000.00 3.0000 %
2018 | $300,000.00 2 0000 % 2031 $2,070,000.00 3.0000 %
2019 $305,000.00 2,0000 % $ %
2020 15305,000.00 2.0000 % $ %
2021 |$315,000.00 2.0000 % $ %
2022 51,685,000.00 2.0000 % $ %
2023 $1,615,000.00 2.0000 % $ %
2024 $1,650,000.00 4.0000 % $ %
2026 $1,715,000.00 4.0000 % $ %
2026 | $1,785,000.00 3.0000 % ) %

If more space [s needed, altach an additlonal sheet.

If (1) the debt has a final maturity of 31 or more years from the date of Issuance, (2) principal repayment Is delayed for two or more years, or (3) debt service
payments are not level throughout the reticement perlod, then a cumulative repayment scheduls (grouped in 5 year Increments out to 30 years} Including this and all
other entity debt secured by the same source MUST BE PREPARED AND ATTACHED. For purposes of this form, debt secured by an ad valorem tax pledge and debt
secured by a dval ad valorem tax and revenue pledge are secured by the same source. Also, debt secured by the sama revenue stream, no matter what lten level, Is
consldered secured by the same source.

* This section Is not applicable to the Initlal Report for a Borrowing Program.

11, Cost of Issuance and Professionals:

DNO costs or professionals

Flnanclal Advisor Fees
Legal Fees
Bond Counsel
Issuer’s Caunsel
Trustee's Caunsel
Bank Counsel
Disclosure Counsel

Paylng Agent Fees
Registrar Fees
Trustee Fees
Remarketing Agent Fees
Llquidity Fees
Rating Agency Fees
Credit Enhancement Fees
8ank Closing Costs
Underwriter’s DIscount
Take Down
Management Fee
Rlsk Premlum
Undenwriter’s Counsel
Other expenses
Printing and Advertising Fees
Issuer/Admlalstrator Program Fees
Real Estate Fees
Sponsorship/Referral Fee
Other Costs _

%

TOTAL COSTS

WA A0 W W

A WA

(Round to nearest §)

30,813

Public Financlal Management

i}

27,209

Bass, Berry & Sims PLC

0

0

0

0

221

U.S. Bank National Association

S&P, Fitch

World Printing, Ipreo

ol=|olelelele

(6] [=] o]

096

Miscellaneous costs

94,408
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REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION

{Puesuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Sectlon 9-21-151)

12, Recurring Costs:
No Recurring Costs

AMOUNT FIRM NAME:
(Basis points/$) (Il different from #11)

Remarketlng Agent

Paylng Agent / Reglstrar
Trustee

Liquidity / Credit Enhancement
Escrow Agent

Sponsorship / Progtam / Admin
Other

13, Disclosure Document / Officlal Statement:
DNone Prepared
[Jemmaink or
MCopy attached

14, Continuing Disclosure Obligations:
Is there anvexisting continulng disclosure obligation related (o the security for this debt? m‘fas DNO

Is there a continuing dlsclosure obligatlon agreement related to this debt? m‘res DNo
If yes ta elther question, date that disclosure Is due _Jung 30, 2015
Name and title of person responsible for compliance_Blount County, Tennessee

15, Written Dabt Management Policy:
Governing Body's approval date of Lhe current verslon of the written debt management pollcy Oa"//da go?wg?,

Is the debt obligatlon in compllance with and clearly authorized under the policy? Yes DNo

16. Written Derlvatlve Management Policy:
No derivallve

Governing Body’s approval date of the current verslon of the written derivative management pollcy

Date of Letter of Compllance for derlvative

Is the derlvative fn compllance with and clearly authorized under the polley? Dves DNo
17. Submission of Report:
To the Governing Body: on (D54 /380/3015 and presented at public meeting held on @([{ [ g&@/
Copy to Direclor to OSLF: on Dgﬂp/ézelther by:
[Z]Mal to: OR Clema to:
505 Deaderlck Street, Sulte 1600 1o ocalFinance.PublicBebtForm@cot,in.gov

James K Polk State Office Bullding
Nashville, TN 37243-1402

18, Signatures:
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE = = .
Name S "I G. Mark Mamantov
Title County Mayor Aftorney
Flrm Bass, Berry & Sims PLC
£mall mmamantov@bassberry.com

Date 03/05/2015 03/05/2015




Blount County, TN
Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015A

Bidding Results
Firm Bid Amount TIC
Raymond James 6,799,259.25 1.801051%
SunTrust 6,832,186.80 1.843523%
Piper 6,895,452.65 1.865847%
FTN 6,911,410.85 1.890307%
Baird 6,854,224.70 1.917826%
Fifth Third 6,957,557.60 1.962924%
BMO Capital 6,800,222.00 2.013772%
FirstSouthwest 6,795,353.02 2.067370%
Bidder: Fifth Third FirstSouthwest BMO Capital FTN Raymond James Baird Piper SunTrust
Bidder 1 Bidder 2 Bidder 3 Bidder 4 Bidder 5 Bidder 6 Bidder 7 Bidder 8
Bid Price: 6,957,557.60 6.795,353.02 6,800,222.00 6,911,410.85 6,799,259.25 6,854,224.70 6,895,452 65 6,832,186.80
Maturity Principal Coupon Coupon Coupon Coupon Coupon Coupon Coupon Coupon
06/01/16 1,060,000.00 2.00% 1.00% 0.70% 2.00% 0.55% 2.00% 1.00% 1.00%
06/01/17 1,105,000.00 2.00% 1.12% 115% 2.00% 090% 2.00% 1.50% 1.00%
06/01/18 1,125,000.00 2.00% 1.52% 1.60% 2.00% 1.25% 2.00% 1.75% 2.00%
06/01/19 1,150,000.00 2.00% 1.92% 1.90% 2.00% 1.81% 2.00% 2.25% 2.00%
06/01/20 1,175,000.00 3.00% 225% 220% 2.50% 2.00% 2.00% 2.50% 2.00%
06/01/21 1,205,000.00 3.00% 2.46% 2.40% 2.50% 2.15% 2.20% 2.50% 2.15%

Public Financial Management Date: 2/25/2015 Time: 10:24 AM



PARITY Result Screen

10:06:08 a.m. CDST | Upcoming Calendar

| Overview || Compare | Summary }

Bid Results

$6,820,000 Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds,

The following bids were submitted using PARITY® and displayed ranked by lowest TIC.

Blount County

Series 2015A

Click on the name of each bidder to see the respective bids.

Bid Award” Bidder Name TIC
[ Reofﬁeri_ng 1 Raymond James & Associates, Inc.|1.801051
SunTrust Robinson Humphrey 1.843523
& Piper Jaffray 1.865847
] FTN Financial Capital Markets 1.890307
!Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. 1.917826
!Fifth Third Securities, Inc. 1.962924
(] [smo Capital Markets 2.013772
FirstSouthwest 2.067370

Page 1 of 1

*Awarding the Bonds to a specific bidder will provide you with the Reoffering Prices and Yields.

© 1981-2002 i-Deal LLC, All rights reserved, Trademarks

https://www.newissuehome.i-deal.com/Parity/asp/main.asp?frame=content&page=parityR...

2/25/2015



PARITY Compare Page 1 of 1

[ Result Exceij

Bids Comparison

A RITY
Blount County

$6,820,000 Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2015A

Raymond James & Associates, Inc. - |SunTrust Robinson Humphrey -

1
IPiper Jaffray - Minneapolis, MN|
| =

Purchase Price$6,799,259.25

Purchase Price$6,832,186.80

Memphis, TN lNasthIIe, TN

Maturity |Amount{Coupon Maturity JAmount|Coupon Maturity [Amount]Coupon|
06/01/2016]1,060M| 0.5500 06/01/2016(1,060M| 1.0000 06/01/2016{1,060M| 1.0000
06/01/2017]1,105M] 0.9000 06/01/2017|1,105M| 1.0000 06/01/2017|1,105M| 1.5000
06/01/2018|1,125M[ 1.2500 06/01/2018|1,125M| 2.0000 06/01/2018]1,125M| 1.7500
06/01/2019|1,150M| 1.8100 06/01/2019]1,150M| 2.0000 06/01/2019]1,150M| 2.2500
06/01/2020}1,175M| 2.0000 06/01/2020]1,175M| 2.0000 06/01/2020]1,175M| 2.5000
06/01/2021|1,205M| 2.1500 06/01/2021|1,205M| 2.1500 06/01/2021]1,205M| 2.5000

Purchase Price$6,895,452.65

FTN Financial Capital Markets -

Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. -

Fifth Third Securities, Inc. -

Purchase Price$6,911,410.85

Purchase Price$6,854,224.70

BMO Capital Markets - Chicago, IL|

FirstSouthwest - Dallas, TX|

Maturity

Amount

Coupon

06/01/2016

1,060M

0.7000

06/01/2017

1,105M

1.1600

06/01/2018

1,125M

1.6000

06/01/2019

1,150M

1.9000

06/01/2020

1,176M

2.2000

06/01/2021

1,205M

2.4000

Purchase Price$6,800,222.00

https://www.newissuehome.i-deal.com/Parity/asp/main.asp?frame=content&page=parityC...

Maturity

Amount

Coupon

06/01/2016

1,060M

1.0000

06/01/2017

1,105M

1.1200

06/01/2018

1,125M

1.56200

06/01/2019

1,150M

1.9200

06/01/2020

1,176M

2.2500

06/01/2021

1,205M

2.4600

Purchase Price$6,795,353.02

Memphis, TN Milwaukee, WI Cincinnati, OH

Maturity JAmountjCoupon Maturity PTnount'Coupon Maturity |Amount]Coupon
06/01/2016]1,060M| 2.0000 06/01/2016|1,060M| 2.0000 06/01/2016|1,060M| 2.0000
06/01/2017|1,105M| 2.0000 06/01/2017|1,105M] 2.0000 06/01/2017]1,105M} 2.0000
|06/01/2018]1,125M| 2.0000 06/01/2018]1,125M| 2.0000 06/01/2018]1,125M} 2.0000
|o6/01/2019]1,150M| 2.0000 06/01/2019]1,150M| 2.0000 06/01/2019]1,150M] 2.0000
06/01/2020}1,175M| 2.5000 06/01/2020]1,175M| 2.0000 06/01/2020] 1,175M] 3.0000
06/01/2021]1,205M| 2.5000 06/01/2021|1,205M| 2.2000 06/01/2021]1,205M] 3.0000

Purchase Price$6,957,557.60

© 1981-2002 i-Deal LLC, All rights reserved, Trademarks

2/25/2015



Blount County, TN

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015B

Bidding Results

Bidder:

Bid Price:

Maturity

06/01/16
06/01/17
06/01/18
06/01/19
06/01/20
06/01/21
06/01/22
06/01/23
06/01/24
06/01/25
06/01/26
06/01/27
06/01/28
06/01/29
06/01/30
06/01/31

Public Financial Management

Firm
Robert W. Baird
UBS
Raymond James
BAML
First Southwest
FTN

Principal

65,000.00
225,000.00
225,000.00
230,000.00
235,000.00
245,000.00

1,450,000.00
1,535.000.00
1,580.000.00
1,640,000.00
1,695,000.00
1,755,000.00
1.815,000.00
1,890,000.00
1.965.000.00
2.045.000.00

Bid Amount
19,086,003.96
20,089,910.00
19,190,544.95
19,475,358.50
20,349,056.49
20,029,457.84

First Southwest
Bidder 1
20,349.056.49

Coupon

3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
3.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%

Tc
2.758751%
2.767259%
2.778512%
2.843738%
2.904079%
2.999154%

FTN
Bidder 2
20,029,457.84

Coupon

2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
3.00%
3.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
5.00%
5.00%
4.00%
3.00%
3.13%
3.13%

UBS

Bidder 3
20,089,910.00

Coupon

2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
4.00%
4.50%
4.50%
425%
4.50%
3.00%
4.00%
3.00%
3.00%

3.00%

BAML

Bidder 4
19,475,358.50

Coupon

4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
4.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%

3.13%

Robert W. Baird
Bidder 5
19.086,003.96

Coupon

2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
4.00%
4.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%

Raymond James
Bidder 6
19,190,544 .95

Coupon

2.00%
4.00%
2.00%
4.00%
2.00%
2.00%
4.00%
2.00%
4.00%
4.00%
2.50%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%
3.00%

Date: 2/25/2015 Time: 11:01 AM



PARITY Result Screen Page 1 of 1

10:41:54 a.m. CDST E__gpcomingﬁélendar ]@vir\f@w—_[[ Compare | Summary |

Bid Results
Blount County
$18,635,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2015B

The following bids were submitted using PARITY® and displayed ranked by lowest TIC.
Click on the name of each bidder to see the respective bids.

Bid Award* Bidder Name TIC
][ Reoffering ||Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc. 2758751
[ |uBs Financial Services Inc. 2.767259|
[ Raymond James & Associates, Inc.|2.778512
£ Bank of America Merrill Lynch 2.843738
] [FirstSouthwest 2.904079
A [FTN Financial Capital Markets ~ [2.999154

*Awarding the Bonds to a specific bidder will provide you with the Reoffering Prices and Yields.

© 1981-2002 i-Deal LLC, All rights reserved, Trademarks

https://www.newissuehome.i-deal.com/Parity/asp/main.asp?frame=content&page=parityR... 2/25/2015



PARITY Compare

[ Result [ Excel |

Bids Comparison

Blount County
$18,635,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2015B

Page 1 of 2

ASRRITY

Purchase Price$19,086,003.96

Robert W. Baird & Co.. Inc. - Red  JUBS Financial Services Inc. - New JRaymond James & Associates, Inc. -
Bank, NJ lYork, NY Memphis, TN

Maturity JAmount Couponl Maturity JAmount|Coupon Maturity JAmount|Coupon
06/01/2016] 65M |2.0000 06/01/2016| 65M |2.0000 06/01/2016] 65M [2.0000
06/01/2017| 225M |2.0000 06/01/2017] 225M | 2.0000 06/01/2017| 225M | 4.0000
06/01/2018| 225M |2.0000 06/01/2018] 225M | 2.0000 06/01/2018] 225M | 2.0000
06/01/2019] 230M |2.0000 06/01/2019| 230M | 2.0000 06/01/2019] 230M | 4.0000
06/01/2020] 235M |2.0000 06/01/2020] 235M | 2.0000 06/01/2020] 235M |2.0000
06/01/2021| 245M |2.0000 06/01/2021| 245M | 2.0000 06/01/2021| 245M | 2.0000
06/01/2022{1,490M| 2.0000 06/01/2022|1,490M| 4.0000 06/01/2022]1,490M| 4.0000
06/01/2023|1,535M| 2.0000 06/01/2023|1,535M| 4.5000 06/01/2023]1,535M| 2.0000
06/01/2024]1,580M|] 4.0000 06/01/2024)1,580M| 4.5000 06/01/2024]1,580M| 4.0000
06/01/2025|1,640M| 4.0000 06/01/2025)1,640M| 4.2500 06/01/2025|1,640M| 4.0000
06/01/2026(1,695M| 3.0000 06/01/2026{1,695M| 4.5000 06/01/2026|1,695M| 2.5000
06/01/2027|1,755M| 3.0000 06/01/2027]1,755M| 3.0000 06/01/2027]1,755M| 3.0000
06/01/2028 06/01/2028|1,815M| 4.0000 06/01/2028]1,815M| 3.0000
06/01/2029]3,705M| 3.0000 06/01/2029]1,890M| 3.0000 06/01/2029]1,890M| 3.0000
06/01/2030{1,965M| 3.0000 06/01/2030]1,965M| 3.0000 06/01/2030]1,965M| 3.0000
06/01/2031}2,045M| 3.0000 06/01/2031]2,045M| 3.0000 06/01/2031]2,045M| 3.0000

Purchase Price$20,089,910.00

|Bank of America Merrill Lynch - New

1
I_FirslSﬂthwest - Dallas, TX|

D(ork NY York, NY

Maturity [Amount Couponl Maturity JAmount]Coupon Maturity |Amount]Coupon
06/01/2016] 65M |4.0000 06/01/2016] 65M | 3.0000 06/01/2016] 65M | 2.0000
06/01/2017| 225M |4.0000 06/01/2017] 225M | 3.0000 06/01/2017| 225M | 2.0000
06/01/2018] 225M |4.0000 06/01/2018] 225M | 3.0000 06/01/2018| 225M | 2.0000
06/01/2019] 230M |4.0000 06/01/2019| 230M | 3.0000 06/01/2019| 230M | 2.0000
06/01/2020| 235M |4.0000 06/01/2020] 235M | 3.0000 06/01/2020| 235M | 3.0000
06/01/2021| 245M |4.0000 06/01/2021| 245M | 3.0000 06/01/2021| 245M | 3.0000
06/01/2022]1,490M| 4.0000 06/01/2022]1,490M| 4.0000 06/01/2022]1,490M| 4.0000
06/01/2023|1,535M| 4.0000 06/01/2023]1,535M| 4.0000 06/01/2023]1,535M| 4.0000
06/01/2024|1,580M| 4.0000 06/01/2024]1,580M| 4.0000 06/01/2024]1,580M| 4.0000
06/01/2025(1,640M| 4.0000 06/01/2025{1,640M| 4.0000 06/01/2025]1,640M| 4.0000
06/01/2026]1,695M| 3.0000 06/01/2026]1,695M| 4.0000 06/01/2026]1,695M| 5.0000
06/01/2027]1,755M| 3.0000 06/01/2027]1,755M| 4.0000 06/01/2027]1,755M| 5.0000
06/01/2028|1,815M| 3.0000 06/01/2028|1,815M 3.0000 06/01/2028|1,815M| 4.0000

T

Purchase Price$19,190,544.95

FTN Financial Capital Markets - New

https://www.newissuehome.i-deal.com/Parity/asp/main.asp?frame=content&page=parityC...

2/25/2015



PARITY Compare Page 2 of 2

06/01/2029|1,890M| 3.0000 06/01/2029| 1,890M| 4.0000 06/01/2029]1,890M| 3.0000
06/01/2030]1,965M| 3.0000 06/01/2030] 1,965M] 4.0000 06/01/2030
06/01/2031]2,045M| 3.1250 06/01/2031|2,045M] 4.0000 06/01/2031{4,010M| 3.1250

Purchase Price$19,475,358.50 Purchase Price$20,349,056.49 Purchase Price$20,029,457.84

© 1981-2002 i-Deal LLC, All rights reserved, Trademarks

https://www.newissuehome.i-deal.com/Parity/asp/main.asp?frame=content&page=parityC... 2/25/2015



RESOLUTION NO. 15-04-007

SPONSORED BY COMMISSIONERS TONA MONROE, KAREN MILLER, MIKE
AKARD, AND JAMIE DALY

A RESOLUTION ASKING FEDERAL LEGISLATORS TO STOP THE EXPANSION OF
EPA REGULATIONS OVER WATER AND TO REPEAL STORMWATER
REGULATIONS

Whereas the stormwater rulemaking authority of the Environmental Protection Agency within
Blount County Tennessee is not authorized by the Constitution of the United States and violates
its true meaning and intent as given by the founders and ratifiers in the 9th and 10th
amendments.

Whereas the Environmental Protection Agency is trying to expand rulemaking authority
claiming jurisdiction over water under state, local and private ownership.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Blount County Board of Commissioners
meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2015, that United States Senators Bob

Corker and Lamar Alexander are asked to sponsor companion legislation, to H.R. 594 Waters of
the United States Regulatory Overreach Protection Act of 2015, in the United States Senate.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Representative John Duncan Jr., Senator Bob Corker and
Senator Lamar Alexander are asked to repeal all Environmental Protection Agency stormwater
regulations restoring the rights back to the people per the 9th amendment and power back to the
States and to the people per the 10th amendment of the United States Constitution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution shall be mailed to Representative
John Duncan Jr., Senator Bob Corker, Senator Lamar Alexander, the President of the United
States Senate, the Speaker and the Clerk of the United States House of Representatives.

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION: ATTEST:
Commission Chairman County Clerk
Approved:

Vetoed:

County Mayor Date



Page 261

IN RE: A RESOLUTION ASKING FEDERAL LEGISLATORS TO STOP THE EXPANSION OF EPA
REGULATIONS OVERWATER AND TO REPEAL STORMWATER REGULATIONS.

Commissioner Monroe made a motion to adopt the resolution. Commissioner Carter seconded
the motion.

A vote was taken on the motion:

Akard - yes Caskey -yes French - yes Moon - abstain
Allen - no Caylor - no Headrick - no Samples - no
Archer - yes Cole - yes Lewis - no Stinnett - no
Bowers - yes Crowe - yes Melton - no

Carter - yes Daly - yes Miller - yes

Carver - no Farmer - no Monroe - yes

There were 11 voting yes, 9 voting no, 1 abstaining, and 0 absent. Chairman Moon declared the
resolution to be adopted.



Pagez 6 2

County Commission April 16, 2015

RESOLUTION NO. 15-04-007

SPONSORED BY COMMISSIONERS TONA MONROE, KAREN MILLER, MIKE
AKARD, AND JAMIE DALY

A RESOLUTION ASKING FEDERAL LEGISLATORS TO STOP THE EXPANSION OF
EPA REGULATIONS OVER WATER AND TO REPEAL STORMWATER
REGULATIONS

Whereas the stormwater rulemaking authority of the Environmental Protection Agency within
Blount County Tennessee is not authorized by the Constitution of the United States and violates

its true meaning and intent as given by the founders and ratifiers in the 9th and 10th
amendments.

Whereas the Environmental Protection Agency is trying to expand rulemaking authority
claiming jurisdiction over water under state, local and private ownership.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Blount County Board of Commissioners
meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2015, that United States Senators Bob
Corker and Lamar Alexander are asked to sponsor companion legislation, to H.R. 594 Waters of
the United States Regulatory Overreach Protection Act of 2015, in the United States Senate.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Representative John Duncan Jr., Senator Bob Corker and
Senator Lamar Alexander are asked to repeal all Environmental Protection Agency stormwater

regulations restoring the rights back to the people per the 9th amendment and power back to the
States and to the people per the 10th amendment of the United States Constitution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution shall be mailed to Representative
John Duncan Jr., Senator Bob Corker, Senator Lamar Alexander, the President of the United
States Senate, the Speaker and the Clerk of the United States House of Representatives.

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION: ATTEST: -
o~

. = = | e ) S
A P 4 I

Commission Chairman County Clerk  ——

Approved:

Vetoed: v/ -
i A
_ )
County Mayor J
IN RE: ADJOURNMENT.

Chairman Moon declared the meeting to be adjourned.

T

Date”




Search - 1 Result - 5-6-107. Powers and duties -- Action on legislation. Page 1 of 1

Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-6-107

TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED
© 2015 by The State of Tennessee
All rights reserved

**% Current through the 2014 Regular Session and amendments approved at the November 4,
2014 General Election ***

Title 5 Counties
Chapter 6 County Mayors
Part 1 Substantive Provisions

Tenn. Code Ann. § 5-6-107 (2015)
5-6-107. Powers and duties -- Action on legislation.

(@) (1) The county mayor has the power of veto with respect to resolutions of the county
legislative body.

(2) Such veto shall apply only to legislative resolutions and shall not apply to resolutions in
which the legislative body is exercising administrative or appellate authority.

(b) (1) Every resolution shall be submitted to the county mayor.

(2) If the county mayor signs it, the resolution shall become effective immediately or at a
later date if the resolution so provides.

(3) If the county mayor vetoes the resolution, the county mayor shall return it to the county
legislative body for action on the county mayor's veto, in which case it shall become effective
only upon subsequent passage by a majority of all the members comprising the county
legislative body.

(4) Such passage must take place within twenty (20) days of receiving the county mayor's
message of veto or at the next regular meeting of the county legislative body, whichever is
later.

(5) If the county mayor fails either to sign or to veto a resolution and to report the county
mayor's action to the county legislative body within ten (10) days after the resolution is
submitted to the county mayor, the resolution shall become effective without the county
mayor's signature upon the expiration of the ten-day period or at a later date if the resolution
SO provides.

(<) The veto may not be exercised with respect to specific items or parts of items in the annual
county budget, and may only be exercised with respect to the whole.

(d) (1) The provisions of this section shall not be applicable to counties of Class 1 as
established by § 8-24-101, that have comparable provisions in special or private acts
establishing a veto power in the county mayor.

(2) The provisions of this section shall not be applicable in any county in which the county
mayor is elected as chair of the county legislative body as provided in § 5-5-103.

(3) This section shall be applicable in counties having a population of not less than twelve
thousand three hundred fifty (12,350) nor more than twelve thousand three hundred seventy-
five (12,375), by the federal census of 1970 or any subsequent federal census.

(4) This section shall be applicable in counties having a population of not less than thirty-
eight thousand eight hundred (38,800) nor more than thirty-eight thousand nine hundred
(38,900), by the federal census of 1970 or any subsequent federal census.

HISTORY: Acts 1978, ch. 934, § 18; 1979, ch. 53, § 2; T.C.A., § 5-607; Acts 1988, ch. 981, §
1; 2003, ch. 90, § 2.
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RESOLUTION NO. 15-05-006

Sponsored By Commissioners: Mike Caylor and Jeff Headrick

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD AN AGREEMENT THAT EXTENDS BEYOND THE END OF THE
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FOR BLOUNT COUNTY, TN.

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Blount County, Tennessee has adopted the
provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated §5-14-101 et. seq., known as the County Purchasing
Law of 1957; and

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated §5-14-108(m) (1) states that the County Purchasing Agent is
authorized to purchase and contract to purchase materials, supplies, equipment and
contractual services on a fiscal year basis, but no commitment shall be made which extends
beyond the end of the current fiscal year for which appropriations have been made by the
county legislative body, except such commitments as are authorized by resolution of the
county legislative body; and

WHEREAS, Blount County Purchasing issued a Request for Proposal for these services, and

WHEREAS, the agreement negotiated between Blount County and Rural/Metro of Tennessee, L.P. has
been approved as to form by the County attorney, and

WHEREAS, the initial contract term is two (2) years, effective July 01, 2015,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County Commissioners of Blount County,
Tennessee, meeting in regular session assembled this 21™" day of May, 2015, that an
Ambulance Service Agreement with Rural/Metro of Tennessee, L.P., Blount County Contract
No. 2014-2323, attached hereto, be duly authorized and approved for Blount County,
Tennessee.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution take effect from and after its passage, and that any part
of any prior resolution to the contrary is hereby declared null and void, the public welfare
requiring it.

N

.'r /"-_._—F_F_
d;afé L. Garrett
Attorney for Blount County, TN

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION ATTEST
Commission Chairman County Clerk
Approve:

Vetoed:

County Mayor Date



AMBULANCE SERVICE AGREEMENT

By and Between

BLOUNT COUNTY, TENNESSEE
and

Rural/Metro of Tennessee, L.P.
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AMBULANCE SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Agreement for Ambulance Service made this day of , 2015,
between Rural/Metro of Tennesse, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, also known as Rural/Metro
(“Contractor”) with its principal place of business at 10140 Gallows Point Drive, Knoxville, TN 37931,
and Blount County, a county government providing health services within the geographic and political
boundaries of Blount County, Tennessee (“County”).

RECITALS

1. On January 30, 2015, the County released its Request for Proposal (RFP) to provide
emergency medical ambulance services in Blount County, Tennessee.

2. On , 2015, the County awarded the Ambulance Service
Agreement to the Contractor.

3. Pursuant to the RFP, the Contractor and the County now desire to enter into this
Ambulance Service Agreement.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants of each
other contained in this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, receipt
of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties do COVENANT AND AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE1. THE AGREEMENT

SECTION 101. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Agreement is to define the obligations and responsibilities of the parties
hereto, with respect to the provision of ambulance services in the County.

SECTION 102. COOPERATION

The parties shall cooperate and use all reasonable efforts, pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, to facilitate the terms of this Agreement. Accordingly, the parties further agree in good
faith to mutually undertake resolution of disputes, if any, in an equitable and timely manner so as to
limit the need for costly, time-consuming, adversarial proceedings to resolve such disputes.

SECTION 103. DOCUMENTS

The following documents are made part of this Agreement and are incorporated herein by
reference:

A. Blount County Government Request for Proposal 2014-2323 for Emergency Medical
Services and associated Addenda.

B. Contractor’'s response to Request for Proposal 2014-2323 for Emergency Medical
Services dated and associated Addenda.

C. Successful Proposer’s Performance Bond.
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In the event there are inconsistent or conflicting provisions among this Agreement and the
foregoing Documents, the following descending order of precedence shall prevail:

1) Ambulance Service Agreement;

2) Blount County Government Request for Proposal # 2014-2323 for Emergency Medical
Services and associated Addenda;

3) Contractor’s response to Request for Proposal # 2014-2323 for Emergency Medical
Services and associated Addenda; and

4) Successful proposer’s Performance Bond.

This Agreement, together with the foregoing Documents, constitutes the entire Ambulance
Service Agreement between the parties with respect to the provision of ambulance services, shall
supersede any prior agreement, contract or memorandum of understanding between the parties
regarding such services and the parties agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
including the foregoing Documents, shall govern exclusively the obligations to the parties. Whenever
the word “Agreement”’ is used within this document, it refers to the entire Ambulance Service
Agreement and all modifications and addendums.

ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS

SECTION 201. WORDS AND TERMS

Advanced Emergency Medical Technician (AEMT). Means a person who has successfully
completed an “AEMT” training course, has qualified by examinations to perform pre-hospital
emergency patient care, and is to provide basic and limited advanced emergency medical care under
medical directions, pre-hospital and during transportation for critical emergent and non-emergent
patients, who access the EMS system.

ALS First Responder. Any vehicle not normally used for purposes of patient transport, and which
must meet the following requirements: 1) be staffed with a minimum of an EMT/AEMT and
paramedic; and 2) equipped with the required communications, Automatic Vehicle Locator and ALS
equipment that will meet or exceed state equipment regulations.

Advanced Life Support (ALS). Means the treatment of life-threatening medical emergencies by
authorized emergency medical technician-paramedics under medical control, pursuant to the laws of
the County or State, or the provision of such treatment by other qualified and licensed medical or
nursing personnel.

Agreement Date. The last date on which a party signs and executes the Agreement.

Ambulance. Any vehicle permitted by the Department and the County which is equipped to provide
advanced or basic life support, which is designed, constructed, maintained, equipped, or operated
for, and is used for or intended to be used for the transportation of patients.

Applicable Law. Any law, statute, rule, regulation, requirement, decision, opinion, judgment, or

order of any federal, state, or local governmental entity, including courts, which is or may become
applicable to the Agreement, operations, the Contractor, or the County.
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Arrival at Incident Location. Means the time an ALS ambulance crew notififes the E-911 Center
that the ambulance has arrived at its parking position at the scene of an incident (the entrance to a
specific apartment building, not merely the entrance to the apartment complex in general; or an
actual accident scene—not merely an approach location within sight of the accident scene).

In situations when the ambulance has responded to a location other than the scene (e.g. staging
areas for hazardous material, violent crimes incidents, or non-secured scenes), arrival “at the incident
location” shall be the time the ambulance arrives at the designated staging location. If an ambulance
unit fails to report that it has arrived at the incident location prior to the crew departing the unit, the
response time clock shall not be stopped until the time of the next communication between the
ambulance and the E-911 system.

Basic Life Support (BLS) First Responder. Any vehicle not normally used for purposes of patient
transport, and which must meet the following requirements: 1) be staffed with a minimum of an EMR
and a EMT/AEMT; and 2) be equipped with the required communications, and BLS equipment that
will meet or exceed state equipment regulations.

Basic _Life Support (BLS). Means the treatment of life-threatening medical emergencies by an
emergency medical technician or other qualified and licensed medical and nursing personnel
qualified through the use of such techniques as patient assessment basic cardiopulmonary
resuscitation, splinting, obstetrical assistance, bandaging, administration of oxygen, application of
pneumatic anti-shock trousers, and other techniques described in the Basic/Advanced Emergency
Medical Technician curriculum or otherwise approved by the County, pursuant to the law of the State.

Blount County Emergency Communications District (BCECD). The E-911 system which receives
all requests for emergency medical services, fire service, and law enforcement.

CAD. Computer aided dispatch.

Change in Applicable Law. Change in applicable law shall include any of the following events or
conditions:

a. The adoption, promulgation, issuance, modification or change in an administrative or
judicial interpretation, on or after the agreement date, of applicable law, including any federal, state or
local law, regulation, rule, requirement, ruling or ordinance, unless such law, regulation, rule,
requirement, or ruling was on or prior to the agreement date duly adopted, promulgated, issued or
otherwise officially modified or changed in interpretation, in each case in final form, to become
effective without any further action by any federal, state or local governmental body, administrative
agency, or governmental official having jurisdiction; or

b. The order or judgment of any federal, state or local court, the administrative agency or
governmental officer or body, on or after the agreement date which is or becomes applicable to the
Agreement, operations, the Contractor or the County, to the extent such order or judgment is not the
result of willful or negligent action or lack of reasonable diligence of the Contractor or of the County,
whichever is asserting the occurrence of a change in applicable law; provided that the contesting in
good faith or the failure in good faith to contest any such order or judgment shall not constitute or be
construed as such a willful or negligent action or lack of reasonable diligence; or,
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c. The denial of an application for or renewal of, delay in the review, issuance or renewal of,
or suspension, termination, interruption, imposition of a new condition or modification of a previous
condition in connection with the issuance, renewal or failure to issuance or renewal, on or after the
agreement date, of any governmental permit, license, consent, certificate of need, authorization or
approval, which is or becomes applicable to the Agreement, operations, the Contractor or the
County, which shall include without limitation the imposition of standards or limitations which impose
requirements more stringent than those previously applicable to the Agreement, operations, the
Contractor or the County, to the extent that such denial, delay, suspension, termination, interruption,
imposition, modification or failure is not the result of a material breach of the Agreement, willful or
negligent action or lack of reasonable diligence of the Contractor or of the County, whichever is
asserting the occurrence of a change in applicable law; provided that the contesting in good faith or
failure in good faith to contest any such denial, delay, suspension, termination, interruption,
imposition or failure shall not be construed as such a willful or negligent action or lack of reasonable
diligence.

Contractor. Means Rural Metro of Tennessee, L.P., including the Contractor's successors and
assigns.

County. Blount County, Tennessee, a geographic and political subdivision of the State of
Tennessee.

Dedicated Special Events Coverage. Means the posting of an ALS ambulance at a location of a
scheduled special event within Blount County. A unit so assigned shall not depart the scene of the
event for any reason except to transport a patient in need of immediate transport from the event
location to a medical facility, in which case another unit shall be immediately dispatched to resume
dedicated coverage of the special event.

Demised Persons. Any person who is determined to be deceased by an employee of the
Contractor, the Medical Examiner for the County, or other qualified medical personnel.

Department. Orders, judgments, rulings, rules and regulations issued or promulgated in final form
which apply to the Agreement, operations, the Contractor or the County, which may be issued during
the term of the Agreement by the Tennessee Department of Health, Office of Emergency Medical
Services Division.

Direct Damages. Compensation for actual, tangible expenses, "out of pocket" payments, and other
direct losses, excluding attorney's fees, which have been directly sustained or incurred by a party
because of a material breach of the Agreement by the other party. Direct damages shall be offset by
any insurance recoveries attributable to such losses, but shall not be offset by other collateral
sources of indemnification in favor of the aggrieved party. For purposes of the Agreement, the term
“direct damages” shall also be deemed to include, where sought on account of a party's material
breach, equitable relief, including actions for specific performance, restraining orders and injunctions.

E-911 System. Blount County’s Emergency Communications District which receives all requests for
emergency medical services, fire service, and law enforcement.

EMR. Means Emergency Medical Responder.
EMS. Means Emergency Medical Services.

EMS Coordinator. Shall be the Blount County Director of General Services.
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EMT. Means Emergency Medical Technician.

Emergency Request. A request for emergency services received at E-911 or a request for
emergency services transferred from the E-911 System to the Contractor.

Emergency Services. The delivery of emergency medical services, including without limitation the
response to calls for emergency medical assistance, the rendering of such levels of medical services
as are required by applicable law, including emergency medical treatment rendered by employees of
the Contractor who are trained as EMT/AEMT’S and paramedics.

Emergency Transport. Is the transport of a patient in an ALS ambulance resulting from (1) a
response to an emergency request, or (2) a response to a non-emergency request which results in a
need for emergency services.

Force Majeure. Any change in applicable law or any other act, failure or refusal to act, or an event,
occurrence or condition, or any combination of the foregoing, which causes performance of the
Agreement to be impossible or economically unreasonable; such act, failure or refusal to act, event,
occurrence or condition may include an act of God, or terrorism.

However, force majeure shall not include an act, failure or refusal to act, event, occurrence or
condition which, either in whole or in part:

a. Is the result of a labor strike, stoppage, slowdown or other labor related problem caused by
employees either of the Contractor or an affiliate; or

b. Is the result of a change in the federal revenue income tax laws; or

c. Is or was reasonably within the control of, reasonably could have been permitted by, or was
caused by the negligence, misfeasance or malfeasance of the party claiming force
majeure.

Material Breach of the Agreement. A material failure or refusal by either party to perform its
respective duties and obligations required by the Agreement and applicable law, which
causes substantial harm to the non-breaching party.

Medical Director. Medical Director means an individual working in the ER of Blount Memorial
Hospital who has an active, unencumbered license to engage in the practice of medicine pursuant to
Title 63, Chapter 6, or Chapter 9, and who provides medical advice, direction, oversight and
authorization to emergency medical services personnel at a licensed ambulance service, and/or
emergency medical services educational institution, including, but not limited to, quality assurance.

Modification. A written amendment to the Agreement, executed by the Contractor and the County.

Non-Emergency Transports. Requested medical transports of patient(s), or unscheduled
transports, not meeting the definition of emergency transport of patient(s).

Paramedic. A person who is certified by the State to perform basic and advanced life support
procedures, pursuant to the provisions of Department Regulations.

Party. The Contractor or the County.
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Patient. An individual who is ill, sick, injured, wounded, or otherwise incapacitated, and is in need of,
or is at risk of needing, medical attention or care on scene and/or during transport to or from a health
care facility.

Performance Damages. Means any damages stemming from any breach of this Agreement by the
Contractor, other than Response Damages.

Request for Proposal (RFP). The document issued by the County requesting detailed proposals to
provide the services described in the RFP and the Agreement.

Response. Means the act of responding to an emergency or a non-emergency request, which
begins with the dispatching of an ambulance and, (1) in the case of a request resulting in a patient
being transported, ends with the ambulance’s arrival at the incident location, or (2) in the case of a
request which does not result in a patient transported, ends with cancellation of the ambulance
responding to the request.

Response Time. That period of time when the Contractor is notified of a pending emergency
request, until arrival at the incident location.

State. Means the State of Tennessee.

Unit Hour. Means a fully equipped and staffed ALS ambulance on a response or waiting for a
response for one hour.

SECTION 202. TERMS GENERALLY

The terms "include", "includes", or "including", as used in this Agreement, shall be deemed to
be followed by the phrase, "without limitation". When words or terms are used in the Agreement,
they are to be interpreted or construed, first, as expressly defined in the Agreement; and secondly, if
not expressly defined, according to any generally accepted technical meaning in the emergency
medical services industry; and thirdly, if there is no generally accepted technical meaning, according
to their common and customary usage.

SECTION 203. MODIFICATION

The Agreement may be amended only by a modification. The County and the Contractor
expressly agree that any oral communication, later course of conduct, or other attempt to change the
Agreement other than by a modification shall not be binding or enforceable. For this purpose, the
Agreement shall be considered to be within the Tennessee Statute of Frauds, TCA 29-2-101(5),
because the Agreement cannot and shall not be fully performed within the space of one (1) year from
the Agreement date.

ARTICLE 3. TERM AND END-TERM PROVISIONS

SECTION 301. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall commence at 00:00:01 hours on July 1, 2015 and shall terminate at
24:00 hours on June 30, 2017.
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SECTION 302. RENEWAL OPTION

a. The Agreement may be renewed for up to five (5) additional one (1) year terms upon
written agreement of the parties. Request for the Agreement renewal must be made by the
Contractor to the County in written form by January 01 of the renewal year.

This option shall be exercised only if the Contractor is successful in completing the performance
review as outlined in Subsection b and if all terms and conditions remain the same. The Blount
County Purchasing Agent must approve any renewal.

b. Upon receipt of the Contractor's request for a one (1) year extension in accordance with
Subsection a above, the County shall conduct an evaluation and assessment of the Contractor’s
performance during the previous contract year.

The County will evaluate the Contractor using two sets of performance based criteria. The
determination of whether the Contractor has satisfied the performance review is solely within the
judgment of the Blount County Purchasing Agent.

Level | criteria will be minimum standards to be met by the Contractor during each contract
year and are generally described as follows:

1. The Contractor has consistently achieved response time compliance based on the
standards set forth in Section 406.

2. The Contractor's overall performance has resulted in a minimum number of
performance damages being assessed as set forth in Section 705.

3. The Contractor consistently and timely delivers to the County all reports and
documentation required by this Agreement with a minimum of inaccurate, deficient or
missing documentation.

4. The Contractor consistently demonstrates clinical performance standards which comply
with all County / State rules and regulations.

5. The Contractor consistently maintains and projects to the general public a professional
image.

Level lI criteria identify performance by the Contractor in excess of the minimum standards
and are generally described as follows:

1. The Contractor consistently exceeds the minimum response time requirements set forth
in Section 406.

2. The Contractor can effectively demonstrate that the overall EMS System has realized
improvements in quality of patient service and clinical excellence in each of the prior
contract years.

3. The Contractor exceeds the minimum contractual requirements regarding community
service and education.

4. The Contractor has received recognition through community service awards or other
honors which signify superior commitment to the community.
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5. The Contractor’'s recent audit by the County or the Department is ranked superior with a
zero or minimum number of deficiencies.

SECTION 303. EXPIRATION OF TERM

If the Contractor fails to exercise the renewal option as set forth in Section 302(a) above, or
fails to earn an extension in accordance with Section 302(b), the term of this Agreement shall
automatically terminate on the expiration date at 24:00 hours June 30, 2017.

SECTION 304. LAME DUCK PROVISIONS

Should the Contractor not succeed itself at the end of the term of this Agreement, the County
shall depend upon the Contractor to continue to provide all services required under this Agreement
until the successor contractor assumes service responsibilities for a period not to exceed 180 days.
Under these circumstances, the Contractor will, for the remaining term of this Agreement, serve as a
“lame duck” contractor. To ensure continued performance fully consistent with the requirements of
this Agreement throughout any such lame duck period, the following shall apply:

a. The Contractor shall make no changes in methods of operation, which could reasonably
be considered to be aimed at cutting the Contractor’s service below that required by this Agreement
in order to maximize profits during such lame duck period.

b. The Contractor shall continue all operations and support services at the same level of
effort and performance that were in effect prior to the award of the subsequent contract to the
successor contractor, including, but not limited to, compliance with the provisions related to the
qualifications of key personnel.

c. The Contractor shall not penalize or bring personal hardship to bear upon any of its
employees who may apply for work on a contingent basis with a competing bidder, and shall allow
without penalty its employees to sign contingent employment agreements with competing bidders at
the employees’ discretion. The Contractor may, however, prohibit its employees from assisting
competing bidders in preparing their bid proposals by revealing the Contractor’s trade secrets or
other information about the Contractor’s business practices or field operations.

ARTICLE 4. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR
SECTION 401. GENERAL DUTY

a. Beginning on July 1, 2015 at 00:00:01 hours and continuing for the term of the Agreement,
the Contractor shall provide and pay for all administration, insurance, professional expertise, labor,
materials, vehicles, and equipment necessary to respond to all emergency and non-emergency calls
referred to the Contractor by the Blount County Emergency Communications District (BCECD). In
responding to emergency requests, the Contractor shall satisfy the response time requirements set
forth in Section 406.

b. The Contractor is to have personnel located within the BCECD in order to facilitate all
emergency and non-emergency calls and the deployment of ambulances on or before October 1,
2015. The Contractor is to be responsible for all associated expenses of having onsite operations
within the BCECD.
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c. The Contractor shall enter into an agreement with BCECD concerning terms for leasing
facility space at a fair market and commercially reasonable value and dispatch protocols.

d. The Contractor shall apply for, secure, and renew all licenses, permits, certificates or
similar government approvals which are or may be required by applicable law and Department’s
Rules and Regulations for conducting services described herein.

e. The Contractor shall accept assignment of Medicare benefits as payment and shall not bill
Medicare beneficiaries for any additional amount except as permitted by the Medicare Guidelines for
the acceptance of assignment.

f. The Agreement shall make available to all persons within the County, on a subscription fee
basis, emergency services (as defined herein) to be provided by the Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement. A household shall be defined as all individuals living in the home.

g. The Contractor shall provide a standby ALS ambulance for standby upon request of the
EMS Coordinator when: 1) there is reason to believe a life threatening public emergency presently
exists in the County (to include Fire and Law Enforcement scenes, when requested), and 2)
dedicated city and county sponsored special events (not to exceed a total of 500 unit hours per year).

h. Subject to the Contractor’'s reasonable policies and procedures regarding same, the
Contractor shall permit paramedic and emergency medical technician trainees to accompany
ambulances in their regular and ordinary responses for the purpose of assisting such trainees in
completing the curriculum and experiences necessary for completion of training programs approved
by the State. The Contractor's policies and procedures may address, among other things, the
requirement of written waiver and indemnity agreements, dress codes, conduct codes and the like.

i. The Contractor shall comply with all Blount County Emergency Plans, or successor plans
adopted and approved by the EMS Coordinator, or the Blount County Emergency Management
Agency whenever the provisions or such plan or plans are in effect. The Contractor further agrees to
participate in at least two (2) community disaster drills per calendar year, as directed by the EMS
Coordinator, or the Blount County Emergency Management Agency.

j- The Contractor may not offer incentives, by way of additional salaries or wages, or
compensated leave of absence, to employees based upon the number of procedures performed or
based upon mileage for the provision of ambulance transportation.

SECTION 402. TRANSPORT

a. The Contractor shall provide emergency services from the scene to the appropriate health
facility or other location for all persons in the county, regardless of ability to pay.

b. The Contractor will transport demised persons to appropriate health facilities for
identification and examination upon request by the Blount County Medical Examiner or designee at
no cost to the County. When possible, a non-ALS unit shall be used for transport.

c. The Contractor will make available its financial hardship and assistance programs pursuant
to its internal policies as amended from time to time for indigent citizens.

d. The Contractor shall transport an individual from Blount Memorial Hospital to an
appropriate mental health facility for the Blount County Sheriff's Office, as directed by a Blount
Memorial Hospital physician, at the price set forth in the Contractor's RFP Response.
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e. The Contractor will bill for transports in accordance with the rate schedule set forth in the
Contractor’s response to Blount County Request for Proposal 2014-2323.

SECTION 403. COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT

a. The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, install in all units, radios capable of
communicating with all emergency response agencies serving Blount County.

b. The Contractor shall provide, at its sole expense, all paramedics and EMTs with handheld
portable radios capable of communicating with all emergency response agencies serving Blount
County.

c. The Contractor shall provide to Blount County, at its sole expense, all system status
software, notification devices used to alert level status, and other equipment that may be needed to
monitor responses.

SECTION 404. NOTIFICATION
a. The Contractor shall notify the EMS Coordinator throughout the contract term as follows:

1. The Coordinator shall be notified immediately, via electronic communication or verbally,
whenever the following occurs:

a. Response time exceptions greater than 10 minutes; and

b. Any single incident or accident requiring the response of three (3) or more
ambulances; and

c. Mass casualty incidents; and

d. Any vehicle accidents involving a Contractor’s vehicle; and

e. Ambulance levels of three or less specific to the number of available ambulances.

2. The Coordinator shall be notified daily, via electronic communications, of the
Contractor’'s daily compliance report.

SECTION 405. AVAILABLE AMBULANCES

a. The Contractor shall dedicate sixteen (16) ambulances licensed in Blount County, TN
operations. One (1) of these ambulances shall be 4-wheel drive. The Contractor shall dedicate two
(2) additional 4-wheel drive vehicles for use in Blount County, TN operations.

b. The Contractor shall, at all times under this Agreement, make available not less than
three ambulances for emergency response.

C. The Contractor will maintain a Mutual Aid Agreement with another licensed ambulance
service in Blount/Loudon/Knox area to assist them in emergency responses when the system drops
to level three, subject to third parties’ willingness to enter into such agreements All responses will be
logged and reported to the EMS Coordinator.

d. If the Contractor has no ambulances available for an emergency request (level 0)

and/or fails to meet the response time provided herein, damages as set forth in Section 705(a) will be
assessed against the Contractor.
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SECTION 406. RESPONSE TIME

a. As used herein, the term emergency request shall include any response by the Contractor
on an emergency request as called into the Blount County Emergency Communications District,
including responses (1) resulting in transportation of patients, (2) resulting in no services being
rendered or patients being transported, and 3) the emergency request is cancelled after the lapse of
the contracted response time (10 minutes). In each thirty (30) day period, (beginning on the first day
of each month) and commencing on the first day of operations, not less than ninety percent (90%) of
the Contractor's responses to emergency requests shall be performed in 10 minutes or less subject
to the terms of Section 704.

b. If, in each thirty (30) day period, the Contractor fails to respond to Priority One or Priority
Two emergency requests within the applicable performance requirement, as set forth above, it shall
pay response damages set forth in Sections 703 and 704.

c. Response time exemptions. The Contractor shall maintain projections for reserve
staffing capacity for increase production should there be a temporary system overload. However, it is
understood that on occasion unusual factors beyond the Contractor control affect the achievement of
the required response time standards. For purposes of determining the Contractor's compliance with
the response time standards as set forth herein, and for calculating damages in Sections 703 and
704, every request for ambulance service shall be counted except as follows:

1. Requests which are cancelled prior to the Contractor’s arrival at the incident
location, but before the contracted response time has expired (10 minutes).

2. During a period of severe weather conditions, such that response time compliance is
either impossible or could be achieved only at a greater risk to EMS personnel or the
public than would resuit from a delayed response.

3. Requests during a disaster, locally or in a neighboring jurisdiction, which has requested
assistance from the County.

4. Transport of an individual from Blount Memorial Hospital to the appropriate mental

health facility for the Blount County Sheriff's Office.

Transports requests that are downgraded by any 18t Responder.

Priority 3 requests.

Multi-unit responses wherein the first unit shall be measured for response time

requirements, but additional units shall be dispatched from the closest locations but

shall not be subject to the response times set forth herein.

8. Due to the difficult terrain and coverage, the response time for an emergency request
within the geography of the National Park Service shall be exempt with the exception of
the Foothills Parkway other than the area from Tab Cat Bridge Mile Marker 11 on US
Hwy 129 to Mile Marker 1 at the North Carolina State Line which shall also be exempt.

9. The response time for an emergency request may also be excluded when the EMS
Coordinator determines there is other good cause for an exception. The grounds for
the exception must have been a substantial factor in producing the particular response
time, and the Contractor must have made a good faith effort to comply with the
appropriate standard. Such grounds include, but are not limited to, the transmission of
erroneous, incomplete or inaccurate information from the BCECD. The Contractor may
appeal an exception determination made by the EMS Coordinator to the EMS Board.

NO O
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SECTION 407. AMBULANCE SPECIFICATIONS

a. All ambulances used for emergency patient transportation shall be a minimum of Type Il
ambulance, not more than five (5) years old from the date of sale as a new vehicle, and shall not
have been used more than 300,000 miles. All ambulances used for the non-emergency
transportation of patients shall be not more than seven (7) years old from the date of sale as a new
vehicle, and shall not have been used more than 350,000 miles.

b. Contractor shall provide a 4-wheel drive vehicle for use in inclement weather and
backcountry use. This vehicle shall be enclosed and of sufficient length to transport a patient flat on
a spine board. This vehicle shall be in a constant state of readiness. The vehicle shall not be more
than five (5) years old from the date of sale as a new vehicle and shall not have been used more
than 150,000 miles.

c. All maintenance and repair records and inventory records shall be available for inspection
by the EMS Coordinator.

d. All ambulances shall conform to the State Rules and Regulations.

e. Equipment shall be available to allow ambulances to travel in inclement weather conditions,
including snow or ice. The Contractor shall adhere to the inclement weather policy of the Blount
County Emergency Management Agency.

f. Each ambulance shall permanently display the name or other suitable corporate
identification or logo on the outside of the vehicle along with that vehicle’s identification number.

g. Any ambulance used by the Contractor for transporting of patients shall conform to all
standards as promulgated and defined by the State and all rules and regulations promulgated and
set forth by the County.

h. All ALS ambulances shall be equipped with necessary equipment to transmit EKG's to all
Blount and Knox County hospital emergency rooms.

SECTION 408. PERSONNEL

a. The Parties understand that the EMS System requires professional and courteous conduct
at all times from Contractor’s field personnel, communications personnel, middle management, and
top executives. The Contractor shall employ highly trained paramedics, EMTs, AEMT’s and support
staff to provide patient care and to operate Contractor's vehicles and equipment. Each EMT/AEMT
and paramedic shall be physically capable of performing the tasks assigned by the Contractor, shall
be clean in dress and person, and shall display their name and certification on a photo identification
badge in an appropriate manner visible to the patient.

1. Each Paramedic (EMTP or CCEMTP) will obtain and maintain certification or licensing
as follows: (a) Class D with an F endorsement Tennessee drivers license, (b)
Tennessee Paramedic license from the Division of Emergency Medical Service, (c)
American Heart Association or Red Cross CPR (1 and 2 person, FBAO infant, child,
and adult conscious and unconscious, plus AED), (d) Advanced Cardiac Life Support
(ACLS), (e) Pre-hospital Pediatric Life Support, Emergency Pediatric Care (EPC) or
Pediatric Advanced Life Support (PALS), and (f) Pre-hospital Trauma Life Support
(PHTLS) or the advanced level of International Trauma Life Support (ITLS),

Page 13 of 26



2. Each EMT/AEMT will obtain and maintain certification or licensing as follows: (a) Class
D with an F endorsement Tennessee driver's license, (b) Tennessee EMT/AEMT
license from the Division of Emergency Medical Service, (c) American Heart
Association or Red Cross CPR (1 and 2 person, FBAO infant, child, and adult
conscious and unconscious, plus AED.

3. Communications personnel shall be certified as Basic Telecommunicator and
Emergency Medical Dispatchers (EMD) by the standards set forth in the Association of
Public Safety Communication Officials (APCO).

b. The Contractor shall utilize reasonable work schedules, shift assignments, and provide
working conditions that assists in attracting and retaining highly qualified personnel. The Contractor
shall utilize management practices which ensure that field personnel working extended shifts, part-
time jobs, voluntary overtime, or mandatory overtime are not exhausted to an extent which might
impair judgment or motor skills.

c. The Contractor shall offer to its employees a compensation and benefits package designed
to attract and retain highly qualified field personnel and communications center personnel.

SECTION 409. FIRST RESPONDERS

The Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate its activities and services with First Responders
for the purpose of ensuring quality patient care. The Contractor will maintain all records per State’s
requirements.

SECTION 410. PRODUCT AVAILABILITY

The Contractor shall have available a minimum of two (2) each auto Chest Compression
Systems for use in rural areas of Blount County on or before October 1, 2015. These shall be Lucas
2 brand or equivalent.

To the extent on the Effective Date of this Agreement, Contractor has provided any LIFEPAK
devices to First Responders within the County, Contractor shall continue such partnerships
throughout the Term of this Agreement.

SECTION 411. EMS BOARD

The Contractor shall participate in established meetings with an EMS Board consisting of City
and County First Responders, City and County officials, and Blount Memorial Hospital officials.

SECTION 412. COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION.
The Contractor shall participate in established meetings with City and County officials and
members of the community. The Contractor shall have a staff member available within the

Contractor’s operations in the County who shall be available during reasonable business hours to
address community concerns and address community members.
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ARTICLE 5. COUNTY’S DUTIES AND RESPONSIBLITIES
SECTION 501. GENERAL DUTIES

The County shall monitor the response time performance pursuant to the requirements of and
upon the intervals set forth in Section 406.

ARTICLE 6. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

SECTION 601. MINIMUM INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

a. On or before July 1, 2015, the Contractor shall obtain and provide certain insurance
coverage by insurers duly licensed and authorized to operate in the State of Tennessee. The
Contractor shall provide the insurance coverage as outlined in the Insurance Checklist included in the
RFP.

b. The Contractor shall have Blount County Government and Blount County Board of
Education named as additional insured per the insurance policy.

c. Complete copies of the Contractor's required insurance policy shall be delivered to or
otherwise made available for inspection by the County within ten (10) days after being received by
the Contractor. The Contractor shall maintain required insurance in full force and effect for the term
of the agreement.

SECTION 602. INDEMNIFICATION

a. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless Blount County, its officers,
agents, representatives, and employees and Blount County Emergency Communications District, its
officers, agents, representatives, and employees from any and all suits, claims, demands, liabilities,
penalties, expenses, judgments, actions or damages of any nature brought because of, arising out
of, or due to breach of the agreement by the Contractor, its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or
employees or due to any negligent act or occurrence or any omission or commission of the
Contractor, its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or employees.

b. It is not the intention of the parties that the Contractor shall indemnify the County against
the County's own negligence or the negligence of the County's employees, officers, volunteers or
agents. If any County employee, officer, volunteer or agent damages any of the Contractor's
property, the County will be responsible for repair or replacement of the property. If a Contractor's
employee, officer or agent damages any County property, the Contractor will be responsible for repair
or replacement of the property.

ARTICLE 7. PAYMENT AND OTHER FINANCIAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 701. PAYMENT

a. The County shall submit claims for response time damages on a monthly basis pursuant to

Section 703, 704 and 705.
PD =Performance Damages pursuant to Section 705, or breach of contract damages

other than Response Damages.
RD = Response Damages pursuant to Sections 703 and 704.
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b. The County shall have the right at anytime to inspect the records and books and all tax
returns and other necessary records and documents of Contractor to ascertain the correct financial
status of the Contractor and to determine if the amounts paid hereunder are commensurate with
services rendered and the requirements of this Agreement.

SECTION 702. Reserved
SECTION 703. RESPONSE TIME DAMAGES

In each thirty (30) day period (beginning on the first day of each month, and commencing on
the first day of operations), not less than ninety percent (90%) of the Contractor's responses to
emergency requests shall be performed in 10 minutes or less as set forth in Section 406.

Failure of the Contractor to meet response time requirements will result in a penalty levied
against the contractor. Since there is no subsidy from the County, a penalty letter will be sent to the
Contractor and must be paid within 15 days of the date of the penalty letter. If the penalty is not paid
within 15 days, the payment will double with further actions taken.

Response Time Damages
Percentage of responses to emergency Damages per 30-day period
requests which satisfy response requirements (Damages are cumulative)
90% or greater $0.00
89.0% to 89.9% $1,000.00 per one (1) percent
88.0%_to 88.9% $2,000.00 per one (1) percent
87.0% to 87.9% $3,000.00 per one (1) percent
86.0% to 86.9% $4,000.00 per one (1) percent
85.9% or below $5,000.00 per one (1) percent

SECTION 704. RESPONSE TIME DAMAGES — ALS/BLS FIRST RESPONDER

a. The Contractor may use an ALS or BLS First Responder for meeting the response time
requirements set forth in Section 406.

b. If the Contractor utilizes an ALS or BLS First Responder for time response compliance as
required by Section 406, the ALS ambulance emergency transport unit must arrive at the incident
location within fifteen (15) minutes of the emergency request. Failure of the ALS ambulance to arrive
at the incident location within fifteen (15) minutes will result in a response time damage assessment
based on the following:

ALS First Responder damages shall be rounded up to the next whole number. Example, 15:01 would
be rounded to 16:00 minutes.
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Response Time Damages — ALS/BLS First Responder
ALS Ambulance Arrival Damages per incident
(Damages are cumulative)
15:01 to 18:01 o $250 per minute
19:01 to 29:01 $500 per minute
30:01 plus each subsequent minute $1000 per minute

c. The Contractor will be financially responsible for response time damages if an ALS or
BLS First Responder does not meet the response time requirements.

SECTION 705. SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE DAMAGES
a. Ambulance availability. The Contractor’s failure to provide available ambulances

as required in Section 405 will result in performance damages to be assessed per emergency
request as follows:

Performance Damages

Ambulance Availability Level Damages (cumulative)
Level O $5,000
Level O Additional $1,000 per emergency call
while at level 0

b. Priority 3 Non-emergency requests received through the BCECD. For every non-
emergency request for which the ambulance response time exceeds forty-five (45) minutes from the
Contractor's notification till arrival at the incident location, a penalty of two hundred and fifty ($250)
will be assessed per incident.

ARTICLE 8. COUNTY’S RIGHT TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT

SECTION 801. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

a. The County may, subject to the Agreement, terminate the Agreement because of any one
or more of the following material breaches of the Agreement:

1. The Contractor has failed to satisfy the response time requirements for a period of three
(3) consecutive months.

2. The Contractor has committed any other material breach of the Agreement.
3. The Contractor has intentionally falsified any information it is required to provide under

the Agreement.
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4. The written admission by the Contractor that it is bankrupt, or the filing by the
Contractor of a voluntary petition as such under the Federal Bankruptcy Act, or the
consent by the Contractor to the appointment by a court of a receiver or trustee for all
or a substantial portion of its property or business, or the making by the Contractor of
any arrangement with or for the benefit of its creditors involving an assignment to a
trustee, receiver or similar fiduciary regardless of how designated, of all or a substantial
portion of Contractor’s property or business.

b. If the County has grounds for termination of the Agreement as provided by Section 801 due
to a material breach and elects to terminate the Agreement, the County shall give written notice to
the Contractor of the basis for the claim within thirty (30) days after the County's actual discovery of
the first act, omission, occurrence or event giving rise to the claim. If, within sixty (60) days following
the delivery of the written notice to the Contractor, the Contractor acts reasonably to remedy the
claimed material breach, the County shall not be permitted to terminate this Agreement on account of
that claimed material breach. If, within sixty (60) days following the delivery of the written notice to
the Contractor, the Contractor does not remedy the claimed material breach, but does submit a
written plan and schedule to the County for remediation of the claimed material breach, and that plan
is approved by written notice from the County to the Contractor (which approval will not be
unreasonably withheld), the County shall not be permitted to terminate the Agreement on account of
the claimed material breach; provided, however, that if the Contractor fails to perform in accordance
with the approved written remedial plan, the County shall be entitled to subsequently assert such
failure by the Contractor as an additional material breach. If, within sixty (60) days following delivery
of the written notice, the Contractor fails or refuses to act reasonably to remedy the County's claimed
material breach and fails or refuses to submit a written plan and schedule for remediation of the
material breach and obtain approval of that plan by the County, then the County may, by written
notice to the Contractor, terminate this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement is meant to
operate as or constitute a waiver or release of the Contactor's rights to dispute the existence of the
basis of any termination or to protest any termination decision by the County. The County reserves
the right during the process set out in this paragraph to negotiate with and contract with a new
provider for the services set out in this Agreement.

SECTION 802. AFTER TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

After termination of the Agreement for cause, the County may exercise any one or more of the
following remedies:

1. Take possession of the Contractor's ambulances, equipment and /or
supplies pursuant to a lease agreement by which the County would pay the
Contractor a sum total of ten dollars ($10.00) for the use of all of Contractor's ambulances,
equipment and /or supplies used in performing Contractor's contractual obligation for a
period of not less than one hundred eighty (180) days, and operate ambulance services as
would otherwise be operated by the Contractor; the County would be responsible for
maintenance and insurance of Contractor's ambulances, equipment and/or supplies during
this period;

2. Negotiate a contract with another contractor to provide the services required under this
Agreement;

3. Assess against the Contractor the County's performance damages which have accrued
prior to termination, termination damages which consist of the County's direct damages,
and assert any other rights and remedies specifically provided for by the Agreement
against the Contractor.

Page 18 of 26



SECTION 803. COUNTY’S RIGHTS - CUMULATIVE; SURVIVAL

The County's rights and remedies as provided in this Agreement are cumulative, except as
otherwise expressly provided by the Agreement, and shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

SECTION 804. END OF CONTRACT

Contractor acknowledges that Blount County shall initiate a study on the feasibility of a
County-owned ambulance service. When this action is taken and if the County decides that a
County-owned service is the most advantageous method of providing services to the citizens of
Blount County, the County shall depend on the Contractor to continue provision of all services
required under this Contract until the County is prepared to provide its own service for a period not to
exceed 180 days. During that period, the current Contractor shall continue operations at the same
level of effort and performance as were in effect prior to the decision.

ARTICLE 9. CONTRACTOR’S RIGHT TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT

SECTION 901. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

a. The Contractor may, subject to the Agreement, terminate the Agreement upon the
occurrence of any one or more of the following acts, omissions, events or conditions:

1. Any material breach of the Agreement by the County.

b. If the Contractor believes that it has grounds for termination of the Agreement and elects
to terminate the Agreement, the Contractor shall give written notice to the County of the basis for the
claim within thirty (30) days following the Contractor's actual discovery of the first act, omission,
occurrence or event giving rise to the claim.

If, within sixty (60) days following delivery of written notice, the County acts reasonably to
remedy the Contractor's claimed grounds for termination, the Contractor shall not be permitted to
terminate the agreement.

If the Contractor's claimed grounds for termination are not remedied by the County within the
sixty (60) day period, the Contractor may, by written notice to the County, terminate the Agreement.
Nothing herein shall restrict or impair the Contractor's right to claim damages or losses on account of
a material breach by the County which is subsequently cured.

SECTION 902. AFTER TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

After termination of the Agreement by the Contractor under Section 901, the Contractor may
assert any claims for costs, losses and damages which may be permitted by law incurred in enforcing
its rights and remedies relating to this Agreement.
SECTION 903. CONTRACTOR’S RIGHTS - CUMULATIVE; SURVIVAL

The Contractor's rights and remedies as provided in this Agreement are cumulative, except as

otherwise expressly provided by the Agreement, and shall survive the termination of the Agreement.
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ARTICLE 10. OPERATIONAL CHANGES
SECTION 1001. COUNTY INITIATED CHANGES

a. The County, without invalidating the Agreement, may at any time order the Contractor to
perform changes in operations, including additions to or deletions from the Contractor's obligations,
subject to the following terms and procedure:

1. The County shall submit to the Contractor a written request, describing the County's
proposed change in operations and requesting the Contractor to submit a proposal for
performing the requested change;

2. The Contractor, within twenty (20) days after receiving the County’s request, shall
prepare and submit to the County, on such forms and with such detailed information as the
County may require, a written proposal which shall include the following information:

a. A statement as to whether the Contractor is ready, willing and able to perform the
requested change in operations;

b. What changes, if any, in the response time requirements will, in the Contractor's
opinion, be required for performing the County's requested change;

c. The effect, if any, of the requested change upon the Contractor’'s operations under
this Agreement; and

d. Such additional detailed information as the County may reasonably require.

3. The County may, after receipt of the Contractor's proposal, follow any one or more of
the following courses of action:

a. The County may elect to abandon the proposed change in operations;

b. The County may negotiate with or seek additional information from the Contractor;

c. The County may revise and resubmit the request to the Contractor according to the
above procedure;

d. The County and the Contractor may voluntarily execute the proposal for a requested
change in operations, which will then constitute a modification to the Agreement;

b. The Contractor shall, upon receipt of a change in operations from the County, promptly
proceed to perform or cause the change as authorized and directed and shall complete the
implementation of the change in operations within a reasonable time, to be determined by mutual
agreement of the Contractor and the County; provided, however, that the Contractor shall not be
required to proceed to perform or cause the change in the work:

1. If the Contractor has notified the County, and has in good faith determined that the
change will adversely affect the Contractor's ability to satisfy all response time
requirements of the Agreement.

SECTION 1002. CONTRACTOR INITIATED CHANGES
The Contractor may propose and submit to the County a proposed operational change in the

County's basic obligations or the performance requirements subject to the following terms and
procedure:
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1. The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the County a written proposal for a requested
change on such forms and with such detailed information as the County may require,
including, but not limited to, the following:

a. A detailed description of the requested change in operations;

b. What changes, if any, in the Agreement or the performance requirements are
requested by the Contractor,;

c. The effect, if any, of the requested change upon the Contractor's operations; and

d. Such additional detailed information as the County may require.

2. The County, within twenty (20) days after receipt of the Contractor's request for a
proposed change order, shall follow any one or more of the following courses of action:

a. The County may fail or refuse to respond (within the twenty (20) day time period) to the
request for proposed change, in which case the Contractor’s request shall be deemed
to be denied, and the Contractor shall proceed with performance under the
Agreement;

b. The County may negotiate with or request additional information from the Contractor
concerning the request, in which event the County shall have no duty to act upon the
request for the proposed change order until such information, in writing, is received
from the Contractor; or

c. The County and the Contractor may voluntarily execute the proposal for the requested
change in operations, which will then constitute a modification to the Agreement.

ARTICLE 11. MISCELLANEOUS
SECTION 1101. DISPUTE RESOLUTION FORUM

Any dispute arising under the Agreement which is not resolved informally by the County and
the Contractor, or under the terms of the Agreement, shall be prosecuted further, if at all, only in the
Circuit or Chancery Courts located in Blount County, Tennessee.

SECTION 1102. SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of the Agreement, or the application thereof to any party or
circumstance, shall be invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of the Agreement, and
the application of such term or provision to parties and circumstances other than those as to whom or
to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby; and each term or provision
of the Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

SECTION 1103. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES
This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Contractor and the County and is not intended

to confer any right or benefit on any other party whatsoever. No third party shall have any right or
claim whatsoever based on this Agreement.

SECTION 1104. ASSIGNMENT
The County may, after written notice to the Contractor, assign all or part of its rights and

benefits and delegate its obligations under the Agreement to any successor form of government with
authority to act as the local government for the current geographic and political boundaries of the

Page 21 of 26



County. The Contractor shall not assign any rights nor delegate any obligations required by this
Agreement to any party, except with the express written approval of the County.

SECTION 1105. NON-WAIVER

No payment, acceptance of payment or other act or failure to act by the County or the
Contractor shall be considered to be an acceptance of default or defective performance, nor a waiver
under the Agreement or the law, unless such acceptance or waiver is expressed in a written notice.

SECTION 1106. NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

Contractor will not discriminate against any applicant for employment because of age, race,
color, religion, sex or national origin. Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants
are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to age, race, color,
religion, sex or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, recruiting and related
advertising, layoff or termination, upgrading, demotion, transfer, rates of pay and compensation, and
selection for training, including apprenticeship. Contractor will post in conspicuous places, available
to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this
nondiscrimination clause.

SECTION 1107. ENTIRE AND COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, as amended, and Documents A-C as listed in Section 103 of this Agreement,
constitute the entire and complete agreement of the parties with respect to the services to be
provided hereunder. This Agreement, unless provided herein to the contrary, may be modified only
by written agreement duly executed by the parties with the same formality as this Agreement.

SECTION 1108. GOVERNING LAW

The Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed according to the laws of the
State of Tennessee and Blount County.

SECTION 1109. NOTICES

All notices, consents and agreements required or permitted by this Agreement shall be written,
and as applicable, shall be transmitted by registered or certified mail, with notice to be given upon
receipt, and shall be addressed as follows:

County: Blount County Government
Attn: Purchasing Agent
385 Court St.
Maryville, Tennessee 37804

Contractor: Rural Metro of Tennessee, L.P.
c/o Rural/Metro Corporation
8465 N. Pima Road
Scottsdale, AZ 85258
Attn: Legal Department

With a copy to Rural/Metro of Tennessee, L.P.
10140 Gallows Point Drive
Knoxville, TN 37931
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SECTION 1110. FAIR MARKET VALUE

This Agreement has been negotiated at arms length and in good faith by the parties. Nothing
contained in this Agreement, including any compensation paid or payable, is intended or shall be
construed: (i) to require, influence or otherwise induce or solicit either party regarding referrals of
business or patients, or the recommending the ordering of any items or services of any kind
whatsoever to the other party or any of its affiliates, or to any other person, or otherwise generate
business between the parties to be reimbursed in whole or in part by any Federal Health Care
Program, or (ii) to interfere with a patient’s right to choose his or her own health care provider.

SECTION 1111. COMPLIANCE WITH ANTI-KICKBACK STATUTE

Each party shall comply with the Federal Health Care Programs’ Anti-Kickback Statute (42
U.S.C. § 1320a-7b) and any applicable regulations promulgated thereunder. The parties further
recognize that this Agreement shall be subject to the amendments of the Anti-Kickback Statute or
any of its applicable regulations. In the event any applicable provisions of the Anti-Kickback Statute
or its regulations invalidate, or are otherwise inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, or would
cause one or both of the parties to be in violation of the law, the parties shall exercise their best
efforts to accommodate the terms and intent of this Agreement to the greatest extent possible
consistent with the requirements of the Statute and its applicable regulations.

SECTION 1112. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW

Both parties agree to be in full compliance with all Applicable Law and shall immediately notify
the non-breaching party in the event it has failed to comply with this Section. In such an event, the
non-breaching party may immediately terminate this Agreement.

SECTION 1113. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Contractor is an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as
creating an employment relationship, agency, partnership, or joint venture between the parties. Each
party shall control and direct the methods by which it performs its responsibilities hereunder. Except
as provided herein, neither party is authorized to act on behalf of the other in any other matter
whatsoever. In the event of medical necessity, County personnel may be requested to assist
Contractor in the continued medical care medically necessary for the care of the patient by
accompanying the patient during Contractor transportation. Under no circumstances shall County’s
employee be considered an employee of Contractor.

SECTION 1114. PUBLICITY PROVISION

Neither party shall use any trademarks, service marks, visual product representations, trade
names, logos or other commercial or product designations of the other party, or disclose such without
said party's express prior written consent. In particular, neither party shall identify or make reference
to the other party in any advertising or other promotional modality regardless of its form without
explicit prior written consent from said party.
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The Agreement has been executed on behalf of the County and the Contractor on the last

date appearing below:

Blount County, Tennessee:

By:

Title: Blount County Purchasing Agent

Date:

Approved as to Form and Correctness:

Attorney for Blount County Government

Date

Rural Metro

By:

Title: Mark Lashley, Division President

Date:

Contract Number:

2014-2323
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Addendum A
Contractor’s Initial Posting Map and Locations
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Blount Co Ambulance postings

*Post 1/ Station 13 521 S Washington St Maryville TN 37803
(35.756385 , -83.964016)

Post 2 Bypass (@ Louisville Rd Alcoa TN 37701

(35.772549 , -83.988601)

Post 3 E Lamar Alexander Parkway @ Tuckalechee Pike
(35.758553, -83.877998)

Post 4 411 S @ Fairview Rd Maryville TN 37801

(35.715966 , -84.016174)

Post 5 0ld Knoxville Hwy @ Sam Houston Rd

(35.811684, -83.937253)

*Post 6 E Lamar Alexander Parkway @ Webb Rd Townsend TN
(35.679040 , -83.750700)

Post Central/Main Headquarters 296 E Howe St Alcoa TN 37701
(35.781557 , -83.978161)

*Post 7 Sevierville Rd @ Keeble Rd

(35.825148, -83.811754)

Post 8 Montvale Rd @ Jericho Rd

(35.655361, -83.957396)

*Post 9 Louisville Station 3623 Louisville Rd, Louisville, TN 37777
(35.815545, -84.068429)

*Post 10 Greenback Station Hwy 411S @ Hwy 95

(35.643463 , -84.145538)

Post 11 Blount Memorial Hospital 907 E Lamar Alexander Parkway
(35.755882, -83.958077)

Post 12 W Lamar Alexander Parkway @ 0Old Glory Rd
(35.756412, -84.034921)

*Postings with sleeping quarters for 24hr crews and/or future sleeping
quarters.
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

BLOUNT COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
385 COURT STREET
MARYVILLE, TENNESSEE 37804-5906

Proposals are being accepted for Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN, as stated herein.

Proposals shall be sealed and submitted to:

Blount County Purchasing Department
Blount County Courthouse, Room 319
385 Court Street

Maryville, TN 37804-5906

Public Opening of the proposals will be held at the above address on March 03, 2015 at 1:30 p.m. local time. The
company name of the respondents will be the only information read aloud.

TABLE OF CONTENTS:

Page 1 Request for Proposal (RFP) Cover Page
Pages2-5  RFP Standard Terms and Conditions
Pages 6 - 24 RFP Special Terms and Conditions

Page 25 Background Check Compliance Form
Page 26 Conflict of Interest Statement
Page 27 Insurance Checklist

Page 28 Title VI (voluntary disclosure)
Page 29 Form W-9 (fo be submitted upon request)
Ambulance Service Agreement (22 pages)

DATE ISSUED: | January 30, 2015

RFP No: | 2014-2323

RFP TITLE: | Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN

RFP DEADLINE DATE & TIME: | March 03, 2015 at 1:30 p.m. local time

RFP CONTACT: | Teresa Johnson, Purchasing Agent, tiohnson@blounttn.org

CONTACT PHONE: | (865) 273-5740




Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN

Section 1. Standard Terms and Conditions of the RFP

1.1 Award

The right is reserved, as the interest of the County may
require, to reject any and all proposals and to waive any minor
informalities or technicalities in proposals received. The
County reserves the right to award this proposal on an all-or-
none basis. The County also reserves the right to not award this
proposal. The contract award, if made, shall be to the most
responsive, responsible proposer that presents the service that is
in the best interest of the County. (Responsive Bidder is
defined as a bidder that has submitted a proposal that conforms
in all material respects to the Request for Proposal (RFP).
Responsible Bidder is defined as a bidder that has the capacity
in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and
the integrity and reliability which will assure good faith
performance.) Disputes arising from the award of this RFP
must be submitted in writing to the Blount County Purchasing
Agent and received no later than five (5) calendar days from
contract award date.

1.2 Addenda

No modifications to the Invitation shall be binding upon the
County unless made in writing by an authorized representative
of the Blount County Purchasing Department. Addenda, if
issued, are posted on the County’s  website:
www.blounttn.org/purchase.aspx. Prior to submitting a
proposal, it is the responsibility of the vendor to ascertain that
they have received all addenda issued and submitted a proposal
accordingly. No addenda will be issued later than 48 hours
prior to proposal submittal deadline, excluding weekends and
legal holidays.

1.3 Assignment

The Contractor may not sub-lease, sell, convey, assign, or
otherwise transfer its interest in the contract without the official
approval of the County.

1.4 Compliance with Applicable Laws

The vendor shall comply with all laws relating to the
manufacture, sale, and purchases of items or services by
County Governments insofar as they pertain to the purchase
made under this contract.

1.5 Declarative Statements

Any statement or words (e.g.: must, shall, will, etc.) are
declarative statements and the vendor must comply with the
condition. Failure to comply with any such condition may
result in the proposal being non-responsive and disqualified.

1.6 Federal Tax and State Sales Tax

Purchases by the County are not subject to any state sales or
federal excise taxes. Exemption certificates shall be furnished
by the County upon the Contractor’s request.

1.7 Late Proposals

It is the responsibility of the vendor to deliver their proposal
or proposal modification on or before the deadline date and
time. Modifications cannot be made to the proposal after the
deadline. The time of record will be the date/time stamp of the
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Blount County Purchasing Department. Late proposals will not
be considered or returned.

1.8 Modification or Withdrawal of Proposals

Proposals may be modified or withdrawn by signed written
notice to Blount County Purchasing or in person by an
authorized vendor representative provided the modification or
withdrawal is received prior to the proposal deadline. A vendor
representative making a modification in person shall have
proper identification and shall initial the change. The vendor
representative shall sign a receipt for the withdrawal of a
proposal. A telegraphic notice with an authorized signature
would be acceptable for proposal modification or withdrawal.
It is the vendor’s responsibility to confirm receipt of the
modification or withdrawal. The telegraphic communications
shall not reveal the proposal price but shall provide the
addition, subtraction or other modifications so that the final
prices or terms will not be known by the County until the
sealed proposal is opened.

1.9 Non-Collusion

The requirements of State and Federal Antitrust Law, as
well as the terms and conditions of this RFP, require that all
decisions made as to matters concerning this proposal be made
on an individual firm basis. By signing this proposal, the
vendor certifies that no company employees, agents, or
representatives colluded in any respect with any other person or
firm as to the terms and conditions of the company’s proposal.
Any concerted activity with respect to this proposal will be
reported to the Antitrust Division of the Office of the Attorney
General, State of Tennessee.

1.10 Notification to County

If no proposal is to be submitted in response to this RFP, it
is not necessary to return the Request; however, notice should
be given to the County if the recipient wishes to remain on the
County’s vendor list for future solicitations.

1.11 Performance Bonds

The successful bidder will furnish a Performance Bond made
payable to Blount County Trustee in the form of a bond,
certified check, cash or bank draft of one million dollars
($1,000,000.00). This bond, in part or all, is to be forfeited to
the County in the event that the terms of the Contract are not
met in total by the successful proposer.

1.12 Possession of Weapons

All vendors and their employees and their agents are
prohibited from possessing any weapons on Blount County
property without prior written consent from the County. In the
case of a vendor whose contract requires possession of firearms
or other weapons to successfully complete their contract,
vendor must provide personnel who are bonded to bear said

weaponry.

1.13 Preparation of Proposals
(A) Proposers are expected to examine all RFP documents.
Failure to do so will be at the bidder’s risk.
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(B) Proposers shall furnish all information required by the
Invitation. The proposer shall sign the Invitation; erasures or
other changes shall be initialed by the person signing the offer.

(C) Unit price shall include freight unless otherwise
specified in the Invitation. In case of discrepancy between any
unit price and an extended price, the unit price shall govern.

(D) Alternate bids for supplies or services other than those
specified will not be considered unless authorized by the
Invitation.

(E) Blount County will not be responsible for any costs
incurred by the proposer in the preparation of their proposal.

(F) Proposers are cautioned to check their proposal for
possible error. Errors discovered after public opening cannot
be corrected and the proposer will be required to honor their
pricing or be subject to disqualification for award.

1.14 Proposal Acceptance

Proposal prices quoted shall be held firm and subject to
acceptance by the County for a period of one hundred and
twenty (120) calendar days from the proposal deadline, unless
vendor indicates otherwise in their proposal. If awarded the
RFP within the time frame specified, vendor agrees to furnish
all supplies/services described or specified at the prices and
delivery time quoted.

1.15 Proposal Bid Deposits

The RFP submittal must include a bid deposit in the form
of a bond, certified check, company or personal check, cash or
bank draft in the amount of twenty-five thousand ($25,000)
made payable to the Blount County Trustee, for the measure of
the liquidated damages which the County will sustain and the
proceeds thereof will become property of the County if for any
reason the vendor:

(A) Withdraws his proposal after the opening of the
proposals and prior to the time a formal written agreement,
evidencing the contract, has been signed and delivered to the
County, whether or not the vendor at the time of such
withdrawal has been designated as a successful bidder or

(B) Upon receipt of letter of intent, fails to properly sign and
deliver to the County within seven (7) business days a
Performance Bond, if required.

The vendor further agrees that the County will have the right
to retain the bid deposit for a period of one hundred and twenty
(120) days from the date of the opening of the proposals. The
vendor does further agree the amount of the bid deposit stated
herein to be firm for the above named period. At the expiration
of said time, or earlier at the option of the County, said bid
deposit will be returned to the vendor unless it has become the
property of the County as liquidated damages for one of the
reasons stipulated.

1.16 Public Information

The County will be free to use all information in the vendor’s
proposal for the County’s purposes. Vendor proposals shall
remain confidential until the County’s evaluation is complete.
The vendor understands that any material supplied to the
County may be subject to public disclosure under the
Tennessee Open Records Act, T.C.A. § 10-7-501 et seq.
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1.17 Qualifications of Vendors

The County may make such investigations as are deemed
necessary to determine the ability of the vendor to perform the
work and the vendor shall furnish all such information and data
for this purpose as the County may request. The County
reserves the right to reject any proposal if the evidence
submitted by or investigation of such vendor fails to satisfy the
County that such vendor is properly qualified to carry out the
obligations of the contract and to complete the work
contemplated therein.

1.18 Restrictive or Ambiguous Specifications

It is the responsibility of the prospective bidder to notify
Blount County Purchasing prior to the proposal deadline if
there is a question as to the RFP specifications being
formulated in a manner that would unnecessarily restrict
competition. This requirement shall also apply to specifications
that are in error or ambiguous.

1.19 Submissions of Proposals

(A) Proposals shall be enclosed in a sealed
envelope/box/container and submitted to the Blount County
Purchasing Department, 385 Court Street, Maryville, Tennessee
37804-5906. Include the name and address of the vendor on
the face of the envelope/box/container along with the proposal
number and title.

(B) Blount County does not accept proposals by facsimile
or any electronic transmission. See Clause 1.8 under Section 1.
Standard Terms and Conditions of the Request for Proposal
regarding proposal modifications or withdrawal.

(C) Samples of items, if required, will be requested by the
County and must be submitted within the agreed upon time
frame. Samples shall be provided at no expense to the County
unless otherwise specified by the County. If not consumed by
testing, samples will be returned at vendor’s request and
expense unless otherwise specified in the Invitation.
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2.11 Independent Contractor

Contractor shall acknowledge that it and its employees
serve as independent contractors and that Blount County shall
not be responsible for any payment, insurance, or incurred
liability.

2.12 Limitations of Liability

In no event shall Blount County be liable for any indirect,
incidental, consequential, special, or exemplary damages or lost
profits, even if Blount County has been advised of the
possibility of such damages.

2.13 Notice and Service Thereof

Any notice to any contractor from the County relative to
any part of this contract will be in writing and considered
delivered and the service thereof complied when said notice is
posted with said contractor or his authorized representative.

2.14 Patents
The seller guarantees that the articles described herein and

the sale or use of them will not infringe upon any U.S. or
foreign patent. The seller covenants that he will, at his own
expense, defend every suit which may be brought against the
County, or those selling or using the County’s product
(provided seller is promptly notified of such suit and all papers
therein are delivered to the seller) for any alleged infringement
of any patent by reason of the sale or use of such articles and
seller agrees that he will pay all costs, damages and profits
recovered in any such suit.

2.15 Provisions Required by Law Deemed Inserted

Each and every provision of law and clause required by law
to be inserted in this contract will be deemed to be inserted
herein and the contract will be read and enforced as though it
were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any
such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then
upon the application of either party the contract will forthwith
be physically amended to make such assertion or correction.

2.16 Registration

Prior to award of a contract, bidders shall be required to
register with Blount County under Vendor Registry on the
Purchasing Dept. website at www.blounttn.org/purchase.aspx.

2.17 Remedies

Blount County shall have all rights and remedies afforded
under the U.C.C. and Tennessee law in contract and in tort,
including but not limited to, rejection of goods, rescission, right
offset-off, refund, incidental, consequential and compensatory
damages and reasonable attorney’s fees.

2.18 Right to Inspect

Blount County reserves the right to make periodic
inspections of the manner and means the service is performed
or the goods are supplied.

2.19 Severability

If any provision of this Contract is declared illegal, void, or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall not be affected
but shall remain in force and in effect.
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2.20 Terms and Conditions

Any language contained on any invoice or other
document furnished by the seller at any time and the acceptance
by the County of any goods/services to be furnished hereunder
accompanied by any such document shall not be construed as
an acceptance by the County of any terms or conditions
contained in such document which are inconsistent with the
terms and conditions set forth in this Invitation. Any different
or additional terms contained in the seller’s acceptance are
hereby objected to.

2.21 Termination of Contract

The County reserves the right to terminate the contract at
any time if any of the provisions of the contract are violated by
the contractor, in the sole judgment and discretion of the
Purchasing Agent. In the event of such termination, the
Contractor shall be liable for any excess cost incurred by the
County. If the contract is so terminated the County may
purchase, upon such terms and in such manner as the County
Purchasing Agent may deem appropriate, supplies or services
similar to those so terminated and the Contractor will be liable
for excess cost occasioned thereby. In the event the contract
is terminated by the County for due cause, the vendor may be
barred from bidding on County contracts for a period of 24
months,

The contract may be cancelled without cause by either party
with the giving of written notice of no less than 90 calendar
days. From this notice to the termination date, the Contractor
shall fulfill any service requirements and shall be compensated
for such.
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SECTION 3. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1 INTENT: Itis the intent of this Request for Proposal (RFP) to receive proposals
to provide Emergency and Non-Emergency care and transport with Advanced
Life Support (ALS) Ambulance Service for Blount County, TN.

a) Blount County is seeking the highest quality, most reliable ALS ambulance
services available. Proposals not meeting this intent will be considered
unresponsive.

b) The successful Contractor shall be responsible for providing Blount County
Emergency Communications District (BCECD) ambulances for response to
emergency and non-emergency requests, throughout Blount County, as well
as additional associated support services.

c) The successful Contractor shall be responsible for providing transfer of an
individual from Blount Memorial Hospital to the most appropriate mental
health facility for the Blount County Sheriff's Office as deemed necessary
and directed by a Blount Memorial Hospital physician. These transfers are
most commonly to Peninsula Hospital, Louisville, TN or Moccasin Bend
Mental Health Institute, Chattanooga, TN.

d) In this procurement, Blount County desires clinical excellence, superb
response time performance, cost containment, professional and courteous
image. Under this contract, the relationship between Blount County and the
Contractor should always be one of cooperation and not conflict.

e) The services shall include, but not be limited to, the management and
operation of all ambulances, including ALS, BLS (Basic Life Support), and
Critical Care additionally; the service shall include medical supply
purchasing, management and operation of the medical supply warehouse, all
fleet maintenance, and public education.

f) The successful ambulance Contractor shall be responsible for supplying
vehicles, equipment and supplies. All vehicles and equipment shall be fully
operational when placed in service for response to public needs.

g) Successful proposals will include maintaining, at minimum, the current
standards in compliance with:

 Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 68-140-201 et seq.

 Rules of The Tennessee Department of Health, Chapter 1200-12-1, et
seq.

h) Overview of Blount County and the EMS System:
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e Blount County encompasses 584 square miles and a population of
approximately 123,000.

e The combined total number of students in the Blount County, Maryville,
and Alcoa School Systems is approximately 18,000.

e There is one (1) major medical hospital, Blount Memorial Hospital.

e The current EMS contract is an exclusive E-911 emergency service
contract with fully staffed and equipped ALS ambulances.

e The EMS System received an average of 9,570 calls per year from 2011-
2014.

e There are approximately 400 mental health transfers for the Blount County
Sheriff's Office per year.

i)  Successful proposals will include maintaining, at minimum, the standards for
personnel, equipment and supplies currently provided to Blount County.

o Each Paramedic (EMT-P) will obtain and maintain certification or licensing
as follows: (1) Class D with an F endorsement Tennessee drivers license ,
(2) Tennessee Paramedic license from the Division of Emergency Medical
Service, (3) American Heart Association or Red Cross CPR (1 and 2
person, FBAO infant, child, and adult conscious and unconscious, plus
AED), (4) Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS), (5) Pre-hospital
Pediatric Life Support or Pediatric Advanced Life Support (PALS), and (6)
Pre-hospital Trauma Life Support (PHTLS) or the advanced level of
International Trauma Life Support (ITLS).

» Each EMT/AEMT will obtain and maintain certification or licensing as
follows: (1) Class D with an F endorsement Tennessee driver’s license, (2)
Tennessee EMT/AEMT license from the Division of Emergency Medical
Service, (3) American Heart Association or Red Cross CPR (1 and 2
person, FBAO infant, child, and adult conscious and unconscious, plus
AED).

o Communications personnel shall be certified as Basic Telecommunicator
and Emergency Medical Dispatchers (EMD) by the standards set forth in
the Association of Public Safety Communication Officials (APCO).

« ALS and BLS Ambulance Equipment as set forth by the Tennessee
Department of Health, EMS.

j) Successful proposer shall be required to make lease payments to Blount
County Emergency Communication District (BCECD) for the ambulance
dispatch. These payments will be made on an annual basis over the initial
term of the contract and any subsequent renewals.
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN

AWARD:

a) The award will be made to the most responsive, responsible proposal, based
upon the evaluation of the Blount County Purchasing Department and
subsequent approval of the agreement by the Blount County Commission.

b) The proposal must meet all specified requirements and will be evaluated
using the criteria detailed herein.

c) Blount County shall contract with a single entity for the provision of this RFP
as specified herein.

d) Blount County reserves the right to reject any and all proposals if it is deemed in the
best interest of Blount County.

CERTIFICATE _OF INSURANCE: The provider will be required to provide a
certificate of insurance, in accordance with the insurance requirements contained
in the enclosed insurance checklist, prior to execution of the contract or
commencement of any work under this contract. This certificate must be kept
updated throughout the term of the agreement.

COMPENSATION: Blount County shall not compensate the Contractor for
professional services required within the terms and conditions of the agreement
with the possible exception of mental health transfers as noted in 3.1c. If fees
are associated with the transfer of an individual to the appropriate mental health
facility for the Blount County Sheriff's Office, they shall be so noted in the
proposal.

COST OF PROPOSAL PREPARATION: Blount County accepts no responsibility
for any expenses incurred in the proposal preparation and/or presentation.

DEFINITIONS:

a) The terms "proposer”, "organization”, "vendor", "provider", “bidder” and
“Contractor” shall all refer to the service provider.

b) The term “County” shall refer to Blount County, Tennessee, a geographic and
political subdivision of the State of Tennessee.

c) The terms “Ambulance Service Agreement”, “agreement” and “contract” shall
refer to the Ambulance Service Agreement attached hereto, which the
successful proposer will be expected to execute in substantially the same

form and content.

DISPATCHING OF CALLS: Blount County intends for all calls placed to E-911 to
be dispatched utilizing Emergency Medical Dispatch protocols. Contractor will be
required to identify calls as emergency and non-emergency and dispatched
accordingly. Not all calls to E-911 are emergency calls and shall be identified as
such.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN

END OF CONTRACT: Contractor acknowledges that Blount County shall initiate
a study on the feasibility of a County-owned ambulance service. When this
action is taken and if the County decides that a County-owned service is the
most advantageous method of providing services to the citizens of Blount
County, the County shall depend on the Contractor to continue provision of all
services required under this contract until the County is prepared to provide its
own service. During that period, the current Contractor shall continue operations
at the same level of effort and performance as were in effect prior to the decision.

Contractor shall be prohibited from making any changes in Contractor's methods
of operation which could reasonably be considered to be aimed at cutting costs
to maximize profits during the final stages of the contract. Failure to comply with
this section shall result in forfeiture of Contractor’s performance bond.

EXCEPTIONS: Contractor is advised that if it wishes to take exception to any of
the terms contained in this RFP or the attached agreement it must identify the
term and the exception in its response to the RFP. Failure to do so may lead the
County to declare any such term non-negotiable. Contractor's desire to take
exception to a non-negotiable term will not necessarily disqualify it from
consideration.

INNOVATIVE APPROACHES TO SERVICE DELIVERY: Blount County

encourages and will take under consideration, the proposing of alternate service
delivery methods including, but not limited to, the incorporation of local area ALS
and BLS first responder groups.

Understanding that these groups play a vital role in the delivery of services to
Blount County citizens, proposers shall submit information to incorporate each
agency.

Any proposed service delivery system which does not incorporate current ALS
and BLS first responders will be required to provide independent
documentation/analysis that the proposed system will meet County and state
regulations and community standard of care.

INTERPRETATIONS/CLARIFICATIONS: No oral interpretations will be made to
any Proposers as to the meaning of specifications or any other contract
documents. Every request for such an interpretation must be in writing and shall
be received by Teresa Johnson, Blount County Purchasing Department, by 4:30
p.m. February 10, 2015. All such interpretations/clarifications will be answered in
written format and shall become part of the contract documents.

NO CONTACT POLICY: All communications relating to this RFP must be
directed to the County’s contact person, Teresa Johnson, Blount County
Purchasing Agent. All other communications between a vendor and County
staff, and public officials concerning this RFP are prohibited. Failure to
comply with this section may result in the County disqualifying the vendor’s offer.
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3.14

3.15
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The following provisions are intended to ensure a fair and equitable review
process so that there is no actual or potential situation where one RFP proposer
secures or attempts to secure an unfair advantage over another RFP proposer or
creates a situation where there is an appearance of impropriety in contacts
between the RFP proposer or proposer's agent or proposer's Contractor or
proposer’'s consultant and County officials.

These restrictions extend to letters, phone calls, emails or any contact that
results in the direct or indirect discussion of the RFP to be submitted. Violation of
this provision by proposer or proposer’'s agent may lead to disqualification from
consideration.

An exception to the restrictions on communication with County employees
includes contacts by the proposer with Blount County staff when such contacts
do not pertain to this specific proposal. An example would include private (non-
business) contacts with the County by the proposer or proposer's employees
acting in their personal capacity. If a representative of the proposer has a
question about any potential contact as described above, the Purchasing Agent
will be notified in order to make a determination as to whether any contact is
allowed in accordance with the RFP.

OPTION OF RENEWAL: The contract may be renewed for up to three (3)
additional one (1) year terms upon written agreement of the parties. This option
shall be exercised only if the Contractor is successful in completing the
performance review outlined below and in the agreement; all terms and
conditions remain the same and approval is granted by the Blount County
Purchasing Agent.

PERFORMANCE BOND: The successful proposer must supply a Performance
Bond in the amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00). Blount County
reserves the right to reduce bonding requirements during the term of the
agreement. This is required prior to the execution of the contract. Upon receipt
of the Performance Bond, the Proposal Bid Bond will be returned. The Proposal
Bid Bond is subject to be forfeited if the successful proposer fails to execute the
written contract and furnish the required Performance Bond or to satisfy any
other conditions present, within a reasonable time as determined by the County.

PERFORMANCE CONTRACT:

a) The most important aspect of this procurement is the fact that this
procurement will result in the award of a performance contract. This
procurement requires the highest levels of performance and reliability, and
the mere demonstration of effort, even diligent and well-intentioned effort,
shall not substitute for performance results.

A Contractor who fails to perform must and shall be promptly replaced,
because human lives, and not merely inconvenience or money, are at stake.
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3.16

3.17
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« Ambulance response times must meet the response time requirements set
forth in the Ambulance Services Agreement attached hereto.

« Every ambulance unit must at all times be equipped and staffed to operate
at the ALS level, on all emergency and non-emergency calls received
from the Blount County Emergency Communications District (BCECD).

« Clinical performance must be consistent with approved medical standards
and protocols.

» The conduct of personnel must be professional and courteous at all times.

« There must be an unrelenting effort to detect and correct performance
deficiencies and to continuously upgrade the performance and reliability of
the entire EMS system.

« Clinical and response time performance must be extremely reliable, with
equipment failure and human error held to an absolute minimum through
constant attention to performance, protocol, procedure, performance
auditing, and prompt and definitive corrective action.

b) This is not a level-of-effort contract. In accepting a proposer's offer, Blount
County neither accepts nor rejects the proposer's level-of-effort estimates;
rather, the County accepts the proposer's promise to employ whatever level
of effort is necessary to achieve the clinical, response time, and other
performance results required by the terms of the Ambulance Services
Agreement.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW: At the end of the initial term of the agreement,
Blount County shall conduct a review of the performance of the Contractor
utilizing criteria the County determines to be relevant. This will not be limited to
mere compliance with the terms of this agreement. Additionally, the Contractor
should exceed the minimum requirements of the agreement.

PROPOSAL BID BOND: All proposals shall be accompanied by a bid bond in
the amount of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) in the form of a certified
or cashier's check made payable to Blount County Trustee.

The bid bond will be returned to any unsuccessful proposer by Blount County
within ten (10) business days after the award of the contract unless, upon
investigation of credentials and proposals it is determined that the proposer has
misrepresented itself or provided false or inaccurate information in the Request
for Proposal response. The successful proposer's bond will be returned upon the
signing of the contract. No interest shall be paid on these bonds.
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3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN

RATE INCREASES: Rate increases to the consumer will only be allowed
following a review of the Blount County Purchasing Agent. Rates must remain
firm for the initial two (2) year agreement term. Contractor will then be able to
request rate increases prior to agreement renewal. Rate increases will only be
granted by the Blount County Purchasing Agent and will take effect on July 01 of
the renewal year. The same applies for any rates, if applicable, for transfer of an
individual from Blount Memorial Hospital to the appropriate mental health facility
for the Blount County Sheriff's Office.

RIGHTS OF BLOUNT COUNTY IN REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PROCESS: In
addition to all other rights of Blount County under Tennessee law, the County
specifically reserves the following:

a) Blount County reserves the right to rank firms and negotiate with the
highest ranking firm.

b) Negotiation with an individual proposer does not require negotiation
with others.

c) Blount County reserves the right to select the proposal that it believes
will serve the best interest of Blount County.

d) Blount County reserves the right to reject any or all proposalis.

e) Blount County reserves the right to cancel the entire Request for
Proposal.

f) Blount County reserves the right to remedy or waive technical or
immaterial errors in the Request for Proposal or in proposals
submitted.

g) Blount County reserves the right to make selection of the proposer to
perform the services required on the basis of the original proposals
without negotiation.

SERVICES CONTRACT: The successful proposer shall be required to execute
an Ambulance Service Agreement in substantially the form and content attached
hereto prior to commencement of any work under this contract.

SUBSIDY: Blount County does not intend to pay, nor receive, any direct or
indirect financial subsidies to the Contractor or County during any contract term.

TERM: The contract shall commence 00:00:01 AM, July 1, 2015 through 24.00
hours June 30, 2017. Upon the mutual agreement of the Contractor and Blount
County, the contract may be extended for three (3) additional one (1) year terms.
This may result in a total of five (5) years.
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3.23 TIME LINE OF CRITICAL EVENTS:

January 30, 2015

Release of the Request for Proposal.

February 05, 2015

a) A mandatory pre-proposal conference will be held at 10:00 a.m. at
the Blount County Courthouse. Please report to the Purchasing
Department, Room 319, 385 Court Street, Maryville, TN 37804.

b) Proposals will only be accepted from companies that attended the
mandatory pre-proposal conference.

c) The purpose of the pre-proposal conference is to discuss the process
to be conducted.

February 10, 2015

Final date and time for clarifications and questions. All such requests
shall be submitted in writing and the person submitting the request will be
responsible for its prompt delivery. All requests shall be submitted by 4:30
p.m. local time, to Teresa Johnson at tjohnson@blounttn.org

Any interpretation of this proposal, if made, will be made only by
addendum form. A copy of such addendum shall be forwarded to each
proposer attending the pre-proposal conference. After this date and time,
no further questions, requests for approved equals, and clarifications will
be addressed.

February 17, 2015

Addendum (if required) to Request for Proposal to be released.
March 03, 2015
a) Sealed Proposals submitted by 1:30 P.M., local time.

b) Any proposals submitted after the specified time and date of opening
will not be considered. Proposers shall hold their submittal firm and
subject to acceptance by Blount County for a period of one hundred-
twenty (120) calendar days from the date of the proposal closing,
unless otherwise indicated in their proposal.
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c) Proposals shall be submitted with one (1) marked original and eight
(8) exact copies. Also requested is an exact copy, in pdf format, on
compact disc or flash drive.

d) Proposals shall be submitted in a sealed envelope/box/container. The
envelope/box/container and each proposal shall be labeled to indicate
the RFP number, name and address of the proposer and title of the
proposal.

e) All proposals shall be signed in ink by the authorized principals of the
proposer. The original should be signed in blue ink.

NOTE: Blount County Government reserves the right to adjust this schedule, as it
deems necessary, at its sole discretion.

3.24 USE OWN EXPERTISE AND JUDGEMENT: Each proposer is specifically

advised to use its own best expertise and professional judgment in deciding upon
the methods to be employed to achieve and maintain the high performance
required under this contract. By "methods", Blount County means compensation
programs, shift schedules, personnel policies, supervisory structures, fluid
vehicle deployment techniques, and other internal matters which, taken together,
comprise each proposer's own strategies and tactics for providing the required
level of service. Blount County hopes to promote innovation, efficiency, and
superior levels of high performance.

SECTION 4. PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCESS

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

After initial review and discussion of all proposals, each member of the internal
EMS Procurement Advisory Team will score submitted proposals using the
guidelines outlined herein.

The internal EMS Procurement Advisory Team will seek to achieve consensus
on the appropriate score for each section of each proposal. A team member may
revise their initial score after discussion and debate of the team, at their
individual discretion.

The points awarded by each team member shall be totaled for each proposal by
section.

The overall score shall be totaled for each proposal.

The EMS Advisory Team shall then forward the top ranked proposal to the Blount
County Purchasing Agent. In accordance with the “County Purchasing Law of
1957”, the Blount County Purchasing Agent will then determine the best proposal
for Blount County, using the Advisory Team’s ranking as a guideline, and
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negotiate an agreement with the successful proposal. The agreement shall be
forwarded to the Blount County Commission for possible approval.

SECTION 5. SCORING GUIDELINES
51 OVERVIEW
The Scoring of proposals is based upon on the following criteria:
e Appropriateness of the proposed services or practices to the
requirements; and

e The expected effectiveness of the proposed methods; and

e Degree to which the approach embodies quality management
practices; and

¢ Reliable information and data; and
e Evidence of innovation and/or significant and effective adaptations of
approaches used in other EMS performance based operations.

5.2 EVALUATION CRITERIA

a. Administration / Leadership (50 points)

This section examines the proposer's leadership system and key personnel's
personal leadership. It examines how senior leaders and key personnel address
values, performance expectations, a focus on customers and other stakeholders,
learning, and innovation.

Key Personnel. Proposer shall submit with this section of its proposal the resumes
of key personnel whose duties in Contractor's Blount County Operations shall
relate directly to fulfillment of Contractor’s obligations. “Key” positions shall include
those jobs incorporating responsibility for the following (on-site) management
functions: general manager or CEO, manager of communications center, manager
of fleet operations, manager of training, manager of quality assurance, clinical
manager, and manager of public relations.

If proposer anticipates initial use of an implementation management team which is
different in makeup from the permanent management team, then proposer shall
describe the anticipated schedule of personnel assignments associated with such
implementation plan.

In your response, address the following areas:

e |dentification of the individuals in managerial and supervisory positions
and their tenure with the proposer.
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e Managerial and supervisory staff education, training and experience as
related to emergency medical services.

e Duties and responsibilities to be performed by managerial and supervisory
staff in compliance with the contract.

e Describe the commitment of key personnel.

e Describe the organization's leadership system and how key personnel
guide the organization in setting directions and in developing and
sustaining effective leadership throughout the organization.

e Describe the organization's leadership and how it would operate. Include
how it addresses values, performance expectations, a focus on customers
and other stakeholders, learning, and innovation.

e Describe how key personnel participate in and use the results of
performance reviews.

b. Strategic Planning (50 points)

This section examines how the organization sets strategic directions, and how it
develops the critical strategies and action plans to support the directions. Also
examined are how plans are deployed and how performance is tracked.

Summarize the organization's strategy and action plans, how they are deployed
and how performance is tracked. Include key performance requirements and
measures, and an outline of related human resource plans. Estimate how the
organization's performance projects into the future relative to key benchmarks.

In your response, address the following areas:

e Provide a summary of the action plans and related human resource plans
derived from the organization's overall strategy.

o Briefly explain how critical action plan requirements, including human
resource plans, key processes, performance measures and/or indicators,
and resources are aligned and deployed.

o Describe how performance relative to plans is tracked. Note any important
differences between short- and longer-term plans and the reasons for the
differences.

e Provide a two (2) to five (5) year projection of key measures and/or
indicators of performance based on the likely changes resulting from the
organization's action plans. Include appropriate comparisons with key
benchmarks. Briefly explain the comparisons, including any estimates or
assumptions made in projecting benchmark data.
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c. Customer and Market Focus (50 points)

This section examines how the organization determines requirements,
expectations, and preferences of customers and markets. Also examined is how
the organization builds relationships with customers and determines their
satisfaction.

In replying to this section remember that “customers” are internal and external.
Address this section in terms of patients and patient outcomes, their families, the
public, other public safety professionals and health care professionals.

e Provide a brief description of how the organization learns from its former,
current, and potential customers and markets, to support the
organization's service delivery.

¢ Provide a number of examples of customer and market knowledge that
could be applied to improve the delivery of service or customer
satisfaction.

e Describe how key information from former and current customers and
markets, including complaint information, could be used to improve
service or satisfaction.

e Describe how the organization's approach to listening to and learning from
customers is evaluated, improved, and kept current with changing needs
and strategies.

¢ Describe how the organization provides access and information to enable
customers to seek assistance, to conduct business, and to voice
complaints.

e Describe how the organization, its key personnel, and its employees
support and strengthen the local communities.

d. Information and Analysis (200 points)

Blount County is committed to a comprehensive model of quality management
that while patient centered, encompasses all vital functions within the system to
include clinical improvement also.

The clinical indicators measured by all system participants will be developed
through collaborative efforts of all first responder agencies, the Contractor, the
Contractor's Medical Director, and the County. Statistical analysis and reports
will be monitored and should be submitted monthly or when requested by the
County.

This section examines the selection, management, and effectiveness of the use
of information and data to support key organization processes and action plans,
and the organization's performance management system.
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In your response, address the following areas:

e Describe the organization's selection, management, and use of
information and data needed to support key organization processes and
action plans, and to improve organization performance. This should
include involving senior leadership participation in the oversight process.

e Describe the main types of information and data, financial and non-
financial, and how each type relates to key organization processes and
action plans.

e Describe how the information and data are deployed to all users to
support the effective management and evaluation of key organization
processes.

e Describe how performance data from all parts of the organization are
integrated and analyzed to assess overall organization performance in key
areas. Describe how the principal financial and non-financial measures
are integrated and analyzed to determine:

o Clinical performance
o Operational performance

¢ Document the following:

That the Contractor will designate a Quality Manager to oversee the
quality management program.

That the Contractor will submit comprehensive key performance indicator
reports to the County, when requested.

That the Contractor will actively participate in projects designed to improve
the quality of EMS in Blount County.

How the Contractor's Medical Director incorporates local physician
involvement, interaction, credentialing, tasks and disciplinary involvement
and/or responsibilities.

CAAS Accreditation, although not required to be considered for award of
this RFP, is strongly desired by Blount County. The County would
anticipate the successful Contractor complete the accreditation process
within six (6) months after the execution of the resulting agreement.

RFP 2014-2323 Page 18



Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN

e. Process Management / Fleet Maintenance (100 points)

This section examines the key aspects of process management, including
customer-focused design, product and service delivery, support, and supplier
and partnering processes involving all work units. The category examines how
key processes are designed, implemented, managed, and improved to achieve
better performance.

In your response, address the following areas:

e State the minimum number of vehicles intended to be available for
response under this contract, the type, specifications, and manufacturer,
and such other information as may assist the EMS Procurement Advisory
Team in assessing the quality of vehicles proposed.

e State the ALS and BLS equipment to be utilized on all ambulances
proposed.

e Describe the policies regarding fleet size and standardization to which the
proposer would be committed, if awarded this contract.

e Describe the fleet maintenance program to be employed. Specifically
address how any instance which would render an ambulance unable to
respond to or transport a patient would be tracked, improved and
minimized.

e Describe the overall program of equipment maintenance and medical
supply warehousing to be employed by the proposer if awarded this
contract.

e Describe the maintenance-related and medical supply inventory record
keeping system to be employed by the proposer if awarded this contract.

e Describe the medical supply and equipment distribution system to be
employed by the proposer to serve all first responder services and the
proposer's units.

f. Human Resources (100 points)

This section examines how the organization enables employees to develop and
utilize their full potential, aligned with the organization's objectives. Also
examined are the organization's efforts to build and maintain a work environment
and work climate conducive to performance excellence, full participation, and
personal and organizational growth.

In your response, address the following areas:

e Describe the initial and ongoing personnel recruitment, screening, and
orientation program to be utilized by Contractor throughout the term of this
contract.
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Describe the existing procedures and guidelines for Continuing Medical
Education program(s) and describe any additional training that would be
provided or offered to the Proposer's personnel.

Describe compensation & benefits that will be offered to paramedics and
EMTs, and if applicable, dispatch personnel. Include minimum and
maximum ranges of compensation using years of experience as a basis
for personnel types and the benefits offered.

Describe the proposed shift assignments, the use of mandatory overtime,
worker's rights, promotion policies, and other job factors, which directly
affect job satisfaction, performance, attitude on the job, and rates of
employee retention.

Describe how all employees contribute to achieving the organization's
performance and learning objectives, through the organization’s work
design, and compensation and recognition approaches.

Describe how the organization's education and training support the
accomplishment of key organization action plans and address
organization needs, including building knowledge, skills, and capabilities,
and contributing to improved employee performance and development.

Describe how the organization maintains a work environment and work
climate that supports the well being, satisfaction, and motivation of
employees.

g- Communications (100 points)

This section examines how the organization facilitates the communications
process both from an internal and external prospective. Currently, the Blount
County Emergency Communications District (BCECD) receives the initial call and
transfers the call to the appropriate agency. The agency then dispatches
accordingly.

In your response, address the following areas:

Discuss how the proposer will implement a single point dispatching
system which would include deployment of first responders and ancillary
services.

Describe in detail how the proposer plans for interaction with the current
BCECD.

Describe in detail the automated dispatching aids proposed for installation
by the Contractor in the BCECD, if applicable.

Describe in detail any technologies or proposed methods that will be
utilized by the proposer, if awarded the contract, such as Automated
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Vehicle Location (AVL), with in-vehicle mapping and navigation, voiceless
dispatching, and driver performance monitors.

h. Business Results / Past Performance (200 points)

This section examines the organization's proposed performance for Blount
County in key business areas, i.e. operational performance, customer
satisfaction, financial and marketplace performance, and human resource
management.

In your response, address the following areas and propose the programs to be
used in Blount County:

e Summarize current levels and trends in key measures and/or indicators of
customer satisfaction and dissatisfaction, including satisfaction relative to
competitors. Address different customer groups and market segments, as
appropriate. Please list whom you consider to be customers. How does
your organization propose to monitor customer satisfaction? What
customer service data will you collect? What methods will be used for
collection? How will the data be used to improve customer satisfaction?

e Summarize the organization's current and/or proposed key financial and
marketplace performance results.

e List three (3) current ALS contracts (transport or other) and service areas,
served within the last five (5) years with population of 100,000 to 200,000.
Include the name, address and phone number of the contract manager or
local regulator. If the service is no longer provided, explain why.

e Document your organization's current estimated net worth and the form of
the net worth (liquid and non-liquid assets). Provide the most recent
audited annual financial statements for the proposer and affiliated
organizations.

e Document the estimated amount of working capital that will be committed
to the startup of the contract if awarded. State the source of those funds
and attach any endorsement documents if the capital is borrowed.

e Document the amount of funding that will be dedicated to "Reserve for
Contingencies", and the full costing allocations for Risk Management,
Insurance, Legal and Human Resource functions for the startup of this
contract, if awarded.

e Document the method of financing all startup and operational costs
including but not limited to the initial ambulance fleet and equipment
required to begin operations, if the contract is awarded.

e Proposer shall disclose any and all funding, including in-kind
funding/support and cost allocations from existing services that will
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support the provision of ambulance services within Blount County. This
includes any funding from existing contracts.

Detail any and all federal, state, or local government regulatory
investigations, findings, actions, or complaints and their respective
resolutions for the proposer's organization and affiliated organizations and
key employees within the last ten (10) years.

Detail any litigation in which the proposer is involved or which is pending.

Summarize your organization's current and/or proposed operational
performance objectives that contribute to the achievement of key
organization performance goals - customer satisfaction, product and
service quality, operational effectiveness, and financial/marketplace
performance.

Document any national, state or local quality management awards
received by your organization or key personnel. Describe any efforts that
your organization will make to apply for such awards in managing the
Ambulance Services Agreement, if awarded the contract.

Document any national, state or local EMS or ambulance industry awards
received by your organization or key personnel. Describe any efforts that
your organization will make to apply for such awards in managing the
Ambulance Services Agreement, if awarded the contract.

Document any programs, divisions, or operations that are accredited
within your organization. Describe any efforts that your organization will
make to apply for such accreditation in managing the Ambulance Services
Agreement, if awarded the contract.

Please describe any related proposed services which may or may not be
considered by Blount County for inclusion in the Ambulance Service
Agreement.

SECTION 6. PROPOSAL FORMAT

To facilitate the EMS Advisory Team's review process, the following guidelines shall be
adhered to for submittal of proposal with requested information:

6.1

PROPOSER INFORMATION

Company name, address, contact person, telephone number, fax number, email
address, proposer's Blount County business license number (if applicable), State
of Tennessee License (if applicable), Acknowledgement of Addenda (if
applicable).
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6.2 PROPOSER AND/OR COMPANY HISTORY

Years in business, nature of business, location(s) of business, location of
headquarters, number of employees, nature of business plan (in relation to
continued growth). An audited financial statement for the preceding three (3)
years.

6.3 A SIGNED STATEMENT AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF THE PROPOSAL

6.4 AN INTRODUCTION TO THE PROPOSAL

This is a brief overview.

6.5 DETAILS OF PROPOSED ARRANGEMENT FOR AN EXCLUSIVE PROVIDER
CONTRACT

Contractor will be exclusively responsible for providing all emergency
transports dispatched through the Blount County Emergency
Communications District (BCECD).

In each section of the proposals, the Proposer shall address the requested
information and precisely describe how it will be utilized to provide high
performance on all ALS Ambulance Services in Blount County. The descriptions
will include, but not be limited to, references to the following areas:

e Administration/Leadership

e Strategic Planning

e Customer and Market Focus

¢ |Information and Analysis

e Process Management/Fleet Maintenance

e Human Resources

e Communications

e Business Results/Past Performance

¢ Clinical Services: Detailed overview of all services to be provided.

o Operations
e Quality Management

¢ Risk Management

e Training

e ———————— e —,——,—,—,—m—m——,———————a
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6.6 RATES and CHARGES

a. Proposer shall identify fees to consumers for ambulance services.

Description Base Charge Mileage (if
applicable)

Advanced Life Support Emergency Service

Advanced Life Support Non-Emergency Service

Basic Life Support Emergency Service

Basic Life Support Non-Emergency Service

Critical Care Transport

e Proposer shall provide a detailed list of all items/services included in your base
charge.

e Proposer shall provide a detailed list of additional patient charges (add-ons) that
may be provided during a transport.

e Proposer shall indicate whether or not there would be any additional fees for those
responses that DO NOT result in transport and what those fees are.

b. Proposer shall identify any associated fees, if applicable, to Blount County for
the transfer of an individual from Blount Memorial Hospital to the appropriate
mental health facility for the Blount County Sheriff’s Office as deemed necessary
and directed by a Blount Memorial Hospital physician.

c. Proposer shall provide details, including cost, of any subscription program
offered to consumers.
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BACKGROUND CHECK COMPLIANCE FORM

BLOUNT COUNTY GOVERNMENT
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
385 COURT STREET
MARYVILLE, TN 37804-5906
(865) 273-5740 Phone
(865) 273-5746 Fax

RFP NUMBER: 2014-2323 CONTRACT NUMBER:

BACKGROUND CHECKS: Contractors shall comply with Public Chapter 587 of 2007, as codified in Tennessee Code Annotated
Section 49-5-413 and amended in Public Chapter 1080, which requires all contractors to facilitate a criminal history records check
conducted by the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation and the Federal Bureau of Investigation for each employee prior to permitting the
employee to have contact with students or enter school grounds when students are present.

Any person, corporation or other entity or any employee of any person, corporation or entity who enters into or renews a contract with
a local board of education or child care program on or after September 1, 2007, must:

(1) Provide a fingerprint sample

(2) Submit to a criminal history records check to be conducted by the Tennessee Bureau of Investigations and the Federal Bureau

of Investigations.
Company or Individuals (Name) Address
City, State, Zip Code Telephone Number

( )

Contractor License Number (If Applicable)

I agree to abide by Public Chapter 587 of 2007, as codified in Tennessee Code Annotated Section 49-5-413 and amended in Public
Chapter 1080, and certify that I am authorized to sign. The undersigned further agrees if this bid or contract is accepted, to furnish any
and all of the Background Check Information on himself and all of his employees as required by law, at the request of Blount County
Government. [ hereby agree to release all criminal history and other required information to Blount County Government, the
Tennessee Bureau of Investigation and the Federal Bureau of Investigation in accordance with Tennessee law and I further certify that
all information supplied by me regarding this inquiry is true and accurate. 1 agree to release and hold harmless the above-mentioned
governmental entities for the use of this information related to the purposes mandated under Tennessee law. I further certify that I have
obtained acceptable criminal history information on all current employees and will obtain said information on future employees
associated with the performance of the work defined in this bid or contract, pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 49-5-413
and that neither 1 nor any employee of mine is prohibited from direct contact with school children for the reasons enumerated in
Tennessee Code Annotated Section 49-5-413.

Signature: Title:
Printed Name: o Date:
(Please Print Clearly) (Month, Day, Year)
INTERNAL OFFICE USE ONLY
NOTES: I

Background Check Form-School Dept Contracts 12-5-07

25




Conflict of Interest Statement

A. It shall be unlawful for any officer, committee member, director, or other person whose
duty it is to vote for, let out, overlook, or in any manner superintend any work or any
contract in which any municipal corporation, county, state, development district, utility
district, human resource agency, or other political subdivision created by statute shall or
may be interested, to be directly interested in any such contract. “Directly interested”
shall be as defined by Tennessee Code Annotated § 12-4-101 and any subsequent
amendment thereto.

B. It shall be unlawful for any officer, committee member, director, or other person whose
duty it is to vote for, let out, overlook, or in any manner superintend any work or any
contract in which any municipal corporation, county, state, development district, utility
district, human resource agency, or other political subdivision created by statute shall or
may be interested, to be indirectly interested in any such contract unless the officer
publicly acknowledges such officer’s interest. “Indirectly interested” shall be as defined
by Tennessee Code Annotated § 12-4-101 and any subsequent amendment thereto.

C. Violation of this statement with the knowledge, express or implied, of the person or
corporation contracting with or making a sale to the County shall render the contract
voidable.

D. Any member of a local governing body of a county or a municipality who is also an
employee of such county or municipality and whose employment predates the
member’s initial election or appointment to the governing body of the county or
municipality may vote on matters in which the member has a conflict of interest if the
member informs the governing body immediately prior to the vote as follows: “Because
I am an employee of (name of governmental unit), | have a conflict of interest in the
proposal about to be voted. However, | declare that my argument and my vote answer
only to my conscience and to my obligation to my constituents and the citizens this
body represents.”

E. Inthe event a member of a local governing body of a county or municipality has a
conflict of interest in a matter to be voted upon by the body, such member may abstain
for cause by announcing such to the presiding officer.

F. The vote of any member of a local governing body having a conflict of interest who does
not inform the governing body of such conflict shall be void if challenged in a timely
manner. As used in this statement, “timely manner” shall mean during the same
meeting at which the vote was cast and prior to the transaction of any further business
by the body.
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BLOUNT COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
INSURANCE CHECKLIST

Vendor understands and agrees to confirm to these insurance requirements if given notice of intent to award this contract.
The successful vendor shall obtain and keep in force for the term of the project, workman’s compensation, comprehensive
general liability insurance and bodily injury and property damage insurance sufficient to hold the County harmless in the
event of accident or injury to Proposer or any employee or subcontractor of Proposer.

Coverage Required: Minimum Limits Required:
|Z[ 1. | Workers’ Compensation & Statutory Limits
Employer’s Liability $100,000 per occurrence, $100,000 disease,
$1,000,000 annual aggregate
|Z[ 2. | Commercial General Liability to include $1,000,000 per occurrence,
Contractual Liability, XCU, Personal Injury $3,000,000 annual aggregate

Perils, Products Liability and Completed
Operations Liability.

A 3. | Business Auto Liability, Personal Injury. $2,000,000 combined single limits
(Symbol 1)
|Z[ 4. | Professional Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence

$3,000,000 annual aggregate

Excess Employers’ Liability Coverage. $10,000,000 excess of above coverage

Builder’s Risk - I:l Installation Floater.

Vendor’s insurance policy shall be endorsed to show “Blount County Government” and “Blount County
Board of Education” named as additional insured on all required liability insurance. The above shall be
named as loss payee on all types of required property insurance and for which any political subdivision
of Blount County has an insurable interest.

M |8

Cancellation clause on any insurance certificates MUST be amended to read, “Should any of the above
described policies be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing insurer will mail 30 days
written notice to the certificate holder.”

Any deviation from the above requirements shall be disclosed to the Blount County Purchasing Agent. Coverages
specified above shall be written on an “occurrence” coverage form suitable to Blount County Government. Complete
certified copies of insurance policies shall be provided upon request. Insurer’s A.M. Best Rating Guide shall be A IX or

better.

Certificate Holder shall be:

Blount County Risk Management
c/o Blount County Purchasing

385 Court St.

Maryville, TN 37804-5906

RFP 2014-2323
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Title VI

For Title VI Compliance, the County of Blount requests voluntary
disclosure of the following information, related to the owner/operator

of the company:

Company Name:

Address:

Phone Number: ( )

Fax Number: ()

Authorized Signature

Date

Business Ownership (Check One or More)

Ownership Ethnicity (Check Only One)

I:l D Disabled I:l N Non-Minority

(Minority Owned) Owned
G Government F Female
Owned (Minority Owned)
I:I E Race/Ethnic M Male
Background (Minority Owned)
(Minority Owned) P Non-Profit

Organization

C Caucasian

Black/African American

Hispanic

Asian

American Indian or Alaskan Native
Native Hawaiian or other Pacific

Zz - r»>zzw

Islander

[:| O Other(Specify)

RFP No. (if applicable): 2014-2323

RFP Title:

Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN

Date of RFP Deadline:

March 03. 2015 at 1:30 p.m. local time

The County of Blount complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Acts of 1964, as codified in 42 U.S.C. 2000D,

which states that:

No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of. or be subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal

financial assistance.

The County of Blount does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or treatment of
employment in, its program or activities and is in compliance with ADA (American with Disabilities Act of 1990)

42 U.S.C. 12101.




wW-9
Form

(Rev. August 2013)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

Name (as shown on your income tax returm)

Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

Check appropriate box for federal tax classification:
(1 individuav/sole proprietor ] ¢ Corporation

|:| Other (see instructions) »

|:| S Corporation

I:] Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnership) »

Exemptions (see instructions):
|:] Partnership |:| Trust/estate
Exempt payee code (if any)
Exemnption from FATCA reporting
code (if any)

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.)

Requester’s name and address (optional)

Blount County Purchasing Department
385 Court Street

City, state, and ZIP code

Print or type
See Specific Instructions on page 2.

Maryville, TN 37804-5906

List account number(s) here (optional)

[ Part |

Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on the “Name” line
to avoid backup withholding. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN). However, for a

resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part | instructions on page 3. For other - =
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a

TIN on page 3.

Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose

number to enter.

| Social security number

! Employer identification number

Part II Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and

2. I'am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no longer subject to backup withholding, and

3. lam a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below), and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage
interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and
generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the

instructions on page 3.

Sign Signature of
Here U.S. person >

Date >

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. The IRS has created a page on IRS.gov for information
about Form W-9, at www.irs.gov/w9. Information about any future developments
affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) will be posted
on that page.

Purpose of Form

A person who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your
correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) to report, for example, income paid to
you, payments made to you in settlement of payment card and third party network
transactions, real estate transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made
to an IRA.

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to
provide your correct TIN to the person requesting it (the reguester) and, when
applicable, to:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct {or you are waiting for a number
to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If

applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of
any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the

withholding tax on foreign partners’ share of effectively connected income, and

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are
exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct.

Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form
W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if it is substantially
similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S.
person if you are:

» An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,

« A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the
United States or under the laws of the United States,

¢ An estate (other than a foreign estate), or
* A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in
the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section
1446 on any foreign partners’ share of effectively connected taxable income from
such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received,
the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a
foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a
U.8. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the
United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status
and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-9 (Rev. B-2013)



RFP 2014-2323, Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN
Addendum No. 1
February 20, 2015

This addendum is issued to address the following questions to the referenced RFP:

1. Section 5.2 “Evaluation Criteria” (pages 15-22) describes 8 headings/topics (a. through h.) providing
guidance for submission and the associated points for each. In the following section 6.5 “Details of
Proposed Arrangement for an Exclusive Provider Contract” (page 23) these headings/topics are repeated
with 5 additional headings/topics; Clinical Services, Operations, Quality Management, Risk Management
and Training. These additional 5 do not have any guidance or associated points listed like the previous
headings.

Are these 5 additional headings/topics going to be scored, and if so what point values are associated with
each?

Answer: These will not be scored separately.

1.a. If these additional 5 heading/topics are not going to be scored separately, should we assume you
wish proposers to address the topics within the originally listed topics/headings?

Answer: Proposers shall address each heading of Section 6.5, including any pertinent information to
demonstrate that the company can provide a high level of service to Blount County.

1.b. And if they are not scored can we assume the maximum total points for this RFP is 850 points as
described below?
a) Administration/Leadership 50

b) Strategic Planning 50

c) Customer and Market Focus 50

d) Information and Analysis 200

e) Process Management/Fleet Management 100
f) Human Resources 100

g) Communications 100

h) Business Results/Past Performance 200
TOTAL 850
Answer: Yes.

1.c. For clarification and for consistency of the responses could you provide to all proposers a mandatory
table of contents with associated scoring for each section?

Answer: Proposers shall submit their proposal as addressed in Section 6 of the RFP, at a minimum. The
proposal shall be evaluated on its merits using the scoring guidelines noted in Section 5 of the RFP.
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2. The Agreement, Section 704 (page 17) states, “The Contractor may use an ALS or BLS First Responder
for meeting the response time requirements set forth in Section 406.” Can the Contractor use a third
party first responder (fire department) to “stop the clock” in meeting the response time standards?

Answer: Yes.

3. Will the County provide response data in a specified geo-file showing location and time-of-day, day-of-
week for all 911 EMS calls for the previous year?

Answer: This information is not available.

4. In addition to the annual response, will the County also provide the transport numbers for the 911 EMS
calls in the County?

Answer: In 2014, the current contractor responded to 12,612 calls and 10,942 patients were
transported.

5. What response time criteria is the current provider operating under and are they compliant? Will the
County please provide any response time reports submitted for the previous year and any fines/damages
levied against the current contractor?

Answer: The current provider is not operating under any response time criteria.

6. Given the complexity of the RFP and the expected sophistication of the responses, will the County
consider an extension of 30 days to the submission deadline to allow all providers the time to prepare the
best possible responses to this RFP?

Answer: The submission deadline for this RFP has been extended to Friday, March 06, 2015, no later
than 1:30 p.m. EST.

7. Page 18 - CAAS Accreditation: Can the timeline expectations for CAAS accreditation be adjusted?
Understanding that the review timeline from the Commission is often 6-8 months, which does not include
the time of application preparation.

Answer: It is the County’s opinion that this process should have been started at the time of proposal
submittal. The County may, at its discretion, be flexible in the timeline of the accreditation process
completion.

8. Pages 44-46: Are the performance penalties negotiable or can providers produce an alternate proposal
in regards to the performance damages?

Answer: Although terms and conditions of the agreement are negotiable, it is the desire of Blount
County to enter into an agreement with an emergency services provider that significantly meets the
terms and conditions of the proposed agreement included with the RFP.

9. The proposed response time standards for the RFP are very specific and failure to comply with this
response time standard results in very large fines and potential default of the contract. In order to
properly develop a Time of Day/Day of Week Demand Analysis and do a Geographic Distribution Study we
need to have detailed data on the current call demand in the County. These activities are necessary in
order to be able to create and evaluate staff schedules and unit deployment plans that would meet the
County’s proposed response time standards. Can the County provide detailed call data in an electronic
format for the last twelve months with the data fields specified in the attached spreadsheet?
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CAD Data Request

Incident #

An alpha/numeric identifier of the incident

Incident Address number and street name
Incident City

Incident Zip Code

Incident Latitude

Incident Longitude

Response Priority

Please include a list of response priorities and
their definitions (e.g., lights and sirens
response or not), also response time
requirements for each priority.

MPDS (Medical Priority Dispatch System) Code

If used and available

Response Zone

If used and available

Received Date/Time

Date/time called received in dispatch

Dispatch Date/Time

Date/time unit assigned to call

Enroute Date/Time

Date/time unit is enroute to call

OnScene Date/Time

Date/time call arrives at scene

Transporting Date/Time

Date/time unit starts transport to hospital

AtHospital Date/Time

Date/time unit arrives at destination hospital

Available Date/Time

Date/time unit is available to system

Cancelled Date/Time

Date/time unit cancelled (when appropriate)

Receiving Facility

Name of receiving hospital

Transport Priority

If available

Answer: This information is not available. There are no response time standards in the RFP; terms and

conditions of the agreement are negotiable.
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10. During the Pre Proposal Conference it was stated by the County the Response Time Criteria and other
specifications were very flexible and vendors were encouraged to be creative and propose what they
believe is the best service, but in the RFP (Example Section 1.1 Award, Section 1.13 Preparation of
Proposals & Section 3.2 Award) it is stated vendors must comply with specifications of the RFP, can you

please clarify?

Answer: Proposers shall address the requirements of the RFP at a minimum; however, proposers may
include any and all information describing how they can provide service to Blount County. Blount
County is seeking creative solutions to the provision of Emergency Medical Services and award shall be
made that is deemed to be in the best interest of Blount County.

11. Is the proposed contract resulting from this RFP going to be exclusive for Emergency Medical
Transportation Services in Blount County?

Answer: This contract will be exclusive for dispatching of all emergency and non-emergency calls made
to E-911. The contractor will be responsible for dispatching all calls from BCECD.

12. Is the proposed contract resulting from this RFP going to be exclusive for Non- Emergency Medical
Transportation Services in Blount County.

Answer: See answer to Question 11.

13. Section 3: Special Terms & Conditions, 3.1 Intent Letter C.
Can the County supply Time of Day/Day of Week data in an electronic format for all mental health

transfers for the County Sheriff’s Office for the last twelve months?

Answer: The specific time of day/day of week is not tracked. Blount County can advise that 200 of the
437 transports in 2014 occurred during the hours of 4:00 p.m. and midnight. June is the highest month
of occurrence with 52. There were 437 mental health transports in 2014; 295 to Peninsula Hospital; 58
to Moccasin Bend Mental Health Institute; and the other transports were to the facilities as outlined

below.
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13.a. Is the contractor expected to transport psychiatric patients that are physically restrained
(handcuffs, etc.)?

Answer: Yes.
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Answer: Yes.
13.b. Can this transportation occur in a non-ambulance vehicle?
Answer: Yes.

14. Section 6.2 Proposer and/or Company History
Can the County please specify the exact type of financial statements and type of audit required?

Answer: Your company’s annual financial statement that has been audited by an independent CPA or
auditing firm.

15. Section 3 Special Terms and Conditions 3.1 Intent Letter I.
Will the County allow CPR certification from ASHI (American Safety and Health Institute)?

Answer: No. The certification should be from the American Heart Association or Red Cross.

16. Article 4 Duties and Responsibilities of Contractor, Section 402 Letter B
Can the County provide an approximate number of Medical Examiner transport per year?

Answer: There were 13 Medical Examiner transports in 2014.

17. Article 4 Duties and Responsibilities of Contractor, Section 403 Letter A

Can the County provide the various frequencies that are used by all response agencies serving Blount
County (900mhz, 800mhz, UHF, VHF, etc.)?

Answer: The County cannot provide these frequencies.

18. Article 4 Duties and Responsibilities of Contractor, Section 403 Letter B

Does this requirement infer that all off-duty staff must be provided portable radios or is this requirement

for on-duty staff?

Answer: This was intended for off-duty staff only.

18.a. Does this requirement infer that each employee will carry multiple portable radios to
communicate with all agencies (900mhz, 800mhz, UHF, VHF, etc.)?

Answer: The County is interested in the solution to the requirement as determined by each Contractor.
19. SUBIJECT: IFT EXCLUSIVITY = RFP PAGE: 7

The current EMS contract is an exclusive E-911 emergency service contract with fully staffed and
equipped ALS ambulances. Is the same true for IFT-Priority Ambulance? Is the IFT considered in the

exclusivity for this new contract? If not, is the County willing to consider exclusivity?

Answer: No to all the above.

Page 5 of 7



20. SUBJECT: CURRENT FEE SCHDULE = RFP PAGE: NOT APPLICABLE
Can the County provide a copy of the current published Blount County fee schedule?

Answer: 2013 base rates:
ALS 2 978.22
ALS-E 767.60
ALS-NE 662.79
BLS-E 633.39
BLS-NE 289.33
Mileage 11.44

21. SUBJECT: 2014 LEVEL-OF-SERVICE BREAKDOWN = RFP PAGE: 6, 24
Can the County provide a level-of-service mis breakdown for 2014 transports (e.g. ALS-E, ALS Non-E, BLS-
E, BLS Non-E, CCT)?

Answer: See answer to Question 4.

22. SUBJECT: EMERGENCY PAYOR MIX DATA = RFP PAGE: NOT APPLICABLE
Can the County supply primary payer mix data for 2014 Emergency Transports?

Answer: This information is not available.

23. SUBJECT: MENTAL HEALTH TRANSPORT VOLUME = RFP PAGE: 6
Can the County provide a separate breakdown of 2014 individual volume for Mental Health transports
going to Peninsula Hospital and the Moccasin Bend Institute (one breakdown for each facility)?

Answer: See answer to Question 13.

24. SUBJECT: SHERIFF’'S OFFICE MENTAL HEALTH TRANSPORTS = RFP PAGE: 7
Are Mental Health transports requested by the Sheriff's Office included in the 9,750 average calls quoted
on Page 7?

Answer: No. See answer to Question 13 for the number of mental health transports.
25. SUBJECT: BCECD LEASE PAYMENTS = RFP PAGE: 7 » SAMPLE SERVICE AGREEMENT PAGE: 10
Can the County provide how much they receive annually as lease payments for Blount County Emergency

Communication District (BCECD)?

Answer: $0. The current contractor does not dispatch from the Blount County Emergency
Communications District (BCECD).

26. SUBJECT: DISPATCH EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE = RFP PAGE: 20
Is the awarded provider required to supply any dispatch-related equipment and/or software?

Answer: Yes; equipment and software. The awarded Contractor will have to negotiate a contract with
the Blount County Emergency Communications District (BCECD).
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27. SUBJECT: NO-CHARGE OR DISCOUNTED TRANSPORTS = SAMPLE SERVICE AGREEMENT PAGE: 10
Can the County provide the number 2014 transports related to County schools, the County Jail, indigents,
or County employees that resulted in a no-charge or discounted charge?

Answer: This information is not available.

28. SUBJECT: SPECIAL EVENT COVERAGE = SAMPLE SERVICE AGREEMENT PAGE: 5
Can the County provide the total special event coverages from your current provider in 2014?

Answer: 35.

29. 705.b Non-emergency requests received through the BCECD. For every non-emergency request for
which the ambulance response time exceeds forty-five (45) minutes from the Contractor’s notification till
arrival at the incident location, a penalty of two hundred and fifty (5250) will be assessed per incident.
Please define non-emergency request as it pertains to this section.

Answer: See the definitions section of the proposed agreement.
30. Can the county provide the number of “dry” or “no transports” run rate for calls dispatched?

Answer: See answer to Question 4.
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

6.1 PROPOSER INFORMATION

Company Name: Rural/Metro of Tennessee, L.P.

Address: 296 E. Howe Street
Alcoa, Tennessee 37701

Contact Person: Erin Downey, Regional Director
Telephone Number: 865-805-1542
Fax Number: 865-982-8341

Email Address: Erin.Downey@rmetro.com

Blount County Business License Number: 0471988
State of Tennessee EMS License Number: No. 9933

Acknowledgement of Addenda:
Rural/Metro acknowledges receipt of Addendum:
1. Addendum No. 1 - February 20, 2015

Please see Appendix 6 for copies of Rural/Metro Licenses
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

6.2 PROPOSER AND/OR COMPANY HISTORY

Blount County History

Rural/Metro Corporation of Tennessee, a Tennessee corporation (“Rural/Metro”) is a subsidiary and
affiliate of Rural/Metro Corporation, a Delaware limited partnership, has proudly served the Blount
County community since 1985. 70% of our full-time and part-time employees are residents of Blount
County this includes many members of our East Tennessee leadership team. Our Blount County
administrative and fleet building is located at 296 E. Howe Street in Alcoa, Tennessee. The Blount
County operations are led by our General Manager, Jonathan Rodgers, a lifetime resident of Blount
County. After serving 12 years with Rural/Metro as a critical care paramedic, Mr. Rodgers advanced
into the General Manager role in March 2014. His dedicated team works diligently every day to provide
the most superior care to Blount County citizens.

Blount County currently operates 10 dedicated ambulances and runs a twenty-four hour dispatch
center providing Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD) to all medical requests for service. In addition, we
are proud to dispatch for the Blount County Rescue Squad. Rural/Metro is enthusiastic for the
opportunity to further incorporate dispatch responsibilities in to the Blount County Emergency
Communications District upon award of this contract.

The dedication to Blount County extends to volunteer and community service work throughout the
community. Our leadership team is involved with several committees, boards, and commits to
countless volunteer hours. An example of the volunteer work by our employees includes membership
on the Blount County Rescue Squad, numerous county standby events and health fairs, work with the
Red Cross, Blount County Chamber of Commerce, United Way, Habitat for Humanity, March of Dimes,
CASA of the TN Heartland, and many others.

Rural/Metro’s Blount County leadership is dedicated to contributing time and resources to the Local
Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), local disaster drills, stroke and STEMI committees at Blount
Memorial Hospital, as well as county and regional disaster preparedness activities. Our bench strength
throughout East Tennessee includes 700 employees, over 100 fleet vehicles, and a robust support
structure that is unmatched by any ambulance service in the state of Tennessee.

In 2014, Rural/Metro Knox County received the EMS Region Il service of the year award. In 1996,
Rural/Metro received the Governor’s Quality Award, becoming the only ambulance service in the State
of Tennessee to achieve this honor. In 2014, Rural/Metro completed the rigorous qualification process
and received re-accreditation from the Commission on Accreditation of Ambulances Services (CAAS)
which we have held since 1997. CAAS accreditation signifies the gold standard in ambulance service
operations, validating that Rural/Metro meets or exceeds benchmarks of excellence in fleet
maintenance, staffing, clinical care, communications, education, human resources, and public
relations.

Rural/Metro is the only nationally accredited ambulance service provider in East Tennessee.
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

Our East Tennessee headquarters, located in west Knox County, provides unparalleled support for
Blount County with a wealth of disaster response capabilities and EMS experts who have made
Rural/Metro of East Tennessee their career choice. We are thoroughly vested throughout the region,
where our highly trained and experienced local employees form the foundation of Rural/Metro’s
service excellence. We offer a 52,000-square-foot operation center with training rooms to instruct
EMTs and paramedics on the latest EMS protocols and technology; an ambulance fleet maintenance
facility; conference rooms and a 125-seat auditorium open to community use.

Rural/Metro Corporate History
Rural/Metro is a leading provider of emergency and non-emergency medical transportation, and
safety-related services in communities throughout the United States.

Established in 1948, Rural/Metro has cultivated 67 years of unparalleled clinical excellence, superior
customer service, and robust continuous improvement processes. Our seamlessly integrated
partnerships with local government entities, community resources, and healthcare facilities allow us to
create solutions that drive efficiencies towards improving the quality and integrity of our customers’
systems.

Our core mission is to provide exemplary community health services that encompass long-term
stability, innovation, and flexibility. Our corporate headquarters are located at 8465 North Pima Road
in Scottsdale Arizona, 85258; the phone number is 800-352-2309. At this location we house an
unprecedented support team for all operations across the country. The corporate headquarters serves
to support the local functions and offers an unmatched wealth of resources for Blount County,
Tennessee.

The economies of scale that come from being the nation’s leading ambulance service make us the
optimal economic choice for our customers. Rural/Metro’s certified paramedics and emergency
medical technicians arrive on the scene with the skills and expertise to rapidly administer care,
coordinate with emergency medical responders, communicate with emergency department physicians,
and transport patients to the most appropriate facilities.

Rural/Metro is committed to investing in industry-leading infrastructure and technology that support
our state-of-the-art medical transportation services throughout the country. Rigorous, high-
performance service standards set the bar for continuing advancement, while at the same time
solidifying the quality and value of our services. In this proposal you will hear about the innovations we
have dedicated to Blount County, technological advances in progress, and future demands we
anticipate to meet evolving healthcare demands.

Today, Rural/Metro is a national leader and innovator in medical transportation services. As a private
company we operate in 21 states with more than 1,600 ambulances and employ over 10,000 field
providers, managers and support staff nationwide. Approximately 700 communities throughout the

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

country depend on Rural/Metro’s high-quality patient care and excellent emergency and non-
emergency medical transportation.

In summary, Rural/Metro is proud of our 30-year partnership with Blount County. We firmly believe
that the residents of Blount have benefitted from our strong partnership and collaboration with the
county. We look forward to serving the community for many years to come.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

6.3 SIGNED STATEMENT

This proposal represents a firm offer from Rural/Metro of Tennessee, L.P. The undersigned company
representatives have full authority to contractually bind Rural/Metro of Tennessee, L.P. to the
elements of the proposal and the final contract negotiated with Blount County.

Contact person for the proposal will be Erin Downey, Regional Director, 296 E. Howe Street, Alcoa,
Tennessee 37701. (865) 805-1542 or erin.downey@rmetro.com

Mark Lashley
East Division President
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

6.4 INTRODUCTION TO PROPOSAL

RURAL/METRO — THE ONLY CHOICE FOR PRE-HOSPITAL HEALTHCARE
SOLUTIONS

Throughout this proposal, Blount County will find that Rural/Metro offers superior system
enhancements, which are currently in progress of being implemented. Furthermore, Rural/Metro has
identified crucial clinical improvements in technology, devices, and personnel which will take Blount
County in to the progressive future of healthcare.

For 30 years, our objective in Blount County has been to integrate with the community, developing
lasting relationships, providing exceptional patient care, and anticipating future needs. We do not view
ourselves as just a contracted ambulance provider, but as a public safety partner and a steward for
quality healthcare. Rural/Metro assumes responsibility for the health and well-being of our
community. As you read this proposal you will understand why Rural/Metro has been Blount County’s
choice for the community’s medical transportation provider and why we believe we are the right
choice for the future.

System Enhancements
Rural/Metro has implemented, is in the process of implementing, and has proposed several
enhancements to the current pre-hospital healthcare system.

These Blount County system enhancements include:

e Enhanced response through a dynamic deployment plan to meet or exceed the 10 minute
response criteria throughout Blount County

e Integrated healthcare with Blount County emergency medical responders, proposing an
enhancement to current levels of service through Rural/Metro funded equipment and training

e Cutting-edge communications software to be implemented in the Blount County
Communications Center with a Cad-to-Cad interface, response time transparency, and real-time
reporting

e Mobile healthcare solutions with dedicated personnel to reduce hospital readmissions, address
system abuse, and appropriately triage the healthcare needs of Blount County citizens with a
paramedic dedicated to preventative solutions

e Mental health transportation solutions for Blount County Sheriff’s department

Service Delivery Opportunities

Rural/Metro respects the initiative of Blount County to review and conduct their own due diligence on
administering a countywide ambulance system. Rural/Metro will cooperate and assist with this
feasibility study and guarantees transparency during this important initiative. Rural/Metro will assist
Blount County with any subsequent planning or transition.
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

Clinical Performance

Rural/Metro is dedicated to exceptional clinical care and has initiated current clinical improvements
already in progress:

e Advanced protocols, providing progressive care to include Heparin administration, Labatelol
administration pre-hospital, and CPAP devices on every ambulance

e Addition of PhysioControl LIFEPAK 15 monitor/defibrillators

e Upgrading first response agencies to BLS or ALS level care

e Provide PhysioControl Lucas 2 chest compression system to outlying fire departments to
supplement manpower

e Placing automated external defibrillators (AED’S) in county buildings with high traffic or high
demand areas with associated training

e (Critical care licensed paramedics on every shift

e Community-wide CPR training, with bystander information collection and post-event feedback

e Becominga PulsePoint® community in 2016, a greater than $30,000 investment

Technological Advancements

Rural/Metro has funded significant technological hardware and software that is to be incorporated
into our services during the summer of 2015. In addition, Rural/Metro estimates and has secured
capital funding of $125,000 to move in to the BCECD building promptly upon contract award.

The technology Rural/Metro has already invested in includes:

e A custom built CAD by Intergraph

e A CAD-to-CAD interface for seamless communication and exchange of information with BCECD
e FirstWatch online compliance utility software

e FirstWatch biosurveillance technology

e OPTIMA technology for predictive deployment solutions

Rural/Metro is confident that Blount County will not find a comparable provider of clinical and
operational excellence.

! http://www.pulsepoint.org/
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

6.5 DETAILS OF PROPOSED ARRANGEMENT

A. ADMINISTRATION/ LEADERSHIP

Key Personnel
Rural/Metro’s local leadership team presents Blount County with high-quality leaders that focus on the
community through strong relationships among all health care partners. Our leadership understands it
takes a system-wide team effort to meet the needs of the community. The highly qualified Blount

County leadership team will be responsible for ensuring Rural/Metro Blount County’s strategic
direction, ongoing clinical and operational performance, and community responsiveness. The
organizational chart below identifies the Blount County leadership team and support staff.

Erin Downey, Regional Director

Blount Co. Support Staff - East TN

Alyson Owens
Regional Office Mgr

Diana Todd
Comm Mgr

April Caywood
Regional BQA mgr.

Jocelyn Smith
HR Coordinator

dau

Blount County
Leadership

Chris Blach, Vice President of Operations
Blount Co. Support Staff - Central Zone

Jonathan Rodgers

(" Chris Bull )
Shift Commander
A Shift
\ : J

Don Shropshire

Shift Commander

% B shift J

~
Aaron Householder

Shift Commander
C Shift

General Manager

Martha Scruggs
HR Manager

Daniel Gurley
Fleet Manager

Chris McLain
Clinical Mgr

el

Office Manager

\L y
\
Josh Carico
RN / QA/QI
L
1
. ~
Roma Burchfield David Phillips

Training Coord

David Blanton

Chaplain
~
Robbie Solomon
Supply Tech
" )

Terry Johnson

Mechanic
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

In addition to the local, regional, and zone support team, Blount County has direct support from Mark
Lashley, Rural/Metro’s East Division President. Mr. Lashley and his team are involved with Blount
County operations, discussions, and decisions on a weekly, often daily basis. He is committed to the
success of Blount County and is readily available to respond to any inquiries from Blount County leaders,
allied agencies, or healthcare leaders.

You will notice that the organizational structure is relatively flat, which allows Mr. Lashley to be directly
involved in operational level needs and available to respond quickly to requests. This allows for
executive level decisions to be made quickly, thus enabling us to operate with the innovation and speed
of a smaller company, but having the capital and organizational resources of a large corporation.

Mark Lashley

President - East Division

Christopher Blach Minda Corbeil Christopher Barton
VPO - Central Zone Dire e Director of Finance
Resources

Erin Downey, RD

East Tennessee

Jonathan Rodgers

General Manager

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Identification of the individuals in managerial and supervisory positions and their tenure with the
proposer.

Please see Appendix 9 for personnel resumes. Biographies are provided below.

Biographies of Local Leadership

Jonathan Rodgers, General Manager/Blount County Resident

12 years and 3 months with Rural/Metro

Jonathan Rodgers a lifelong Blount County resident. In 2000, he was hired at U.T. Medical
Center as an Emergency Room Technician while attending Roane State Community College for
EMT Basic courses. After receiving the IV certification, Jonathan became an EMT-IV for the
State of Tennessee and a nationally registered EMT Basic.

His began his career with Rural/Metro in Blount County in November 2002. Jonathan’s passion
for helping others inspired him to attend a paramedic program, which he completed in July
2004 as a nationally registered paramedic. Jonathan continued his education and earned his
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology from the University of Tennessee.

After being promoted to Shift Commander at Rural/Metro, he entered into a critical care
program hosted by Roane State Community College and the University of Maryland in
Baltimore County (UMBC) and as a result earned a Critical Care Paramedic License for the State
of Tennessee. In July of 2014, he was promoted to General Manager of Blount County.

Jonathan serves on the Board of Directors for the Blount County Rescue Squad and Secret Safe
for Newborns of Tennessee. He is also involved with the Safe Blount Kids program and the East
Tennessee Stroke Alliance through Blount Memorial Hospital. In addition, Jonathan is a
member of both the Child Fatality Review Board for the State of Tennessee and the Blount
Memorial Hospital’s STEMI, Stroke, and Trauma Committee.

Christopher Bull, Shift Commander

10 years 8 months with Rural/Metro

Chris attended East Tennessee State University where he studied Criminal Justice and
Symphonic Band for two years. Chris went on to volunteer as a firefighter for Wears Valley
Volunteer Fire Department for six years, where he had his first experience in emergency
services. He has spent several years as a restaurant manager, bringing almost 10 years of
managerial experience with him. Chris has served at Rural/Metro for 10 years as EMT and then
as EMT-P. Chris is currently Shift Commander at Rural/Metro Blount County where he has
served in that capacity for eight years. Prior to his current position, he led the training team
where he coordinated the New Employee Orientation Program (NEOP) for 4 years.
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Donald Shropshire, Shift Commander/Blount County Resident

19 years 8 months with Rural/Metro

Donald C Shropshire Il began his journey in EMS over 20 years ago. Don moved to East
Tennessee in the early 1990s and began his career in EMS in 1993 with Oak Ridge Medical
Transport, which was later acquired by Rural/Metro. It was there that he became a paramedic
and later a Shift Captain. Don then transferred to work in rural 9-1-1 services in several counties
including: Morgan, Anderson, and Roane before joining Rural/Metro in Knox County where he
was named employee of the month in November 2012 for his quick recognition that a
bystander was having a cardiac event. During the last two years, Don has increased his
education with the completion of extrication class, pre-nursing classes, and acquiring a critical
care certification. He also developed and implemented a progressive CQl program while serving
in Roane County.

Aaron Householder, Shift Commander/Blount County Resident

11 years 8 months with Rural/Metro

Aaron Householder received his EMT license in May of 2003 and joined Rural/Metro as an EMT
in Blount County in June of the same year. He was also a volunteer at the Maryville Fire
Department from 2001-2005. Aaron graduated from Roane State University’s paramedic
program in August of 2008, receiving his paramedic license. After a year and half of working as
a paramedic, he was accepted to the Critical Care program at Roane State and currently serves
as the Shift Commander on C shift.

Justin Aycocke, Dispatch Supervisor/Blount County Resident

11 Months (previously 6 years) with Rural/Metro

Justin Aycocke is the Lead Dispatcher for Rural/Metro Blount County. He previously worked for
Rural/Metro from March 2002 through March 2008. During that time, Justin worked as a
dispatcher, EMT-IV, and was then promoted as the Dispatch Supervisor in 2006. At the
beginning of 2008, Justin left the industry to pursue other career opportunities.

In March of 2014, he returned to Rural/Metro as a dispatcher and was promoted to Lead
Dispatcher in September. Justin is committed to helping the citizens of Blount County and
continues to build relationships with the community.

Josh Carico — RN/AEMT -Blount County /Ql/Blount County Resident

2 years 10 months with Rural/Metro

Josh Carico attended East Tennessee State University (ETSU) in Johnson City, Tennessee from
2008-2012 where he majored in Chemistry. During that time, he began working for
Rural/Metro, in 2009, at the aluminum plant in Alcoa between semesters. Josh also worked for
Mountain States Health Alliance in the Tri-Cities area of Tennessee as a phlebotomist.

After graduating from ETSU, Josh transferred to Rural/Metro in Knoxville, Tennessee where he
participated in their first EMT academy classes, obtaining his license and started working on an
ambulance. Josh then attended the University of Tennessee in Knoxville from 2013-2014, and
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completed their accelerated nursing program, obtaining his BSN in 12 months. In September
2014, he started working in the Critical Care Unit at Parkwest Medical Center in Knoxville as an
RN.

David Blanton, Chaplain/Blount County Resident

14 years 9 months with Rural/Metro

Throughout the years, David Blanton has served on the church staff and has been involved in
the EMS field through the local ambulance service. He has worked as a volunteer emergency
medical responder, part time EMT-P, and assisted with BTLS and PALS courses. He also served
as a dispatcher for an aeromedical service and as a Chaplain.

Currently, David is a full-time paramedic with Rural/Metro in Blount County and part-time in
Knox County. He is also the Blount County Operation representative on the Region Il Disaster
Response Team. David is the Rural/Metro Blount County Chaplain.

David Phillips, Training Coordinator, Q/A, Q/I, NEOP Coordinator

9 years 9 months with Rural/Metro

David Phillips began his career in 2003 in the volunteer fire service. He obtained his Emergency
Medical Responder license and continued to attend an EMT program. David was then hired as
an EMT-IV at Rural/Metro and has spent the last 10 years dedicated to Rural/Metro after
attending paramedic school and critical care classes. He has achieved instructor status in CPR,
ACLS, and PALS. David has provided instruction to many of the paramedics, nurses, and doctors
in Blount County.

David has an Associates of Applied Science from Roane State Community College and is
presently pursuing a second Associates degree from Roane State. He has been the training
coordinator for Blount County since 2013 and has recently achieved an endorsement towards
his Critical Care Paramedics license that allows him to teach at the college level as a paramedic
instructor.

For the last few years, David has been actively involved with Blount Memorial Hospital with
their STEMI, Stroke, and Trauma teams assisting to improve quality patient care for Blount
County. He has also joined the East Tennessee Stroke Alliance as one of only four paramedics to
represent EMS stroke care for a 22 county area.

Roma Burchfield, Office Manager/Blount County Resident

3 years 2 months with Rural/Metro

Roma Burchfield is a lifelong resident of Blount County. Roma began employment at the
University of Tennessee Medical Center in the Dean of Medicine’s Office where she was a
principal secretary for 5 years. She then moved onto the State of Tennessee Board of Paroles
where she was a Secretary for parole officers for 3.5 years. In 1996, Roma began working for
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the Maryville City Police Department as a parking enforcement officer before being promoted
to Police Services Assistant, where she maintained employment for 15 years.

Roma has acquired a variety of business and computer training required for her employment.
Roma began part-time employment with Rural/Metro in November of 2007 as a dispatcher. She
became a full-time employee and promoted to a lead dispatcher in 2011; her responsibilities
included supervising all full-time and part-time dispatchers, as well as overseeing billing
functions.

In March of 2014, Roma was promoted to Office Manager/Communications Manager assisting
the General Manager with daily operations, scheduling and payroll, billing issues, special
projects, provide clerical support for shift commanders, and assisting the lead dispatcher as
needed.

Jason Begue, MD, FACEP, Blount County Medical Director

6 months with Rural/Metro

Jason Begue is a Regional Medical Director and multi-site Emergency Department Medical
Director with extensive experience in improving emergency department quality and hospital
goal alignment, as evidenced by markedly improved metrics, decreased patient walkouts,
increased patient satisfaction scores, and increased volume.

His major accomplishments include managing the start-up of 8 new contract sites to include:
staffing, scheduling, EMR implementation, and billing. He is the Medical Director for 4
emergency departments and manages the implementation of new EMR sites.

Daniel Gurley, Fleet Manager

4 years with Rural/Metro

Dan Gurley is responsible for oversight of all fleet maintenance, incidental repairs, the rigorous
preventative maintenance schedule, and ensuring the supreme mechanical integrity of
Rural/Metro’s emergency fleet.

Dan joined Rural/Metro in 2011 as a fleet technician. In 2012, he was promoted to the position
of Fleet Manager. Prior to serving as Rural/Metro’s fleet manager, Dan was the co-owner and
shop manager of a classic car refurbishment company. He also worked as a consultant with Ford
Motorsports who under Dan’s tutelage set 4 world records.

Dan has 30 years of experience in diesel mechanical repairs, specializing in emergency vehicle
repair and maintenance. He holds multiple industry certifications, including certification from
the National Institute for Automotive Service Excellence (A.S.E.) and is a certified Emergency
Vehicle Technician.
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Biographies for Regional and Corporate Support

Regional and Corporate leadership offer decades of clinical, operational, and financial expertise with
emergency medical service entities and Fortune 500 companies. The regional and corporate team will
function to support local, on-site leadership. Having national resources and vast experience, the local
team will be equipped to exceed Blount County expectations with a robust capital support structure.

Erin Downey, Regional Director of Operations

6 months with Rural/Metro

Erin Downey is the Regional Director for Rural/Metro’s East Tennessee operation providing
strategic direction for five East Tennessee counties working towards creating unique solutions
for each community. As a paramedic and EMT for over 22 years, she is driven by her desire to
serve the caregivers within her operations while constantly looking toward innovative and
sophisticated clinical solutions for healthcare delivery.

Erin has led several large and small 9-1-1 systems across the country and repeatedly exceeded
performance requirements while building exceptional public/private EMS partnerships. During
her 17-year tenure with American Medical Response, she ameliorated poor operational
performance in Arlington, Texas and ultimately retained the Arlington EMS System contract, a
demanding, yet highly effective partnership with the Arlington Fire Department. In addition, she
was successful in AMR’s market entry into Tennessee in 2011 and new contract wins in Georgia
as the Georgia/Tennessee General Manager. Prior to that, she served in various roles to include
Operations Manager, Business Development Director, and assisted with south region mergers
and acquisitions.

Erin holds a Bachelor of Science from the Colorado Technical University and obtained her MBA
from the University of Tennessee. She attained her Lean Six Sigma Green Belt certification in
2014 and holds a Tennessee paramedic license.

Chris McLain, Clinical Manager/Blount County Resident

21 years with Rural/Metro

Chris is responsible for the overall clinical management and professional development training
for Blount County and manages the annual training schedule for the local operations. He is
actively involved with the local Region || Ambulance Director’s Association where he coordinates
and promotes training for regional emergency response agencies. Chris is also a Region Il
Ambulance Director Representative on the State of Tennessee EMS training board. Chris is also
an EMS subject matter expert for several of the local hospitals regarding
Accreditation/Certification for Chest Pain/STEMI, Stroke, and Trauma programs.

Prior to serving as the Clinical Manager for Rural/Metro, Chris started his career as a
firefighter/paramedic for two local municipalities and as a volunteer for a local rescue agency.
He then began a successful 22-year career with the Air Force treating patients in a Medical Aid
Station, as well as overseeing the Emergency Medical Technical Program for over 3,500 Air
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National Guard Medics. In October 2011, he retired as a Senior Master Sergeant and began
working for Rural/Metro full time as a professional development / training officer. He holds
instructor credentials in all AHA disciplines; he is the community training center manager for all
Rural/Metro of Tennessee American Heart Association (AHA) disciplines, as well as instructor
credentials in Pre-Hospital Trauma Life Support and Emergency Pediatric Care. He maintains his
State of Tennessee License as an EMT/Paramedic Instructor Coordinator and Critical Care
Paramedic. He continues to support ties with the local community by supporting local fire
departments, as well as local and federal law enforcement agencies.

Chris is a Critical Care EMT-P, Instructor Coordinator who earned an A.S. in Allied Health
Sciences and A.S. in Aircrew Life Support from the Community College of the Air Force as well
as a Bachelor of Science in Organizational Management from Tusculum College.

Chris Blach, Vice President of Operations

10 years with Rural/Metro

In his role as the Vice President of Operations, Chris Blach oversees the overall operational and
financial performance of Rural/Metro’s Southeast Operations. Prior to taking the position as
VPO, Mr. Blach worked in Florida operation for 10 years serving as the Regional Director for the
last five years. During his tenure he doubled the size of the operation, secured Sumter County 9-
1-1 through a competitive bid, which is an operation very similar to Blount County in geographic
make-up, as well as system demand.

Other business renewed or secured includes the City of Orlando 9-1-1 (which includes Orlando
International Airport), City of Winter Garden 9-1-1, City of Ocoee 9-1-1, Town of Eatonville 9-11,
Universal Studios Theme Park, and Orlando Health (8 hospitals). Mr. Blach’s Florida operation
was first in the state to become CAAS certified in 1996 and was renewed twice under his
leadership. He also assisted in building the framework for Community Paramedicine Program in
partnership with Orlando Health.

Prior to joining Rural/Metro, Chris served for 10 years as the Director of Operations for American
Medical Response Northeast. In this role, he was responsible for all financial and operational
oversight for Southeastern Massachusetts and the State of Rhode Island. The operation serviced
more than nine primary 9-1-1 contracts, over 10 major hospitals, and 100 skilled nursing
facilities with 450 employees and 1200 ambulances.

Chris completed the Paramedic Program with Northeastern University in 1989. He has received
Official Citations from the Massachusetts Senate and House of Representatives for contributions
to the EMS field. He received Orange County Administrator of the Year in 2013 and completed
the FBI Citizens Academy through FBI HQ Tampa.
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Mark Lashley, East Division President

2 years 6 months with Rural/Metro

Mark Lashley joined Rural/Metro Corporation as Senior Vice President of Operations in August
2012 after two decades in operational and financial leadership positions. In August 2014, Mr.
Lashley was promoted to Division President for Rural/Metro’s EMS operations for the Eastern
half of the United States. In December 2014, Mr. Lashley took on the responsibility of
overseeing the Operational Strategy Team for Rural/Metro, with a focus on innovating labor
management for the EMS business. Prior to Rural/Metro, Mr. Lashley held numerous leadership
positions with ARAMARK, a worldwide leader in providing food services, facilities management,
uniforms, and career apparel to healthcare institutions, universities, school districts, stadiums,
and arenas. Most recently Mr. Lashley was the Regional Vice President for ARAMARK's
healthcare business of the company, leading the food, environmental, and plant operations
services to hospital clients in seven states, the District of Columbia, and the Virgin Islands. Prior
to that role, Mr. Lashley held the role of Vice President of Operations for both the ARAMARK
Healthcare and ARAMARK Correctional Services Divisions. Prior to ARAMARK Correctional
Services, Mr. Lashley held the position of Vice President of Finance for Correctional Medical
Services, the nation’s largest provider of outsourced healthcare services for the incarcerated.
Mr. Lashley has a career that includes significant experience and success in operational
leadership, financial leadership, proposal development, project management, operational
turnarounds, business startups, change management, and team development. Mr. Lashley
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in accounting from Missouri State University.

Managerial and supervisory staff education, training, and experience as related to emergency
medical services.

The Rural/Metro management team has multiple years of combined medical and emergency medical
experience and extends that wealth of knowledge towards providing innovative solutions and
streamlining services to ensure we continually bring value to our customers. Rural/Metro has brought
some of the most experienced industry leaders to East Tennessee; leaders that specialize in
collaborating with counties to bring market specific solutions.

The leadership team is held to a higher standard to foster collaboration, leverage best practices, and
support consistency in our operations. Rural/Metro provides a variety of classes, resources, and
materials to assist management in regards to improving their skills in team building, motivation, creative
problem solving, and situational leadership.

Rural/Metro’s managerial and supervisory staff receives specialized training in the National Incident
Management System (NIMS). Minimum levels of training and certification for all employees include ICS
100, 200, and 700. Supervisory personnel must also complete ICS 800. Management and any
supervisory personnel who may be placed in a position of responsibility within the ICS structure of a
large incident are also required to complete ICS 300 and 400. Rural/Metro is also committed to
participating in disaster response exercises with regional public safety agencies.
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Rural/Metro Blount County sends 3 to 4 paramedics through critical care school each year. Funding the
cost of school and allowing time-off to attend classes.

Duties and responsibilities to be performed by managerial and supervisory staff in compliance with
the contract.

In Appendix 10, you will find the job descriptions for each team member listed in the organizational
structure. Our employees consistently go above and beyond the normal job description in order to
meet the common objective of providing superior pre-hospital care.

Describe the commitment of key personnel

The leadership in Blount County offers a total of 90.8 years of dedicated service to Rural/Metro’s
Blount County. We are proud of that dedication and commitment and will continue to mentor more
leaders to propel Blount County into the future of pre-hospital healthcare.

Rural/Metro has established high standards of integrity for all leadership personnel throughout the
company. Many of our leaders have deep roots throughout the community, as well as industry experts
that offer a unique approach to innovation and clinical progression. Leaders in the organization are
committed to the employees, clinical excellence, business initiatives, and success in Blount County.

Rural/Metro’s leadership positions its dedication to the care of the community before its own needs.
The local team has proven their commitment to Blount County and will ensure consistent, quality care.

Describe the organization’s leadership system and how key personnel guide the organization in
setting directions and in developing and sustaining effective leadership throughout the organization.
Rural/Metro’s executive leadership team creates and implements innovative strategies that are aligned
with the mission and core values of the company. We take great pride in being a strong national
corporation with even stronger local commitments. The depth of organization gives the local
operations a vast pool of resources and experience when dealing with the complexities of modern
emergency medical services.
V Rural/Metro’s logo is an inverted triangle that situates the CEO and executive
4 leadership at the bottom, while the patients and communities are represented at
the top. As the foundation of the company, the CEO and executive leadership
create innovative strategies that will deliver streamlined services and solutions
which elevate the level of efficient, quality care given to our communities.

Executive leadership is brought together every quarter to discuss best practices and provide tools and
resources needed to exceed expectations. In addition, a monthly Executive Committee meeting is held
to evaluate the company’s success in achieving its established goals. The committee is comprised of
corporate executives, directors, zone vice presidents, regional directors, and general managers. The
company’s performance, business developments, competitive updates, and division updates are
reviewed and evaluated by the committee. They are tasked with communication, data-sharing, and
ensuring that the messages are disseminated throughout the company.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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To ensure an open forum of communication across the company, monthly town hall meetings are
scheduled to discuss market performance, initiatives, provide industry and company updates, discuss
concerns, answer employee questions, and obtain feedback towards improving internal operations.

Jonathan attends, with other general managers, weekly meeting to report on operational and financial
performance. He is able to collaborate with other East Tennessee managers. In addition he was directly
involved in producing the 2015 Blount County budget and proposing necessary additions and changes
in his organization. He meets regularly with his leadership team to share and discuss goals and
achievements.

Describe the organization’s leadership system and how it would operate. Include how it addresses
values, performance expectations, a focus on customers and other stakeholders, learning, and
innovation.

The organizational charts provided in this section identify how Blount County will operate focusing on
the needs of the local community; in addition, the regional support structure provides another level of
value ensuring an exceptional ambulance delivery model throughout Blount County while providing
innovative solutions. The leadership team at Rural/Metro is dedicated to making certain Blount County
ambulance services exceed customer expectations and will work with Blount County if they choose to
develop a county-based service, as we feel our expertise will offer unmatched value in developing the
ideal model for Blount County citizens.

As a team, with Blount County public safety and government leaders, Rural/Metro will focus on
adapting, evolving, and promoting the best options for the citizens of Blount County to include
technological innovation, clinical superiority, and operational excellence.

Describe how key personnel participate in and use the results of performance reviews.
Rural/Metro’s personnel participate in an annual performance appraisal process that measures their
performance in the following key areas:

e Overall job performance
e Completion of approved goals

e Contribution to the department’s mission The leadership team at Rural/Metro is
e Interpreting organizational policies and procedures dedicated to making certain Blount
e Problem solving County ambulance services exceed
e Attendance and punctuality customer expectations and will work

with Blount County if they choose to
In addition, we expect our local and regional leaders to meet

o - develop a county-based service, as we
additional objectives:

feel our expertise will offer unmatched
value in developing the ideal model for

/

e QOrganizational interpersonal relations
e Civic/community involvement Blount County citizens.
e Planning process for future

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Annual performance reviews are a vital component of successful employee development. During the
course of their annual performance appraisal, 4 — 6 goals for the following calendar year will be
determined and established with input from both management and personnel. Performance reviews
are a means to reward exceptional performance and discuss opportunities for needed improvement.
Rural/Metro also utilizes performance reviews to discuss goals the employee may have such as Critical
Care School or leadership mentoring.

Performance reviews are conducted through an electronic, automated system. Evaluations are based on
job description requirements and employees are ranked 1, 2, or 3 (1 = Does not meet expectations; 2 =

Meets expectations; 3 = Exceeds expectations). Merit increases and bonus pay are based in part on the
annual performance reviews.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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B. STRATEGIC PLANNING

Strategic Direction & Accountability

Rural/Metro creates a blueprint of operational service plans in a variety of ways. Locally, we will
strategize on methods to improve Blount County operations, performance, ambulance service
delivery, employee motivation, clinical care, and more. We will use recognized and proven strategies
and best practices at a national, zone, and regional level to improve efficiencies and share exceptional
performance methodologies with all operations across the country.

Rural/Metro maintains its own in-house strategy team that constantly analyzes opportunities to
diversify business, improve service delivery, and influence overall community healthcare. This team is
led by our Chief Strategy Officer, Sven Johnson. His organizational structure is included below:

Sven Johnson

Chief Strategy Officer

Tony Siebers John Sorenson Thomas Milton
Director Corporate J . Dir of Community
Strategy Director of Training Relations

The core focus of the strategy team is to consistently explore all aspects of the industry to ensure that
we remain on the cutting edge of advancements in order to create innovative methodologies that
drive clinical and service excellence. A few of these strategic initiatives include:

e |T enhancements

e Capital planning

e Cultivating strategic partnerships
e Readmission procedures

e Avoidable ER visit methods

Rural/Metro’s corporate strategic planning process is a bottom-up process that begins with an
executive committee meeting of nationwide organizational leadership. During this time, the executive
leadership team reviews our annual performance and discusses the short and mid-term plans of the
organization.

e The information gathered from the executive committee meetings is then shared at the zone
level where the leadership of the zone reviews our corporate short and mid-term plans. The
leadership team discusses the ways in which the local operations can contribute to our
corporate plans.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!

VRURAL/METRO ‘0’ March 6, 201521

Printed on Recycled Paper



Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

e This information is then shared at the local level and plans are incorporated into our annual
fiscal budgets which cover January through December. From September through November
each year, we develop our operational budgets and submit them for final approval. Our
budgets are returned in December and we are then able to implement our strategic plans for
the upcoming fiscal year.

e We track our financial goals on a daily basis through the use of a trended flash report, as well
as numerous daily and weekly dashboards. We track our monthly financial goals through
monthly profit and loss statements that compare our monthly goals against our budget as
well as our year-to-date goals against our budget. The local leadership is involved in
understanding and driving financial results within Blount County.

Our Mission and Values

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything. Rural/Metro has updated its core mission
to take a more practical approach and been simplified through the Care® philosophy. These are the
core principles of each tier of the philosophy:

PatientCare

e Response Time
e Quality of care
e Trusting relationship

BusinessCare

e Transports
e Efficiency/cost
e Sharing of best practices

EmployeeCare

e Respect
e Personal/professional growth
e Engaged/empowered/enthused

Rural/Metro believes that a simplified mission is the key to keeping focused on the things that matter
most. The aforementioned core values are threaded throughout our management philosophy, we
approach every decision, every patient, and every employee with the care, integrity, and respect that
our company was built upon.

Provide a summary of the action plans and related human resource plans derived from the
organization's overall strategy.

Rural/Metro’s overall strategy in regards to action plans and related human resource plans go back to
the company’s core values, which are essentially fabric of who and what we are. Developing action
strategies and the required human resources needed to facilitate these plans take in to account these
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core values include team, quality, integrity and responsiveness. Ultimately, Rural/Metro is committed
to the communities, patients and customers we serve. The commitment Rural/Metro has made to the
residents of Blount County can be seen through the clinical excellence and standardized best practices,
cutting-edge technology and the expert customer care that the residents of Blount County deserve and
know they will receive from the Rural/Metro team.

One of the hiring plans specific to Blount County includes working closely with certain agencies, such as
the Blount County Rescue Squad (BCRS), to recruit new hires after completion of their EMS training.
This presents a unique opportunity for BCRS to offer a career plan for their volunteers. Rural/Metro
Blount County appreciates this opportunity as it allows the company to hire people that are familiar
with the area and emergency response practices and relationships with first response agencies.

When Rural/Metro was approached by Blount Memorial Hospital about STEMI (ST-segment elevation
myocardial infarction) protocols, Rural/Metro was quick to put a plan in place and the human capital
needed to institute the program. Today Rural/Metro is an active member on Blount Memorial Hospital’s
STEMI Board, Stroke Board and Trauma Board. Rural/Metro is committed to the needs of the local
community and strategically prepared to dedicate the resources needed to meet the needs of Blount
County now and in the future.

Below is a sample snapshot of an action plan we follow at Rural/Metro:
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Briefly explain how critical action plan requirements, including human resource plans, key
processes, performance measures and/or indicators, and resources are aligned and deployed.

As a company built on the core values of team, quality, integrity, and responsiveness, Rural/Metro is
dedicated in working collaboratively with the Blount County citizens, elected officials, and health
care system. Open and honest two-way communication is preferred and will better enable
Rural/Metro to align and deploy its resources.
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Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

We firmly believe that staying deliberate about every action is the only way to continue to be the
leader in EMS nationwide and in local operations. A sampling of our action plans include:

e How we spend and invest capital e Subscription Service improvements
e Robust hospital relationships e Cost efficiencies
e Increased productivity e Team building

Key process improvement exercises such as a comprehensive SWOT analysis enables Rural/Metro to
critically evaluate itself and better align resources so that it can build upon strengths, improve
weaknesses, take advantage of opportunities, and address impending threats. As East Tennessee’s
only nationally accredited ambulance provider by the Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance
Services (CAAS), Rural/Metro holds itself to a higher standard as evaluated in the ambulance
industry. The performance measures set forth by the CAAS should not be taken lightly, as few
companies work to achieve this recognition due to the responsibilities and ongoing rigors to
maintain this accreditation. Rural/Metro has been dedicated to the residents of Blount County for
the past 30 years and will continue to dedicate the necessary resources needed to provide excellent
emergency services that is deserved and can be counted on.

Describe how performance relative to plans is tracked. Note any important differences between
short- and longer-term plans and the reasons for the differences.

As a requirement by the Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance Services (CAAS), Rural/Metro
holds itself to a higher performance standard than others in the
industry. Aggressive performance measures are established with
the mindset that there is more to prove, striving to meet new
standards and excel above typical expectations. Rural/Metro
tracks performance metrics on a daily basis to ensure the
residents of Blount County are receiving the excellent service
they deserve. If opportunities for improvement are evident,
Rural/Metro aggressively dedicates all available resources into
addressing the performance measure to ensure the highest
caliber of service is provided.

Data

Information

Action

Short-term plans are tactically implemented as a result of

seasonality, medical director focus or new product

implementation all without losing sight of long-term strategic

initiatives. It is recognized that both short and long-term plans

for improvement and quality service are important to the citizens of Blount County and Rural/Metro
is dedicated to provide the quality, integrity and responsiveness needed to exceed in all
performance expectations. Please see Section D, for more information on tracking and monitoring
performance.

Improvmenet
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We use data to measure and understand current performance. We then take information to
understand our gaps and opportunities. We then identify the action that needs to be taken to make
informed decisions about implementation for improvement. We constantly continue this cycle as
we continuously develop organizational goals.

Provide a two (2) to five (5) year projection of key measures and/or indicators of performance
based on the likely changes resulting from the organization's action plans. Include appropriate
comparisons with key benchmarks. Briefly explain the comparisons, including any estimates or
assumptions made in projecting benchmark data.

Most importantly, in measuring performance for Blount County EMS, Rural/Metro proposes the
implementation of an EMS board encompassing leaders from first
response agencies, Rural/Metro, Blount Memorial Hospital and other local
; leaders. This group will drive measurements, improvements, benchmarks
Difference and follow up. The meeting should meet monthly with reports back to
communities and the Blount County commission quarterly.

The R/M

With the changing healthcare environment, it is important that Rural/Metro Blount County remains
nimble and prepared to evolve in order to meet the necessary performance requirements. These
requirements are not only changes to healthcare reimbursement and clinical enhancements but we are
prepared to deliver healthcare differently. Rural/Metro Blount County has initiated conversations with
Blount Memorial Hospital to discuss how to prevent readmissions. As a cooperative force, Rural/Metro
Blount County can assist Blount Memorial Hospital in keeping patients healthier, assessing and
responding to their needs post discharge. Please see section |, Clinical Services for more information on
this program.

Several key performance metrics are and will continue to be monitored over the 2-5 year period of the
contract upcoming contract. Measurements include Stroke and STEMI reporting to BMH - community
paramedic initiatives, readmission reduction tracking, 9-1-1 abuse prevention, pulsepoint activity,
bystander CPR, AED activity throughout the county, and many more.

Proposed key performance indicators include: response time performance, patient satisfaction, clinical
outcomes, employee satisfaction, and financial strength as discussed in detail below.

Patient Satisfaction

A critical step to assuring patient satisfaction is implementing a system that measures performance.
Rural/Metro’s local management team will monitor monthly key performance indicators related to
customer service. These measurements are to be reviewed internally at the monthly leadership
meeting.

An example of conducting a patient survey would include a multi-question, one-page document sent to
the patient’s home with a return postage paid envelope. The inquiry would include questions about
the service they received, the timeliness of the service, the compassion of the caregivers, or any other
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factors we would look to measure. We might also conduct surveys on behalf of our service post
hospital discharge and share the results with the hospital in order for Blount Memorial to understand
potential patient satisfaction ratings during their survey.

Clinical Outcomes

Multiple Key Indicators are required to determine a threshold for clinical excellence. Human error has
to be minimized to the point of extinction. This is very difficult to accomplish when performing
advanced medical procedures on the roadside or a ditch. But, the expectation is still excellence.
Rural/Metro is committed to finding the measures and methodology to best provide excellence in
clinical care. Clinical outcomes will be discussed at the EMS board meeting every months, with targets
for improved performance.

Employee Satisfaction

Without employees that perform at a superior level, no organization will be able to accomplish the
requirements of the Blount County contract. Rural/Metro has developed and continues to develop a
competent and satisfied work force. Staffing is the key driver for response time compliance. A baseline
determination of employee turnover, customer rated workforce survey, employee satisfaction, risk
analysis and clinical CME/skill determination will be performed. That baseline will improved each year
starting with year one through a five year period.

Financial Strength

Evidence-based care is critical to managing the financial impacts to the health care system. Another
key is to manage and control the costs wherever possible. Key indicators are listed in the table and will
be monitored for financial analysis and decisions. The thresholds are indicated and will be modified as
thresholds are met and maintained.

Community Betterment

As part of our Mobile healthcare initiative, we are continuously looking for ways to improve our
community in Blount County. Throughout this document, you will read about proposed community
betterment initiatives, such as: reduction of Blount Memorial readmissions, quarterly entire-
community CPR, AED placement, Pulsepoint programs, reducing ER visits for frequent users, and more.

Every initiative we adopt will be measured for effectiveness and improvement. New strategies will be
shared with the EMS Board throughout the term of our contract as community health improvement
targets change, we will change with them.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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C. CUSTOMER AND MARKET Focus

Provide a brief description of how the organization learns from its former, current, and potential
customers and markets, to support the organization’s service delivery.

Section I, Clinical Services should be incorporated as part of Customer and Market Focus as Clinical
performance is our primary market focus in Blount County.

Over the course of our 30-year partnership, Rural/Metro has met the evolving needs of Blount
County and its residents and has often exceeded the County’s expectations. We also provide non-
emergency transport for Blount Memorial Hospital, area nursing homes, and other referral agencies
in addition to the transports requested by the Blount County residents. The foundation of our
success is based in our ability to learn and adapt to evolving service delivery demands specific to local
needs.

Providing ambulance services to a rapidly growing community requires a strong team that can plan and
adjust resources according to the varied needs of the community. From disaster intervention to
inclement weather barriers, it is imperative that Rural/Metro swiftly and efficiently allocate and adjust
the numbers of available vehicles and crew members in response to dynamic changes in demand. We
have strong relationships with the various agencies in Blount County.

Rural/Metro is proud of our experienced and dedicated workforce; we feel strongly that our internal
customers are exceptionally important. We strive to meet the needs of our employees through active
feedback, town hall meetings, an open door policy and enhanced accountability for training and
operational readiness. Helping our employees achieve new levels of success will ultimately provide
Blount County the best emergency medical services provider possible.

Our Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) and other demand analysis programs contain years of information
relating to volume, day of week and time of day, and other data points specific to Blount County.
Rural/Metro is able to schedule appropriate resources based on best practice methodology and
trending of peaks and drops in utilization of ambulance service activity. In section D, page 37 we will
show how this data in conjunction with new software will assist in ensuring that the ambulances are
positioned appropriately to meet the call demand.

Listening to our market base has resulted in significant additions to our technology, equipment, and
training programs. We continually monitor and update our deployment plan to make certain there is
efficient coverage for all ambulance transportation needs. We conduct this exercise every six months
and propose that the EMS Board recommended in Section D, page 34 will review in conjunction with
our local leadership team.

VRURAI./METRO ‘0’ March 6, 201527
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Provide a number of customer and market knowledge examples that could be applied to improve
the delivery of service or customer satisfaction.

With decades of experience as an ambulance service provider in Blount County, Rural/Metro
possesses the depth of customer and market knowledge to deliver extraordinary service that
consistently meets the unique needs of the community.

Specific examples of measures Rural/Metro has taken or are underway to use market and customer
information to improve services include:

e We have placed two PhysioControl LIFEPAK 12 monitors on fire engines in Seymour, TN. This
is a valuable resource to first response agencies.

e Rural/Metro has assisted and provided medical director oversight to Alcoa Fire Department
for an upgrade from Emergency Medical Responder (EMR) licensure to BLS licensure.

e As part of this proposal to Blount County, we propose placing PhysioControl Lucas 2 Chest
Compression devices throughout Blount County on strategically located apparatus due to
potentially limited responders and the need for extra assistance in the case of a cardiac
arrest.

e Automated External Defibrillators (AED’s) placed throughout Blount County in buildings with
high volume of citizen traffic.

e Rural/Metro will provide an ambulance specially built to transport bariatric patients or
patients over 400 pounds. This will include a larger stretcher so the patient can be
transported comfortably. In addition, the ambulance is equipped with ramps and a winch to
ensure safety for providers and the patient.

e Rural/Metro believes that integration with Blount County E-9-1-1 communications center is
critical to providing the most efficient response throughout the county. Starting in Section D,
page 68 we have proposed how the integration in to the communications center will benefit
the community.

These are a few examples of our ongoing commitment, current and proposed enhancements will
benefit all citizens and visitors of Blount County.

Describe how key information from former and current customers and markets, including
complaint information, could be used to improve service or satisfaction.

In an effort to provide quality and timely customer service and continually improve operations,
Rural/Metro has a formal procedure for tracking customer inquiries, whether complaints, concerns or
compliments, from initial customer contact to issue resolution.

Rural/Metro tracks all customer complaints in a database, looking for trends and areas for further
training or improvement. This is done as part a regular course of business in Blount County and is
required as part of the CAAS accreditation we currently hold. There are multiple ways a complaint can
be brought to the attention of management and each is handled with an identical methodology.
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All customer inquiries, written or verbal, regarding Rural/Metro’s service are recorded on a Customer
Inquiry Report Form. Because inquiries enter the system through various channels—800 number,
communications center, website, direct contact, etc.—the Rural/Metro employee who receives the
inquiry, regardless of location or position, completes the form. It is then forwarded to the EMS Office
Manager, who enters the inquiry into the Master Customer Inquiry Log and then delegates its resolution
to the appropriate Rural/Metro department and employee.

Once the customer inquiry is investigated and a potential resolution identified, the employee assigned
will contact the customer by telephone and/or in writing. If the customer is satisfied with the resolution,
it is documented on the Report form and filed with the EMS Office Manager. If the customer is not
satisfied, the Rural/Metro employee will ascertain the customer’s expectations and work with the
appropriate supervisor to determine how to best resolve the concern.

If the customer inquiry signals an area for improvement, then the employee and appropriate supervisor
will determine how to implement the improvement. If employee disciplinary action is necessary,
appropriate actions are taken in accordance with company policies.

The EMS Office Manager and Customer Relations Manager evaluate entries each month and quarter to
identify any trends, both positive and negative. Any negative trends should be accompanied by
recommendations for improvement. The quarterly report is submitted to the EMS Operations Manager
and the General Manager, East Tennessee Operations, who decide how to address trends, if applicable,
and improve outcomes.

The following flowchart provided illustrates the customer inquiry resolution process:

VRURAL/METRO z" March 6, 2015]29
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Describe how the organization’s approach to listening to and learning from customers is evaluated,
improved, and kept current with changing needs and strategies.

Rural/Metro utilizes both mailed and web-based customer surveys to gauge the quality of care and
services provided to our clients. The Customer Relations Manager selects customers at random from 9-
1-1 and GT service areas to receive mailed surveys. Various referral sources, such as hospital social
workers, and case managers are also contacted to complete surveys.

Customers may also access our website www.ruralmetro.com and complete the customer survey.
Corporate Rural/Metro forwards activity to the Customer Relations Manager for review and
incorporation into the overall score card for Customer satisfaction.
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In addition to formal services, several other processes ensure service delivery satisfaction, including:

e Frequent contact with referral facilities by phone, email and site visits. Monthly reviews related
to non-emergency response times and turnaround times or time-on-task studies are performed
and allow a real-time picture of our timeliness;

e Phone calls or face-to-face comments related to quality of care or service delivery are routed to
the EMS Office Manager and included in the Customer Inquiry process, as described previously;
and

e Local RMCC (Regional Medical Control and Communications) along with EMS Subcommittee
also provide information related to performance.

Describe how the organization provides access and information to enable customers to seek
assistance, to conduct business, and to voice complaints.

Rural/Metro has several options available for the community and customers to interact with staff for
information, billing questions, conflict resolution, or questions related to having an ambulance available
for a special event, and other needs. Most of our calls from the community, aside from 9-1-1 and other
ambulance transportation needs, come to our main contact number, which is easily found via the
internet or local phone directories. The number is answered Monday through Friday during regular
office hours by Roma Burchfield, our EMS Office Manager who also serves as our front office
receptionist. After hours, there is an automated response with directory assist provided for leaving
messages for either a specific employee or general voice mail.

Rural/Metro’s local, regional, and zone leadership widely advertise their contact information and are
accessible to customers to discuss concerns, complains or offer compliments anytime, day or night. Our
customers have such a wide variety of numbers to call that they will not have a problem finding an
appropriate person to talk to at a moment’s notice.

Our communication phone number is available to the general public and utilized primarily to arrange
non-emergency transports and serves as 24 hour a day, 7 day a week access to Rural/Metro. The
number is also advertised via the internet or phone directory and is provided to health care facilities as
the primary contact number for transport needs, initial intact information, concerns and compliments,
and other communication requirements. Shift supervisors, managers, and other support staff can be
reached by contacting the communications line. Management and supervisory staff have separate
landline extensions and all are provided with a company smart phone with email capability. As
discussed previously, based on the caller’s needs, calls are directed to the appropriate Rural/Metro
employee.

As a business, Rural/Metro uses social media as a public relations, marketing, and community
information tool. Social media enables Rural/Metro to share what is happening in the company and the
rest of the world and it allows us to hear directly from our customers, patients, employees, and others
about what’s important to them. This “conversation” is able to generate discussion about our company
via social media and provides a non-traditional communication outlet with an extensive, worldwide
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reach. The primary social media tools that Rural/Metro uses are Facebook, Twitter, and YouTube.

Our East Tennessee Division Office houses our subscription department for EMS subscribers, and will
field concerns from customers that subscribe to our EMS service.

Under Scott Bartos’ leadership, the company has implemented a practice of responding to employees
and customers within 24 hours at every level throughout the organization. Our Executive Leaders have
their email addresses and phone numbers posted on our corporate website and are available to resolve
customer issues quickly.

All of these programs and processes demonstrate Rural/Metro’s commitment and ability to respond
effectively to both internal and external customer needs. Our goal is always to provide the best possible
service to patients, their families, the public, public safety professionals and health care professionals,
and we believe our track record in Blount County clearly reflects our success in meeting these
objectives. We remain committed to enhancing our customer service program under a new contract.

Describe how the organization, its key personnel, and its employees

support and strengthen the local communities. All levels of leadership
In support of Blount County and its citizens, Rural/Metro contributes to are available for
numerous community causes, organizations, and events. As a community customer inquiries

partner, Rural/Metro offers prevention and education programs

throughout Blount County. These community-based initiatives are accomplished through collaboration
with other groups and organizations. Educational programs are tailored to address prevalent health
issues in specific communities, and materials and presentations can be developed as necessary to
reach our target audience.

Contributing EMS personnel to community based prevention activities in partnership with fellow
health care agencies is a natural extension of Rural/Metro’s commitment to Blount County’s EMS
system.

Some of examples of our commitment from local employees include:

e Jonathan Rodgers, Blount County General Manager is a member of the Board of Directors for
the child fatality review board and Blount County rescue squad.

e Erin Downey, East TN Regional Director is a volunteer with CASA (Court Appointed Special
Advocate) of the TN Heartland, she serves as an advocate for neglected and abused children in
Blount County.2

® http://casatnh.org/
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e Several Employees such as Adam Cook, AEMT (left) and Kevin Reilly, Paramedic (right) sacrifice
their time to fill in as needed across Blount County. During the February 2015 winter storms
and power outages, Rural/Metro employees worked at the Red Cross shelter. Red Cross needed
volunteers and Rural/Metro quickly filled the void.

Rural/Metro is dedicated to healthcare throughout Blount County

and attends several meetings in cooperation with Blount Memorial
Hospital such as Stroke and STEMI review, Emergency Department
meetings and more.

Rural/Metro is a proud member of the Blount Chamber and
attends several Blount Partnership events to include: Martin
Luther King, Jr. Celebration, 95" Chamber Anniversary Celebration,
and Habitat for Humanity events among others. We submit
monthly newsletters to county leaders discussing the events we
attend and sponsor.

Countless hours are dedicated to providing unpaid standbys to
keep the community safe. Some examples are the fall festival, MLK
Block Party with Alcoa PD, Fireworks events across the county,
Christmas parades, Townsend Old Timers Day, various school or church career and safety days. These
are only a few examples of community involvement initiatives.

- During the February 2015 snow storms Rural/Metro transported numerous
The R/M patients, via 4-wheel drive vehicle, to dialysis appointments due to ETHRA
and personal vehicle rides being unavailable. This was a community service at
no cost to the citizens.

Difference

We are experienced at building positive relationships with local residents and identifying key
stakeholders in business, education, and diverse non-profit organizations to help educate the
community about emergency services. All community education programs will be developed in
cooperation with Blount County officials.
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D. INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

Rural/Metro is committed to continuing to bring solutions for clinical quality
improvement countywide. In this section we will propose a clinical
enhancement committee, also known as the EMS board discussed earlier in
Difference this proposal. The group will look at system-wide data for the purpose of
driving improvements. It is to be composed of members within first
response agencies, members designated by Blount County government,
hospital representatives and Rural/Metro’s medical director. They will work cooperatively toward
system wide clinical enhancements, as well as retrospective clinical reviews. This is a committee that
will meet monthly and report on jointly recognized opportunities for innovation or improved patient
outcomes.

The R/M

In addition to regular committee meetings, Rural/Metro will provide the ambulance contract
administrator, reports on educational activities that occur with internal and external providers.
Quarterly reports will be provided to the local Medical Director on clinical skill performance as well as
any other reports specifically requested by Blount County.

The EMS board, not just R/M exclusively, will be involved in recommending clinical progress,
opportunities for response improvement, identify educational opportunities. This is conducted as an
entire pre-hospital team with representatives from every facet of the healthcare in Blount County.

Describe the organization's selection, management, and use of information and data needed to
support key organization processes and action plans, and to improve organization performance.
This should include involving senior leadership participation in the oversight process.

Customer awareness and interaction is critical in defining processes that offer our customers the best
value. Blount County metrics are built specifically to meet the objectives of Blount County’s
healthcare environment. The Key Point Indicators (KPI’s) developed will work to identify the needs of
our citizens. Some examples of KPI’s that will be measured for Blount County include:

e Enhanced medical protocol application by rural emergency medical responders

e Patient outcomes for cardiac arrest and respiratory illness

e Patient outcomes and treatments associated with trauma patients in Blount County
e Rapid Sequence Induction (RSI) rates and outcomes

e Employee recruitment and retention efforts

When opportunities are identified for improvement local Rural/Metro leadership will work with
regional leadership to identify areas for improvement, the need for action plans will be developed
with corporate support to constantly look at ongoing improvements. These will be presented
guarterly to the ambulance contract administrator and approved, in advance, by the EMS board.

Rural/Metro in Blount County is proud of the quality, reliability, and operational excellence we have
offered for 30 years. We will continue to focus on delivering high-quality services that consistently
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meets customer requirements and exceed your expectations. We will measure our performance
against agreed upon key performance metrics, target goals, customer feedback, employee
assessments, and industry standards.

Describe the main types of information and data, financial and non-financial, and how each type
relates to key organization processes and action plans.

The following key information systems are a few of the data management tools that Rural/Metro
uses on a corporate-wide basis. All of these systems are accessible to employees via the company’s
intranet.

Intergraph Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD)

In 2014, Rural/Metro initiated negotiations with Intergraph for a new, custom CAD for East
Tennessee. This CAD will be in service in Blount County by summer 2015. The Intergraph CAD
provides seamless reporting for all responses and Rural/Metro has already purchased an interface in
order to receive information directly from Blount County’s CAD.

The data provided from this CAD, in conjunction with the FirstWatch and OPTIMA software,
Rural/Metro will have verifiable information for planning, ambulance deployment, crew chute,
response and task times, in addition to other data points critical to enhancing EMS responses. This
data will be shared and reviewed by the EMS Board on a monthly basis. For more information on the
new Intergraph CAD, refer to Appendix 22.

NetScheduler Scheduling and Credential Management

Rural/Metro uses a custom-developed web application called NetScheduler to manage employee
schedules and track continuing education hours, certifications, and licenses. The program includes
controls that limit consecutive work hours, as well as provide a simple, yet effective method for
ensuring employees remain current on required credentials. The program notifies the employee and
training coordinator directly if a certification is going to expire and will not let them assign themselves
on the schedule or clock-in for their shift, if a certification has expired.

RTA Fleet Management Software

The RTA system tracks vehicle preventive maintenance (PM) schedules and parts. RTA track required
inspections, licensing information, and warranty expirations. It also enables our fleet managers to
exchange information among operations and monitor for manufacturer recall notices. It assists us in
understanding total cost by VIN number for repairs and maintenance. This system allows for the
creation of automatic work orders associated with preventive maintenance and generates reports
regarding our fleet’s preventative maintenance data.

Web-Based ICIMS Talent Management Tool

Rural/Metro’s innovative Human Resources tool, ICIMS’ Talent Platform allows for streamlined
management of all recruitment and hiring processes. The software is customizable and interfaces with
Rural/Metro’s current Human Resources Information System (HRIS). Employment listings are posted on
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internal and external boards where candidates can apply directly with Rural/Metro online. Candidates’
information is uploaded into the ICIMS system and viewable to the hiring managers. Managers are
then able to interface with potential employees regarding the next steps in the process. We are also
able to conduct candidate searches based on specific job criteria.

Workday Human Resources Information System

The Workday, Human Capital Management Application is a smarter, more efficient way to handle all of
your people-related activities. Workday Human Resource Management offers intuitive, self-service
features to help you effectively organize, staff, and manage the full hire-to-retire lifecycle in one
simple, easy-to-use system. You can find more about Workday at www.workday.com

Labor Dashboard Reports T —— T
Nationally, regionally, and locally our managers, directors, and 5o o @ < oomn = oo B
executive leadership at Rural/Metro look at tools such as the Ca—e—
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This weekly data includes review of cost per unit hour, unit
hour utilization, cost per transport, overtime, and payroll
metrics. Dashboards also allow for all of our leaders to identify and share best practices in resource
management.

|
g

Rural/Metro is happy to discuss these local numbers directly with Blount County leadership; however
we consider this information highly proprietary and a key proponent towards driving excellence within
our organization.

ARIBA

Using the Ariba Network Rural/Metro connects with our trading partners to buy smarter, sell faster,
and manage our cash more efficiently and effectively than ever before. Companies around the world
use the Ariba Network to make business commerce easier and more profitable. The following is an
excerpt from the Ariba website, “Providing access to industry-leading technology, proven process
expertise, and community-shared best practices, the Ariba Network liberates trading partners from
slow and costly paper-based processes. Easier than ever before, you’ll safely share compliance, risk,
performance, and transaction information. Armed with greater visibility and intelligence, you’ll align
your business decisions and react to changing market conditions with utmost agility for greater
competitive advantage.”
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Electronic Patient Care Records (ePCR)

The ZOIll RescueNet ePCR system is utilized throughout Blount County ambulances in order to
adequately capture patient care information from field documentation. This system tracks and
monitors clinical care and include reports which offer Clinical Quality Management teams information
about performance and protocol application. Rural/Metro is in the progress of improving our current
ePCR system to Medusa/s Siren ePCR technology discussed below.

Getac Mobile Data Terminals (MDT’s)

Our rugged windows based tablet will be deployed on
every ambulance for real-time communication with
the Intergraph CAD and all will serve as the hardware
to complete ePCR documents.

Medusa Siren’s ePCR Software and Tablet
Technology

Rural/Metro is investing in a new ePCR charting
software platform that it intends to roll out to our
markets this year. This system will exceed all contract
requirements and respectfully asks for the opportunity to present this solution to Blount County. The
deployment of Medusa’s Siren consolidated cloud based ePCR solution for Rural/Metro utilizes best
practices while establishing national standards and processes for improved transport documentation
and clinical reporting. The utilization of this tool emphasizes Rural/Metro’s ability to lead the way in
improving patient care by integrating with capable medical facilities to exchange patient data. Medusa
Siren allows us to track both the clinical and operational KPIs regarding patient care and improved
crew availability. Added capabilities will allow for hospitals to engage with the ePCR system to evaluate
patients en route to the hospital to plan appropriate care upon arrival. All of our operations
nationwide will be migrating to this platform for efficiencies and economies of scale. We feel this is a
viable option as we can apply an interface so our agencies can seamlessly transfer data from program
to program.

More information and Siren screen shots can be found on page 52 and 53.

Describe how the information and data are deployed to all users to support the effective
management and evaluation of key organization processes.

Rural/Metro utilizes multiple delivery models for information distribution. One such model is
submitting information located on the Netscheduler clock-in kiosk for data sharing. This would be
viewed each time an employee clocks in or checks their schedule. This may be clinical information,
modifications for environmental conditions (heat stress or extreme cold), or changes of policies or
procedures. We also administer an internal digital paging system that performs response time alerts
to responding ambulances. This is further enhanced with automated notifications in real time
through CAD.
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The paging system is used to send messages to pagers or smart phones and it will provide system
levels and status of ambulances. Call locations, non-emergency information, and timing status of
delays at hospitals, are a few examples of information that is communicated to the staff with this
system. Additionally, the crews receive notifications that prompt them to expedite going in service.
Rural/Metro Blount County will add the Blount County contract administrator to data bursts regarding
exceptions, major incidents, along with any other pertinent information related to ambulance 9-1-1
operations.

For managers, data bursts are utilized by corporate IT to provide continual information for financial,
compliance, patient demographic gathering, and performance measures compared to the budget or
previous performance. These data bursts can be in the form of simple graphs or dashboard type
displays.

Some additional methods of sharing information include:

e Response and financially analysis data is shared at all levels from Senior Management to Field
Supervisors as pertinent to their job performance. In many cases the data is shared with the
employees as a means to help educate them on improvements needed or achieved.

e Non-sensitive or HIPAA-compliant information is always delivered via encryption.

e Meetings to relay information with the employees or supervisors are frequently scheduled to
ensure effective communication. Rural/Metro’s management team strives to make regular
contact with those they work with to clarify any questions, give direction, or to gather solutions.

Describe how performance data from all parts of the organization are integrated and analyzed to
assess overall organization performance in key areas. Describe how the principal financial and
non-financial measures are integrated and analyzed to determine:

e (linical performance
e Operational performance

Rural/Metro’s service model revolves around providing continuous engagement and designing
innovative solutions to ensure that we establish internal and customer performance improvement
processes. The analytical methods, data collection tools, and resources combine to provide creative
problem solving and continuous improvement to assist our customers with achieving their growth
and profitability objectives.

In the operations segment, we discuss how Rural/Metro effectively deploys ambulances to meet
response times while overcoming certain obstacles presented as the part of any emergency
response. Below are methods we utilized to determine appropriate deployment in Blount County.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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At Rural/Metro, we have a dedicated team that focuses on deployment, examination of unit hour
utilization, and lean Six Sigma solutions. The following is the labor planning and analysis team
dedicated to assuring the most efficient EMS systems available.

Rakesh Mopidevi

Director of Labor Planning

& Analysis
1 i 1
Marco Rivera Greg Thompson Raghav Slvakumar
Manager of Business Sr. Operations Strategy Sr. Operations Strategy
Planning & Analytics Analyst Analyst

The goal of the deployment analysis is to implement a multidimensional deployment strategy,
driven by the demand patterns and designed to provide the best patient care through lower
response times. The demand in the system is analyzed across multiple dimensions such as level of
care, geographic area and by factors like day of week, time of the day. The deployment analysis is
aided by industry specific computer software and is backed by processes and specialized models
developed by Rural/Metro analytics teams in consultation with industry experts over last several
years.

A detailed list of factors which we used to determine the number of ambulance resources to deploy
for Blount County includes:

e Service area geography

e Time of Day/Day of Week Demand
e Task Time

e Number of Ambulances in fleet

e Response Time requirements

e Posting Locations

e Financial considerations

The result of the deployment analysis produces a demand based priority posting plan for various
times of the day, an ambulance and ambulance personnel schedule and key reporting metrics for
monitoring once the plan is operationalized.

The deployment analysis process for Blount County will be continuously improved upon based on
the on-going performance analysis of operations, taking in to account population changes that may
be permanent or seasonal.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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The process has the following steps:

Data gathering
Demand analysis
Geospatial analysis

LN AEWNPRE

Discovery and understanding of system/operational requirements

Calculate unit hours required to meet parameters

Optimize schedule based on constraints and requirements
Examine results with operations group and rework as necessary
Finalize deployment-based schedule

Operationalize new deployment-based schedule

The figure below outlines the deployment analysis process:

Work with local

Begin > ions on Initial
Process Discovery and Goal
. Determination

Communications
Center (CAD)
Ambulance
Response Data

Growth

YOY Trends
Seasonality

Task times/demand by
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*  Shift Times

Present Results to

Operations Group, re-run
analysis as necessary

Finalize Deployment Based
Schedule
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Data
We gathered three years’ worth of our own dispatch data to create optimal deployment for Blount
County within the new response time criteria. The data depicts a 30-day rolling average.

As Figure 3 shows, we can anticipate, based on experience, that there are certain times of the year
where average call volume is higher. Understanding this helps us to proactively plan and avoid reactive
scheduling.
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The data also illustrates that using the most recent 12 months (with some normalization and split into
emergent and non-emergent segments) would provide us with accurately representative data points to
use to develop a deployment plan responsive to the most stringent requirements of the RFP.

The data obtained is then used to determine:

e Task time (from the time the ambulance “dispatched” to the time it is clear and “available”)
e Call types (e.g., emergent and non-emergent) & levels of service (e.g., ALS, BLS)

e Transports versus responses

e Hour and day (day of week) of response

e Average task time by hour of week

e Average demand by hour of week

e Does this change by call type/LOS

e % of transports vs. responses

All these parameters and data points are then used in the geospatial and demand analyses.
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Geospatial Analysis

For the Geospatial component of our analysis, we looked at the distribution of the requests for service
(demand) across the entire county for a sample 4-month time period. The figure below reflects shows
how emergent and non-emergent calls were distributed geographically from January-April 2014.

o
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Rural/Metro applies the following statistical/diagnostic tools to analyze performance data:

Control Chart Analysis (Statistical Process Control)

Control charts are used to assess the stability of a particular process. The charts indicate whether an
EMS provider’s process is “in statistical control” (a stable system where only common cause variation
exists) or “out of statistical control” (an unstable process where special cause variation exists). A
control chart is a particularly useful quality management tool for evaluating response time sub-
processes such as chute time.
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Provided below is a sample statistical process chart for chute time:

Chute Time Control Chart

001:08
LLL L HIL]

LA LERS

umugpﬂ___ ________________________________________________ Q0043

Chute Time
_‘—--I

Wx 3%
NN F
0:00:26 'EIL‘LJ. T
o007 |l _ B ke
B
LUkt
B e e s
Ooxing
= ZEFEITZTFTEFTEZSTETEZTFTETZTZTEZTEEZEZEZ = z = z = =
$3IIir2iIIIIxTrrriaxizezziiIsiiizadasazacead
BB N e AR A BRI ARSI RAaNIdEaERERAT
BN RN ARSI RS IR I N RAEN AR RARNFREERIREREAAR
Time of Cay

The chart is an example of data that is reviewed daily, weekly, monthly and annually to impact change
and direct results in the organization. The chute time chart is important, as are all of our reports, to
ensure that ambulance crews are responding timely after a call has been dispatched. Seconds are
critical and Rural/Metro will account for every second it takes for an ambulance to arrive at a patient
after they call 9-1-1.
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Document the following:

Verify that the Contractor will designate a Quality Manager to oversee the quality management
program.

Rural/Metro has an extensive Quality Improvement and Quality Assurance program that is designed to
quickly identify areas where we may not be meeting the needs of patients and customers. In Blount
County, David Phillips serves as our Quality Manager and works directly with Jonathan Rodgers,
General Manager and Christopher McLain, Clinical Manager on protocol development, and clinical
reviews. Specific items are directed to the Medical Director for further review. These include:

e All calls involving Aeromedical Transport

e All calls involving use of CPAP

e All narcotic administration

e All calls involving a patient in Cardiac Arrest
e All calls requiring the use of a ventilator

e ST Elevation Myocardial Infarction (STEMI’s)
e Cerebrovascular Accident (CVA) calls

If areas of concern are identified, proactive actions will be initiated to rectify any potential shortfalls.
The Quality Improvement/Quality Assurance Program is led by the designated Medical Director, and
has four main components:

e Dedicated Clinical Quality Staff, including a Clinical Manager

e Required daily review of Electronic Patient Care Records

e Quality Committee meetings to review opportunities and determine potential actions

e Additional training or corrective action for medical staff, depending on committee direction.

As an addition to Blount County quality management Rural/Metro proposes an EMS Board which will
include various public safety leaders across the county, to meet monthly and discuss total patient care
from first response to receiving hospital admission or discharge. This process will give all responding
agencies a thorough understanding of how their actions resulted in patient outcomes.

That the Contractor will submit comprehensive key performance indicator reports to the County,
when requested.

Rural/Metro agrees to provide comprehensive performance o N
reports as requested by Blount County. We have a variety of Rural/Metro will use this
business intelligent tools available for the presentation and information to provide resources for

distribution of enterprise reporting. As listed above, we have
invested in several tools to provide real-time information to

leaders and our Blount County contract administrator as well
as post incident data for review and quality management. desired ambulance delivery model.

" >
The standardization of data from disparate sources assists in providing all-inclusive reporting for our

Blount County’s feasibility study and
will assist in the success of any
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customers and creates a uniform means of communication across all business segments.
The available reporting types include:

e Canned/predefined reports — accessible through secure web-based portals (SAP Business
Objects Enterprise or specific application portals). Reporting can be scheduled and provided
daily, weekly, or monthly via email, share-drives, FTP. Reports can also be exported manually
as needed. The reports come direct from our Intergraph CAD or FirstWatch Software.

e Ad-hoc reporting — available using SAP Business Objects Xcelsius tool. High-level dashboard
reporting is available with key executive metric data from billing, operational, and financial
systems updated daily and available online through the SharePoint portal. Executives receive
updated metrics of transports, APC, revenue, collections, EBITDA, EPS, etc.

e Mobile reporting — available to executives including key executive metric data from billing,
operational, and financial systems. Reports can be sent to iPads, iPhones, and email daily.

That the Contractor will actively participate in projects designed to improve the quality of EMS in
Blount County.

Rural/Metro Blount County believes that our investment in to our first response agencies is
extremely critical. We commit to ensure all Emergency Medical Agencies are at minimal Emergency
Medical Responder (EMR) status and Strive for BLS and ALS Service as the emergency medical
responders’ desire.

We will hold community CPR Events for Bystanders that witness a Sudden Cardiac arrest for
immediate Initiation of E-9-1-1 and CPR. In this initiative, we will implement
The R/M a program that identifies the individual who assisted with CPR or AED via
standard on-scene history questions and follow up with that citizen or
bystander to recognize their efforts and provide documentation for the
community on the impact citizens can have with CPR and AED training.

Difference

We will coordinate with Blount Memorial Hospital to do follow up care for discharges to help with
readmissions to the hospital and over all care of our citizens.

Rural/Metro commits to PulsePoint Community in 2016. See more about PulsePoint at
www.pulsepoint.org Pulsepoint will activate bystanders to CPR requests, it will also identify where all
of the strategically placed AED’s are located, that Rural/Metro will place throughout the community
in county buildings. Rural/Metro is committed to saving lives in Blount County.

Rural/Metro Blount County protocols are some of the most progressive protocols in the state of
Tennessee. We are proud of our progressive implementation of medications and methods that make
a difference in the lives of Blount County citizens. This could not be done without strong medical
direction and the support of Blount Memorial Hospital. The progressive protocols are necessary due
to extended transport times in some rural areas of Blount County.
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Some examples of Rural/Metro protocols exceeding state standards include:

We are one of the few ambulance services who administer Heparin in the field for STEMI’s
We have the latest in 12 Lead Capability with LIFEPAK 12 & 15 monitors and will continue to
transmit to the Hospital for Early STEMI team and cath lab activation.

e We have initiated a Labetalol Protocol in 2015 for CVA’s for Field administration and Blount
Memorial Hospital’s Transfers, to help with Blood Pressure issues, so clots do not cause
hemorrhage and can be dissolved with TPA for a better outcome for patients and minimize
deficits for a normal life after CVA.

e We have implemented Nasal Versed for Pediatric Seizures for a quick and less invasive seizure
control. Every unit has a CPAP Device for patients with Pneumonia or CHF for quick relief of
Shortness of breath and to reduce the Fluid in the lungs along with medication therapy Lasix.
Bougie’s and Surgical Cric kits have been added for difficult airway issues and Facial Trauma.
C.A.T’s Combat Tourniquets to stop bleeding for arterial and amputations. We have Critical
care Paramedics on every shift for interfacility Transport that require Blood, Multiple
medication drips, and insulin drips and Vent patients.

Rural/Metro Blount County has applied to be the only American Heart Association (AHA) EMS entity
with silver certification in the state of Tennessee. We are eligible because of our pre-hospital
anticoagulation administration.

How the Contractor’s Medical Director incorporates local physician involvement, interaction,
credentialing, tasks and disciplinary involvement and/or responsibilities.

Dr. Jason Begue, Rural/Metro Blount County’s medical Director, has assisted the Alcoa Fire Department
become licensed as a BLS response agency. He is a full-time E.R. physician at Blount Memorial Hospital;
he has interactions with every crew member that he encounters at the E.R. Dr. Begue attends in-
service courses and teaches Difficult Airway Techniques and follows-up with the QA/Ql process. If
there is a patient care issue, he is involved in the disciplinary review of the involved employees. He
then meets with the involved parties and reviews the patient care report to discuss the correct
approach to a situation. Every new paramedic has Limited Standing order for a minimum of one year,
which means they must contact medical control for medication administration to ensure the right
treatment is being given for each situation until they become a seasoned medic. Dr. Begue is also the
E.R. Director at Blount Memorial Hospital.

Dr. Begue reviews hundreds of transports each month to ensure the citizens of Blount County are
provided the best care possible and educational opportunities identified to continue to strengthen the
caregivers in Blount County. Dr. Begue is contacted immediately if any event occurs outside of protocol
and Jonathan Rodgers will work directly with him on disciplinary activities that may need to occur as a
result of the protocol deviation.
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CAAS Accreditation, although not required to be considered for award of this RFP, is strongly
desired by Blount County. The County would anticipate the successful Contractor complete the
accreditation process within six (6) months after the execution of the resulting agreement.

/:1;/1\/1 Rural/Metro Blount County is a CAAS accredited organization.

T

Difference

Since 1997 Rural/Metro has been accredited by the Commission on
Accreditation of Ambulance Services (CAAS). CAAS-accredited ambulance
services must demonstrate compliance with the industry’s most rigorous operational performance
standards. Certification is voluntary and involves third-party review of local operations and clinical
processes, policies, and documentation, as well as on-site inspection by an independent panel of
industry experts. In essence, accreditation provides assurance that Rural/Metro meets the ambulance
industry’s highest clinical and operational standards.

Achieving accreditation is a comprehensive process which includes the following:

Reviewing agency and financial management Budgeting and strategic planning

Relations with outside agencies Mutual aid and disaster coordination
Community education and relations Human resources and personnel management
Hiring Credentialing

Training Problem resolution

Performance evaluations Clinical Standards

Quality Improvement Safe operations and risk management
Vehicles, equipment, and facilities Communications/dispatch

As an accredited agency, Rural/Metro has proven that we are a quality service provider as indicated by
our written and documented procedures, systems, and reports. We also have dedicated Medical
Director involvement in all matters that affect patient care, including: protocol development, vehicle
equipment, educational programs, training, Quality Improvement (Ql), and response-time standards.
The accreditation process requires Rural/Metro to look closely at every aspect of our operation and to
demonstrate through our policies and record keeping that we truly provide the quality that is expected
by our partners and the industry.

Benefits of Accreditation
Our accreditation communicates to area residents and our partners the peace of mind that comes
from the knowledge that their ambulance provider:

e Meets the highest national standards for the medical transportation industry -standards that
often exceed those of local and state EMS regulatory bodies

e Delivers first-rate patient care through properly trained and credentialed personnel and
meticulously stocked and maintained ambulances and equipment

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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e Provides detailed record-keeping and analysis that ensures that we continue to meet the Blount
County’s local emergency response plan

e Has in place extensive mutual-aid agreements, ensuring that we are always ready to take an
active role in any disaster or large-scale incident

e |s committed to partnering with the community and local health care system to provide
comprehensive prevention and safety education programs

e Last, but not least, guarantees consistent QI processes throughout all operational levels.

e Ultimately, CAAS accreditation is recognized as the gold standard in the prehospital community.
It truly helps Rural/Metro operations determine what we are doing right, what our weaknesses
may be, and how we can improve our operations and patient care

ACCREDITED

.
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E. PROCESS MANAGEMENT/FLEET MAINTENANCE

State the minimum number of vehicles intended to be available for response under this contract, the
type, specifications, and manufacturer, and any additional information that may assist the EMS
Procurement Advisory Team in assessing the quality of vehicles proposed.

Rural/Metro proposes to provide 12 vehicles and will staff 9 ambulances during peak demand for 9-1-1
and non-emergency ambulances. Schedules and staffing models will vary with time of day, day of week
and time of year. These schedules will fluctuate with seasonal changes, population changes, weather
and other impacting factors. Full-time and part-time employees that are assigned to work in the Blount
County system will continue to staff the dedicated ambulances. Our employees are familiar with the
geography and service area. Rural/Metro strongly believes that the success of the EMS system rests on
the positive interaction of all agencies involved. We are committed to a cooperative venture in which
constructive feedback is welcomed and where solutions arise from a collaborative effort.

Fleet

Maintaining response ready vehicles and equipment is essential to our
mission. Currently, Rural/Metro safely operates and maintains more than 90
ambulances throughout East Tennessee. All vehicles meet the requirements
Difference specified by the Tennessee Department of Public Health and Environment
and the Department of Motor Vehicle’s Rules and Regulations.

The R/M

Rural/Metro utilizes an aggressive preventative maintenance and fleet replacement program, by
replacing vehicles as necessary within their usable lifespan. Vehicles will continually meet or exceed
the requirements by applicable agencies, in addition to any other State, Federal, and/or manufacturer
requirements.

The entire fleet at Rural/Metro is equipped with state-of-the-art technology that ensures the most
efficient delivery of service. Rural/Metro is committed to remaining on the forefront of the
technology that drives our business, recognizing that these advancements often improve the safety,
efficiency, and delivery of emergency medical services. From an electronic patient care record (ePCR)
system that provides paramedics and EMTs with a rapid and accurate patient data tool efficient and
updated communications devices, we continuously strive to identify and implement tools that
enhance our service. Rural/Metro’s investments in state-of-the-art medical equipment and GPS
driven vehicle tracking systems enable us to summon the nearest available resources, as well as
provide the most accurate ETA’s in the business. Rural/Metro utilizes a fully capable technology
model. This “smart ambulance” concept provides highly enhanced service to our patients and
customers.

The series of schematics in Appendix 8 illustrate the components of the Braun Type Il vehicles which
we currently commit to Blount County and will continue to provide in order to ensure optimal safety
in the patient compartment as well as for the driver and passenger.
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State the ALS and BLS equipment to be utilized on all ambulances proposed.

Rural/Metro will continue to equip our ambulances with supplies and equipment that exceed
standards set forth by Blount County. Rural/Metro’s ambulance equipment and supplies will also meet
or exceed the standards as set forth by the Department of Health Emergency Medical Services Division.

Rural/Metro currently provides safe, well-maintained durable equipment on each ambulance.
Equipment is regularly inspected and replaced as needed. Disposable equipment and supplies are
maintained daily to meet the standard as set by both national and local protocol.

Local corroboration with our partners contributes to the decision as to what supplies are maintained
on the ambulance. This is done for responder familiarity and allows for continuity of patient care.
Disposable supplies are removed upon expiration and replenished at appropriate levels. In the event a
piece of equipment is backordered or delayed by the manufacturer it is communicated to our crews
and to our partners. The equipment will be temporarily supplemented by a similar piece of equipment
until the original item is available.

Below are examples some of the durable items each Rural/Metro vehicle in Blount County is equipped
with state of the art equipment to include:

e PhysioControl LIFEPAK 15 Monitor/Defibrillator
e Stryker MX-Pro R3 ambulance stretchers

e Stryker Stair-PRO 9252 Stairchairs

e Scoop Stretchers

e Backboards

e Built-in ambulance Infant/Child seat

e In-ambulance and portable Suction

o ALS Adult Jump Kit

e Pediatric Jump Kit

e Mobile Data Terminals linked to Intergraph CAD
e Traction Splint

Crews are required to keep all durable medical
equipment (DME) clean and properly maintained.
Ambulance personnel who encounter a failure of
their defibrillator/monitor or gurney must
immediately notify the Shift Commander, who
places the unit out of service until such equipment
is exchanged.

Additional policies exist to address jump bags,
airway bags, suction equipment, blood pressure
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cuffs, and other durable medical equipment. Field team members perform daily equipment checks
prior to the start of their shift.

Stryker has trained and certified the several company employees to provide preventive maintenance
and minor repairs to our stretchers. We currently utilize both bariatric and standard Stryker gurneys;
incorporating the new Stryker Power Gurneys was rejected by our field team members due to size and
weight. Instead, we have placed Stryker Stair-PRO 6252 stair chairs on each ambulance for the safe
movement of patients. These stair chairs will not only improve field team member’s confidence and
patient handling skills, but add a valuable comfort level to our patients.

Injuries to patients or employees due to equipment malfunctions are taken very seriously and reported
and documented the same day of the occurrence. When applicable, reports of durable medical
equipment failure are made to the FDA. The item serial number is logged and tracked to ensure it is
repaired prior to being reissued. Once an item is cleared, a label is applied stating it is available for use

Medusa Siren’s ePCR Software and Tablet Technology

In our efforts to always employ the most cutting edge technology and software solutions, the pending
roll-out of Medusa’s Siren ePCR technology will far exceed any electronic patient care reporting system
available. The deployment of Medusa’s Siren consolidated cloud based ePCR solution for Rural/Metro
utilizes best practices while establishing national standards and processes for improved transport
documentation and clinical reporting.

The utilization of this tool cultivates Rural/Metro’s ability to lead the way in improving patient care and
by integrating with capable medical facilities to exchange patient data. Medusa Siren allows us to track
both the clinical and operational KPIs regarding patient care and improved crew availability. Added
capabilities will allow for hospitals to engage with the ePCR system to evaluate patients en route to the
hospital to plan appropriate care upon arrival. All of our operations nationwide will be migrating to this
platform for efficiencies and economies of scale. We feel this is a viable option as we can apply an
interface so our agencies can seamlessly transfer data from program to program.

The following screenshots illustrate a few of the capabilities of Medusa Siren:
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The technology and equipment available for EMS programs continually evolves. Upgrading existing
equipment on a regular basis is necessary, as it enhances our field team members’ ability to diagnose
and care for our patients. Rural/Metro is committed to staying current with these technological
advances through regular upgrades of existing medical equipment.

We will fund identified upgrades by annually evaluating the lifespan of the durable equipment and its
depreciation schedule. Each fiscal year, Rural/Metro budgets for predetermined upgrades or
replacements so there is a consistent turnover of assets throughout the contract term. With this
repetitive cycle of equipment replacement, we ensure all equipment remains in reliable working order
and is as technologically advanced as possible.

Describe the policies regarding fleet size and standardization to which the proposer would be
committed, if awarded this contract

Rural/Metro’s demand analysis and planning capability is designed to help us meet peak load coverage
requirements. We staff more ambulances on a daily basis than all of our competitors have in their
entire local fleets combined. In addition to the staffed vehicles, we have management employees who
are certified paramedics and EMTs, available to respond in times of extreme volume surge. Our size,
resources, and flexibility add significant value to our operations in Blount County.

In Blount County, we currently provide 10 licensed ambulances, and will expand to 12 licensed
ambulances in the fleet and more as needed based on call demand. We maintain an additional 80
ambulances throughout our operations in East Tennessee.

9 of the 12 ambulances will be committed as front line emergency response dedicated ambulances
meeting or exceeding the specifications in the bid to include:

e All ambulances used for emergency patient transportation will be a minimum of Type ll|
Ambulances

e Ambulances will not be more than five (5) years old from the date of sale as a new vehicle, and
shall not have been used more than 300,000 miles.

The remaining 3 ambulances will be used for the non-emergency transportation of patients and will
meet or exceed the specifications of the bid to include:

e All Non-emergency ambulances will not be not more than six (6) years old from the date of sale
as a new vehicle
e Non-Emergency ambulances will not have been used more than 350,000 miles.

Rural/Metro exceeds the requirements of support vehicles and currently provides 2 four-wheel drive
vehicles for use in inclement weather. These vehicles will be maintained according to the fleet
maintenance specifications and the primary four wheel drive vehicle will not be older than five years
old and will not exceed 150,000 miles. Rural/Metro’s secondary four-wheel drive vehicle will be utilized
as a back-up four-wheel drive response vehicle.
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Equipment available to respond in inclement weather will be kept on site at our fleet operations center
in Alcoa to include, but not limited to, snow tires, de-icer and tire studs.

Rural/Metro further commits to provide the following value added enhancements to our vehicles:

e Each ambulance will display the Rural/Metro logo, along with the last five of the VIN number in
addition to the state placard as required by Tennessee EMS regulations.

e All vehicles will be equipped with modems to monitor location via GPS in Rural/Metro’s
Intergraph CAD and to transmit patient care reports as well as EKG information to receiving
hospitals.

Rural/Metro has a massive disaster response support structure throughout
our East Tennessee operations. This includes several disaster response
vehicles dedicated to state responses and local area responses. In addition
Blount County leadership sits on all regional disaster response boards, and
actively participates.

The R/M

Difference

Describe the fleet maintenance program to be employed. Specifically address how any instance which
would render an ambulance unable to respond to or transport a patient would be tracked, improved,
and minimized.

Rural/Metro has a local fleet services facility to provide scheduled preventative maintenance and
timely incidental repair services. The facility is appropriately licensed and is staffed by ASE-certified
mechanics who are experienced specifically in ambulance maintenance. In addition, Rural/Metro has a
large fleet center in West Knoxville as well as a relationship with West Chevrolet in Alcoa to provide
timely service on warranty work as well as more complicated fleet maintenance.

Rural/Metro utilizes COMDATA and RTA to track all vehicles in our fleet. Through our extensive
experience providing millions of miles of ambulance transportation services in communities
throughout the United States, we have established an efficient preventative maintenance program
that is by far the most appropriate, cost efficient, quality focused method to manage a large fleet of
emergency vehicles. In addition to the use of COMDATA and RTA, Rural/Metro’s management, in
coordination with our local fleet maintenance team, monitors all manufacturer and OEM manufacturer
service bulletins, safety notices, and recalls. This system is designed to ensure that maintenance and
safety notices receive immediate attention. The quality of our vehicle maintenance programs is evident
in our performance and track record.

Field Level Maintenance

Vehicles and equipment that are well maintained improves the overall quality and delivery of pre-
hospital medical care. Rural/Metro’s all-inclusive fleet maintenance program involves both field
personnel and fleet mechanics that work together to provide regular inspections, appropriate
documentation, and preventative maintenance.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Field crews complete a daily vehicle inspection report for each ambulance prior to the start of each
shift. The inspection includes:

e Tire pressure and condition

e Oil and fuel levels

e Electrical system condition

e Safety and medical equipment condition
e Overall vehicle condition and cleanliness

Crews log any concerns on a pre-trip inspection form, which is delivered to the maintenance shop for
further attention. Any concern that might compromise crew or patient safety is addressed
immediately through the use of a duty mechanic who is on call around the clock, or the vehicle is
placed out of service until a thorough inspection is conducted and all concerns are addressed. Please
see Appendix 15 for supply and field maintenance checklists.

Rural/Metro employees will maintain, store, and dispose of all bio-medical equipment and by products
in accordance with the appropriate state and OHSA guidelines.

Describe the overall program of equipment maintenance and medical supply warehousing to be
employed by the proposer of awarded this contract.

In Blount County, we have extensive warehousing capabilities in our Alcoa and Maryville stations. In
addition, our 52,000 square foot building in west Knoxville supports Blount County with stock piles of
additional equipment to include backboards, protective equipment specific to Ebola and other
respiratory-borne threats. This location is less than 30 minutes from our Blount County operation in
Alcoa and can rapidly respond any necessary resources.

Ambulances will be equipped and supplied in accordance with the established contractual
requirements. Crews are required to keep all durable medical equipment (DME) clean and properly
maintained. Ambulance personnel who encounter a failure of their defibrillator/monitor, gurney,
ventilator or other durable equipment must immediately notify the Shift Commander who places the
unit out of service until such equipment is exchanged. Additional policies exist to address jump bags,
airway bags, suction equipment; blood pressure cuffs. Field personnel perform daily equipment checks
prior to the start of their shift. Please see Appendix 15 for supply checklists.

The Fleet/Purchasing Manager ensures all DME undergoes manufacturer recommended preventive
maintenance, maintaining records for the life of the equipment. Any equipment with a deficiency that
compromises, or may reasonably compromise, its function is immediately removed from service. In
addition, ambulances or equipment that has defects, including significant or cosmetic flaws, are
removed from service without undue delay. Most DME repairs are covered under a service agreement
with individual manufacturers.

All bio-medical equipment and byproducts are maintained, stored, and disposed of in accordance to
industry and regulatory standards.

VRURAL/METRO z" March 6, 201556

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!

Printed on Recycled Paper



Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

Injuries due to equipment malfunctions are reported and documented the same day. When applicable,
reports of the DME failure are made to the FDA. The item serial number is logged and tracked to
ensure it is repaired prior to being reissued. Once an item is cleared, a label is applied stating it is
available for use.

Equipment Upgrades

The technology and equipment available for EMS programs continually evolves. Upgrading existing
equipment on a regular basis is necessary, as it enhances our field employees’ ability to assess and
care for our patients. Rural/Metro is committed to staying current with these technological advances
through regular upgrades of existing medical equipment. We fund identified upgrades by annually
evaluating the lifespan of the durable equipment and its depreciation schedule. Each fiscal year,
Rural/Metro budgets for predetermined upgrades or replacements so that there is a consistent
turnover of assets throughout the contract term. With this repetitive cycle of equipment
replacement, we ensure that all equipment remains in reliable working order and is as
technologically advanced as possible.

Durable Medical Equipment

Every ambulance will be equipped with the required medical supplies, medications, bandages, splints,
airway and suction equipment, oxygen, disposable goods, and other necessary supplies as required by
the State of Tennessee and Blount County guidelines. Rural/Metro will also continue to be responsible
for maintaining sufficient quantities of goods and supplies to adequately stock and restock vehicles
without interruption of services. We currently stock a minimum two week supply of consumables to
ensure adequate supplies in the event of a disaster, unexpected demand, or supply shortages.

Rural/Metro stores additional supplies and equipment at a secure facility to allow for the restocking of
first line vehicles on a 24/7 basis. To keep the emergency medical responder units fully stocked and in
service, Rural/Metro will continue to provide “one-for-one” on-scene replacement of supplies used
in patient care.

Rural/Metro ambulances will carry medical equipment that is compatible with the fire department
equipment, including Physio-Control LIFEPAK 15 monitor/defibrillators. The LIFEPAK 15 monitors SpO,,
carbon monoxide, and met heboglobin, and includes a metronome to guide CPR compressions and
ventilations. It’s powered by a lithium-ion battery and has a SunVue display screen, enabling crews to
read the screen even in bright daylight. Data connectivity ensures the easy collection and transmission
of patient information for both the patient’s prehospital and hospital record.

Ambulances are equipped with a continuous positive airway pressure (CPAP) delivery system and an EZ
IO (intraosseous) driver and two penetrating needle devices.
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Describe the maintenance related and medical supply inventory record keeping system to be
employed by the proposer if awarded this contract.

Rural/Metro utilizes a customized inventory program for tracking medical supplies and durable
medical equipment. Consumable supplies are ordered as needed, once a week and on the minimum
two-week supply of inventory in the warehouse to accommodate excessive demand in the system.
Disposable supplies are tracked until they are placed into a bin to be issued. Durable medical
equipment such as AEDs and pulse oximeters are tracked by serial number.

Describe the medical supply and equipment distribution system to be employed by the proposer to
serve all emergency medical responder services and the proposer’s units.

Support Services Technician

Rural/Metro Blount County employs a part-time support services technician (SST) who is solely
responsible for the stocking and resupplying of the ambulances throughout Blount County. The SST is
also responsible for tracking inventory and submitting weekly inventory requests through
Rural/Metro’s Ariba online ordering software. Par values are identified and increases to equipment par
occurs with seasonality and during periods of high demand.

Emergency Medical Responder Resupply

Rural/Metro will continue to replace all applicable medication, medical supplies, disposable splinting
materials, and other disposables used by emergency medical responder personnel in the delivery of
patient care on a “one-for-one” basis on-scene and at no cost to the County or the emergency
medical responder agency. Should patient care prevent the on-scene replacement, we will
coordinate with the supply department to ensure replacement as soon as possible. This process for
supply management is fully compliant with the Medicare guidelines. Rural/Metro has been proactive
in supporting emergency medical responders in patient care needs and we will continue to work with
the emergency medical responder to make certain supply processes remain efficient.
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F. HUMAN RESOURCES

Describe the initial and ongoing personnel recruitment, screening, and orientation program to
be utilized by Contractor throughout the term of this contract.

Providing the communities we serve with skilled, caring, and patient-focused professionals is at the
core of our vision. Rural/Metro considers employees to be an investment, knowing that they are the
first encounter our patients have with our organization. It is our expectation that our staff share the
vision and values of Rural/Metro through the care of each patient they treat. We believe fully in each
and every employee and because of that we do not subcontract. We have only full-time dedicated field
staff assigned to each region.

For this reason, Rural/Metro utilizes detailed interview, screening, initial, and ongoing training
processes to ensure that our employees are best equipped to meet the industry’s highest standards.
Rural/Metro does not subcontract; we utilize only dedicated on-staff providers.

Candidates are invited to participate in a multi-phase screening and orientation process. The first
phase includes interpersonal interviews and for EMTs and paramedics, written and practical skills
testing. Qualified candidates then progress to the second phase, which consists of an all-inclusive
employment and background screening. The final phase includes a drug screen, and for field providers:
a physical capabilities test and medical screening. Successful candidates are scheduled for new-hire
orientation.

Orientation of Employees

All new employees attend a comprehensive New Employee Orientation Program (NEOP) program,
which includes an explanation of pay and benefits, benefits enroliment, rules and regulations, as well
as information regarding employment programs and opportunities. Orientation curriculums will be
pre-approved by Blount County. The NEOP includes the following information and training topics:

e Customer service

e Medical Professionalism

e Working relationships with first response agencies
e EMS System Overview

e Scheduling, uniforms, and payroll

e Standard operating procedures and operations overview
e Compliance training

e Human resources

e Ambulance and equipment orientation

e Stretcher training with obstacle course

e Fit Responder

e TB testing

e HEPA mask fit test

e Scene Safety and Excited Delirium
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e Advanced EKG for paramedics

e Paramedic Assist for EMTs

e Pharmacology Review

e Medical and Trauma knowledge review with dynamic scenarios
e Medicare, Medicaid, and HIPAA training

e Documentation

e Mapping

e OSHA

e Certified emergency vehicle operator training

The orientation program is designed to provide a clear understanding of the organization’s core values,
expectations, and commitment to excellence. The following bullets illustrate the myriad of topics that
are discussed with newly hired employees:

e Patient care techniques and standards (field personnel)
e An overview of organizational structure and chain of command
e Policies and procedures

e Customer service orientation

e An overview of benefits, resources, and programs

e Exposure control policies and procedures

e New employee documentation

e An explanation of unit staffing and stations

e Documentation

e Vehicle system, inspections, and operations

e Internal communications

e Telecommunications systems and procedures

e Safe operating techniques and expectations

After completing orientation, the new hire begins a clearance program with a field training officer. To
successfully clear the program, competency must be demonstrated in medical skills, mapping, regional
protocols, and customer service.

Required Certifications

Rural/Metro maintains that each employee should be held to the highest standard, including stringent
training requirements. All local, regional, state, and federal standards are followed and accompanied
by Rural/Metro’s own internal requirements. The following outlines the licenses, certifications, and
training required for Rural/Metro EMTs, paramedics, and mental health transport staff:

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Emergency Medical Technicians

e Current State Department of Health Provider Certification EMT

e Basic Life Support for Healthcare Providers (CPR) with AED

e National Incident Management System — ICS Levels 100, 200, 700 and
e OSHA — Mandated Workplace Safety Practices

e Coaching the Emergency Vehicle Operator (CEVO-3) Certification

e Valid State Driver’s License — F Endorsement

e Rural/Metro Corporate Integrity training

e HIPAA

Paramedics

e Current Department of Health Provider Certification — Paramedic

e Pre Hospital Trauma Life Support (PHTLS) or International Trauma Life Support (ITLS)
e National Incident Management System — ICS Levels 100, 200, and 700
e OSHA — Mandated Workplace Safety Practices

e Coaching the Emergency Vehicle Operator (CEVO- 3) Certification

e Basic Life Support for Healthcare Providers (CPR)

e Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS)

e Pediatric Advanced Life Support (PALS)

e Valid State Driver’s License — F Endorsement

e Rural/Metro Corporate Integrity training

e HIPAA

Describe the existing procedures and guidelines for Continuing Medical Education program(s)
and describe any additional training that would be provided or offered to the Proposer's
personnel.

Rural/Metro employs a comprehensive education program that extends to all EMS stakeholders —
from dispatch personnel to emergency medical responders, ambulance personnel and hospital staff.
Our extensive training and education program, which is tailored to meet the specific needs of Blount
County, includes new employee training, continuing education courses, and a Field Training Officer
program for pre/post accreditation paramedics.

The training and education curriculum is offered through four distinct, but complementary channels:
a traditional classroom setting, online education, in-service training, in addition to education through
field training and continuous quality improvement processes.
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EMT to Paramedic Field Training Program

Rural/Metro provides a Field Training Program for EMTs transitioning to the position of paramedic.
New paramedics are provided time with a field trainer prior to working as a paramedic in the EMS
system. Field trainers also mentor paramedics identified through the CQl process as needing specific
skills or procedure training. Field Training Officers are paramedics licensed in the State of Tennessee.

EMT to paramedic training encompasses the following:

e Professionalism

e Standard operating procedures
e Communications

e Documentation

e Infection control

e Protocol knowledge

e Equipment

e Basic life support

e Advanced life support

Continuing Education

Rural/Metro provides at least 24 hours per year of continuing education for paramedics and 12 hours
of continuing education for EMTs. The emergency medical responder agencies will be notified in
advance of class schedules and all educational opportunities are posted on our local website.

Continuing education courses include, but are not limited to:

e Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS)

e ACLS Renewal Basic Life Support (BLS) for Healthcare Provider (HCP) Renewal
e Certified Emergency Vehicle Operator (CEVO)3

e CPR for the HCP Renewal

e CEVO Renewal

e Pediatric Advanced Life Support (PALS)

e Prehospital Trauma Life Support (PHTLS)

Rural/Metro offers a tuition reimbursement program for full-time employees who have completed a
minimum of one year’s continuous service. Reimbursement is available for pre-approved,
successfully completed courses offered through an accredited academic educational institution or
certified training program.
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Online Education
The Rural/Metro Learning Center is a learning management system (LMS) that we use to create a

centralized, online training library that provides learners with easy, 24/7 access to a wide variety of
interactive online educational programs. Employees have a centralized portal to access their online
assignments with the ability to self-monitor progress and print transcripts. The LMS provides for the
administration, documentation, tracking, reporting, and delivery of electronic educational courses and

training programs. VRURAL/METRO

Rural/Metro Learning Center

The Rural/Metro Learning Center supports all
employees, interns, contractors, and temporary

workers at every location nationwide and in o
other countries. Employees are automatically : :

assigned training based on their job code
and/or their location. Local sub-administrators
have full control of their student population

(S ——
with the ability to create, upload, assign, and

report on any type of digital content.

Rural/Metro Learning Center features include:

e Customizable online training materials that can be developed using a wide variety of formats
e Comprehensive training library includes, but is not limited to:

Federal/State Compliance Training

HIPAA (Privacy & Security)

Harassment Prevention

OSHA

State EMS initiatives

0O O O O O

e Communication includes email announcements and ability to post news items enterprise-wide
or for individual locations

e Online testing and surveys

e Certificates that are awarded automatically once the employee successfully completes a
module

e Main administrators and local user group administrators can run detailed reports, on progress
and completion

e Live call center support for employees who need help accessing their Learning Center account.

e Detailed tracking for every employee’s progress

e Curriculum and certification management

e Detailed reporting

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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e Training record management

Rural/Metro is committed to maintaining a highly motivated, skilled, and prepared workforce. This
training program, coupled with others, ensures that our employees acquire the knowledge and tools

needed to provide quality service to our customers.

Describe compensation & benefits that will be offered to paramedics and EMTs, and if
applicable, dispatch personnel. Include minimum and maximum ranges of compensation using
years of experience as a basis for personnel types and the benefits offered.

Rural/Metro offers comprehensive and competitive benefit
plans designed to enhance the livelihood of our employees and
their families. Our commitment to employees is reflected in the
competitive compensation and fringe benefit plan we offer.
Annually, Rural/Metro conducts an analysis of salary
comparisons on a national and local level, measuring the cost of
living indices and salary differentials, to confirm our
compensation is competitive.

We remain committed to working cooperatively with our labor
partners to negotiate pertinent details to ensure employees are
satisfied with their compensation, benefits package, and
corporate policies.

Newly hired employees receive information regarding their
benefit eligibility, options, costs, and enrollment procedures in a
complete packet, which is distributed via mail upon
employment with Rural/Metro. Benefit information, including
summary plan descriptions, can be obtained on our website or
by calling an 800 number.

Compensation and Benefits

Health Insurance

Dental and Vision Coverage
Vacation and Sick Time
Bereavement and Leave of
Absence

Employee Assistance
Program

401k Savings Plan

Basic and Supplemental Life

Insurance
Short/Long-Term Disability
Annual Reviews and Merit
Increases

Rural/Metro’s current benefits structure assists our employees in achieving balance between the
demands of work and their personal lives. In turn, we are able to position Rural/Metro “at market” in

total compensation (i.e., base and benefits).

Rural/Metro Blount County wages are aggressive and competitive. Annual wage ranges are listed
below, with subsequent increase form the maximum based on years of experience and specialized

training.
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Annual Rates
Starting Ceiling

AEMT $33,280.00 $49,920.00
EMT- Paramedic $43,264.00 $59,904.00
CC Paramedic $46,592.00 $66,560.00
Support Svcs $20,800.00 $27,040.00
Dispatch $27,456.00 $36,608.00

Shift 5% above current wages

Commander

Describe the proposed shift assignments, the use of mandatory overtime, worker's rights,
promotion policies, and other job factors, which directly affect job satisfaction, performance,
attitude on the job, and rates of employee retention.

Rural/Metro is committed to creating an environment that promotes job satisfaction and prevents
provider fatigue. We utilize a variety of shifts with times that vary from day, night and midnight shifts.
Our advanced life support ALS 9-1-1 units work a rotating shift.

e For 12-hour shifts, they are on a 2-week rotation of days. They work every other weekend,
being Friday, Saturday and Sunday and then every other Monday/Tuesday or
Wednesday/Thursday. As a result, they work 7 of 14 days on a regular schedule, which includes
built-in overtime.

e For 24-hours shifts the personnel work 24 hours on and 48 hours off, that rotation continues
and is similar to the rotation worked by Alcoa and Maryville Fire departments.

e Blount County schedules as needed 8-hour and 10-hour shifts based on pre-scheduled call
demand, weather or other mitigating factors that would increase call volume for shorter
durations.

The ALS shifts are assigned by having our employees bid on the shift they would like to be scheduled.
Open shifts are posted for 7 days so that interested employees may bid on that shift when it becomes
vacant. Employees are required to submit a bid form indicating the shift on which they wish to place a
bid. All bids are awarded based on seniority through a point system according to how long the
employee has been employed full or part time.

In addition to the ALS operation, Rural/Metro has a competitive General Transport operation. New
EMTs are placed on these trucks when they are first hired on to gain patient care experience and to
familiarize themselves with the area and facility locations. These units transport patients to and from
dialysis, when discharged from the hospital to home, or to a nursing home or rehab facility, and also to
doctor’s appointments. These shifts also have varying times and durations based on the needs of the
market. Most of these shifts are Monday through Friday, but there are some on a rotating schedule for
some of our dialysis patients and facility discharges on the weekends. These shift durations vary
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anywhere from 8 to 14 hours long as these crews are typically busier than the stationed 9-1-1
ambulances.

Personnel retention

We believe it is critical to monitor retention and turnover information to understand trends and
proactively work to retain employees. In order to understand why employees leave we conduct an exit
interview to every employee that leaves the company, many of these interviews are in person, but all
employees are sent an exit survey electronically.

Please refer to Appendix 12 for Rural/Metro’s Policies and Procedures.

Describe how all employees contribute to achieving the organization's performance and learning
objectives, through the organization’s work design, and compensation and recognition
approaches.

Rural/Metro has a teamwork approach and understands that each and every position is vital to
accomplishing our patient care and customer service objectives. Employees have opportunities to
contribute to performance and learning objectives through:

e Continuing education programs

e Course evaluations

e Local and corporate surveys

o Meetings

e Participation in key committees

e Performance evaluations/feedback

Describe how the organization's education and training support the accomplishment of key
organization action plans and address organization needs, including building knowledge, skills,
and capabilities, and contributing to improved employee performance and development.

Rural/Metro infuses the education and training programs with not only the core values of the
company, but industry-specific knowledge that provides employees opportunities for individual
growth in the necessary skill sets required to meet the diverse needs of our customers. Efficient
training is essential for success and employees are required to complete a company orientation
which focuses on the history, capabilities, values, and objectives of our company.

We require some of the most advanced training requirements in the state of Tennessee. In addition
we have core AHA card classes scheduled throughout the year conducted in Blount County or in
other Rural/Metro operations. In addition, we widely communicate monthly events and training
opportunities offered by other agencies.

Rural/Metro Blount County and the associated EMS Board will offer trainings for all emergency
medical responders throughout the county. These will be at least quarterly and will assist to meet the
state training requirements for each department or entity.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Functional Training and Development

We believe employee training is a multi-faceted and continuous process of development.
Rural/Metro provides a variety of classes, resources, and materials to assist its management improve
skills in team building, motivation, creative problem-solving, and situational leadership. Current
employees receive training and certification in areas critical to their development.

Describe how the organization maintains a work environment and work climate that supports
the well-being, satisfaction, and motivation of employees.

Work conditions, growth opportunities, competitive compensation and benefits packages, shift
schedule options and management attitude all affect employee job satisfaction, retention and,
ultimately, patient care. Attracting qualified EMTs and promoting their job satisfaction and retention is,
therefore, one of our top priorities. Rural/Metro strives to create a work environment conducive to
employee wellbeing through the following practices:

e Staff recognition, such as the Rural/Metro Team of the Month. Chosen by our Regional Director
Manager, the Team of the Month is recognized for service that goes above and beyond our
already high standards.

e Team-building events, such as cookouts for the employees and their families, these usually take
place in the fall and spring, and holiday events. In Blount County this happens regularly with
team members cooking in the station.

e Employee breakfasts, where the management team comes in and cooks a country breakfast for
crews coming off and going on shift.

e EMS Week, which honors the EMS field providers for their difficult and life-saving work.
Employees receive t-shirts, thermos cups, and cookouts for all the shifts.

e Generous vacation time, Rural/Metro has a generous vacation bank for employees, quite
frequently staff do not use all of their vacation by the end of the year but we encourage the use
and planning of time-off throughout the year to ensure a balanced life.

The information covered in Risk Management is also critical to our Human Resource initiatives and daily
operations. In our efforts to reduce waste, please include that section as part of this current section.
Please refer to the information in page 93, covering company initiatives in risk management, risk
prevention and communication to internal staff

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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G. COMMUNICATIONS

Discuss how the proposer will implement a single point dispatching system which would include
deployment of emergency medical responders and ancillary services.

Rural/Metro’s management team agrees that it is in the best interest of Blount County to have a
single point dispatch center. Rural/Metro is eager to relocate to the E-9-1-1 center and cohabitate
with all Blount County public safety dispatchers. Rural/Metro has done a cost analysis and identified
the move will cost approximately $125,000; we have already set aside the funds required to move in
to the E-9-1-1 center.

Rural/Metro is in process of implementing a new CAD system and has conducted training and the
build out of this CAD which started in 2013. This investment equated to approximately 3.5 million
dollars across East Tennessee. It will be placed in service early Spring 2015. In addition, Rural/Metro
has purchased an interface in order to communicate directly with Blount County’s current CAD.

Rural/Metro currently dispatches the Blount County Rescue Squad (BCRS).
The R/M Rural/Metro has developed a relationship with BCRS and wishes to continue
Difference to serve as their dispatch provider. Rural/Metro will offer 24/7 staffing with
Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD) personnel, utilizing the Association of
Public Safety Communication Officials (APCO) Emergency Medical Dispatch
Guidelines, will dispatch the appropriate vehicles to the request for assistance by 9-1-1 callers.

Rural/Metro will gladly assume other responsibilities within the BCECD to include dispatching other
entities, providing EMD training to dispatchers in the center and assisting as needed.

Describe in detail how the proposer plans for interaction with the current BCECD.

Rural/Metro will build cohesive relationships with the Blount County Emergency Communications
District. We are accustomed to and believe in the importance of ensuring all communications
personnel are in the same center. We currently house in the Blount County E 9-1-1 center and have
exceptional relationships with the Blount County personnel.

We remain committed to ensuring strong working relationships with BCECD and we propose an
annual $30,000 fee to BCECD to house our EMD dispatchers in the communications center. In
addition, we offer to continue to dispatch the Blount County Rescue squad and will offer EMD classes
and EMD recertification to all BCECD personnel if they wish to include that in their certifications.

Describe in detail the automated dispatching aids proposed for installation by the Contractor in the
BCECD, if applicable.

Rural/Metro will utilize the Intergraph CAD and AVL to monitor all vehicular movements. Rural/Metro
understands that we are required to license emergency radio UHF Med frequencies. We will remain
responsible for the cost and maintenance of all radio equipment, and will continue to communicate all
vehicle movements for call received by the 9-1-1 Center. Rural/Metro will also continue to process
requests for emergency medical care made directly to the agency using APCO EMD. In addition,

VRURAL/METRO ‘0’ March 6, 201568

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!

Printed on Recycled Paper



Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

Rural/Metro owns VHF radio frequencies as required by the State of Tennessee Communication plan.
Rural/Metro will provide portable800 trucking radios for crew members assigned during their shift.

The Intergraph/Computer Aided Dispatch (I/CAD) combines sophisticated call taking/dispatching
functionality with interactive mapping using one interface, one operating system, one database, and
one hardware platform. The I/CAD System has the distinction of being the first CAD system to offer
integrated mapping to assist public safety operators in providing the most efficient and effective
response to calls. When the operator performs an operation, such as address verification or a unit
status change, the map display and dispatch form responses are completely synchronized. Call takers
and dispatchers do not have to tolerate delays while the map display refreshes.

In addition to synchronizing mapping with forms-based dispatching, the I/CAD System incorporates
enhanced features, including duplicate call tracking, location verification, and automatic data display
from Enhanced 9-1-1 (E-9-1-1). These capabilities represent important county timesaving features
that ensure that information transmitted to the field units is accurate and complete.

Other important features of the Intergraph CAD System include the following:

e Customizable screen forms and event types can be applied on an agency-by-agency basis; an
individual operator can personalize the status and pending event monitor display (custom sort
capability)

e Multiple deployment strategies, rosters, and lineups can be implemented, maintained, and
applied

e Events can be transferred to other agencies.

e Calls for Service can be “stacked,” allowing operators to handle higher priority events first

e External database query capability (including automatic queries initiated through field events)

e Location histories, hazard information, notes, and other data can be maintained and recalled.
Building floor plans can be retrieved and shown on the map

e Road closures or impedances are mapped, and units are automatically routed around them
appropriately

e Fire hydrants; utility poles; and gas, water, and sewer line locations can be displayed

e Unverified addresses can be overridden, and a report of overridden addresses can be generated
for map maintenance

e Calls can be scheduled for a specific unit, an appointed time, or both

e Units and events can be transferred between dispatchers

e Units can be recommended based on location and call type, and closest unit recommendation is
based on the true street network, not an “as-the-crow-flies” algorithm
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Integrated Mapping

The I/CAD map display functions as an integral part of the solution providing visual identification of
each event location and visual confirmation of commonplace names, hazards, and road barriers.
Incidents and agency vehicles are also visually represented using various icons and colors, and the map
is continually updated as event and unit information is updated throughout the system.

Furthermore, the I/CAD map places no technical limitation on the amount of information that can be
displayed. In addition to streets and highways, Intergraph’s solution allows the map to display building
footprints, HazMat flags (hazardous information), fire hydrants, power lines, rivers, lakes, railroad lines,
and a variety of other types of data, such as aerial photography, as collected and stored in the map by
the City. These intelligent maps are not just pictures on a screen, but they possess inherent
intelligence, linking features to extensive database records for immediate data recall and allowing the
operator to query the system by pointing and clicking on symbols on the maps. Using the street
network, the system can route units to locations by the shortest time, shortest distance, fewest turns
or intersections, and minimum risk involved. When a dispatcher has closed a street, the system can
also route units around the closure.

Dispatchers can easily understand the real-time color display of streets, units, status, event markers,
and stations on the map screen. Building floor plans can be retrieved and shown on the map; locations
of fire hydrants; utility poles; and gas, water, and sewer lines can be displayed.

Dispatchers can zoom in on views, window certain areas, attach related graphic files to expand their
informational base, turn different map layers on and off to control the amount of data shown, and
query the database about map symbols. Rural/Metro may even choose to display multiple map views.
The mapping component of the system is not a link to a GIS, rather its capability, speed, intelligence,
and integration into I/CAD is purposefully designed as an integral part of the I/CAD System. Because
these elements are fully integrated, the system requires a single database for both the geofile and
map. Rural/Metro will not have to maintain separate databases.

The map display interacts with the information-entry dialog box so that all available information
received for service calls is accessible and visible to the operator, assisting the decision-making
process. Rural/Metro dispatchers can dispatch services more effectively, monitor units and events, and
control the operations of all emergency service vehicles. Because visual information is so easily
assimilated, operators can make decisions in routine and emergency situations quickly, accurately, and
with confidence, knowing that they have the best

information available. With integrated AVL capabilities, the

With integrated automatic vehicle location (AVL) vehicles are tracked on the fully integrated

capabilities, the vehicles are tracked on the fully integrated map
map. This system operates on a dedicated Rural/Metro-
owned and operated UHF radio frequency data system with
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multiple repeater towers throughout the area. The system is specifically designed for coverage of the
Blount County service area, and is far superior to commercially available wireless systems due to the
high level of reliability and durability. In fact, the system has been in service since 1997 without a single
system failure. Furthermore, with the implementation of mobile data units in the vehicle, the position
and status of the vehicles can be updated on the map with colors that match units in the Unit/Event
Status dialog box.

Since the introduction of Intergraph’s map-based dispatch system in 1989, numerous other CAD
vendors have included an “interface” to a map as part of their system. However, Intergraph has gone
far beyond using the map as a graphic picture of an area; Intergraph provides an integrated and
intelligent map that is part of the system and the user interface. Changing a unit’s location or adding an
event, for example, automatically updates everyone’s map display to show the change. Many
commands may be issued from the menu, the map, or the keyboard. The map is also a source for
additional situation dependent information.

Mobile Data Computing System
The I/CAD System uses the |/Mobile Data Terminal (I/MDT) interface to both send and receive

messages from the dispatch environment and to support a message switch functionality. By
implementing a combination of the I/MDT interface with the Intergraph Mobile for Public Safety (MPS)
application loaded to mobile data computers (MDCs), officers in the field can review and update event,
unit, personnel, and equipment information maintained in the I/CAD System.

In addition to the message switch functionality associated with I/MDT, Intergraph embeds a message
switch as part of the proposed external query interfaces. The I/Informer product provides a
sophisticated integration with the I/CAD System and Mobile for Public Safety, allowing it to isolate the
external systems integration at the application and protocol layers into the implementation of
component objects developed per project requirements. Through this architecture, the system can
achieve the following:

Provide forms and operations at the mobile workstation through Mobile for Public Safety for a subset
of I/CAD operations. In Intergraph’s experience, even with a mobile data implementation, there are
situations where the dispatcher may need to perform actions on behalf of the EMS crew (for example,
the crew is out of the vehicle or the mobile workstation is out of service); and isolate the interface
integration layer to minimize the impact when installing new software versions.

In this way, Intergraph replaces the conventional message switch with a modular set of products, such
as |/MDT and I/Informer. Each of these products shares information through a common set of message
gueues that provide the persistent “Store-and-Forward” aspect of message switches. The external
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system integration protocol layer provides the protocol matching common to message switches with
the opportunity to perform integration with application level programming.

Mobile for Public Safety

Used in conjunction with the I/Mobile Data Terminal (I/MDT) interface software, Mobile for Public
Safety provides the graphical user interface (GUI) that supports communications between the mobile
user, the I/CAD System, and other mobile data terminals (MDTs). To this end, the combination of
I/MDT and Mobile for Public Safety extends the range of the I/CAD System, empowering remote
personnel with client access to information maintained in the I/CAD Database and to a subset of I/CAD
commands.

And, because the |/MDT and Mobile for Public Safety applications are specifically developed to work
within the I/CAD environment and are designed to use the data structure of the |/CAD Database, the
flow of data between the proposed mobile solution and the existing I/CAD System is seamless. Data
collected within the mobile environment populates identified tables and adheres to the same rules
governing data entry and as data entered via the I/Dispatcher application. This data model ensures
consistency and integrity between the communications center and the mobile client system. In fact,
from a data-modeling viewpoint the two systems are the same.

Operationally, Intergraph Mobile for Public Safety supports a subset of the functionality available in
the communications center. The Mobile for Public Safety user interface and command set are tailored
to the requirements of field personnel.

Please see Appendix 17, 22, 23 & 24 for more information and data spec sheets on communications
software and equipment.

Describe in detail any technologies or proposed methods that will be utilized by the proposer, if
awarded the contract, such as Automated Vehicle Location (AVL), with in-vehicle mapping and
navigation, voiceless dispatching, and driver performance monitors.

FirstWatch Online Compliance Utility

To enhance response-time performance monitoring for the Blount County, Rural/Metro has
implemented the FirstWatch Online Compliance Utility (OCU). This third-party, web-enabled
collaboration tool simplifies contract compliance management and exception/exemption reporting.
The FirstWatch OCU provides interactive queues with consistent views for both Blount County and
Rural/Metro, and allows for simple on-line review of late runs based on established rules. Importantly,
this tool provides system transparency via an independent third party.

The FirstWatch system provides late response analysis, supporting documentation and attachments,
and flexibility for staff input. Rural/Metro simply updates records with supporting information and
submits exception requests to Blount County. The County then has the ability to easily approve, deny
or request additional information from Rural/Metro. This tool facilitates transparency by allowing for
near real-time reviews of information, so users don’t have to wait until the end of the month to
perform compliance reporting. Late responses can be analyzed as events occur.
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H. BUSINESS RESULTS/PAST PERFORMANCE

Summarize current levels and trends in key measures and/or indicators of customer satisfaction
and dissatisfaction, including satisfaction relative to competitors. Address different customer
groups and market segments, as appropriate. Please list whom you consider to be customers.
How does your organization propose to monitor customer satisfaction? What customer
service data will you collect? What methods will be used for collection? How will the data be
used to improve customer satisfaction?

Rural/Metro has a history of exceptional business results and past performance. We are the only
ambulance service in Tennessee that has achieved the gold standard of certification from the
Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance Services (CAAS) out of 210 providers in the state.

Summarize the organization's current and/or proposed key financial and marketplace
performance results.

On December 31, 2013 (the “Emergence Date”), Rural/Metro Corporation, along with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Company”) emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. As of the Emergence
Date, the Company adopted fresh start accounting in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards
Codification 852 Reorganizations. The adoption of fresh start accounting results in the Company
becoming a new entity for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements on or after the Emergence Date will not be comparable to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements prior to that date.

List three (3) current ALS contracts (transport or other) and service areas, served within the last
five (5) years with population of 100,000 to 200,000. Include the name, address and phone number
of the contract manager or local regulator. If the service is no longer provided, explain why.
Updating information and charting it.
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Market/ Length of
population Contract
Tennessees Blount County 327 Court Street 4 years 911 Municipal
124,000 Maryville, TN. 37804
B865-273-5750
Florida Sumter County Leland Greek 5 years 911 Municipal
101,620 Deputy Chief
7375 Powell Road
Wildwood, FL.
352-689-4500
Georgia City of Sandy John McDonough 5 years 911 Municipal
Springs City Manager
100,000 770-730-5600
Mew York City of Fire Chief lohn Schrieber 4 years 911 Municipal
Rochester 30 Church Street
210,000 Rochester, NY. 14614
Mew York Syracuse Mayor Stephanie Miner 2 years 911 Municipal
144,000 City Hall, 233 East

Washington 5t.
Syracuse, NY 13202
315-448-8005

Document your organization's current estimated net worth and the form of the net worth (liquid
and non-liquid assets). Provide the most recent audited annual financial statements for the
proposer and dffiliated organizations.

Please review the consolidated 2013 financial statements located in Appendix 25 of the proposal. The
consolidated audited financial statement for the year ending December 31, 2014 will be available by
April 30,2015.

Document the estimated amount of working capital that will be committed to the startup of the
oontract if awarded. State the source of those funds and attach any endorsement documents if the
capital is borrowed.

As the current provider for the Blount County, we have personnel, ambulances, and equipment already
in place, as well as established programs, policies, and procedures to ensure there is no interruption of
service. The additional capital, based on our proposed enhancements, equates to 1.1 Million dollars of

new investments, by Rural/Metro, into Blount County EMS operations.

VRURAI./METRO ‘6’ March 6, 2015 |74

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!

Printed on Recycled Paper



Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

Document the amount of funding that will be dedicated to "Reserve for Contingencies", and
the full costing allocations for Risk Management, Insurance, Legal and Human Resource functions
for the startup of this contract, if awarded.

Amounts required to maintain necessary Reserves for Contingencies will be funded through current
operations, Rural/Metro’s $110M Revolving Credit Facility or a broad range of insurance policies, as
discussed below.

Rural/Metro Blount County 9-1-1 operations participates in the risk management services provided by
Rural/Metro, which carries a broad range of insurance policies, including workers’ compensation,
general/auto liability, property, professional and other lines of coverage in order to minimize the risk
of loss due to accident, injury, automobile and professional liability claims resulting from our
operations, and to comply with certain legal and contractual requirements.

Rural/Metro retains certain levels of exposure in its general/auto liability and workers’ compensation
programs and purchases coverage from third-party insurers for exposure in excess of those levels. In

addition to expensing premiums and other costs relating to excess coverage, Rural/Metro establishes
reserves for claims, both reported and incurred but not reported, on a gross basis.

Document the method of financing all startup and operational costs including but not limited to
the initial ambulance fleet and equipment required to begin operations,if the contract is awarded.

Rural/Metro has initiated significant capital investment in Blount County; we operate a fleet of 10
ambulances, with approximately 80 additional ambulances throughout East Tennessee in
neighboring Rural/Metro markets. Our fleet size will increase to 12 with ready reserves available for
rapid deployment. Our approximately 4 million dollar investment in CAD and supporting technology
has already been capitalized therefore, as the current 9-1-1 provider in Blount County, Rural/Metro
startup costs will include the clinical advancements such as PhysioControl Lucas Devices,
PhysioControl LIFEPAK 15 EKG monitors.

Rural/Metro Blount County will not delay the implementation of these advancements, and will start
operating them in March 2015.

Proposer shall disclose any and all funding, including in-kind funding/support and cost
allocations from existing services that will support the provision of ambulance services within
Blount County. This includes any funding from existing contracts.

In addition to fees from 9-1-1 emergency ambulance services Rural/Metro’s Blount County
operations currently receives revenues from non-emergency ambulance services, standby ambulance
services, our ambulance subscription plan.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Detail any and all federal, state, or local government regulatory investigations, findings, actions, or
complaints and their respective resolutions for the proposer's organization and daffiliated
organizations and key employees within the last ten (10) years.

In response to this matter, Rural/Metro’s confidential information related to government regulatory
investigations and findings from the past ten (10) years is located in Appendix 13.

Detail any litigation in which the proposer is involved or which is pending.

Rural/Metro is defending five (5) active litigation matters in the State of Tennessee. None of the
matters arose in Blount County.

Summarize your organization’s current and/or proposed operational performance objectives
that contribute to the achievement of key organization performance goals - customer
satisfaction, product and service quality, operational effectiveness, and financial/marketplace
performance.

Organizational goals, their supporting objectives and the metrics for each are described in detail in
“Strategic Planning”. The table below summarizes those goals, objectives, and key metrics.

Performance Area

Operational
Effectiveness

Goal
1)Maximum Use of

Resources

2)Effective Unit
Deployment

Objective

.25 or higher Unit-Hour Utilization

On scene arrival within 10 minutes, 90% of the
time

Clinical Quality
(Product and Service
Quality)

Delivery of fast, safe and
effective prehospital care
and patient transportation
in full compliance with all
applicable rules and
requirements

% Overall EMS compliance

% Arrive emergencies within 10 minutes

% Arrive scheduled non-emergencies at time of
request

% Arrive unscheduled non-emergencies within
60 minutes

% Cardiac arrest survival

% STEMI patients going to correct facility

% Stroke alerts called appropriately

% Trauma alert patients arrive hospital within
golden hour

Financial Strength
(Financial/Marketplace
Performance)

Optimal financial
performance

Cost per unit hour

Cost per capita

Cost per transport

% Change in annual cost per unit hour
Response time compliance fines

Customer Service
(Customer Satisfaction)

Exceed the expectations of
our patients, customers and
system partners

% 911 satisfaction (inquiry/complaints)

% Non-emergency customer satisfaction survey
data

% Ambulance Contract/EMS Coordinator key
contract requirements met

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Document any national, state or local quality management awards received by your
organization or key personnel. Describe any efforts that your organization will make to apply
for such awards in managing the Ambulance Services Agreement, if awarded the contract.

Rural/Metro strongly believes in recognizing caregivers and the excellent work we do to improve
patient outcomes, clinical care, organizational and employee performance. We apply for and submit
information for awards across the region, state and the nation. Our awards do not only address
clinical performance but also technological advancements and business performance recognition.

We guarantee that we will identify and nominate individuals throughout Blount County, for awards
as they are offered. We have nominated and sent several employees to the American Ambulance
Association Stars of Life Ceremony in Washington DC, where superior EMS providers are recognized
by our legislators in a public forum.

The following information identifies awards received at a national, regional, and local level.
Quality Management Awards
Rural/Metro Corporation

e 2011 Best Business Dashboard, IBIS

e 2012 Copper Anvil Award of Merit, Public Relations Society of America
Rural/Metro of Tennessee

e 2014 Region Il Service of the Year

e Tennessee Governor’s Quality Award

e 2014 Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance Services (CAAS)

e 2012 Automotive Service Excellence Blue Seal Award

e American Ambulance Association Service Excellence Award

Document any national, state or local EMS or ambulance industry awards received by your
organization or key personnel. Describe any efforts that your organization will make to apply
for such awards in managing the Ambulance Services Agreement, if awarded the contract.

Rural/Metro of Tennessee
e Partner Spotlight Award, 2012

e Annual Tennessee Emergency Medical Services for Children Star of Life

Blount County Awards
e 2012 Jonathan Rodgers received Paramedic of the Year

e 2011 Certificate of Appreciation United Way Hamburger Luncheon
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e 2011 Blount County/State of Tennessee Recognition for Exemplary Service
e 2009 Blount County Proclamation

e 2007 Blount County Heroes Award by Red Cross, received by Chris McLain, Clinical Manager

Document any programs, divisions, or operations that are accredited within your organization.
Describe any efforts that your organization will make to apply for such accreditation in
managing the Ambulance Services Agreement, if awarded the contract.

Rural/Metro Blount County is a CAAS accredited ambulances services operation.

Since 1997 Rural/Metro has been accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance Services
(CAAS). CAAS-accredited ambulance services must demonstrate compliance with the industry’s most
rigorous operational performance standards. Certification is voluntary and involves third-party review of
local operations and clinical processes, policies, and documentation, as well as on-site inspection by an
independent panel of industry experts. In essence, accreditation provides assurance that Rural/Metro
meets the ambulance industry’s highest clinical and operational standards. Rural/Metro’s Eastern
Tennessee operation is accredited by the Commission on the Accreditation of Ambulance Services
(CAAS), the industry’s leading accrediting body for ambulance services. CAAS accreditation provides
third-party verification by industry experts that Rural/Metro not only meets but exceeds the industry’s
highest operational standards, including compliance with all regulations and laws.

Achieving accreditation is a comprehensive process which includes the following:

e Reviewing agency and financial management
e Budgeting and strategic planning

e Relations with outside agencies

e Mutual aid and disaster coordination

e Community education and relations

e Human resources and personnel management

e Hiring
e Credentialing
e Training

e Problem resolution

e Performance evaluations

e Clinical Standards

e Quality Improvement

e Safe operations and risk management
e Vehicles, equipment, and facilities

e Communications/dispatch
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As an accredited agency, Rural/Metro has proven that we are a quality service provider as indicated by
our written and documented procedures, systems, and reports. We also have dedicated Medical
Director involvement in all matters that affect patient care, including: protocol development, vehicle
equipment, educational programs, training, Quality Improvement (Ql), and response-time standards.
The accreditation process requires Rural/Metro to look closely at every aspect of our operation and to
demonstrate through our policies and record keeping that we truly provide the quality that is expected
by our partners and the industry.

Benefits of Accreditation
Our accreditation communicates to area residents and our partners the peace of mind that comes
from the knowledge that their ambulance provider:

e Meets the highest national standards for the medical transportation industry -standards that
often exceed those of local and state EMS regulatory bodies.

e Delivers first-rate patient care through properly trained and credentialed personnel and
meticulously stocked and maintained ambulances and equipment.

e Provides detailed record-keeping and analysis that ensures that we continue to meet the Blount
County’s local emergency response plan.

e Has in place extensive mutual-aid agreements, ensuring that we are always ready to take an
active role in any disaster or large-scale incident.

e |s committed to partnering with the community and local health care system to provide
comprehensive prevention and safety education programs.

e Last, but not least, guarantees consistent QI processes throughout all operational levels.

e Ultimately, CAAS accreditation is recognized as the gold standard in the prehospital community.
It truly helps Rural/Metro operations determine what we are doing right, what our weaknesses
may be, and how we can improve our operations and patient care.

Please describe any related proposed services which may or may not be considered by Blount
County for inclusion in the Ambulance Service Agreement.

Related Proposed Services

Rural/Metro proposes to continue providing the following related services:

Fire/Rescue Responses

Rural/Metro Blount County proposes to credential and provide equipment to our fire and rescue
partners to respond as part of an inclusive Pre-Hospital Healthcare System. Responses will be Basic Life
Support (BLS), Advanced Life Support (ALS) and Emergency Medical Responder (EMR). Rural/Metro will
provide quarterly training for all response agencies, rotating throughout the county and will focus
efforts on upgrading EMR responders that wish to be BLS and BLS responders that wish to be ALS.

As part of the pre-hospital healthcare system, Rural/Metro proposes to place PhysioControl Lucas 2
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Devices in locations throughout the county to assist responders in providing
adequate CPR during a Cardiac Arrest. In addition, Rural/Metro provides other

The R/M resources currently such as PhysioControl LIFEPAK 12 monitors in Seymour
Difference Volunteer Fire Department.

Mobile Healthcare - Paramedic Response

Rural/Metro Blount County proposes a 40 hour per week community
response that will serve to meet the " .
The R/M chaiging healthcare environment. The The IHI Triple Aim
Difference Institute for Healthcare Improvement Population Health
(IHI) recommends that healthcare

providers pursue three dimensions

simultaneously. These are referred to as the “Triple Aim”?

e Improving the patient experience of care (including quality
and satisfaction);

e Improving the health of populations; and

e Reducing the per capita cost of health care

Experience of Care Per Capita Cost

Rural/Metro in Blount County is committed to healthcare throughout our communities, which does
not end when we transport to an emergency room. Our mobile community response will be a
dedicated responder that will work to meet the following objectives:

e Reduce hospital readmission rates in conjunction with Blount Memorial Hospital

e Respond to frequent users of 9-1-1

e Work to educate citizens and communities about healthier choices, use of primary care
physicians and medication administration.

General Transport Services

Rural/Metro will continue to provide non-emergency transportation by its General Transport units.
We propose that these units also meet agreed upon response time criteria to be developed in
conjunction with Blount Memorial Hospital and reported to Blount County’s ambulance contract
administrator. This assures our responsiveness to all health care entities and will improve
throughput at Blount Memorial Hospital.

® http://www.ihi.org/Engage/Initiatives/TripleAim/pages/default.aspx

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Mental Health Transport

Rural/Metro proposes to provide a solution to the mental health transports
which consume significant time and resources from Blount County Sherriff’s

The R/M department. A specialized vehicle which is built to protect the driver and
Difference passenger will be staffed during agreed upon, high need, hours. The charges
for the mental health transport unit are listed in section 6.6 Rates and
Charges, page 102.

Disaster Response Capability

Rural/Metro will continue to maintain its capacity for disaster response to
Blount County with additional Rural/Metro resources from existing East

The R/M Tennessee ambulance operations in neighboring Knox County and beyond.
Difference Rural/Metro has 700 employees and a fleet of over 90 vehicles that will
provide support and back-up to Blount County at a moment’s notice. In
addition, Rural/Metro is vast and can bring in numerous human and other
resources in the event of a catastrophe in the area.

Special Event Coverage

Rural/Metro Blount County will continue to provide, at low or no cost, standbys for all high school
football and playoff games. Rural/Metro attends and will continue to attend community events
providing low or no cost standby services. The sample of the events that Rural/Metro proudly supports
includes:

e Alcoa Easter Extravaganza

e Special Olympics, Heritage High School

e Heritage High School Mass Casualty Exercise
e Townsend Community Safety Day

e Fireworks standbys during 4™ of July

e Family Health Fair — Everett Park

e City of Friendsville Fun Day

e Foothills Fall Festival

e Ellijoy Christmas Parade

Other events that we are proud to provide standby services include:

e Boys and Girls Club

e Smoky Mountain Speedway

e Tommy Hatcher Golf Tournament

e Midland Plaza Fall arts & Crafts Festival
e Maryville College
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I. CLINICAL SERVICES

Rural/Metro shares Blount County’s goals for providing a reliable, clinically sophisticated system that
achieves contemporary benchmarks of clinical excellence while minimizing the potential for equipment
failure or human error. Our continuous quality improvement processes and process measures are
designed to promote enhanced clinical outcomes ensure this occurs in a sustainable fashion.

Rural/Metro is excited to offer Blount County innovative solutions to rural response, improved patient
outcomes, recording and reporting procedures as well as a unique, cutting-edge partnership with
Blount Memorial Hospital and all our partners in healthcare.

Mobile Healthcare Community Response

e Response to citizens that frequently call 9-1-1 and need further support or guidance in utilizing
non-urgent healthcare

e Readmission reduction program with Blount Memorial Hospital

e Education with communities on healthier lifestyles

e Follow-up appointments

LIFEPAK 15 - PhysioControl LIFEPAK® 15 monitors capable of:

e noninvasive and invasive monitoring

e waveform capnography

o 12 lead EKG capability

e defibrillation and transcutaneous pacing

e CPR Metronome that informs the rescuers when to ventilate the patient

e synchronized cardioversion

e monitor oxygen saturation

e (CO2 output for intubation

e blood pressure monitoring

o Medical crews will transmit EKGs to receiving hospitals wirelessly which is performed now in
Blount County with LIFEPAK 12 monitors, which will be redeployed to first response units.

Lucas 2 Chest Compression Device
e Performs 100 compressions per minute at a depth of 2”

e Minimal interruption to patient care
e Easyto apply and frees up EMT for other treatment
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First Watch real time biosurveillance and Online Compliance Utility (OCU)
e Monitor and analyze dispatch calls for signs of an epidemic and alerts
e Third party contract compliance management

Stryker Stair Chair Model 6250

e Blount County Rural/Metro currently deploys these devices and will have them deployed on
every ambulance in Blount County.

e Upon clinical review, our providers favor these devices to the Stryker Power Pro stretchers and
our goal is to ensure our providers have the tools they need to meet the needs of the
community.

e CPAP Generator, Circuit W/Mask Port 02-Vent

e King Vision Video Laryngoscope

e EZ-10 Intraosseous Infusion System

As discussed throughout this proposal Rural/Metro Blount County is committed to system wide quality
enhancements. The following further outlines our Continuous Quality Improvement process which acts
as the eyes and ears of the Medical Director, the General Manager and the Contract Administrator.

Essentially, this program communicates where we have been, where we are, where we need to go and
how to get there. Our experienced Medical Director and designated Quality Manager are highly
experienced at translating clinical quality review findings into priorities for improvement, decisions for
resource allocation and opportunities for innovation. We achieve these goals by:

1. Integrating continuous quality improvement (CQl) activities into the operation to such an extent
that those practices become an essential and seamless part of EMS routines;

2. Acknowledging that most performance deficiencies are related to a system problem or an
educational need, and addressing those issues; and

3. Providing effective continuing education that’s coordinated with and driven by the CQl process.

Quality patient care is a team effort, beginning with the initial call for assistance and ending with patient
discharge from the hospital or emergency department. It includes professional, compassionate concern
for patients as well as their families and significant others. Rural/Metro is dedicated to being part of this
team effort and working cooperatively with the fire agencies and local hospitals to deliver the best
possible care to all those attended in the County.
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The following graphic depicts six key principles of our clinical excellence methodology:

Vertical Expertise
Rural/Metro possesses extensive
industry knowledge and utilizes
best practices to provide high
quality services to customers and
patients across the nation.

Quality Improvement/Assurance
Rural/Metro continuously provides
educational training and implements
procedural measures to improve current
services and industry knowledge.

Patient Care Data Trending
Patient care data is analyzed and
captured in our system to identify
and measure trends in medical
care and transportation.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Best Practices
Through our Quality Improvement
initiatives, we are able to
distinguish and implement
procedures with exceptional
results into company standards.

STEMI Protocols
Rural/Metro’s protocols for vascular care
are standardized and integrated after the

model provided by the American Heart
Association.

Specialized Training
Unique program invested in special
training techniques and resources
to provide comprehensive, tactical

training courses to EMTs,

paramedics, and fire personnel.

This commitment is further supported with advanced technology to transmit data to receiving
hospitals while patients are en route thereby streamlining the communication process. Rural/Metro is
actively addressing the most urgent public health emergencies in America. We are dedicated to
bringing the highest levels of prehospital clinical care to the communities we serve — making a
measurable difference in improved patient outcomes.

Clinical Excellence is comprised of a variety of essential components that are necessary to achieve the
high quality standards Rural/Metro has established. The combination of our continuous improvement
initiatives, professional training programs for our employees, utilization of best practices, and patient
care data trending allow for our program to be the most clinically advanced and emulated in the

nation.

Mobile Healthcare - Paramedic Response
As discussed in the strategic section of this document, Rural/Metro in Blount County proposes a
full-time community response that will serve to meet the changing healthcare environment.

Rural/Metro in Blount County is committed to healthcare throughout our communities, which does
not end when we transport to an emergency room. Our mobile community response will be a

dedicated responder that will work to meet the following objectives:

VRURAL/METRO
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e Reduce hospital readmission rates in conjunction with Blount Memorial Hospital

e Respond to frequent users of 9-1-1

e Work to educate citizens and communities about healthier choices, use of primary care
physicians and medication administration.

Please see more about this initiative in section H. Business Results/Past Performance

Continuing Quality Improvement (CQl) Program

Rural/Metro’s Continuing Quality Improvement (CQl) Department, provides ongoing education by
placing equal emphasis on correcting behavior and recognizing success, regardless of the protocol or
procedure.

We strive to correct and improve quality issues and recognize quality care. Our Continuous Quality
Improvement (CQI) philosophy is to ensure continuous clinical scrutiny and promote development
initiatives in an effort to maintain or enhance the standard of care given to our patients. This is
accomplished through the process of electronic Patient Care Record (ePCR) review, trending
assessment and education. Procedures are in place in the event of documentation errors, protocol
violations, improper skills procedure, and deviations in the standard of care as outlined by the State
Department of Health Bureau of Emergency Services and Rural/Metro Corporation policy. A Clinical
Action Plan (CAP) is created to minimize the risk of recurrence by providing documented remedial
intervention.

STEMI Stroke Protocols
This is a reflection of increased quality in clinical care, closer monitoring of STEMI cases, and a growing
collaboration with area cardiac cath labs.

The American Heart Association (AHA) standard for STEMI care is 90 minutes from the time a patient
enters a hospital to the time a cath procedure is completed. The ability of Rural/Metro’s paramedics to
diagnose a STEMI on-site and transmit a 12-lead EKG (via fax or smartphone) to a cardiologist, allowing
a cardiology team to mobilize and the patient to bypass the ER, has had a tremendous impact on
outcomes. Rural/Metro’s average time for STEMI patients, from 9-1-1-call to completion of the cardiac
cath procedure is 78 minutes, far exceeding the AHA’s national standard.

This STEMI Stroke protocols and additional ongoing education through the CQl Department has raised
awareness and motivated crews to actively review these cases. In addition, each crew transporting a
STEMI patient is permitted to remain at the cath lab for the procedure and review the case, offering an
additional learning opportunity.

Best Practices in STEMI, SCA, and Stroke Care
As discussed previously with respect to research, Rural/Metro is at the forefront of an innovative pilot
of national pre-hospital clinical standards for Sudden Cardiac Arrest (SCA), ST-Elevated Myocardial
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Infarction (STEMI), and stroke. This first-of-its-kind program will track each of these three types of
cases nationwide offering data to enhance training and ultimately improve patient outcomes. This new
program raises the level of cooperation between hospital and pre-hospital providers utilizing proven,
tested and consistently high-level clinical protocols that allow patients to be transitioned to emergency
department teams with better chances for positive results.

EMS is a dynamic industry that requires agility and adaptation. Rural/Metro is constantly developing
new systems, programs, and educational opportunities as well as investing in the necessary resources
to raise the level of patient care. Dedicating resources to exclusively serve our hospital partners,
establishing our own EMT Academy in order to recruit the very best to care for the residents of our
communities and investing in specialty training and equipment are just a few of the other ways in
which Rural/Metro strives to set a higher standard.

Patient Care Data Trending

Rural/Metro consistently analyzes patient care data and captures the information within our system.
This allows our teams to strategically identify and measure trends in care. The information is then
incorporated into educational training courses provided to the EMTs and paramedics ensuring that
specialized, quality care will be provided to all of our patients.

Professional Training

Rural/Metro offers a comprehensive education and training program that incorporates the needs of all
stakeholders—from dispatch personnel to the emergency medical responders to ambulance personnel
and hospital staff. Tailored to meet specific requirements, our comprehensive training and education
programs are integral to and driven by the Clinical Quality Improvement process. The Training
Department ensures our providers are well trained and fully prepared to handle the wide variety of
medical emergencies they encounter in the field. Beyond assuring clinical competence, our initial and
ongoing continuing education programs prepare our employees to be members of a collaborative
team, orienting staff to the EMS system and providing specific instruction regarding ambulance crews’
role in the system and how to work seamlessly alongside our colleagues, as well as personnel from
other agencies.

Our training and education curriculum is provided through four distinct but complementary channels:
traditional classroom training, online education, in-service training, and one-on-one education through
the field training and Continuous Quality Improvement processes. Ample in-house and 24/7
educational opportunities ensure that our field personnel receive the required continuing education to
maintain their certifications and continually upgrade their skills.

There are certain “core quality principles” Rural/Metro’s Clinical Quality Team follows to maintain an
unparalleled clinical program in Blount County.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Principle 1: Establishing Goals, Standards & Policies

Establishing clear goals, standards, policies and protocols that comply with national, state, regional and
local regulations proves key to success. These standards serve as guidelines to provide EMS
accountability and transparency. Support from all involved agencies for quality practices is achieved
through clearly communicated standards and protocols. Since consensus among the various agencies is
essential to the development and enforcement of standards, the Rural/Metro Clinical Quality Team
works with the County, hospitals and emergency medical responder agencies to implement all
standards related to quality improvement. Following are the types of standards that are utilized,
including a few examples:

e Patient Care Protocol Standards — Compatibility with existing agency protocols, protocol
adherence

e Time Standards — Fractile response times, scene times

e Procedural Standards — Individual and collective success rates for establishing definitive airway
control, IV access

e Equipment Standards — Compatibility and reliability of durable medical equipment

e Field Performance Standards — Cardiac Arrest data and success rates, STEMI, Stroke

e Educational Standards — Total and type of continuing education units per year that satisfy State
of Tennessee requirements and fulfill any needs identified through the CQl process.

Principle 2: Benchmarking

Benchmarking is the practice of setting operating targets for a particular function by selecting the top
performance levels. In a broader sense, benchmarking involves searching for new ideas and best
practices for the improvement of processes, products and services. Rural/Metro believes that
benchmarking would prove futile if it didn’t involve Medical Director oversight and the service
providers’ involvement and commitment to the ideas.

Rural/Metro’s CQl professionals provide the County with the data and reports needed to determine
appropriate benchmarks for key drivers in the EMS service area.

Principle 3: Defining Success

There is little consensus in the literature as to what constitutes “quality” patient care. The most
commonly accepted definition of quality care is an increased rate of survival from a life- threatening
event. Other, broader patient health care results are also important and include a variety of changes in
the patient’s health status. Focusing on the “5Ds” helps Rural/Metro and its partners in the EMS system
examine the results of the care they render:

e Death: Did the patient survive to hospital discharge?
e Disability: Did the patient’s status improve due to care rendered?
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e Discomfort: Did the patient’s symptoms improve?

e Dissatisfaction: Was the patient satisfied with our service?

e Destitution: Was the treatment provided at a reasonable cost to the patient, the payer, and to
society as a whole?

Performing 100% chart review on defined “little used skills,” validates our training program, and our
CQl process drives our training program. Rural/Metro’s Clinical Quality Team continually searches for
ways to apply these broad measures as a guide when defining more easily measurable objectives and
performance indicators.

Principle 4: Measuring Results

Objectives are measurable statements that are consistent with the system’s key drivers, benchmarks
and standards. These objectives serve as performance indicators that yield patterns of performance
and trigger quality improvement projects. The Rural/Metro Clinical Quality Team, under the guidance of
Rural/Metro’s Medical Director, defines basic performance indicators after the benchmarks and
standards are determined. Performance indicators will evolve over time as Rural/Metro, the County
and/or other stakeholders identify additional indicators.

Rural/Metro constantly evaluates system performance and the level of care delivered by gathering
information from various components of the system. This data is tracked, trended, recorded and used
to evaluate the system against the defined performance quality indicators and patient outcomes.

Rural/Metro’s ZOLL RescueNet electronic patient care record (ePCR) system offers a unique opportunity
to provide rapid feedback to field personnel and allows for easy tracking of specific issues. Patient
Surveys along with other agency feedback are used to validate quality performance or indicate areas for
correction or improvement.

Principle 5: Identifying Improvement Opportunities

The primary focus of Rural/Metro’s CQl system is to ensure that field personnel provide the highest
guality patient care. They need to be assured that the system in which they work is supportive of this
goal. If desired, Rural/Metro will provide the emergency medical responder agencies with a unique
opportunity to participate in inter-agency CQl performance evaluations. We will then use these
evaluations to identify improvement opportunities and to plan continuing education programs that
meet the needs of Blount County’s EMS system.

We listen carefully when our system partners suggest clinical improvement opportunities. The Clinical
Quality Team solicits and receives feedback from field staff, the fire agencies, the hospitals or other
system stakeholders.
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In addition, an expanded CQl team comprised of EMTs and paramedics, emergency medical
responders, field supervisors and the Clinical Quality Team meets on a regular basis to identify new
and/or modified products and services or production/delivery processes. For example, the team might
identify the need for an improved piece of equipment, select and purchase brands to test in the field,
test the equipment in the field, meet again in committee to discuss the findings, and then create a plan
of action to deploy the equipment system-wide. Items deemed essential to patient care and safety
receive priority, and we inform the County of any critical new technology or innovations prior to
system-wide rollout.

Principle 6: Action Plans Involving All Stakeholders

When opportunities for improvement are identified through the CQl process, Rural/Metro uses a
variety of methods to enhance the system. All action plans respond to needs for system improvement
and education first. Rural/Metro’s Clinical Quality Team identifies opportunities to employ an
interagency approach to implementation of improvement plans. Cross-functional teams that include
other stakeholders are used whenever appropriate to address issues related to service delivery or
equipment.

The Ql program is reviewed on an ongoing basis, but a formal review occurs monthly, with
representatives from the County, the fire agencies, hospitals, and other system stakeholders invited to
participate. All action plans will include a method for evaluating the plan’s success.

VRURAL/METRO "" March 6, 201589

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!

Printed on Recycled Paper



Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

J. OPERATIONS

Operating Authority

Rural/Metro is fully licensed and insured to provide ambulance services in the State of Tennessee and
is an approved Medicaid/Medicare provider. Rural/Metro also holds a valid Narcotics License from the
Board of Pharmacy and the Drug Enforcement Agency through our Medical Directors that ensures the
ability of our paramedics to provide the highest level of analgesic care by administering the
appropriate and necessary medications to patients.

Operating Plan

Rural/Metro will work with the Fire Department EMS Manager and administration team to refine the
existing tactics and strategies in accessing, assessing, treating, moving, and appropriately discharging
those in need of medical care in Blount County. The agreed upon services will continually be improved
in order to enhance services and address the evolving challenges presented by a dynamic, growing
system.

Standard Capabilities

Rural/Metro’s core business is ambulance service and the delivery of high-quality care to patients and
communities. We respond to all emergency and non-emergency transports with unmatched
experience and efficiency.

Rural/Metro provides a wide spectrum of services, including:

e Advanced Life Support (ALS) ambulance service
o Innovative medical protocols developed in conjunction with our in-house medical
direction specific to the needs of the customers we serve
o Ventilator capable ambulances
o Experience in adult and pediatric critical care transports
o Multi-trauma and burn patients
e Basic Life Support (BLS) ambulance service
e Bariatric services
e Ventilator certified paramedics

Competitive Differentiators

Rural/Metro’s innovation is based in establishing collaborative EMS systems and value added solutions
to develop close and cohesive relationships with our partners in public safety, public health, and health
care. We view ourselves as a small, but critical piece of the larger continuum of patient care; one of our
objectives is to search for opportunities to create efficiencies and innovations that others often miss.

Rural/Metro’s initiatives add value, increase efficiencies, and deliver cost savings to our customers. We
have the people, processes, and systems in place to meet the evolving needs of our customers and the
strategic growth of our company.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Our initiatives include:

e A national clinical quality excellence program — quality improvements through standardizing
protocols, utilizing best practices, and sharing data. This initiative targets three key clinical
areas by tracking data points and current protocol standards:

o STEMI
o Stroke
o Cardiac Arrest

e Staffing our ambulances with paramedics in addition to EMTs guarantees the appropriate level
of care to all patients, provides staffing flexibility, and is extremely cost effective

e Electronic patient care data collection and reporting

o Provides the tools for strong clinical continuous quality improvement

o Improved patient care performance and satisfaction

o Reduced risk for Rural/Metro and our customers

o Fully integrated on the front-end with our computer aided dispatch systems and on the
back-end with our customer service systems

e In-house instructors provide training for first aid, automated external defibrillator (AED), and
cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR)

Clinical Excellence

Rural/Metro’s customized services, quality practices, and people generate innate value for our
customers that extend beyond the cost associated with doing business with us. The value Rural/Metro
brings to a partnership strengthens our customer’s organizational practices and increases the
competitive positioning of their services, while reducing costly errors and the time associated with
managing them. Our deep-rooted industry experience has shown that a service oriented provider with
extensive value and expertise will provide greater quality over time by utilizing innovative
transportation solutions and technology.

As a national leader in emergency medical transportation services, Rural/Metro's paramedics and
EMTs, have a unique opportunity to influence optimal clinical outcomes before patients arrive at the
hospital.

Our National Clinical Standards for STEMI, stroke, and cardiac arrest are strategically modeled after the
highest standards recommended by the American Heart Association and are aligned with CMS Core
Measures for vascular disease. We have standardized and integrated our protocols for vascular care
with the support of more than 50 physician medical directors who share our commitment to improving
patient outcomes. 100% of our emergency responders are trained to these standards, providing expert
clinical care to nearly 10,000 patients each year with symptoms of STEMI, stroke, and cardiac arrest.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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K. QUALITY MANAGEMENT

We strive to correct and improve quality issues and recognize quality care. Our Continuous Quality
Improvement (CQI) philosophy is to ensure continuous clinical scrutiny and promote development
initiatives in an effort to maintain or enhance the standard of care given to our patients. This is
accomplished through the process of electronic Patient Care Record (ePCR) review, trending
assessment and education. Procedures are in place in the event of documentation errors, protocol
violations, improper skills procedure, and deviations in the standard of care as outlined by the State
Department of Health Bureau of Emergency Services and Rural/Metro Corporation policy. A Clinical
Action Plan (CAP) is created to minimize the risk of recurrence by providing documented remedial
intervention.

Meeting Patient Needs and Satisfaction
Rural/Metro employs numerous methodologies for assessing and monitoring our effectiveness at
meeting the needs and desires of patients and other customers.

A critical step to assuring patient satisfaction is implementing a system that measures performance.
Our local management team monitors monthly key performance indicators related to customer
service. Key performance indicators include:

e Response time performance

e Monthly community education hours
e Customer service survey responses

e Total customer service inquiries

e Other indicators

Our management team will immediately get to the root cause of any issues that indicate improvement
is needed. The key performance indicators will be customized to meet your needs

In addition to promptly addressing any issues brought to our attention by our receiving hospitals via
the Customer Inquiry Resolution Process, Rural/Metro uses an “External CQl Process” to address
clinical issues. Our Training/CQl Supervisor and Business Development Representative will be in regular
communication with the hospitals. The Regional Director will also meet on a monthly basis with key
hospital clients to discuss on-time performance, clinical performance and any customer-service related
issues.

Ensuring patient and stakeholder satisfaction is integral to our system-wide continuous quality
improvement processes. Patient satisfaction reflects not only upon our performance, but our entire
system. Our goal is to ensure that every patient who uses our service leaves the experience feeling that
they or their loved ones were cared for in the best possible manner. Similarly, we work every day to
ensure our interactions with key stakeholders are positive and productive.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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L. RISK MANAGEMENT

In order to manage any type of business risk, Rural/Metro maintains a comprehensive corporate-wide
risk management and loss control program to ensure our business stability. The elements of this
program include, but are not limited to: prescreening of employees, extensive training programs, initial
and ongoing continuous learning courses, unsystematic internal audits, significant event investigations,
policy and procedures designed to prevent injury, avoid accidents, and reduce risk to individuals and
the organization.

Prescreening of Employees

Hiring the right employee reduces training and turnover costs, promotes exceptional patient care, and
reduces risk or losses to the organization. Rural/Metro prescreens all potential employees prior to
extending an offer of employment. Candidates with felony or certain misdemeanor convictions, as well
as those without the appropriate certifications/licensure, are eliminated during this screening process.

Prescreening includes:

e Background checks performed by the Risk Management Group includes:
o Chain of Custody forms
o Criminal background
o Registered sex offender
o Medicare fraud
e Drug Screening performed by Concentra and River Front

e State license/certification verification by Risk Management Group with physical inspection by
Human Resources

e A full driving record

e MLREMS search for Ql/QA issues

Any candidate who fails to pass any one of these screens is not considered for employment.

Event Investigations

Randomized and significant event investigations are integral to Rural/Metro’s Risk Management and
Loss Control Program, both on an individual and organization-wide level. In addition to
evaluating/mitigating the individual event, findings often translate into training program
enhancements or new policies/procedures designed to prevent recurrence. Investigations may be
clinical or administrative in nature. Areas of investigation include, but are not limited to:

FDA Reportable Events, Equipment Failures & Accidents

Rural/Metro technicians troubleshoot any equipment that’s returned to the Supply Department, ship
broken equipment out for repair, work with manufacturers to ensure regularly scheduled
maintenance is performed, and report all required FDA-reportable events.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Employee Health/Infection Control

Rural/Metro’s Human Resource Manager oversees our ®
Communicable Disease Exposure Program, which covers

airborne, droplet and blood-borne pathogens. The HR Manager C SHA
follows all local, State of Tennessee, National Fire Protection

Agency (NFPA) and OSHA protocols and remains apprised of all AAOND ANTT
local communicable disease issues that must be addressed to COMPLIANT
protect our workforce, Fire Department partners and patients.

The HR Manager also investigates and provides appropriate follow
up on employee injuries, including but not limited to: needle sticks, lifting injuries and communicable

disease exposures, and collects and maintains records of employee immunizations and health
screenings.

Work-Related Injuries/Exposures

All work-related injuries and infectious disease exposures are immediately reported to the on-duty
supervisor and, subsequently, the Human Resources Department for thorough reporting and
investigation. We work closely with an occupational injury and specialist and medical group to ensure
the highest quality care for our employees. Our Workers Compensation Third Party Administrator,
Gallagher Bassett, follows up and reviews each claim and treatment course, keeping Human Resources
updated.

Rural/Metro’s Human Resources Department follows a comprehensive reporting, treatment and follow-
up structure for all work-related injuries and exposures. In addition, our Human Resources Manager
follows up and reviews each claim and treatment course to proper handling from the medical providers.

Damage, Loss & Theft of Property (Non-Auto & Auto)

Employees who are involved in or discover any type of damage, loss or theft of property document the

occurrence on an Accident Report Form. This form is used as a starting point to document, investigation
and, when necessary, report a loss to Rural/Metro’s insurance carrier. Completed forms are maintained
in the employee’s personnel file and in the corporate Claims/Risk Management department.

Employees who cause or discover any type of damage, loss or theft of a vehicle document the loss on a
specific form. The employee and their supervisor also complete separate investigation report forms.
When appropriate, losses are reported to our insurance carrier. In addition, we have an internal
Accident Review Committee that considers the information provided on these forms in their
investigation. Copies are maintained in the employee’s personnel file and the Risk Manager’s office. All
auto accidents/incidents are recorded in a database used to maintain control of claims and to compile
data for insurance and training enhancement purposes.

VRURAL/METRO "" March 6, 201594

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!

Printed on Recycled Paper



Proposal for Emergency Medical Services to Blount County, TN

Disaster Preparedness

Rural/Metro has an internal multi-hazard disaster and multi-casualty response plan, which includes,
but is not limited to, triggers for activation, notifications, communications, staffing, vehicles,
equipment, and EMS surge supplies.

Rural/Metro will continue to cooperate with Blount County in rendering emergency assistance during a
disaster. This could include a declared emergency, or in a multi-casualty response as identified in the
multi-casualty or emergency/disaster response plan based upon the size and nature of an incident or
disaster.

Rural/Metro team members are trained in the Incident Disaster Preparedness Highlights
Command System (ICS) and comply with all

policies/procedures regarding ICS and multi-casualty, disaster, Established multi-hazard
homeland security, fire and hazardous materials events. disaster and multi-casualty

] o ] response plan
Our current relationship with the service area emergency

. . Field personnel trained in ICS
medical responders ensures seamless operations when crews
are required to transition from routine operations to respond 100,200 and 700, as well as
to unusual events. All field employees are required to have Blount County policies and
ICS 100, 200, and 700 training as well as yearly MCI START MCI START triage

triage training. Annual disaster

preparedness training to

In the event there is a disaster that could quickly tax the
number of units on the street, Rural/Metro has the ability to
call in additional units from other Rural/Metro operations.

coincide with MCI curriculum
Designated Disaster
Preparedness Specialist
These units can be utilized as support in a disaster to provide Committed to participation
relief to fatigued crews. Our infrastructure allows for the ease in all regional MCl/disaster,

of deployment and communication without any additional
work.

All Rural/Metro ambulances are equipped with triage tags. Employees are trained regarding the proper
use of the tags during a major medical or trauma related incident. In addition, all supervisor vehicles
are equipped with MCI kits.

Rural/Metro will continue to participate in all required tabletop drills and large-scale exercises, as well
as disaster planning and training programs. We realize the importance of ongoing training related to
disaster and multi-casualty incidents. Rural/Metro is dedicated to providing the necessary resources,
training, and equipment to the communities of Blount County to ensure readiness and optimal care is
provided during such an event.
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Suspected Civil Risk

Our corporate Risk manager investigates and tracks in a database all events that could result in a future
claim or litigation. At the national level, Rural/Metro has a Corporate National Risk Management Group
that provides the local operations with support on risk management issues. For instance, this group
developed and EMS Ergonomics Program, including our Back Safety and Injury Prevention training.

Lifting Technique Training

Rural/Metro provides a comprehensive Back Safety and Injury Prevention program as part of its New
Employee Orientation training and for all employees who return to work following an injury. This
program addresses the six major risk factors responsible for the majority of EMS-related injuries:
loading and unloading equipment, transferring patients to lifting or moving devices, transferring
patients on stairs, operating stretchers on uneven terrain, moving or transferring equipment, and
getting in and out of vehicles.

Hazard Reduction Training

We provide training and policies/procedures designed to reduce hazards to both patients and our
employees. In addition to the driver and lifting technique training, examples of Rural/Metro’s efforts to
reduce hazard exposure include, but are not limited to:

e Gurney-use policies, including
management of and equipment for
bariatric patients;

e Incident Command System (ICS) training;

e Incident reporting policies
and investigations;

e Personal Protective Equipment
(PPE) equipment, standards and
policies/procedures;

e Equipment and/or ambulance
failure policies/procedures;

e Harassment and professionalism policies;

e Station and ambulance security policies;

e Controlled-substance policies/procedures;

e Drug-free workplace policies; and

e Chemical and biological materials training and decontamination policies.

All of these risk mitigation efforts, along with the overall efforts of continued new business and
delivering exemplary services to our existing customers, ensures our long-term growth and success.
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Regulatory Compliance and Litigation

All services furnished by Rural/Metro will at all times be rendered in full compliance with all applicable
federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, including Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). Rural/Metro
understands its sole responsibility to determine which, and be fully familiar with all laws, rules and
regulations that apply to the services under the Agreement, and to maintain compliance with those
applicable standards at all times. Rural/Metro is committed to operate in accordance with the
provisions of any regulations or written guidelines established by the Medical Director.

In addition, Rural/Metro maintains an aggressive and comprehensive Corporate Compliance Program
to ensure its ongoing compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations regarding medical
transportation and billing. Rural/Metro’s Corporate Compliance Program is based, in part, on
complying with the guidance provided to the Ambulance Industry by the Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) for an effective compliance program. Rural/Metro’s Corporate Compliance Program was
developed in response to these elements and includes the following:

e HIPAA Privacy and Security policy

e Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

e Compliance Training Requirements

e Reporting and Investigating Issues of Noncompliance

e Reimbursement and Billing Guidelines

e Responding to Government Audits and Investigations

e Records Retention and Destruction

¢ Ineligible Persons

e Compliance with the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute

e Federal Payor Coverage Criteria, Documentation and Billing Requirements
e Internal Federal Payor Audit

e Overpayments and Credit Balances

e Compliance Legal Review and Approval

e Arrangements Review

e Records Retention

e Operation-specific policies, procedures and medical protocols

As an integral part of its Corporate Compliance Program, Rural/Metro employs a dedicated Compliance
Officer to ensure all of its operations remain compliant with applicable laws and regulations, and that
associated policies and procedures are properly updated, disseminated and communicated to staff.
Rural/Metro is committed to ensuring full compliance with all applicable regulations and laws
throughout the term of the Agreement with Blount County.
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M. TRAINING

Training Programs

Rural/Metro’s employees are highly trained emergency medical service providers in the industry. In
addition to a two week New Employee Orientation Program that encompasses every aspect of our
service and introduces new staff to the company’s policies, procedures, and programs, Rural/Metro
provides the industry’s strongest, most comprehensive continuing education program.

Our extensive training and continuous education programs are designed to ensure patient safety,
provider competence, and continue advanced skill enhancement. We provide annual CE courses for
the EMTs, paramedics, and ALS emergency medical responders in our service areas. Voluntary and
mandatory CE courses are offered monthly for all Rural/Metro employees. Customized training will
also be provided to all personnel that will be staffed for the Event Ambulance Service operations.

Rural/Metro strives to provide a quality education to our workforce, while also creating a personal and
rewarding experience for the EMTs and paramedics. Whenever possible, we try to customize programs
to meet local needs based upon clinical quality findings, industry trends, and community issues.

Safety Training

Rural/Metro offers a comprehensive education and training program that incorporates the needs of all
stakeholders—from dispatch personnel to the emergency medical responders to ambulance personnel
and hospital staff. Tailored to meet specific requirements, our comprehensive training and education
programs are integral to and driven by the Clinical Quality Improvement process. The Training
Department ensures our providers are well trained and fully prepared to handle the wide variety of
medical emergencies they encounter in the field. Beyond assuring clinical competence, our initial and
ongoing continuing education programs prepare our employees to be members of a collaborative
team, orienting staff to the county’s EMS system and providing specific instruction regarding
ambulance crews’ role in the system and how to work seamlessly alongside our colleagues, as well as
personnel from other agencies.

Our training and education curriculum is provided through four distinct but complementary channels:
traditional classroom training, online education, in-service training, and one-on-one education through
the field training and Continuous Quality Improvement processes. Ample in-house and 24/7
educational opportunities ensure that our field personnel receive the required continuing education to
maintain their certifications and continually upgrade their skills. We currently provide a minimum of 30
hours of continuous education courses every month and an additional 30 hours each month for AHA
ACLS, PAL, and BLS classes.

All employees attend a week-long New Employee Orientation Program (NEOP), which covers a wide
spectrum of topics: medical protocols, equipment, HIPAA, mapping, OSHA/safety, documentation, and
benefits.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Rural/Metro’s comprehensive training programs assists in preparing field providers for the wide variety
of medical calls they encounter on a daily basis.

Rural/Metro understands that training and educational requirements change from time to time for
EMTs, Paramedics, and Communications professionals as new protocols and medical treatments are
approved or revised. Rural/Metro agrees that the EMS Coordinator may require additional training or
education for EMTs and Paramedics for the benefit of patients receiving care and will work
cooperatively to identify targeted educational programs to benefit the entire EMS system. The cost of
such training or education shall be the sole responsibility of Rural/Metro.

Continuing education goes hand-in-hand with clinical excellence and our commitment to quality
patient care. Rural/Metro offers a vast variety of educational opportunities for current employees and
the emergency medical responders we partner with in the contracted area free of charge.

On average, Rural/Metro’s training department offers 70 hours of continuing education a month and
more than 800 hours in the last year. Classes include protocol updates, ACLS/PALS, EZ-10 training, 12-
lead interpretation, as well as protocol specific training based on the needs of the operation and the
result of our monthly QI reviews. All training classes are posted online and open to all EMS
professionals in this area.

Field Training and Continuing Education Programs

Rural/Metro will continue offering field training courses and continuing education programs for the
Blount County system. Rural/Metro’s Manager of Clinical Education Services and Field Training Officers
will work together to create relevant educational topics and establish sequencing to incorporate into
the existing training schedule. This team will evaluate feedback provided from the Medical Director,
field personnel, clinical performance monitoring data, and hospitals, other receiving facilities, and staff
inquiries to develop system enhancements.

Highly qualified professionals — including paramedics, nurses, physicians, other qualified health
professionals and our Fire Department partners — provide course instruction. All continuing education
courses offered will be pre-approved by the Medical Director and certified by the Department of
Health for continuing education credit.

Rural/Metro has built and maintains positive relationships with local hospitals to provide continuing
education courses for all levels of field personnel. Multi-discipline courses are taught by a combination
of paramedics, nurses, and physicians

Driver Training and Monitoring

Operating an ambulance poses a risk for our employees, patients, the public, and the organization.
Therefore, safe vehicle operation is one of Rural/Metro’s highest priority safety initiatives. Our
comprehensive driver training programs begins with a six hour, nationally recognized Certified
Emergency Vehicle Operator 3 (CEVO 3) driving training course from Coaching Systems.
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Required upon initial hire and mandatory for all employees who operate a company vehicle, this
program teaches students defensive driving skills. Rather than waiting for a situation to occur, CEVO
instructs employees to drive in a manner that avoids circumstances that cause accidents. Drivers learn
navigation skills for moving through traffic safely and instructors challenge participants to develop
solutions for varied circumstances. The course addresses a variety of topics, including: reversing the
vehicle, parking with caution, ambulance hydroplaning, nighttime driving, hospital approach, patient
drop off, tailgating, and mapping skills. Rural/Metro takes the CEVO training one step further by adding
modules that focus on intersections, as the majority of accidents involving ambulances occur in or near
roadway intersections. CEVO refresher course training is required on an annual basis.

In addition to CEVO, Rural/Metro’s complete 16 hour driver education course integrates mapping
training and cone/course skills assessments. The program also covers Rural/Metro’s accident reporting
and review process, as well as the DriveCam Event Recording System.

Upon completion of the Driver Training coursework and prior to operating an ambulance, new hires
are placed into a Field Training Program that includes objectives on area familiarization. Candidates
must successfully complete theses mapping objectives with a Field Training Officer prior to being
released for duty. Rural/Metro requires all employees to attend annual refresher training to ensure
continued competence, as well as reiterate our safety priorities and safe driving policies.

In-service Training Programs

Clinical excellence is the established standard for all Rural/Metro employees. Field clinicians and
Communications Center personnel are equipped with the knowledge base, exceptional technical skills,
and sound clinical decision-making skills required to deliver clinical excellence.

We are committed to the concept that pre-hospital care providers must actively participate in an
ongoing educational process to maintain high standards of clinical excellence. Consequently,
Rural/Metro provides for a rigorous and ambitious program of continuing education programs for all
field staff, including: managers, Field Training Officers (FTOs) and supervisors.

Rural/Metro actively participates in joint in-service training in conjunction with Blount County. This is
an extremely successful training approach to ensure all field providers are taught the same
methodology and practice together as a team.

Rural/Metro and Blount County Leadership will participate monthly in a joint protocol and case review
with the medical director’s group. Case review discussions continue the growth and development of all
field providers involved in clinical care. This meeting, which allows for team alighnment when providing
education and training to the field staff, is essential to the team atmosphere that is fostered between
Rural/Metro and Blount County.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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Health and Safety Programs

The health and safety of our employees is a cornerstone of the Rural/Metro organization. A safe and
hazard-free work environment is paramount to the organization's ability to carry out its mission.
Rural/Metro meets and/or exceeds all federal (OSHA), state and local standards, rules and regulations.

In meeting the requirements, Rural/Metro provides, or makes available to its employees, Hepatitis B
vaccinations, TB testing, trainingin the blood-borne and airborne pathogen exposure control plans, as
well as a comprehensive health and safety program, thatincludes the following programs (a complete
copy of Rural/Metro’s Safety Manualis available upon request):

e Drivertraining and safety programs

e Firesafetyand evacuation plans

e Injuryandillnessrecord keeping guidelines and posting requirements
e Patientliftingand moving safety program
e Hazard assessment plan

e Hazard communication plan

e Exposure control plan

e Exposure controlpolicies

e Hazardous materials safetytraining

e TB exposure control plan

e Respirator Plan

e Drug-freeworkplace plan

e Incident reporting program

To further safety and health in the workplace, the company utilizes a Health and Safety Advisory
Committee to study, evaluate and research currentinternal and industry-wide trends to further reduce
workplace hazards and provide important information to our employees concerning health and safety
issues athome and in the workplace.

Each employeeinjury,illness and vehicle collision is carefully reviewed toreduce both the frequency and
severity of theseincidents.

Handling of Biohazardous Waste

As an EMS provider, Rural/Metro has established policies and procedures for the proper handling and
appropriate disposal of biohazardous waste from our vehicles and from care sites. These policies meet
local, national, and OSHA requirements. Sharp containers, personal protective equipment, cleaning
supplies, and other materials are provided as required to limit exposure to communicable disease and
to promote staff and patient safety.

Our staff receives appropriate training and oversight regarding the proper handling of biohazardous
waste. All equipment is thoroughly disinfected before being placed back into service. Copies of our
policies related to the handling of biohazardous waste are available upon request.

People taking care of people...Together we can do anything!
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6.6 RATES AND CHARGES

Rural/Metro proposes the following retail rates as our usual and customary rates, which are set based
upon experience in the market. Institutional and government payors, such as Medicare, pay ambulance
providers far below these rates per the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) rate
schedules. Rural/Metro is required to accept the Medicare allowable payment for ambulance transport
services meeting the Medicare reimbursement criteria. The Rate Schedule, below, provides a complete
disclosure of all charges and fees associated with the delivery of ambulance services under this
agreement. We will not deviate or alter the established fee schedule without prior written
authorization from Blount County.

Rural/Metro is willing to maintain the current rates listed below for the two years of the contract. We
share the County’s goal of providing the most cost-effective emergency medical services possible, and
look forward to further discussion on how we can mutually achieve this objective. We will only request
a rate increase, as needed, and indicated by the contract.

Rural/Metro proposes to charge private entities $150.00 per hour for ALS ambulance standby services.

Rural/Metro Blount County proposes a simplified “bundle billing” methodology so that invoices to
customers are simple and easy to read and understand. There will be no other itemized service charges
for Blount County customers

BLOUNT COUNTY AMBULANCE BASE RATES

Description Base Charge Mileage
ALS 2 978.22 $11.44
ALS-E 767.60 $11.44

ALS-NE 662.79 $11.44
BLS-E 633.39 $11.44
BLS-NE 289.33 $11.44
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Emergicare Subscription Program r N
Rural/Metro proposes and has in place, an Ambulance Rural/Metro East TN currently has
Membership Subscription Program since 1985. Our over 7,000 EMS subscribers with a
EmergiCare program will have a competitive annual fee of majority of those subscribers in

“ >

While Rural/Metro would like to honor subscription

payments made to other ambulance suppliers, the health care regulatory environment will not allow
for this practice. Federal enforcement agencies provide clear guidance that ambulance suppliers
offering subscription type programs must strive to collect fees that in aggregate are equal or in excess
of the cost sharing amounts that are waived for those residence actually using the ambulance
services.

Ambulance providers such as Rural/Metro must conduct periodic testing of the soundness of these
types of programs to ensure compliance with Federal expectations. Rural/Metro conducts periodic
reviews of these programs and cannot consider another ambulance supplier subscription program fees
in its annual testing and for this reason is unable to honor another company’s subscription plan.

Customers can access billing representatives through an 800 number, which is printed on their
statement, and local billing personnel are available as well. A link on Rural/Metro’s website also
provides email access to billing staff. For added customer convenience, the company also provides on-
line bill pay access at www.ruralmetro.com/payonline.

Mental Health Transports
As discussed in section H, page 81, Rural/Metro Blount County is proposing a
' solution to the over 400 mental health transports in Blount County. The

The R/M ambulance and sheriff resources are frequently utilized to transport mental
Difference Health patients to other locations in TN. Rural/Metro proposes to transport
mental health patients, at the request of Blount County Sheriff’s department,
in a specially built vehicle to keep the driver and passenger safe during
transport. This unique vehicle will be available during agreed upon hours prior to contract inception.

DESCRIPTION BASE CHARGE MILEAGE
Mental Health — Non- $50.00 $2.00
ambulance
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APPENDICES

Attachments and additional documentation are located in the following order:

Proposal Bid Deposit Bond
Background Check Compliance Form
Title VI Compliance

Insurance Certification

W-9

Copies of required Licenses

CAAS Accreditation

Braun Type lll Fleet Spec Sheets

O N EWDNRE

Key Personnel Resumes
. Key Position Job Descriptions
. Rural/Metro Benefits Guide
. Code of Conduct & HR policies
. Government Investigations

S o
A W N L O

. Emergicare Form

. Ambulance Supply and field maintenance checklist
. APCO 9-1-1 information

. Technological software brochures

. Stryker Stair-PRO (Model 6252) Brochure

. Stryker Stair-PRO (Model 6252) Spec Sheet

. LIFEPAK 15 Monitor/Defibrillator Brochure

. Lucas 2 Chest Compression System Brochure

N NN R R R R R
N B O L 0 N O WU

. Intergraph CAD brochures
. FirstWatch Brochures

. Medusa Siren Brochure

. 2013 Audited Financials

N NN
v b~ W
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RURAL/METRO CORPORATION
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of WP Rocket Holdings, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013



Suite 800
60 East Rio Salado Parkway
Tempe, AZ 85281-9125

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
Rural/Metro Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Rural/Metro Corporation (a wholly owned
subsidiary of WP Rocket Holdings, Inc.) and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2013 (Successor), and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss,
changes in stockholder’s deficit, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Predecessor), and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Rural/Metro Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 (Successor), and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013 (Predecessor), in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company filed for reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code on August 4, 2013. The Company’s plan of reorganization became
effective, and the Company emerged from bankruptcy protection on December 31, 2013. In connection with its
emergence from bankruptcy, the Successor adopted fresh-start reporting as of December 31, 2013, as further
described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. As a result, the consolidated financial statements of the
Successor are presented on a different basis than those of the Predecessor and, therefore, are not comparable in all

respects.
KPMme LIP

Phoenix, Arizona
May 12, 2014

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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RURAL/METRO CORPORATION
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of WP Rocket Holdings, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(in thousands, except share data)

Successor
December 31, 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 48,195
Restricted cash 14,959
Accounts receivable, net 91,230
Inventories 7,801
Deferred tax assets, net 26,150
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 14,542
Total current assets 202,877
Property and equipment 66,872
Goodwill 155,512
Intangible assets 217,923
Deposits 43,785
Other assets 5913
Total assets S 692,882
LIABILITES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Accounts payable S 35,692
Accrued and other currentliabilities 35,405
Deferred revenue 20,159
Current portion of long-term debt 754
Total current liabilities 92,010
Long-term debt, net of current portion 381,307
Deferred tax liabilities, net 101,450
Other liabilities 31,972
Total liabilities 606,739
Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Stockholder's equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 900 shares authorized,
100 shares issued and outstanding -
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100 shares authorized,
zero shares issued and outstanding -
Additional paid-in capital 86,143
Total stockholder's equity 86,143
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity S 692,882

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(a wholly-owned subsidiary of WP Rocket Holdings, Inc.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(in thousands)

Net revenue
Operating expenses:
Payroll and employee benefits
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses
General/auto liability insurance expense
Impairment of property and equipment, goodwill
and intangible assets
Gain on sale of assets and property and equipment
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Reorganization items, net
Interest expense
Interest income
Loss from continuing operations before
income taxes
Income tax expense
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes
Net loss
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Defined benefit pension plan:
Net gain
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax
Comprehensive loss

Predecessor

Year Ended
December 31, 2013

S 652,634

421,812
38,068
197,434
10,887

397,079
(1,998)

1,063,282

(410,648)
294,370

(53,931)
208

(170,001)
(34,431)

(204,432)

(150)

(204,582)

3,698

3,698

$ (200,884)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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RURAL/METRO CORPORATION
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of WP Rocket Holdings, Inc.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER’S DEFICIT

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Common Preferred Accumulated
Stock Stock Additional Other
Number of Common Number of Preferred Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Stock Shares Stock Capital Deficit (Loss) Income Total
Balance at December 31, 2012 (Predecessor) 100 $ - - $ - $ 243,466 $ (80,808) $ (1,576) $ 161,082
Capital distribution to Parent - R R - (197) - - (197)
Share-based compensation expense - R R - 101 - - 101
Netloss - - - - - (204,582) - (204,582)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Defined benefit pension plan:
Net gain - - - - - - 3,698 3,698
Effect of revaluation of Predecessor assets and
liabilities - - - - (164,471) - - (164,471)
Elimination of Predecessor equity - - R - (283,268) 285,390 (2.122) -
Proceeds from Rights Offering of Reorganized Parent - - R - 135,000 R - 135,000
Adjustment of goodwill to the excess of reorganization
value over the fair value of Company assets - - R - 155,512 R - 155,512
Balance at December 31, 2013 (Successor) 100 $ - - $ - $ 86143 $ - $ - $ 86,143

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



RURAL/METRO CORPORATION
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of WP Rocket Holdings, Inc.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Accretion of debt
Amortization of debtissuance costs
Accretion of interest on debt
Deferred income taxes
Share-based compensation expense
Gain on sale of assets and property and equipment
Impairment of property and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets
Non-cash debt-related reorganization items, net
Other non-cash adjustments
Changein assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other currentassets
Deposits
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Cash paid for acquisitions
Proceeds from the sale/disposal of property and equipment
Increasein restricted cash
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on revolving credit facility
Payments on revolving credit facility
Borrowings on DIP Financing
Payments on DIP Financing
Payments on Term loan
Payments on capital leases
Debtissuance costs
Proceeds received from Rights Offering of Reorganized Parent
Capital distribution to Parent
Net cash provided by financing activities
Increasein cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Property and equipment funded by liabilities
Capital lease assets funded by liabilities
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Predecessor

Year Ended
December 31,2013

$ (204,582)

38,068
1,643
5,957

248
35,508
101
(1,969)
397,079
(282,357)
7

7,886
355
(7,068)
(170)
3,908
11,272
(29,104)
(384)
(8,948)

(32,550)

(24,453)

(67)
5,673

(14,959)

(33,806)

54,000
(28,804)
75,000
(75,238)
(42,828)

(695)
(6,340)
135,000
(197)

109,898

43,542
4,653

$ 48,195

S 209
3,613

S 42,342
467



RURAL/METRO CORPORATION
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of WP Rocket Holdings, Inc.)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Nature of Business and Operations

Rural/Metro Corporation, a Delaware corporation, along with its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company” or
“Rural/Metro”) is a leading provider of both emergency and non-emergency ambulance services. These services are
provided under contracts with governmental entities, hospitals, nursing homes and other healthcare facilities and
organizations. The Company also provides fire protection and related services on a subscription fee basis to residential and
commercial property owners and under long-term contracts with fire districts, industrial sites and airports. These services
consist primarily of fire suppression, fire prevention and first responder medical care.

Since June 30, 2011, the Company has been a wholly-owned subsidiary of WP Rocket Holdings, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“Parent”), an affiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC (“Warburg”) formed by Warburg in order to acquire the
Company.

On August 4, 2013, the Company, Parent and substantially all of the Company’s subsidiaries filed voluntary
petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, in the United States Bankruptcy Court
for the District of Delaware (the “Bankruptcy Court”). The reorganization cases have been jointly administered under the
caption “In re Rural/Metro Corporation et al., Case No. 13-11952 (KJC)”. On December 17, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court
confirmed the Company’s Plan of Reorganization. On December 31, 2013, the Company formally emerged from Chapter
11, upon which Warburg no longer has any ownership interests in Parent or the Company. See Note 2 for further details
regarding the Bankruptcy events and the post-emergence structure of the Company.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Change in Fiscal Year

Upon its emergence from Chapter 11 on December 31, 2013, the Company changed its fiscal year end date from
June 30 to December 31. As used herein, the term “Predecessor” refers to the Company prior to its emergence from
bankruptcy, while “Successor” refers to the Company subsequent to its emergence from bankruptcy.

2.  FILING FOR CHAPTER 11 BANKRUPTCY REORGANIZATION AND SUBSEQUENT EMERGENCE

On August 4, 2013 (the “Petition Date”), the Company, Parent and substantially all of the Company’s subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Debtors,” and subsequent to the emergence from bankruptcy protection, the “Reorganized Debtors”)
filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy
Code”), in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the “Bankruptcy Court”). The reorganization
cases have been jointly administered under the caption “In re Rural/Metro Corporation et al., Case No. 13-11952 (KJC).”

As of the Petition Date, the Debtors began operating as “debtors-in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the
Bankruptcy Court and in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code. In general, as debtors-in-
possession, the Debtors are authorized under the Bankruptcy Code to continue to operate as an ongoing business, but may
not engage in transactions outside the ordinary course of business without the prior approval of the Bankruptcy Court. The
Bankruptcy Code enabled the Company to continue to operate its business without interruption, and on August 6, 2013 the
Bankruptcy Court approved various motions that facilitated the Company’s continuation of normal operations. The
Bankruptcy Court’s orders authorized the Company, among other things, in its discretion to continue to: (1) pay employee
wages, including third-party temporary labor; (2) pay critical trade vendors for pre-petition debts; (3) pay sales taxes and
regulatory fees; (4) maintain bank accounts and cash management systems; (5) continue insurance policies; and (6) obtain
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post-petition secured financing. The Bankruptcy Court also issued an interim order prohibiting utility companies from
discontinuing service.

Concurrently with the filing for reorganization under Chapter 11, the Company and Parent reached an agreement-
in-principal on a comprehensive financial restructuring plan intended to strengthen the Company’s balance sheet and
reduce future interest expense by reducing its funded indebtedness by approximately 50 percent via a conversion of certain
debt to equity. The Company reached the agreement-in-principal on the terms of the prearranged financial restructuring
plan with the majority of its senior lenders and greater than two-thirds of its bondholders. The Company also received a
commitment for $75 million in debtor-in-possession financing (“DIP Financing”) from certain of the Company’s secured
lenders. The DIP financing, combined with cash generated by the Company’s ongoing operations, was intended to provide
the Company with sufficient liquidity to meet its operational and restructuring needs during the Chapter 11 process. On
August 6, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court granted interim approval for the Company to utilize up to $40 million of the DIP
Financing, and on September 10, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court granted final approval for the Company to utilize the
remaining $35 million of the DIP Financing. The Predecessor Company’s bondholders committed to invest $135 million of
additional new Reorganized Parent equity upon the successful completion of the Chapter 11 financial restructuring,
pursuant to a commitment agreement dated October 31, 2013.

Magnitude of Potential Claims

On August 26, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order that established October 23, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.
(Eastern Time) as the deadline to file proofs of claim against any Debtor, and established January 31, 2014 at 5:00 p.m.
(Eastern Time) as the deadline for governmental units, as defined in section 101(27) of the Bankruptcy Code, to file proofs
of claim against any Debtor.

As of April 22, 2014, approximately 3,600 claims have been filed with the Bankruptcy Court against the Debtors.
There is the potential for amended claims to be filed in the future, including claims amended to assign values to claims
originally filed with no designated value. The Company has identified, and expects to continue reconciling, claims that it
believes should be disallowed by the Bankruptcy Court because they are duplicative, are without merit, are overstated or
for other reasons. As of April 11, 2014, the Bankruptcy Court has disallowed a majority of these claims. As of April 22,
2014, the remaining unsecured claim balances total $16.2 million of allowed claims and $203.8 million of disputed and
unreconciled claims. The Company expects to continue to file objections in the future. Because the process of analyzing
and objecting to claims is ongoing, the amount of disallowed claims is expected to materially increase in the future.

Differences between amounts scheduled by the Debtors and claims by creditors will be investigated and resolved
in connection with the claims resolution process. In light of the expected number of creditor claims, the claims resolution
process may take considerable time to complete. Accordingly, the ultimate number and amount of allowed claims is not
presently known, nor can the ultimate recovery with respect to allowed claims be presently ascertained. Pursuant to the
Plan of Reorganization, the minimum amount of funds that will be utilized to pay allowed claims is $4.0 million, and the
maximum is $5.0 million, for those claims that do not elect to receive common stock of Reorganized Parent in lieu of cash.

Plan of Reorganization and Equity Instruments of Reorganized Parent

On September 15, 2013, the Debtors filed the Joint Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganization for Rural/Metro Corporation
and Its Affiliated Debtors (the “Plan of Reorganization”) and the Disclosure Statement with Respect to Joint Chapter 11 Plan
of Reorganization for Rural/Metro Corporation and Its Affiliated Debtors (the “Disclosure Statement”) with the Bankruptcy
Court. Each of these documents were amended on October 31, 2013.

On November 5, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court approved the Disclosure Statement.

On December 2, 2013, the Debtors filed the Plan Supplement, and on December 13, 2013 and December 16, 2013,
the Debtors filed amendments to the Plan Supplement.

The restructuring transactions contemplated in the Plan of Reorganization substantially reduce debt obligations by
(i) providing for a $50.0 million payment of the pre-petition Credit Facility and (ii) converting claims arising under the $200.0
million Senior Notes and the $108.0 million Senior Notes (the “Noteholder Claims”) and any unsecured claim against the
Debtors other than a Noteholder Claim (the “Other Unsecured Claims”) into 100% of the common stock of WP Rocket
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Holdings Inc. upon emergence (“Reorganized Parent”). The extent to which the Other Unsecured Claims will be converted
into common stock of Reorganized Parent is limited to the extent the Other Unsecured Claims elect to receive common
stock of Reorganized Parent in lieu of cash.

The common stock of Reorganized Parent is subject to dilution by: (A) options to purchase the common stock of
Reorganized Parent that may be issued to the Reorganized Debtors’ post-emergence directors, officers and employees
subsequent to emergence and (B) the shares of common stock of Reorganized Parent issued pursuant to the $135.0 million
rights offering to be offered to the holders of Noteholder Claims (the “Rights Offering”), including any shares of common
stock of Reorganized Parent issued pursuant to the Rights Offering Backup Commitment Agreement.

Reorganized Parent’s pre-petition equity holders’ interests were cancelled upon emergence, and all of Reorganized
Parent’s common stock is owned by the holders of Noteholder Claims (including those participating in the Rights Offering)
and the holders of the Other Unsecured Claims (to the extent such holders of Other Unsecured Claims elect to receive
common stock of Reorganized Parent in lieu of cash). Creditors holding other secured claims will receive cash, their
collateral, or retain their liens, as applicable, in satisfaction of their claims.

The existing board of directors of the Debtors were deemed to have resigned on and as of the date of emergence,
and were replaced by new board members as specified in the Plan of Reorganization.

The Plan of Reorganization was primarily funded by the Rights Offering. Each holder of a Noteholder Claim
received Subscription Rights to subscribe for its Pro Rata Share of the Rights Offering Stock (representing common stock of
Reorganized Parent (which shall comprise 70% of the fully diluted common stock of Reorganized Parent) and preferred
stock of Reorganized Parent) for an aggregate purchase price equal to the applicable Subscription Payment Amount. In
accordance with the Rights Offering Backstop Commitment Agreement, the Rights Offering Backstop Investors will purchase
all Remaining Rights Offering Stock.

On December 17, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Company’s Plan of Reorganization, as amended.

The Rights Offering provided $135.0 million in capital to the Reorganized Debtors, which was used to pay the
outstanding amounts under the $75.0 million DIP Financing as of the date of emergence, fund other payments required
under the Plan of Reorganization, including the $50.0 million payment on the pre-petition Credit Facility upon emergence,
and for ordinary course operations and general corporate purposes of the Reorganized Debtors upon emergence. In
addition, the Reorganized Debtors’ post-emergence operations will be supported by a $41.2 million Exit Letter of Credit
Facility.

The preferred stock of Reorganized Parent provides for the issuance of up to 500,000,000 shares of 15% Senior
Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Senior Preferred Stock”). The liquidation preference of the Senior Preferred Stock is
$1.00 per share (the “Liquidation Preference”). 136,450,000 shares of Senior Preferred Stock were issued upon the
implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013 as part of the Rights Offering.

The Holders of the outstanding shares of Senior Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by
Reorganized Parent’s Board of Directors, cumulative preferential dividends on each share of Senior Preferred Stock at a rate
per annum equal to 15% of the Liquidation Preference of the Senior Preferred Stock, accruing and payable quarterly, in
arrears. All dividends will be cumulative from the date of issuance, shall accumulate to the extent they are not paid on a
dividend payment date for the quarterly period to which they relate and shall accumulate on a daily basis whether or not
dividends are declared by Reorganized Parent’s Board of Directors. Dividends on the Senior Preferred Stock, when, as and
if declared by Reorganized Parent’s Board of Directors, shall be paid in additional fully-paid and non-assessable shares of
Senior Preferred Stock (“Paid In-Kind Dividends”). The issuance of any such Paid In-Kind Dividend shall constitute full
payment of such dividend.

The Senior Preferred Stock contains two redemption features. A Conditional Mandatory Redemption shall occur
no sooner than March 31, 2021, if the Company’s EBITDA, as defined in the Certificate of Designations of the Senior
Preferred Stock, for any 12-month period ending December 31, beginning in 2020, exceeds $100.0 million. The redemption
price per share would be paid in cash in an amount equal to 100% of the Liquidation Preference, plus an amount in cash
equal to all accrued and unpaid dividends per share. If any shares of outstanding Senior Preferred Stock are not redeemed
on March 31, 2021, then the Maturity Mandatory Redemption Price with respect to such shares shall increase by 1% per
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annum for the 180-day period following March 31, 2021 (unless extended) and by 2% per annum thereafter, until the
Senior Preferred Stock is redeemed in full. Separately, an Optional Redemption feature allows for Reorganized Parent, at
its option, from time to time, redeem some or all of the outstanding Senior Preferred Stock at a redemption price per share
in cash equal to 100% of the Liquidation Preference, plus an amount in cash equal to all accrued and unpaid dividends per
share.

Reporting Requirements

In connection with the Chapter 11 cases, regardless of the Emergence Date having occurred, the Company is
required to continue to file quarterly operating reports with the Bankruptcy Court until the Chapter 11 Cases have closed.
Such reports have been and will be prepared according to requirements of federal bankruptcy law and related rules. While
these reports accurately provide then-current information required under the Bankruptcy Code, they are nonetheless
unaudited, are prepared in a different format from that used in the Company's consolidated financial statements, and
certain of this financial information may be prepared on an unconsolidated basis. Therefore, the Company believes that
the substance and format of these reports do not allow for a meaningful comparison to the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

Emergence, Reorganization and Fresh Start Accounting

On December 31, 2013 (the “Emergence Date”), the Company emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection.
As of the Emergence Date, the Company adopted fresh start accounting in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) 852 Reorganizations. The adoption of fresh start accounting results in the Company becoming a new
entity for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements on or after the
Emergence Date will not be comparable to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements prior to that date. Fresh start
accounting requires resetting the historical net book values of assets and liabilities of the Company as of the Emergence
Date to their fair values by allocating the Company’s reorganization value to its assets and liabilities pursuant to accounting
guidance related to ASC 805 Business Combinations and ASC 852-10. Reorganization value is the fair value of the entity
before considering liabilities and approximates the amount a willing buyer would pay for the assets of the entity
immediately after the reorganization. The excess reorganization value over the fair value of the tangible and identifiable
intangible assets is recorded as goodwill on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of the Emergence Date.

The Company’s reorganization value is principally based upon expected future cash flows of the business,
discounted at rates reflecting perceived business and financial risks. The discounted cash flow analysis was based on the
Company’s projected financial information which includes a variety of estimates and assumptions. While the Company
considers such estimates and assumptions reasonable, they are inherently subject to uncertainties and a variety of
significant business, economic and competitive risks, many of which are beyond the Company’s control and may not
materialize.

The discounted cash flow analysis was based upon projections and internal forecasts and assumptions. The
discounted cash flow analysis is the sum of (i) the present value of the projected unlevered cash flows; and (ii) the present
value of a terminal value, which represents the estimate of value attributable to periods beyond the projected cash flows.
All cash flows were discounted using a weighted average cost of capital percentage of 9.4%. To calculate the terminal
value, a perpetuity growth rate approach was used. Other significant assumptions include future capital expenditures,
future effective tax rates, and changes in working capital requirements.

As part of the bankruptcy process, the Company engaged an independent financial advisor to assist in the
determination of the Company’s reorganized enterprise value. The independent financial advisor estimated the Company’s
reorganized enterprise value to be $376.9 million, which is within the range approved by the Bankruptcy Court. The
Company’s net debt was then subtracted to determine the Successor equity value of $86.1 million, which is also within the
range approved by the Bankruptcy Court. In addition, cash, deposits, and non-interest bearing liabilities were added to the
Company’s reorganized enterprise value to determine the Company’s reorganization value of $692.9 million.
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Reorganization items represent expense or income amounts that have been recognized as a direct result of the
Chapter 11 cases and are presented separately in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss. Such items consist of the following (in thousands):

Predecessor
Year Ended
December 31,2013

Cancellation of $200 million Senior Notes S 200,000
Cancellation of $108 million Senior Notes 108,000
Cancellation of unsecured liabilities subject to compromise, net of amount

expected to be paid 30,516
Cancellation of interest payable related to $200 million Senior Notes 11,250
Cancellation of interest payable related to $108 million Senior Notes 6,045
Write-off of unamortized discount related to $108 million Senior Notes (12,108)
Write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs related to $200 million Senior Notes (3,426)
Write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs related to $108 million Senior Notes (1,630)
Write-off of unamortized discount related to pre-petition Term Loan (2,059)
Write-off of unamortized debtissuance costs related to pre-petition Credit Facility (6,420)
Professional fees (29,005)
Lease agreement terminations (3,617)
Other (3,176)

Total reorganization items, net S 294,370
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The following balance sheet illustrates the impact of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization and the
application of fresh start accounting, resulting in the opening balance sheet of the Successor (in thousands):

As of December 31,2013
Reorganization Fresh Start
Predecessor Adjustments (a) Adjustments (b) Successor
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 58,819 S (10,624) (c) S - S 48,195
Restricted cash 900 14,059 (d) - 14,959
Accounts receivable, net 91,230 - - 91,230
Inventories 7,801 - - 7,801
Deferred income taxes, net 28,465 (2,338) (e) 23 (n) 26,150
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 13,931 94 517 (o) 14,542
Total current assets 201,146 1,191 540 202,877
Property and equipment, net 67,081 - (209) (p) 66,872
Goodwill 166,740 - (11,228) (q) 155,512
Intangibles assets, net 214,479 - 3,444 (r) 217,923
Deposits 3,633 40,152 (f) - 43,785
Deferred income taxes, net 22,993 (22,993) (e) - -
Other assets 13,625 (8,742) (g) 1,030 (o) 5,913
Total assets S 689,697 S 9,608 S (6,423) S 692,882
LIABILITES AND STOCKHOLDER'S (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Accounts payable S 35,692 § - S - S 35,692
Accrued and other current liabilities 37,624 (2,796) (h) 577 (s) 35,405
Deferred revenue 20,159 - - 20,159
Current portion of long-term debt 73,792 (73,038) (i) - 754
Total current liabilities 167,267 (75,834) 577 92,010
Long-term debt, net of current portion 389,052 (7,745) (j) - 381,307
Deferred income taxes, net - 102,596 (e) (1,146) (n) 101,450
Other liabilities 28,867 - 3,105 (t) 31,972
Total long-term liabilities 417,919 94,851 1,959 514,729
Liabilities subject to compromise 346,644 (346,644) (k) - -
Total liabilities 931,830 (327,627) 2,536 606,739
Stockholder's (deficit) equity:
Common stock - - - -
Preferred stock - - - -
Additional paid-in capital - Predecessor 243,370 - (243,370) (u) -
Additional paid-in capital - Successor - 135,000 (I) (48,857) (v) 86,143
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,111 11 (2,122) (w) -
Accumulated deficit (487,614) 202,224 (m) 285,390 (x) -
Total stockholder's (deficit) equity (242,133) 337,235 (8,959) 86,143
Total liabilities and stockholder's (deficit) equity $ 689,697 $ 9,608 S (6,423) $ 692,882

(a) Represents amounts recorded for the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on the Emergence Date. This
includes the settlement of liabilities subject to compromise, the receipt of cash upon the issuance of new equity
instruments, paydowns of existing debt and accrued interest, establishment of new debt, payments of debt
issuance costs and the designation of restricted cash to satisfy allowed claims and outstanding professional fees.

(b) Represents the adjustments of assets and liabilities to fair value or other measurement with adoption of fresh start
accounting.
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(c)

(d)
(e)
(f)
(8)
(h)
(i)
()
(k)

()

Records the following cash activity (in thousands):

Proceeds received from Rights Offering of Reorganized Parent S 135,000
Repayment of DIP Financing, including accreted interest (73,038)
Partial repayment of pre-petition Credit Facility (50,000)
Payment of accrued interest on DIP Financing and the

pre-petition Credit Facility (2,796)
Payment of debtissuance and other costs (2,834)
Deposit returned for collaterized Letters of Credit 2,103
Designation of restricted cash for the payment of

professional fees related to bankruptcy (14,059)
Designation of restricted cash to satisfy allowed claims (5,000)

S (10,624)

Records the designation of $14.1 million of restricted cash for the payment of professional fees related to the
bankruptcy.

Records the impact on net deferred income tax assets and liabilities related to the net gain recorded as a result of
the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization.

Records the $42.3 million capitalization of the Backstop Loan for collateralized letters of credit, net of the return of
$2.1 million of cash deposits held by Credit Suisse AG.

Records the write-off of $11.5 million of unamortized debt issuance costs related to pre-petition debt, partially
offset by the payment of $2.7 million of debt issuance costs related to new and converted debt.

Records the payment of outstanding interest payable on the DIP Financing and the pre-petition Credit Facility.
Records the payoff of the DIP Financing, including $0.2 million of accreted interest.

Records the $50.0 million payment on the pre-petition Credit Facility, partially offset by the establishment of the
$42.3 million Backstop Loan for collateralized letters of credit.

Records the cancellation of liabilities subject to compromise. The $346.6 million net gain recognized as a result of
the cancellation of liabilities subject to compromise was comprised of the following (in thousands):

Cancellation of $200 million Senior Notes S (200,000)
Cancellation of $108 million Senior Notes (108,000)
Write-off unamortized discount on $108 million Senior Notes 12,108
Write-off unamortized discount on pre-petition Term Loan 2,059
Cancellation of other unsecured liabilities (35,516)

Cancellation of interest payable on $200 million Senior Notes
and $108 million Senior Notes (17,295)
S (346,644)

Records the proceeds received from the Rights Offering of Reorganized Parent.
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(m) The amount recorded as a net gain as a result of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization was as follows

(n)

(o)
(p)
(a)

(in thousands):

Cancellation of $200 million Senior Notes S (200,000)
Cancellation of $108 million Senior Notes (108,000)
Write-off unamortized discount on $108 million Senior Notes 12,108
Write-off unamortized discount on pre-petition Term Loan 2,059
Cancellation of other unsecured liabilities (35,516)
Cancellation of interest payable on $200 million Senior Notes
and $108 million Senior Notes (17,295)
Designation of restricted cash to satisfy allowed claims 5,000
Write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs related to $200
million Senior Notes 3,426
Write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs related to $108
million Senior Notes 1,630
Write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs related to pre-
petition Credit Facility 6,420
Income tax impact of above items 127,944
S (202,224)

Represents the tax effect of certain fresh start accounting adjustments to financial reporting values which resulted
in a corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Records the fair value of favorable lease agreements.

Records the adjustment of property and equipment to fair value.

Records the $166.7 million elimination of predecessor goodwill, partially offset by the $155.5 million adjustment of
goodwill to the excess of reorganization value over the fair value of the Company’s assets, determined as follows
(in millions):

Reorganization value S 692.9
Current assets (202.9)
Property and equipment ( 66.9)
Intangible assets (217.9)
Other long-term assets (49.7)
Equals: Goodwill S 1555

Records the net impact of the $214.5 million elimination of predecessor intangible assets and the $217.9 million
establishment of successor intangible assets, at fair value.

Records the $0.1 million elimination of the short-term portion of predecessor deferred rent, offset by the
establishment of the $0.7 million short-term portion of successor unfavorable lease liabilities.

Records the $1.1 million elimination of the long-term portion of predecessor deferred rent, offset by the
establishment of the $4.2 million long-term portion of successor unfavorable lease liabilities.

Records the elimination of predecessor additional paid-in capital.
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(v) Records the following activity (in thousands):

Establishment of favorable lease assets S 1,547
Adjustment of property and equipment to fair value (209)
Elimination of predecessor goodwill (166,740)
Elimination of predecessor intangible assets (214,479)
Establishment of successor intangible assets at fair value 217,923
Elimination of deferred rent 1,241
Establishment of unfavorable lease liabilities (4,923)
Adjustment of deferred taxes 1,169
Elimination of predecessor additional paid-in capital 243,370
Elimination of predecessor accumulated other comprehensive income 2,122
Elimination of predecessor accumulated deficit (285,390)
Adjustment of goodwill to the excess of reorganization value
over the fair value of Company assets 155,512
$  (48,857)

(w) Records the elimination of predecessor accumulated other comprehensive income.
(x) Records the elimination of predecessor accumulated deficit.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. If there is no legally enforceable right of offset against cash balances and a form of
overdraft protection does not exist, outstanding checks are classified as accounts payable within the Consolidated Balance
Sheet and the change in the related balances is reflected in operating activities on the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows. There were no overdraft balances at December 31, 2013 (Successor).

Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable represent amounts due from customers and are recorded at the time that the Company’s
services are provided. Accounts receivable balances are recorded net of both estimated contractual allowances applicable
to Medicare, Medicaid and other third-party payers and estimates for uncompensated care, which relates primarily to
receivables recorded for self-pay customers. Estimates for allowances are based on payer reimbursement schedules,
collections history and other relevant information. As these allowances are estimates, and because they are subject to the
long collection periods inherent in the healthcare service industry, they can be subject to change in subsequent periods as
new information is obtained. Accounts receivable are written-off against the contractual allowance when payment is
received, and are written-off against the uncompensated care allowance when it is determined that it is probable that the
receivable will not be collected. A summary of the components of the Company’s net accounts receivable as of December
31, 2013 (Successor) is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2013 (Successor)

Allowance Allowance
Accounts for for Accounts
receivable, contractual uncompensated Other Total receivable,
gross discounts care allowances allowances net
Ambulance services accounts receivable S 489,507 S (211,957) § (204,022) $ - | $(415,979) | § 73,528
All other accounts receivable 19,736 (482) (464) (1,088) (2,034) 17,702
Total accounts receivable $ 509,243 $(212,439) $ (204,486) $  (1,088) | $(418,013) | $ 91,230

In connection with the application of fresh start accounting, accounts receivable reflect their estimated fair value
on the Emergence Date.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist of medical and fleet supplies, are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is
determined on a first in, first-out basis. In connection with the application of fresh start accounting, inventories reflect
their estimated fair value on the Emergence Date.

Property and Equipment

Prior to the Emergence Date, property and equipment were carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation was recognized over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. In connection with the
Company’s adoption of fresh start accounting as of the Emergence Date, property and equipment were revalued to their
fair value, generally their appraised value after considering economic obsolescence, and new useful lives were established.
Accumulated depreciation was reset to zero. The appraisals assigned remaining useful lives to each asset ranging from one
to 20 years, with approximately 91% of the assets being assigned remaining useful lives ranging from two to 6.5 years.

Equipment and vehicles are depreciated over three to twelve years and buildings are depreciated over ten to thirty
years. Leasehold improvements are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
contractual lease terms or the estimated useful lives. Maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful
life of assets are expensed as incurred. The cost and accumulated depreciation applicable to assets retired are removed
from the accounts and the gain or loss, if any, is recognized in income as realized.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets with Indefinite Lives

As part of fresh start accounting, the Company recorded goodwill, which represents the excess of the Company’s
reorganization value over the fair value of the Company’s assets at the Emergence Date. Intangible assets with indefinite
lives primarily consist of certificates of need and certain trade names acquired.

The Company tests for impairment at least annually. Additional impairment tests may be performed between
annual tests if circumstances indicate that a potential impairment exists. The Company performs its annual goodwill two-
step impairment test as of the end of its fiscal year. In the first step, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared to the
carrying value of its net assets including goodwill. The fair value of a reporting unit is determined by a market approach
based on each reporting unit’s estimated discount rate and long-term growth rate or by (or in combination with) an income
approach based on discounted estimated future cash flows from each reporting unit. If the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeds the carrying value of the net assets of the reporting unit, goodwill is not impaired and no further testing is
required. If the carrying value of the net assets of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, then a
second step must be performed in order to determine the implied fair value of the goodwill and to compare it to the
carrying value of goodwill. If the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then an impairment loss equal to
the difference is recorded. The determination of fair value requires the Company to make significant judgments and
estimates about future events. The estimated fair value of our reporting units could change if there were future changes in
our capital structure, cost of debt, interest rates, capital expenditure levels or our ability to perform at levels that were
forecasted. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making these estimates, actual results could differ materially from
the estimates. The Company evaluated the significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of each reporting unit,
both individually and in the aggregate, and concluded they are reasonable. The Company has determined that there are
four reporting units for purposes of the impairment test.

During 2013 (Predecessor), the Company experienced a reduction in the estimated collectability of its accounts
receivable, which materially changed the estimated revenue forecast, leading to lower estimated future cash flows. As a
result, the Company re-evaluated its liquidity position relative to its outstanding obligations. These factors were the
triggering events that resulted in the Company’s decline in value of tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill.

The Company’s evaluation of its goodwill during 2013 (Predecessor) indicated potential impairment of the goodwill
in each of the Company’s four reporting units. As a result, the Company estimated the fair value of the goodwill in those
reporting units compared to carrying amounts, and recorded an impairment charge of $260.1 million to impair goodwill. Of
this amount, $64.2 million was recorded in the South operating region, which represented all of the goodwill in that
operating region, $43.8 million was recorded in the West operating region, which represented all of the goodwill in that
operating region, $86.4 million was recorded in the East operating region and $65.7 million was recorded in the Southwest
operating region.

The Company’s evaluation of its intangible assets with indefinite lives during 2013 (Predecessor) indicated
potential impairment of the indefinite-lived trade name assets in the Company’s South, West and Southwest operating
regions. As a result, the Company estimated the fair value of the intangible assets with indefinite lives in those reporting
units compared to carrying amounts, and recorded an impairment charge of $36.4 million to impair intangible assets with
indefinite lives. Of this amount, $7.9 million was recorded in the South operating region, $19.1 million was recorded in the
West operating region and $9.4 million was recorded in the Southwest operating region.

Annual evaluations of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives were not conducted as of December 31,
2013, as goodwill was adjusted to equal the excess of reorganization value over the fair value of the Company’s assets as of
the Emergence Date, and intangible assets and related accumulated amortization of the Predecessor Company were
eliminated as of the Emergence Date, with intangible assets of the Successor Company being identified and valued at their
fair value as part of fresh start accounting as of December 31, 2013.

Impairment of Intangible and Other Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable, by comparing the carrying amount of such assets to the
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The
Company has determined that there are six asset groups for purposes of the impairment test. In cases where the
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undiscounted estimated future cash flows are less than the related carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized for
an amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value. The fair value is based on quoted market prices or, in
instances where quoted market prices are not available, the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount
rate commensurate with the risks involved.

During 2013 (Predecessor), the Company experienced a reduction in the estimated collectability of its accounts
receivable, which materially changed the estimated revenue forecast, leading to lower estimated future cash flows. As a
result, the Company re-evaluated its liquidity position relative to its outstanding obligations. These factors were the
triggering events that resulted in the Company’s decline in value of tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill.

The Company’s evaluation of its intangible assets during 2013 (Predecessor) indicated potential impairment of
intangible assets in the Company’s West and South operating regions. The Company recorded an impairment charge of
$82.1 million to impair intangible assets, with $44.3 million recorded in the West operating region and $37.8 million
recorded in the South operating region. The $44.3 million impairment charge recorded in the West operating region
consisted of $30.1 million for ambulance customer relationships, $13.9 million for non-compete agreements and $0.3
million for service area contracts. The $37.8 million impairment charge recorded in the South operating region consisted of
$37.4 million for ambulance customer relationships and $0.4 million for service area contracts.

The Company also assessed the recoverability of its property and equipment based upon an analysis of the
carrying value of the Company's property and equipment and projected future cash flows of each of the six asset groups.
Based on this assessment, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $18.5 million during 2013
(Predecessor). Of this amount, $10.2 million was recorded in the West operating region, $7.2 million was recorded in the
South operating region, and $1.1 million was recorded in the Pacific and Bowers operating region.

An annual evaluation of intangible assets was not conducted as of December 31, 2013 as intangible assets and
related accumulated amortization of the Predecessor Company were eliminated as of the Emergence Date, with intangible
assets of the Successor Company being identified and valued at their fair value as part of fresh start accounting as of
December 31, 2013.

Deposits

Included in Deposits in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2013 (Successor) is $42.3
million of cash collateral for letters of credit related to the Exit Letter of Credit Facility that became effective upon the
Company’s December 31, 2013 emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. The amount represents 102.5% of the
$41.2 million of value of total letters of credit included in the Exit Letter of Credit Facility, which was collateralized by the
Backstop Loan (see Note 12).

Net Revenue

Ambulance services revenue is recognized when services are provided and is recorded net of estimated
contractual allowances applicable to Medicare, Medicaid and other third-party payers and net of estimates for
uncompensated care. Such allowances applicable to continuing operations are reflected as reductions to revenue in the
accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Revenue generated under fire protection service contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Subscription
fees, which are generally received in advance, are deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the

subscription agreement, which is generally one year.

Other revenue primarily consists of dispatch, fleet, billing, training and home health care service fees, which are
recognized when the services are provided.
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Components of the Company’s total net revenue applicable to continuing operations recognized during 2013
(Predecessor) are summarized below (in thousands):

Predecessor
Year Ended
December 31,2013

EMS revenue:

Gross ambulance services revenue S 1,796,111
Allowance for contractual discounts (956,307)
Allowance for uncompensated care (289,126)

Net ambulance services revenue 550,678

Other EMS revenue 24,605

Total net EMS revenue 575,283
Fire revenue 72,381

Other revenue:

Gross other revenue 9,545
Allowance for contractual discounts (1,922)
Allowance for uncompensated care (2,653)

Net other revenue 4,970
Total net revenue S 652,634
Total allowances for contractual discounts S (958,229)
Total allowances for uncompensated care (291,779)
Total allowances S (1,250,008)

Share-based Compensation

Share-based compensation expense is based on the grant-date fair value of the share-based award and the
estimated number of awards that are expected to vest. Expense is recognized over the period during which an employee is
required to provide service in exchange for the award, which is usually the vesting period.

Advertising Expense

Costs associated with advertising are generally expensed as incurred and are included in other operating expenses
in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Advertising expense during 2013 (Predecessor) was $0.2 million.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets are also recognized for net operating loss, capital loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the related
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is provided for
those deferred tax assets for which it is more likely than not that the realization of the related benefits will not be achieved.

19



The Company measures and records tax contingency accruals in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) which prescribes a threshold for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a return. Only positions meeting the “more likely than not”
recognition threshold may be recognized or continue to be recognized.

Derivatives and Hedging

The Company may utilize derivative financial instruments to reduce its exposure to certain market risks, such as
interest rate risk and fuel price risk. All derivative instruments are recognized on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet
at fair value in prepaid expenses and other current assets and in other assets.

Gains or losses on derivative instruments are recognized in current earnings since the derivative instruments were
not designated as hedges in accordance with ASC 815. The amount of loss recognized in earnings as interest expense was
approximately $14,000 during 2013 (Predecessor).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses recognized during the reporting period. Significant estimates have been made
by management in connection with the measurement of contractual allowances applicable to Medicare, Medicaid and
other third-party payers, the estimate for uncompensated care, the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, workers’
compensation and general liability self-insured claim reserves, fair values of reporting units for purposes of goodwill
impairment testing and fresh start accounting and future cash flows associated with long-lived assets. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU No. 2011-05, Presentation of
Comprehensive Income (“ASU 2011-05"). ASU 2011-05 requires entities to present net income and other comprehensive
income in either a single continuous statement or in two separate, but consecutive, statements. The Company elected to
early adopt this ASU and has presented net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss) in a single continuous
statement. The adoption of ASU 2011-05 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations, but did require a change in the presentation of its financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (“ASU 2013-02”). ASU 2013-02 requires an entity to report the effect of significant reclassifications
out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified
is required under GAAP to be reclassified in its entirety to net income. For other amounts that are not required under
GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net income in the same reporting period, an entity is required to cross-reference
other disclosures required under GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts. This would be the case when a
portion of the amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is reclassified to a balance sheet
account (for example, inventory) instead of directly to income or expense in the same reporting period. This ASU is
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and early adoption is permitted, which the Company
elected. The adoption of this ASU did not have an impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-03, Clarifying the Scope and Applicability of a Particular Disclosure
to Nonpublic Entities (“ASU 2013-03”). ASU 2013-03 updates ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS, to clarify that all nonpublic entities are exempt from
being required to disclose the fair value hierarchy (i.e. Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3) for fair value measurements of financial
assets and liabilities that are disclosed in the footnotes to the financial statements but are not reported at fair value in the
statement of financial position. This ASU was effective immediately upon issuance, and it did not have an impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax
Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists (“ASU No. 2013-
11”). ASU 2013-11 requires an unrecognized tax benefit related to a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss or a
tax credit carryforward to be presented as a reduction to a deferred tax asset, unless the tax benefit is not available at the
reporting date to settle any additional income taxes under the tax law of the applicable tax jurisdiction. This ASU is
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and early adoption permitted. The adoption of this ASU
is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

4. CHANGES TO THE COMPANY’S CONTRACT WITH SANTA CLARA COUNTY

On December 10, 2013, the Board of Supervisors of Santa Clara County in Northern California approved
recommended changes to the contractual relationship Santa Clara County has with the Company and the Advanced Life
Support (ALS)/911 ambulance services contract (as previously amended) that has been effective since July 1, 2011.
Included in these changes are retroactive and prospective modifications impacting the Company’s net revenues and
expenses related to the Company’s operations in Santa Clara County.

Santa Clara County agreed to retroactively compensate the Company for transports provided by the Company
related to correctional facilities, beginning July 1, 2011. The cumulative billing value of these transports, for the period July
1, 2011 through December 31, 2013, was approximately $1.6 million. This amount was recognized as net revenue by the
Company during the year ending December 31, 2013 (Predecessor). Santa Clara County also agreed to compensate the
Company going forward for correctional facility transports in normal course, beginning January 1, 2014.

Santa Clara County also agreed to waive certain fees it charged the Company for the period April 2013 through
August 4, 2013. The cumulative amount of these waived fees, which were originally accrued for and expensed by the
Company during the April 2013 through July 2013 period, was approximately $2.6 million. The $2.6 million of waived fees
was recognized as a reduction of operating expenses by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2013
(Predecessor).

In addition to the changes to the Company’s contract with Santa Clara County described above, on December 4,
2013 the Company executed a new Collective Bargaining agreement with the union that supports the Santa Clara operating
area. This agreement adjusted pay and other items for union workers. The contract is effective retroactively to July 1, 2013
and extends to June 30, 2015. The amount of retroactive pay for the period July 1, 2013 through December 4, 2013 that
the union employees are entitled to based on the new agreement is approximately $0.3 million in aggregate, and was paid
to the union employees in December 2013. This $0.3 million of retroactive compensation was recognized in operating
expenses by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2013 (Predecessor).

5.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value measurements are classified under the following hierarchy:

. Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

o Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted prices substantiated by market data and observable, either
directly or indirectly for the asset or liability. This includes quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets.

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair

value of the assets and liabilities.

In connection with the Company’s adoption of fresh start accounting as of the Emergence Date, all assets and
liabilities were remeasured at fair value as of December 31, 2013 (Successor).
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6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

Successor
As of

December 31,2013
Equipment S 19,306
Vehicles 33,375
Land and buildings 4,096
Leasehold improvements 1,843
Assets not yet placed in service 8,252
66,872
Less: Accumulated depreciation -
Total net property and equipment $ 66,872

Depreciation expense from continuing operations was $21.5 million during 2013 (Predecessor).

During 2013 (Predecessor), the Company assessed the recoverability of its property and equipment based upon an
analysis of the carrying value of the Company's property and equipment and undiscounted estimated future cash flows of
the Company by asset group. Based on this assessment, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately
$18.5 million. As part of this impairment charge, the Company reduced the gross book value of the assets and eliminated
the accumulated depreciation of the assets to a zero balance such that the reduction in the net book value of the assets
equals the amount of the impairment charge.

In connection with the Company’s adoption of fresh start accounting as of the Emergence Date, property and
equipment were revalued to their fair value, generally their appraised value after considering economic obsolescence, and

new useful lives were established. Accumulated depreciation was reset to zero. The amount of the adjustment to revalue
the Company’s property and equipment to fair value was to decrease the carrying value by approximately $0.2 million.

7. GOODWILL

The following table presents changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during 2013 (Predecessor) (in thousands):

Predecessor
Year Ended
December 31,2013
Beginning Balance S 426,675
Impairment recognized (260,080)
Adjustments related to acquisitions that
occurred prior to 2013 104
Acquisition during 2013 41
Elimination of Predecessor goodwill (166,740)
Adjustment of goodwill to the excess of
reorganization value over the fair value
of Company assets 155,512
Goodwill (Successor) S 155,512

As described in Note 3, the Company’s evaluation of its goodwill during 2013 (Predecessor) indicated potential
impairment of the goodwill in each of the Company’s four reporting units. As a result, the Company estimated the fair
value of those reporting units compared to carrying amounts, and recorded an impairment charge of $260.1 million to
goodwill.
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In connection with the Company’s adoption of fresh start accounting as of the Emergence Date, Predecessor
goodwill was eliminated, and Successor goodwill was adjusted to equal the excess of reorganization value over the fair
value of the Company’s assets as of December 31, 2013 (Successor).

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the net carrying amount of intangible assets during 2013 (Predecessor) are as follows (in
thousands):

Predecessor

Year Ended
December 31,2013
Balance at beginning of period S 349,501
Impairment recognized (118,477)
Amortization (16,538)
Other (7)
Elimination of Predecessor intangible assets (214,479)

Fair value of identified intangible assets

as of Emergence Date 217,923
Balance at end of period (Successor) S 217,923

As described in Note 3, the Company’s evaluation of its intangible assets during fiscal 2013 indicated potential
impairment of intangible assets in the Company’s West and South operating regions. The Company recorded an
impairment charge of $118.5 million to impair intangible assets, consisting of $67.5 million of impairment related to
ambulance customer relationships, $36.4 million related to trade names, $13.9 million related to non-compete agreements
and S0.7 million for service area contracts.

In connection with the Company’s adoption of fresh start accounting on the Emergence Date, intangible assets and
related accumulated amortization of the Predecessor Company were eliminated. Intangible assets of the Successor
Company were identified and valued at their fair value. The fair value is based on quoted market prices or in instances
where quoted market prices are not available, the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate
commensurate with the risks involved.

The Company’s intangible assets as of December 31, 2013 (Successor) are as follows (in thousands):

Successor
Weighted As of December 31,2013
Average Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Life (Years) Amount Amortization Amount
Long-lived intangible assets:
Ambulance customer relationships 100 S 101,500 S - S 101,500
Other customer relationships 10.0 24,000 - 24,000
Non-compete agreements 6.0 2,300 - 2,300
Total long-lived intangible assets 127,800 - 127,800
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Certificates of need - 20,623 - 20,623
Trade names and trademarks - 69,500 - 69,500
Total indefinite-lived intangible assets 90,123 - 90,123
Total S 217,923 S - S 217,923
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No amortization of Successor intangible assets has been recognized as of December 31, 2013 as the Emergence

Date was at the end of the Company’s 2013 reporting period.

The following table shows the expected amortization of long-lived intangible assets for each of the years ending

December 31 (in thousands):

2014 12,933
2015 12,933
2016 12,933
2017 12,933
2018 12,933
Thereafter 63,135

127,800

9.  ACCRUED AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued and other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

Successor

As of
December 31,2013
Accrued payroll and taxes S 8,720
Accrued employee benefits, including accrued vacation 9,913
Workers’ compensation related liabilities (see Note 11) 8,914
Accrued interest 92
General/auto liability related liabilities (see Note 11) 4,423
Contingencies (see Note 16) 781
Unfavorable lease liabilities 680
Other 1,882
Total accrued and other current liabilities S 35,405

10. OTHER LIABILITIES
Other long-term liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
Successor
As of

December 31, 2013

General/auto liability related liabilities (see Note 11) S 8,060

Workers’ compensation related liabilities (see Note 11) 15,348

Net pension liability (see Note 15) 3,624

Unfavorable lease liabilities 4,242

Other 698

Total other long-term liabilities S 31,972

11. GENERAL/AUTO LIABILITY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE PROGRAMS

The Company carries various insurance policies, including workers’ compensation, general/auto liability, property,
professional and other lines of coverage in order to minimize the risk of loss due to accident, injury, automobile and
professional liability claims resulting from our operations, and to comply with certain legal and contractual requirements.
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The Company retains certain levels of exposure in its general/auto liability and workers’ compensation programs
and purchases coverage from third-party insurers for exposures in excess of those levels. In addition to expensing
premiums and other costs relating to excess coverage, the Company establishes reserves for claims, both reported and
incurred but not reported, on a gross basis. A receivable is recognized for amounts expected to be recovered from insurers
in excess of the retention limits. The Company regularly evaluates the financial capacity of its insurers to assess the
recoverability of the receivable.

The Company engages third-party administrators (“TPAs”) to manage general/auto liability and workers’
compensation claims. The TPAs estimate a loss reserve at the time a claim is reported and then monitor the development
of the claim over time to confirm that such estimates continue to be appropriate. Management periodically reviews its
insurance claim reserves and engages its independent actuary semi-annually, or in interim periods if events or changes in
circumstances indicate additional evaluation is necessary, to assist with estimating its claim reserves based on loss reserve
estimates. The Company adjusts its claim reserves with an associated increase or decrease to expense as new information
on the underlying claims is obtained.

Additionally, the Company’s general/auto liability and workers’ compensation insurers require the Company to
post collateral to support future expected claim payments. The Company has provided letters of credit as collateral to
support retention limits. These letters of credit, issued under the Company’s Backstop Loan as discussed in Note 12,
included $10.6 million for general/auto liability and $24.2 million for workers’ compensation at December 31, 2013
(Successor).

General/Auto Liability

A summary of activity in the Company’s general/auto liability claim reserves and related receivable from insurers is
as follows (in thousands):

Predecessor
Gross Receivables Net General/
Claim From Auto Related
Reserves Insurers Liabilities

Balance at December 31, 2012 S 23,801 S 3,827 S 19,974
Provision charged to general/auto liability insurance 9,250 - 9,250
Claim payments (2,642) - (2,642)
Actuarial adjustment (7,487) 30 (7,517)
Increasein estimated recoverable claims 8,491 8,491 -
Settlements received (11,770) (11,770) -
Reclassification to liabilities subject to compromise (7,160) - (7,160)
Balance at December 31, 2013 (Successor) S 12,483 $ 578 S 11,905
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The classification of general/auto liability related amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31,

2013 (Successor) is as follows (in thousands):

Receivables frominsurers included in prepaid expenses and other current assets S

Receivables from insurers included in other assets
Total general/auto liability related assets
Claims reserves included in accrued and other current liabilities
Claims reserves included in other long-term liabilities
Total general/auto liability related liabilities
Net general/auto liability related liabilities

Successor
As of

December 31,2013
121
457
578
4,423
8,060
12,483
S 11,905

As of December 31, 2013 (Successor), the Company had liabilities and corresponding receivables of $0.6 million

related to specific claims.

Workers’ Compensation

A summary of activity in the Company’s workers’ compensation claim related reserves, deposits and premium

asset/liabilities is as follows (in thousands):

Predecessor
Gross Claims Receivables Net Workers’
Reserves From Compensation
and Premium Insurers and Related
Liabilities Deposits Liabilities
Balance at December 31, 2012 S 23,912 S 3,212 S 20,700
Provision charged to payroll and employee benefits 11,144 - 11,144
Claim payments (8,361) - (8,361)
Actuarial adjustment (2,433) (1,190) (1,243)
Balance at December 31, 2013 (Successor) S 24,262 S 2,022 $ 22,240

The classification of workers’ compensation related amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2013

is as follows (in thousands):

Insurance deposits included in prepaid expenses and other
Insurance deposits included in other assets
Receivables from insurers included in other assets

Total workers’ compensation related assets

Claims reserves and premium liabilities included in accrued and other current liabilities

Claims reserves included in other long-term liabilities
Total workers’ compensation related liabilities
Net workers’ compensation related liabilities

Successor
As of

December 31,2013
S 395
867
760
2,022
8,914
15,348
24,262
S 22,240

As of December 31, 2013 (Successor), the Company had liabilities and offsetting receivables of $0.8 million related

to specific claims.

The Company has maintained a per-occurrence self-insured retention for the policy periods since May 2005. The

Company’s aggregate retention limit for those periods is unlimited.

26

For policy years prior to May 2002, policies also



included a per-occurrence retention with no annual aggregate limit. For the policy periods May 2002 through May 2005,
the Company purchased a first dollar coverage program with a retrospectively rated endorsement whereby the related
premiums are subject to adjustment at certain intervals based on subsequent review of actual losses incurred as well as
payroll amounts.

12. LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a comparative summary of the Company’s outstanding long-term debt as of December 31, 2012
(Predecessor) and December 31, 2013 (Successor) (in thousands):

Predecessor Successor
As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2012 2013
Predecessor Credit Facility:
Term Loan due June 2018, net of unamortized discount of
$2,530 as of December 31, 2012 S 317,595 S -
Revolving Credit Facility 34,000 -
Successor Credit Facility:
Existing Term Loan due June 2018 - 277,305
Converted Term Loan due June 2016 - 59,197
Backstop Term Loan due June 2018 - 42,256
$200.0 million 10.125% Senior Notes due July 2019 200,000 -
$108.0 million 10.125% Senior Notes due July 2019, net
of unamortized discount of $13,280 as of December 31, 2012 94,720 -
Capital leases 385 3,303
Long-term debt 646,700 382,061
Less: Current maturities (3,113) (754)
Long-term debt, net of current maturities S 643,587 S 381,307

Pre-Petition (Predecessor) Credit Facility

As part of the acquisition of the Company by Parent on June 30, 2011 (see Note 1), the Company entered into a
credit agreement, which included a seven-year $325.0 million term loan (the “Term Loan”) and a five-year $100.0 million
revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”) with a $65.0 million letter of credit sub-line (collectively the “Predecessor Credit
Facility”). The Revolver was amended on December 20, 2011 to increase the available amount from $100.0 million to
$110.0 million.

Term Loan

The $325.0 million Term Loan, due June 2018, bore interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 4.25% subject to
a LIBOR floor of 1.50% or at the Company’s option, the Alternate Base Rate (ABR) as defined in the credit agreement plus
3.25% subject to an ABR floor of 2.50%. In the case of the LIBOR option, the Company contracted for periods that may be
equal to one, two, three or six months from the date of initial borrowing and interest was payable on the last day of each
contract period, subject to a maximum payment term of three months. Interest was payable at the end of each quarter for
the ABR option.

The Term Loan, which was collateralized by assets of the Company, required quarterly principal payments of 0.25%
of the original principal balance, beginning September 30, 2011 through the maturity date. The Term Loan also required
principal payments, as defined in the credit agreement, of: (1) 50% of fiscal year-end excess cash flow, which may decrease
to 25% or 0% based on the total leverage ratio; (2) 100% of the net cash proceeds of all non-ordinary course asset sales or
dispositions of property, subject to the Company’s right to reinvest or commit to reinvest 100% of such net proceeds in
assets to be used in the business or to make certain other permitted investments within 12 months (as long as such
reinvestment is completed within 180 days) in lieu of making such payment; and (3) 100% of the net cash proceeds of any
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incurrence of debt, other than proceeds from debt permitted under the Credit Facility. The Term Loan could be prepaid at
any time at the option of the Company.

On December 31, 2013 (Predecessor), prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization, principal
outstanding on the Term Loan was $318.5 million, and the unamortized original issue discount was $2.1 million. As part of
the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, a partial paydown of $41.2 million was made on
the Term Loan from the $135.0 million of proceeds received by the Company as part of the issuance of new equity
instruments of the post-emergence Company. The remaining $277.3 million of principal outstanding after the partial
paydown was converted into the Existing Term Loan as part of the Emergence (Successor) Credit Facility. The $2.1 million
of unamortized original issuance discount as of December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) was written off and charged to
Reorganization items in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Debt issuance costs of $6.6 million related to the Term Loan were being amortized to interest expense over the
term of the loan. The amount of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the Term Loan was $4.2 million at December
31, 2013 (Predecessor) prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization. The $4.2 million of unamortized debt
issuance costs as of December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) were written off and charged to Reorganization items in the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

During 2013 (Predecessor) the effective interest rate of the Term Loan, inclusive of the accretion of the original
issuance discount and the amortization of debt issuance costs, was 6.19%.

Revolver

The $110.0 million Revolver, which was scheduled to mature in June 2016, included a letter of credit sub-line that
allowed $65.0 million of the facility to be utilized to issue letters of credit. Letters of credit issued under the facility reduced
the borrowing capacity on the total facility dollar for dollar. When the Company requested a borrowing under the Revolver,
the Company had to select whether the borrowing would be a Eurodollar loan or an ABR loan. Eurodollar loans bore
interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 4.25% subject to a LIBOR floor of 1.50%. ABR loans bore interest at the ABR
as defined in the credit agreement plus an applicable margin of 3.25% subject to an ABR floor of 2.50%. In the case of a
Eurodollar loan, the Company could request an initial interest period of one, two, three, or six months from the date of
initial borrowing. Interest on Eurodollar loans was payable on the last day of each contract period, subject to a maximum
payment term of three months. Interest was payable at the end of each quarter for an ABR loan. On either type of loan,
interest accrued to the date of repayment was due with that repayment.

The Company was required to pay a quarterly commitment fee to the Revolver lenders equal to 0.50% on the
undrawn revolving commitment. Additionally, the Company was required to pay an administrative fee of $125,000 per year
in quarterly installments with the first installment due on the closing date.

On December 31, 2013 (Predecessor), prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization, $68.0 million was
outstanding on the Revolver. As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, a partial
paydown of $8.8 million was made on the Revolver from the $135.0 million of proceeds received by the Company as part of
the issuance of new equity instruments of the post-emergence Company. The remaining $59.2 million amount outstanding
after the partial paydown was converted into the Converted Term Loan as part of the Emergence (Successor) Credit Facility.

Debt issuance costs of $4.4 million related to the Revolver were being amortized to interest expense over the term
of the facility. The amount of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the Revolver was $2.2 million at December 31,
2013 (Predecessor) prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization. The $2.2 million of unamortized debt
issuance costs as of December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) were written off and charged to Reorganization items in the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Letters of credit totaling $39.2 million were issued under the letter of credit sub-line as of December 31, 2013
(Predecessor) prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization. Amounts related to outstanding letters of credit
issued under the letter of credit sub-line to the Revolver bore a participation fee of 4.25% and a fronting fee of 0.125%,
payable quarterly. These letters of credit primarily supported the Company’s future expected insurance claim payments or
deductible arrangements. As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, the letters
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of credit were converted into the Exit Letter of Credit Facility collateralized by the Backstop Loan, as part of the Emergence
(Successor) Credit Facility.

Emergence (Successor) Credit Facility

As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization upon the Company’s emergence from Chapter 11 on
December 31, 2013 (see Note 2), the Company entered into a credit agreement with Credit Suisse AG, as Administrative
Agent, which included an Existing Term Loan due June 2018 (the “Existing Term Loan”), a Converted Term Loan due June
2016 (the “Converted Term Loan”), and an Exit Letter of Credit Facility supported by a Backstop Loan due June 2018 (the
“Backstop Loan”). As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, the remaining
portion of the Term Loan was converted into the Existing Term Loan, the remaining portion of the Revolver was converted
into the Converted Term Loan, and the letters of credit that were part of the pre-petition (Predecessor) Credit Facility were
converted into the Exit Letter of Credit Facility collateralized by the Backstop Loan. The Existing Term Loan and the
Converted Term Loan are collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company, while the Backstop Loan is
collateralized by the funds held on deposit that support the letters of credit.

Existing Term Loan

As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, the $277.3 million remaining
portion of the Term Loan was converted into the Existing Term Loan. The Company can elect for the Existing Term Loan to
be specified as either a Eurocurrency loan or an ABR loan. Eurocurrency loans bear interest at Adjusted LIBOR, as defined in
the credit agreement, plus an applicable margin of 7.50%, provided that, prior to the second anniversary of the Effective
Date, 6.50% shall be paid in cash and 1.00% shall be Paid-in-Kind, subject to an Adjusted LIBOR floor of 1.50%. ABR loans
bear interest at the ABR as defined in the credit agreement plus an applicable margin of 6.50%, provided that, prior to the
second anniversary of the Effective Date, 5.50% shall be paid in cash and 1.00% shall be Paid-in-Kind, subject to an ABR
floor of 2.50%. In the case of a Eurocurrency loan, the Company may request an initial interest period of one, two, three, or
six months from the date of initial borrowing. Interest on Eurocurrency loans is payable on the last day of each contract
period, subject to a maximum payment term of three months. Interest is payable at the end of each quarter for an ABR
loan. On either type of loan, interest accrued to the date of repayment is due with that repayment. Upon the Emergence
Date, the Company elected that the Existing Term Loan be specified as a Eurocurrency loan.

On December 31, 2015, the Company is required to repay approximately $20.6 million of principal on the Existing
Term Loan. The Company has the right to prepay unpaid principal, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the maturity
date without premium or penalty. If a voluntary payment is made prior to December 31, 2015, the payment will reduce the
amount required to be paid on December 31, 2015 by the amount of the voluntary payment. The Company may be
required to make prepayments upon the occurrence of certain events as specified in the credit agreement. The remaining
unpaid principal is required to be repaid on the maturity date of June 30, 2018.

Debt issuance costs of $1.4 million related to the Existing Term Loan will be amortized to interest expense over
the term of the loan.

Converted Term Loan

As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, the $59.2 million remaining
portion of the Revolver was converted into the Converted Term Loan. The Company can elect for the Existing Term Loan to
be specified as either a Eurocurrency loan or an ABR loan. Eurocurrency loans bear interest at Adjusted LIBOR, as defined in
the credit agreement, plus an applicable margin of 7.50%, provided that, prior to the second anniversary of the Effective
Date, 6.50% shall be paid in cash and 1.00% shall be Paid-in-Kind, subject to an Adjusted LIBOR floor of 1.50%. ABR loans
bear interest at the ABR as defined in the credit agreement plus an applicable margin of 6.50%, provided that, prior to the
second anniversary of the Effective Date, 5.50% shall be paid in cash and 1.00% shall be Paid-in-Kind, subject to an ABR
floor of 2.50%. In the case of a Eurocurrency loan, the Company may request an initial interest period of one, two, three, or
six months from the date of initial borrowing. Interest on Eurocurrency loans is payable on the last day of each contract
period, subject to a maximum payment term of three months. Interest is payable at the end of each quarter for an ABR
loan. On either type of loan, interest accrued to the date of repayment is due with that repayment. Upon the Emergence
Date, the Company elected that the Converted Term Loan be specified as a Eurocurrency loan.

29



On December 31, 2015, the Company is required to repay approximately $4.4 million of principal on the Converted
Term Loan. The Company has the right to prepay unpaid principal, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the maturity
date without premium or penalty. If a voluntary payment is made prior to December 31, 2015, the payment will reduce the
amount required to be paid on December 31, 2015 by the amount of the voluntary payment. The Company may be
required to make prepayments upon the occurrence of certain events as specified in the credit agreement. The remaining
unpaid principal is required to be repaid on the maturity date of June 30, 2016.

Debt issuance costs of $0.3 million related to the Converted Term Loan will being amortized to interest expense
over the term of the loan.

Backstop Term Loan

Letters of credit totaling $39.2 million were issued under the letter of credit sub-line of the Revolver as of
December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization. Also prior to the
implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, the Company had $2.0 million of letters of credit
issued that were directly collateralized by the Company by $2.1 million of cash deposits held by Credit Suisse AG. As part of
the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, the issued letters of credit under the letter of
credit subline of the Revolver was converted into the Exit Letter of Credit Facility supported by the Backstop Loan, as part of
the Emergence (Successor) Credit Facility, and the $2.1 million of cash deposits that collateralized the $2.0 million of issued
letters of credit were refunded to the Company by Credit Suisse AG. As part of the implementation of the Plan of
Reorganization on December 31, 2013, the $39.2 million of issued letters of credit under the letter of credit subline of the
Revolver was converted into the Exit Letter of Credit Facility and the $2.0 million of letters of credit previously collateralized
by the Company was added to the Exit Letter of Credit Facility. The $41.2 million of total letters of credit included in the
Exit Letter of Credit Facility was collateralized by the Backstop Loan, in an amount that was 102.5% of the value of the
letters of credit, or $42.3 million. The $42.3 million of collateral for the letters of credit is included in Deposits in the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2013 (Successor).

The Company can elect for the Existing Term Loan to be specified as either a Eurocurrency loan or an ABR loan.
Eurocurrency loans bear interest at Adjusted LIBOR, as defined in the credit agreement, plus an applicable margin of 7.50%,
provided that, prior to the second anniversary of the Effective Date, 6.50% shall be paid in cash and 1.00% shall be Paid-in-
Kind, subject to an Adjusted LIBOR floor of 1.50%. ABR loans bear interest at the ABR as defined in the credit agreement
plus an applicable margin of 6.50%, provided that, prior to the second anniversary of the Effective Date, 5.50% shall be paid
in cash and 1.00% shall be Paid-in-Kind, subject to an ABR floor of 2.50%. In the case of a Eurocurrency loan, the Company
may request an initial interest period of one, two, three, or six months from the date of initial borrowing. Interest on
Eurocurrency loans is payable on the last day of each contract period, subject to a maximum payment term of three
months. Interest is payable at the end of each quarter for an ABR loan. On either type of loan, interest accrued to the date
of repayment is due with that repayment. Upon the Emergence Date, the Company elected that the Converted Term Loan
be specified as a Eurocurrency loan.

The Company has the right to prepay unpaid principal, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the maturity date
without premium or penalty. The Company may be required to make prepayments upon the occurrence of certain events
as specified in the credit agreement. The remaining unpaid principal is required to be repaid on the maturity date of June
30, 2018.

Debt issuance costs of $1.1 million related to the Backstop Term Loan will be amortized to interest expense over
the term of the loan.

$200.0 million Senior Notes

On June 30, 2011, the Company issued $200.0 million 10.125% Senior Notes that were scheduled to mature on July
15, 2019. Interest on the $200.0 million Senior Notes was payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15, beginning
January 15, 2012.

The $200.0 million Senior Notes were senior unsecured obligations and ranked equally and ratably with all existing
senior indebtedness. The $200.0 million Senior Notes were effectively subordinated to all existing secured indebtedness,
including obligations under the Credit Facility, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt. The $200.0
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million Senior Notes were unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally on a senior unsecured basis by each of the
Company’s subsidiaries that guaranteed the Credit Facility. The guarantees ranked equally in right of payment with all of
the guarantors’ existing indebtedness and were effectively subordinated to their existing secured indebtedness to the
extent of the value of the assets securing that indebtedness.

Upon the Debtors’ filing for bankruptcy on August 4, 2013, the Company ceased accruing for interest payable
related to the $200.0 million Senior Notes as the $200.0 million Senior Notes were reclassified to liabilities subject to
compromise. The Company also ceased amortizing the remaining unamortized debt issuance costs related to the $200.0
million Senior Notes.

As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, claims arising under the
$200.0 million Senior Notes were converted into common stock of WP Rocket Holdings Inc. upon the Company’s
emergence from Chapter 11. The cancellation of the $200.0 million Senior Notes that resulted from the implementation of
the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013 was recognized within Reorganization items in the Company’s
Consolidated Statement of Operations. Cancellation of interest payable of $11.3 million related to the $200.0 million Senior
Notes was also recognized within Reorganization items in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Debt issuance costs of $4.6 million related to the $200.0 million Senior Notes were being amortized to interest
expense over the term of the facility resulting in an effective interest rate of 10.41% during 2013 (Predecessor). The
amount of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the $200.0 million Senior Notes was $3.4 million at December 31,
2013 (Predecessor) prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization. The $3.4 million of unamortized debt
issuance costs as of December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) were written off and charged to Reorganization items in the
Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

$108.0 million Senior Discount Notes

On February 3, 2012, the Company issued $108.0 million 10.125% Senior Discount Notes due 2019 (“$108.0 million
Senior Notes”). The proceeds, net of the original issue discount, from the issuance of the notes were $92.9 million. The
$108.0 million Senior Notes bore interest at a stated rate of 10.125% per annum and was scheduled to mature on July 15,
2019. Interest on the notes was payable semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and July 15 of each year.

The $108.0 million Senior Notes were senior unsecured obligations and ranked equally and ratably with all existing
senior indebtedness. The notes were effectively subordinated to all of the Company’s existing secured indebtedness,
including obligations under its senior secured credit facilities, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt.
The $108.0 million Senior Notes were unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally on a senior unsecured basis by each
of our subsidiaries that guaranteed the Company’s Credit Facility. The guarantees ranked equally in right of payment with
all of the subsidiary guarantors’ existing indebtedness and were effectively subordinated to their existing secured
indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing that indebtedness. To the extent lenders under the senior
secured credit facilities released any subsidiary guarantor from the Company’s obligations; such subsidiary guarantor would
also be released from its obligations under the notes. The $108.0 million Senior Notes were structurally subordinated to all
obligations of any of the Company’s subsidiaries that do not guarantee the notes.

Upon the Debtors’ filing for bankruptcy on August 4, 2013, the Company ceased accruing for interest payable
related to the $108.0 million Senior Notes as the $108.0 million Senior Notes were reclassified to liabilities subject to
compromise. The Company also ceased amortizing the remaining unamortized original issuance discount and unamortized
debt issuance costs related to the $108.0 million Senior Notes.

As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013, claims arising under the
$108.0 million Senior Notes were converted into common stock of WP Rocket Holdings Inc. upon the Company’s
emergence from Chapter 11. The cancellation of the $108.0 million Senior Notes that resulted from the implementation of
the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013 was recognized within Reorganization items in the Company’s
Consolidated Statement of Operations. Cancellation of interest payable of $6.0 million related to the $108.0 million Senior
Notes was also recognized within Reorganization items in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.

On December 31, 2013 (Predecessor), prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization, the unamortized
original issue discount was $12.1 million. The $12.1 million of unamortized original issuance discount as of December 31,
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2013 (Predecessor) was written off and charged to Reorganization items in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of
Operations.

Debt issuance costs of $2.0 million related to the $108.0 million Senior Notes were being amortized to interest
expense over the term of the facility resulting in an effective interest rate of 12.22% during 2013 (Predecessor). The
amount of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the Term Loan was $1.6 million at December 31, 2013 (Predecessor)
prior to the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization. The $1.6 million of unamortized debt issuance costs as of
December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) were written off and charged to Reorganization items in the Company’s Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

DIP Financing

On August 4, 2013, the Company entered into a senior secured super priority debtor in possession credit
agreement (the “DIP Financing”), with an effective date of August 7, 2013. The DIP Financing provided a term loan facility
of $75.0 million in the aggregate which was intended to provide the Company with sufficient liquidity to meet its
operational and restructuring needs during the Chapter 11 process. On August 6, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court granted
interim approval for the Company to utilize up to $40 million of the DIP Financing, and on September 10, 2013, the
Bankruptcy Court granted final approval for the Company to utilize the remaining $35 million of the DIP Financing.

Upon the effective date of the DIP Financing, the Company could elect that the DIP Financing be specified as a
Eurocurrency loan or an ABR loan. Eurocurrency loans bear interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 9.50%. 8.50%
shall be paid in cash and 1.00% shall be Paid-in-Kind, subject to a LIBOR floor of 1.50%. ABR loans bear interest at the ABR
as defined in the credit agreement plus an applicable margin of 8.50%. 7.50% shall be paid in cash and 1.00% shall be Paid-
in-Kind, subject to an ABR floor of 2.50%. In the case of a Eurocurrency loan, the Company may request an initial interest
period of one, two, three, or six months from the date of initial borrowing. Interest is payable at the end of each month for
a Eurocurrency loan and for an ABR loan. The DIP Financing was an ABR loan as of the effective date of the DIP Financing,
and subsequently converted to a Eurocurrency loan.

The DIP Financing was scheduled to mature the earliest of March 31, 2014 or the effective date of any Chapter 11
plan of the Debtors, or other specified events. On December 31, 2014, the Company emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy
protection, and as part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization, all outstanding principal and interest was paid
on December 31, 2013.

Debt issuance costs of $3.6 million related to the DIP Financing were amortized to interest expense over the term
of the facility through December 31, 2013, resulting in an effective interest rate of 26.7% during 2013 (Predecessor).

Debt Maturities

Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2013 (Successor) for each of the years ending
December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2014 S 754
2015 25,740
2016 55,364
2017 242
2018 299,114
Thereafter 847

S 382,061

Debt Covenants
Predecessor Debt Covenants

The Predecessor Credit Facility, the $200.0 million Senior Notes and the $108.0 million Senior Notes included
various financial and non-financial covenants applicable to the Company as well as quarterly and annual financial reporting
obligations. These covenants, among other things, restricted the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness; create
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liens; engage in mergers or consolidations; sell or transfer assets; engage in certain sale and leaseback transactions; pay
dividends and distributions or repurchase capital stock; make investments, loans or advances; prepay certain subordinated
indebtedness; make certain acquisitions; engage in certain transactions with affiliates; amend material agreements
governing certain subordinated indebtedness; and change its fiscal year.

On May 10, 2013, the Company entered into an amendment to its Senior Secured Credit Agreement among the
Company, Credit Suisse AG, as Administrative Agent and certain lenders constituting the Required Revolving Lenders (as
defined in the credit agreement) that amended (i) the financial covenant levels applicable to revolving loans such that the
first lien leverage ratio for the quarter(s) ending (a) June 30, 2013, shall be no greater than 5.0:1.0; (b) September 30, 2013,
shall be no greater than 5.5:1.0; (c) December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2014, 5.75:1.0; (d) June 30, 2014 and September 30,
2014, 5.25:1.0; (e) December 31, 2014, 5.0:1.0; (f) March 31, 2015, 4.75:1.0; and (g) June 30, 2015 and thereafter, 4.50:1.0;
and (ii) the method for calculating Consolidated EBITDA as it applies to such financial covenant, adding-back until the year
ending June 30, 2013 the amount of any write-downs that reduced Consolidated Net Income in such period in respect of
any adjustment made to any estimate of any reserve for accounts receivable. The amendment also waived any defaults
that may have occurred during the quarter ending March 31, 2013 in respect of the financial covenant. As consideration for
the Amendment the Company agreed to pay to each Lender a fee at the rate of 0.25% per year on (i) the amount of
outstanding revolving loans and (ii) the aggregate amount of letter of credit exposure, in each case only if the total leverage
ratio if less than 4.75:1.0.

When any amounts were drawn on the Revolver, the Credit Facility required the Company not to exceed a
maximum first lien secured debt leverage ratio, which was calculated based on the results of the Company for four
consecutive fiscal quarters.

The Company’s actual calculated first lien leverage ratio for the quarter ending June 30, 2013 was 4.16, which was
in compliance with the maximum allowed per the Company’s Senior Secured Credit Agreement, as amended. As a result of
the Company filing for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy protection on August 4, 2013, the first lien leverage ratio for the quarter
ending September 30, 2013 was not calculated.

Successor Debt Covenants

The Successor Credit Facility includes various financial and non-financial covenants applicable to the Company as
well as quarterly and annual financial reporting obligations. These covenants, among other things, restrict the Company’s
ability to incur additional indebtedness; create liens; engage in mergers or consolidations; sell or transfer assets; engage in
certain sale and leaseback transactions; pay dividends and distributions or repurchase capital stock; make investments,
loans or advances; make certain acquisitions; engage in certain transactions with affiliates; and change its fiscal year other
than the change to a December 31 fiscal year made upon emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy.

Beginning with the quarter ended June 30, 2015, the Company will be subject to maximum Total Leverage Ratio of
the following:
Maximum Total

Period Leverage Ratio
Fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015 8.90:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2015 8.80:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2015 8.10:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2016 8.00:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2016 7.80:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2016 7.60:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2016 7.50:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2017 7.20:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2017 7.10:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2017 7.00:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2017 6.80:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended March 31,2018 6.50:1.00
Fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2018 6.40:1.00
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Total Leverage Ratio, as defined in the credit agreement, is the ratio of Consolidated Debt as of the test date to
Consolidated EBITDA for the most recently ended Test Period. The Test Period is the period of four consecutive quarters
through the test date.

In addition, commencing with the calendar year ended December 31, 2015 and each calendar year thereafter, the
Company will shall not make annual Capital Expenditures, as defined in the credit agreement, in an amount exceeding the
Permitted Capital Expenditure amount, as defined in the credit agreement.

DIP Financing Debt Covenants

The DIP Financing included various financial and non-financial covenants applicable to the Company as well as
quarterly and annual financial reporting obligations. These covenants, among other things, restricted the Company’s ability
to incur additional indebtedness; create liens; engage in mergers or consolidations; sell or transfer assets; engage in certain
sale and leaseback transactions; pay dividends and distributions or repurchase capital stock; make investments, loans or
advances; prepay pre-petition indebtedness; make certain acquisitions; engage in certain transactions with affiliates;
amend material agreements governing certain indebtedness; and change its fiscal year.

The Company was required to achieve cumulative adjusted consolidated EBITDA, as defined in the credit
agreement, as of the end of every month beginning August 2013 while the DIP Financing was still in place. The Company
was in compliance with all of the financial and non-financial covenants under the DIP Financing during 2013 (Predecessor).

13. INCOME TAXES

The Company operates solely within the United States. The following table shows the components of the income
tax provision from operations (in thousands):

Predecessor
Year Ended
December 31,2013
Current income tax benefit S 426
Deferred income tax (provision) (34,768)
Total income tax (provision) (34,342)
Continuing operations (provision) (34,431)
Discontinued operations benefit 89
Total income tax (provision) S (34,342)

The following table shows the components of the income tax provision applicable to continuing operations (in
thousands):

Predecessor
Year Ended
December 31,2013
Current:
Federal S -
State 418
Total 418
Deferred:
Federal (41,236)
State 6,387
Total (34,849)
Total income tax (provision) attributable
to continuing operations S (34,431)
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The income tax provision differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate
of 35% to loss from continuing operations before income taxes as follows (in thousands):

Predecessor

Year Ended
December 31,2013
Federal income tax benefit at statutory rate S 59,500
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit (1,191)
Changein valuation allowance 5,561
Disallowed interest on Senior Discount Notes (706)
Goodwill impairment (89,635)
Non-deductible bankruptcy expenses (9,070)
Penalties (1,008)
Adjustment to beginning deferred tax balances 2,303
Other, net (185)

Total income tax (provision) attributable

to continuing operations S (34,431)

The following table summarizes the components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities (in
thousands):

Successor
As of
December 31,2013
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards S 88,129
Tax credit carryforward 2,880
Insurance claim reserves 14,560
Estimate for uncompensated care 20,438
Compensation and benefits 4,010
Other 4,408
Deferred tax assets 134,425
Deferred tax liabilities:
Attribute reduction (124,093)
Accelerated depreciation and amortization (81,400)
Tax accounting method change (3,876)
Deferred tax liabilities (209,369)
Net deferred tax liabilities before valuation allowance (74,944)
Less: valuation allowance (356)
Net deferred tax liability S (75,300)

The restructuring transactions in the Plan of Reorganization substantially reduced debt obligations by (i) providing
for a $50.0 million payment of the pre-petition Credit Facility and (ii) converting claims arising under the $200.0 million
Senior Notes and the $108.0 million Senior Notes (the “Noteholder Claims”) and any unsecured claim against the Debtors
other than a Noteholder Claim into 100% of the common stock of WP Rocket Holdings Inc. upon emergence (“Reorganized
Parent”).

Pursuant to various provisions contained in Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 108(e), these transactions
resulted in Cancellation of Debt (COD) income for income tax purposes of approximately $319 million. IRC Section
108(a)(1)(A) provides that COD income is excluded from gross income when the discharge occurs in a Chapter 11 case
under the jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court. However, pursuant to IRC Section 108(b)(1), if COD income is excluded due
to the application of the bankruptcy exception, the amount of excluded COD income must generally be applied to reduce
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certain tax attributes of the debtor. In general, such attributes would normally be reduced in the following order: (1) net
operating losses (current and carry forward); (2) general business tax credits; (3) minimum tax credits; (4) capital loss
carryovers; (5) tax basis of the taxpayer’s assets; (6) passive activity losses and credit carryovers; and (7) foreign tax credit
carryovers. Under IRC Section 108(b)(4)(a), the tax attribute reduction generally occurs after determining the taxpayer’s
income tax liability for the year of the debt discharge. Currently, the Company anticipates its tax attributes will be reduced
in connection with the exclusion of the COD income. A deferred tax liability of approximately $124 million was recorded at
December 31, 2013 (Successor) in anticipation of this tax attribute reduction in 2014.

In connection with the Company’s emergence from the Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings, it experienced an
"ownership change" as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code on December 31, 2013. Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code contains rules that limit the ability of a company that undergoes an "ownership change" to utilize its
net operating loss carryforwards and certain tax credits. The Company may be able to retain a portion of its U.S. federal
and state net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards in connection with the ownership change. However, Internal
Revenue Code, or the IRC, Sections 382 and 383 provide an annual limitation with respect to the ability of a corporation to
utilize its tax attributes against future U.S. taxable income in the event of a change in ownership. In the Company’s
situation, the limitation under the IRC will generally be based on the value of the Company’s equity (for purposes of the
applicable tax rules) on or immediately following the time of emergence. As a result, the Company’s future U.S. taxable
income may not be fully offset by any remaining tax attributes if such income exceeds the Company’s annual limitation, and
the Company may incur a tax liability with respect to such income. In addition, subsequent changes in ownership for
purposes of the IRC could further diminish the Company’s ability to utilize tax attributes. An annual limitation related to the
December 31, 2013 ownership change has not been calculated because the Company has not determined that there will be
any tax attributes remaining subsequent to the required tax attribute reduction under IRC Section 108(b)(1) referenced
above.

The June 30, 2011 merger transaction with WP Rocket Holdings, Inc. was also considered an ownership change for
Section 382 purposes. The Company’s pre-change NOL’s are realizable subject to an annual limit based on the value of that
transaction. The Company’s annual limitation is $9.4 million with a potential increase of the limitation to $25 million for
any built-in gains recognized during the five-year period ending June 30, 2016.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had estimated gross net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards for federal
income tax purposes of approximately $215 million, which expire in 2021-2033, and state NOL carryforwards of
approximately $307 million, which expire in 2014-2033. The Company had Federal Minimum Tax credit carryforwards of
$1.7 million. These credits can be carried forward indefinitely, but they may only be used to the extent that regular tax
exceeds the federal alternative minimum tax in any given year. The Company also had Federal General Business Credit
carryforwards of $1.2 million, which expire in 2023-2033. These NOL and credit carryforwards will be subject to the tax
attribute reduction rules due to the excluded COD income of $319 million as discussed above.

Management regularly assesses the recoverability of the Company’s deferred tax assets and records a valuation
allowance for any such assets where recoverability is determined to be unlikely. The Company’s evaluation of its valuation
allowance against certain state deferred tax assets resulted in a valuation allowance at December 31, 2013 of $0.4 million.
The Company determined that realization of these deferred tax assets is not more likely than not based on past results and
projected future results. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for the remaining net operating losses and
tax credits due to the anticipated application of the tax attribute reduction in 2014. Valuation allowance adjustments
resulted in a net tax benefit of $5.6 million during 2013 (Predecessor).
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A summary of activity in the Company’s valuation allowance for deferred tax assets during 2013 (Predecessor) is as
follows (in thousands):

Predecessor

Year Ended
December 31,2013
Balance at beginning of period S 5,917
Changein related deferred tax assets -
Valuation allowance established -
Valuation allowance released (5,561)
Balance at end of period $ 356

As of December 31, 2013 (Successor), the Company had unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax
positions totaling approximately $22.6 million.

As of December 31, 2013 (Successor), approximately $22.5 million of the total unrecognized tax benefits is
presented on the balance sheet as a reduction of deferred tax assets related to net operating losses. The remaining
amount of unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $0.1 million is included in other long-term liabilities on the balance
sheet.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

Successor
Year Ended

December 31, 2013
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at beginning of year S 30,025
Additions for tax positions taken in current periods -
Additions for tax positions taken in prior periods 48
Reductions for tax positions taken in prior periods (6,996)
Reductions for settlements with tax authorities -
Reductions for lapses of statute of limitations (493)
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at end of year S 22,584

The Company recognizes potential accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a
component of income tax expense. Accrued interest and penalties as of December 31, 2013 (Successor) were
approximately $0.03 million. A reduction in the amount of interest and penalties of approximately $0.15 million was
recorded in 2013 (Predecessor). To the extent interest and penalties are not assessed with respect to uncertain tax
positions, amounts accrued will be reduced and reflected as a reduction of the overall income tax provision.

The Company and its subsidiaries have significant operations in the following taxing jurisdictions: U.S. federal,
Arizona, California, Florida, Indiana, New York, Ohio and Tennessee. The Company has NOLs in various years for federal
purposes and for many states. The statute of limitations for a particular tax year for examination by the Internal Revenue
Service is generally three years subsequent to the filing of the associated tax return. As a result, the 2009 through 2012 tax
years remain open and subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service. However, the Internal Revenue Service can
adjust NOL carryovers up to three years subsequent to the last year in which the loss carryover is finally used. Accordingly,
the losses generated or utilized in the closed tax years may be subject to adjustment. The statute of limitations is generally
three to four years for many of the states where the Company operates. As a result, the 2008 through 2012 tax years
generally remain open and subject to examination by the state taxing authorities. The Company does not currently have
any active income tax examinations in any tax jurisdictions.

14. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective August 12, 2011, Parent adopted the Management Stock Option Plan (the “2011 Plan”), which provided
for the granting of options to acquire common stock of the Parent. At the time of adoption, the maximum number of
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shares of common stock issuable under the 2011 Plan was 2.7 million. As of December 31, 2013 (Predecessor), 109,091
options were exercisable and 750,000 options were outstanding under the 2011 Plan. These 750,000 outstanding options
were held in aggregate by six employees.

Each option in the 2011 Plan contains two vesting conditions: 1) ‘time-based’ and 2) ‘performance-based.” With
respect to the ‘time-based’ vesting condition, five elevenths (5/11th5) of each option granted vests and becomes exercisable
with respect to 20% of the option on each of the first three years of the grant date, and then 5% per quarter, in the
following two years, and is subject to the participant’s continued employment through the applicable vesting date. With
respect to the ‘performance-based’ vesting condition, six elevenths (6/11”'5) of each option granted vests and becomes
exercisable only upon a specified event (such as, but not limited to, a qualified public offering or a change in control) and
when the Parent achieves a minimum return on investment as specified in the 2011 Plan. The two conditions were
assessed at the grant date to determine the amount of share-based compensation to recognize based on each condition
using an independent valuation model. The Company did not meet the performance-based criteria for 2013.

As part of the implementation of the Plan of Reorganization on December 31, 2013 (Successor), all outstanding
stock options were cancelled and the 2011 Plan was terminated.

The following table summarizes stock option activity in the 2011 Plan during 2013:

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Number of Exercise Remaining

Shares Price Contractual Term

Options outstanding at December 31, 2012 2,225,000 S 10.00
Granted - -
Forfeited (1,475,000) 10.00
Expired - -
Exercised - -

Options outstanding at December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) 750,000 S 10.00 3.06 years

Effect of implementation of Plan of Reorganization:
Cancellation of options (750,000)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2013 (Successor) -

Share-based compensation expense recognized during 2013 (Predecessor) was $0.1 million. The share-based
compensation expense was recorded as payroll and employee benefits expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations.
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan (“401(k) Plan”) covering eligible employees. The 401(k) Plan allows
employees to contribute a portion of their compensation on a pre-tax or post-tax basis in accordance with plan and
statutory rules. The Company matches a percentage of the employee’s contributions according to the 401(k) Plan rules.
Contributions for non-union employees are made at the Company’s discretion. The match may be made subject to the
401(k) Plan terms. The Company may also make discretionary profit sharing contributions subject to the 401(k) Plan terms.
Matching contributions of $3.2 million were made for the 401(k) Plan during 2013 (Predecessor). The contributions
expense was recorded as payroll and employee benefits expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The
Company’s matching contribution liability was $2.3 million as of December 31, 2013 (Successor). The Company did not
contribute discretionary profit sharing during 2013 (Predecessor).

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Company provides a defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”) covering eligible employees of one of
its subsidiaries, primarily those covered by collective bargaining arrangements. Eligibility is achieved upon the completion
of one year of service. Participants become fully vested in their accrued benefit after the completion of five years of
service.

The Company’s general funding policy is to make annual contributions to the Pension Plan as required by the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”). The Company did not make any contributions during 2013
(Predecessor).

The following table shows a reconciliation of changes in the Pension Plan’s benefit obligation and plan assets for
2013 (Predecessor) (in thousands):

Predecessor
Year Ended
December 31,2013
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period S 21,906
Service cost 2,226
Interest cost 933
Plan participants’ contributions -
Benefits paid (51)
Actuarial gain (4,801)
Benefit obligation at end of period (Successor) 20,213
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 14,355
Actual return on plan assets 2,285
Employer contributions -
Benefits paid (51)
Plan participants’ contributions -
Fair value of plan assets at end of period (Successor) 16,589
Funded status at end of period (Successor) S (3,624)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet totaling $3.6 million as of December 31, 2013 (Successor)
were classified as noncurrent liabilities.

Prior to the Company’s emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection, the amount in accumulated other
comprehensive income before income taxes that had not been recognized as net periodic benefit cost as of December 31,

2013 (Predecessor) consisted of $3.5 million in accumulated net actuarial gains. As part of fresh start accounting,
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accumulated other comprehensive income is eliminated. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2013 (Successor), accumulated
other comprehensive income is SO.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Pension Plan was $14.5 million as of December 31, 2013 (Successor).

The components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized as comprehensive (income) loss are as
follows (in thousands):

Predecessor
Year Ended
December 31,2013

Net periodic benefit cost

Service cost S 2,226

Interest cost 933

Expected return on plan assets (1,072)
Net periodic benefit cost (a) $ 2,087

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations
recognized as other comprehensive income

Net gain S (6,011)
Net gain recognized during the period 21
Total recognized in other comprehensive income (b) S (5,990)
Total recognized as net periodic benefit cost and
other comprehensive income S (3,903)

(a) Net periodic benefit cost does not include the $21,000 of net gain recognized through other comprehensive income.
(b) In the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit, the adjustment to accumulated other
comprehensive gain in 2013 (Predecessor) was net of an income tax provision of $2.3 million related to the net gain.

The assumptions used to determine the Company’s benefit obligation as of December 30, 2013 were:

Discount rate 5.36%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.00%

The assumptions used to determine the Company’s net periodic benefit cost for 2013 (Predecessor) were:

Predecessor

Year Ended
December 31, 2013
Discount rate 521%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 7.50%

In 2013 (Predecessor), the Company changed its model to determine the discount rate from using the spot rate of
a theoretical corporate bond portfolio to using a rate link yield curve, as it provides a more reasonable estimate of the
present value of the required cash flow. The resulting discount rate is reflective of both the current interest rate
environment and the Plan’s distinct liability characteristics.

In developing the expected long-term rate of return assumption, management evaluated the outputs of financial

models designed to simulate results under multiple investment scenarios and to estimate long-term investment returns
based on the Pension Plan’s asset allocation.
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The Company’s Pension Plan target and actual asset allocation as of December 31, 2013 (Successor) by asset
category are shown below:

Actual

December 31,2013

Target (Successor)

Allocation Allocation

Asset allocation:

Equity securities 60% —70% 58.0%
Debt securities 25% —-40% 33.9%
Real estate 5%—15% 8.1%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

The Company invests in a diversified portfolio to ensure that adverse or unexpected results from a security class
will not have a detrimental impact on the entire portfolio. The portfolio is diversified by asset type, performance and risk
characteristics, and number of investments. Asset classes and ranges considered appropriate for investment of the Pension
Plan’s assets are determined by the Pension Plan’s investment committee. The asset classes include domestic and foreign
equities, emerging market equities, domestic and foreign investment grade and high-yield bonds and domestic real estate.

Plan Assets

The Company has adopted the fair value provisions (as described in Note 5) for the plan assets of its defined
benefit pension plan. The Company categorizes plan assets within a three level fair value hierarchy.

Plan assets consist of Separate Accounts that invest in multiple underlying securities. In some cases, the inputs
used to measure fair value might fall in different levels of the fair value hierarchy. The level in the fair value hierarchy within
which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement in its entirety. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets
measured at fair value:

Level 1 investments are stated at fair value as determined by quoted market prices on the last business day of the
fiscal year.

Investments stated at estimated fair value using significant observable inputs (Level 2) include:

- Domestic equity securities: initial purchase price for newly issued securities not yet actively trading, share
price of underlying security, terms (rights and warrants) represent observable input which is used in
calculation of estimated fair value;

- International equity securities: multi-factor regression model is used to adjust quoted market prices; and

- U.S. government debt securities: multi-dimensional relational model, plus: 1) option adjusted spread model
(if redemption option), 2) floating rate model (if floating/variable) or 3) sensitivity analysis to how traded
compared to how equities trade (if convertible), or other proprietary pricing models using observable inputs.

Investments stated at estimated fair value using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) include:

- Real estate: discounted models utilizing information from brokers on market rents and sales comparables for
similar assets, as well as applicable cash flows generated by the property.
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The fair values of the Pension Plan assets as of December 31, 2013 (Successor) by asset class are as follows (in
thousands):

As of December 31, 2013 (Successor)

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Total Markets for Observable Unobservable
Measured at Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity securities:
Domestic large-cap S 5743  §$ 4580 § 1,163 S -
Domestic small- and mid-cap 1,460 1,460 - -
International 2,424 2,175 249 -
Total equity securities 9,627 8,215 1,412 -
Debt securities:
U.S. government 5,063 2,946 2,117 -
U.S. corporate 562 562 - -
Total debt securities 5,625 3,508 2,117 -
Real estate 1,337 346 - 991
Total plan assets S 16,589 S 12,069 S 3,529 § 991

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 Pension Plan assets for 2013 (Predecessor) (in thousands):

Predecessor
Net Transfers Successor
Fair Value at Gain on Plan Net Into/(Out of) Fair Value at
December 31,2012 Assets (a) Purchases/Sales Level 3 December 31,2013
Real estate $ 944  $ 118 S (71) $ - S 991
Total $ 944 S 118 S (7) § - S 991

(a)  Unrealized gain on Level 3 Pension Plan assets was approximately $118,000 for 2013 (Predecessor).

The Company does not expect to contribute to the Pension Plan during 2014.
Future benefit payments expected to be made from Plan assets are summarized below by year (in thousands):

Expected benefit payments:

2014 $ 79
2015 105
2016 160
2017 215
2018 295
2019-2023 3,344

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Performance Bonds

Certain counties, municipalities and fire districts require the Company to provide a performance bond or other
assurance of financial or performance responsibility. The Company may also be required by law to post a performance
bond as a prerequisite to obtaining and maintaining a license to operate. As a result, the Company has performance bonds
that are renewable annually. The Company had $20.6 million of performance bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2013
(Successor).
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Operating Leases

The Company leases various facilities and equipment under operating lease agreements. Rental expense charged
to continuing operations under these leases (including leases with terms of less than one year) was $21.7 million in fiscal
2013.

Minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases for each of the years ending December 31
are as follows (in thousands):

2014 S 13,359
2015 10,197
2016 7,003
2017 5,300
2018 4,179
Thereafter 10,572

S 50,610

Indemnifications

The Company is a party to certain customer agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business pursuant
to which it may be obligated to indemnify other parties for certain liabilities that arise out of or relate to the subject matter
of the agreements. Some of the agreements entered into by the Company require it to indemnify other parties against
losses due to property damage including environmental contamination, personal injury, failure to comply with applicable
laws and regulations, the Company’s negligence or reckless or willful misconduct, or breach of representations, warranties
and covenants.

Additionally, some of the Company’s customer agreements require the Company to provide certain assurances
related to the performance of its services. Such assurances may obligate the Company to (i) pay penalties for failure to
meet response times or other requirements, (ii) lease, sell or assign equipment or facilities (either temporarily or
permanently, and in compliance with the Anti-Kickback Statute) in the event of uncured defaults or other certain
circumstances, or (iii) provide performance bonds or letters of credit issued in favor of the customer to cover damages
resulting, under certain circumstances, from the Company’s default. With respect to such performance bonds, the
Company also is required to indemnify the surety company for losses paid as a result of any claims made against such
bonds.

The Company and its subsidiaries provide for indemnification of directors, officers and other persons in accordance
with limited liability agreements, certificates of incorporation, by-laws, articles of association or similar organizational
documents, as the case may be. In addition, the Company has entered into indemnification agreements with certain
members of management of the Company. The Company maintains directors’ and officers’ insurance, which may enable it
to recover a portion of any future amounts paid, although there can be no assurance that the coverage provided by such
policies would be applicable to particular claims made against the Company or that amounts available under such policies
would be sufficient to satisfy fully the Company’s payment obligations.

In addition to the above, from time to time the Company provides standard representations, warranties and
covenants to counterparties in contracts in connection with various commercial matters including sales of its securities and
the engagement of financial advisors, and also provides indemnities that protect the counterparties to these contracts in
the event they suffer damages as a result of a breach of such representations, warranties and covenants, or in certain other
circumstances.

While the Company’s future obligations under certain agreements may contain limitations on liability for
indemnification, other agreements do not contain such limitations, and under such agreements it is not possible to predict
the maximum potential amount of future payments due to the conditional nature of the Company’s obligations and the
unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement. Historically, payments made by the Company under
any of these indemnities have not had a material effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows. Additionally, based on facts and circumstances currently known to the Company, other than the
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matters described in the Legal Proceedings below, it does not believe that any amounts that it may be required to pay
under these indemnities in the future will be material to the its business, financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, the Company is a party to, or otherwise involved in, lawsuits, claims, proceedings,
investigations and other legal matters that have arisen in the ordinary course of conducting its business. The Company is
unable to reasonably estimate the outcome of any of these lawsuits, claims, proceedings, investigations and other legal
matters to which it is a party, or in which it is otherwise involved, due to, among other things, the inherent uncertainties of
litigation, government investigations and proceedings and legal matters in general. The Company is also subject to requests
and subpoenas for information in independent investigations. An unfavorable outcome in any of the lawsuits pending
against the Company or in a government investigation or proceeding could result in substantial potential liabilities and have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Further,
these proceedings and investigations, and the Company’s actions in response to them, could result in substantial potential
liabilities, additional defense and other costs, increase the Company’s indemnification obligations, divert management’s
attention, and/or adversely affect the Company’s ability to execute its business and financial strategies. Other than the
matters described below, the Company does not believe the outcome of any of these investigations or audits would have a
probable material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Shareholder Lawsuit

The Company, each member of the Board of Directors, Warburg, Parent, and Merger Sub were named as
defendants in purported class action lawsuits brought by alleged stockholders of the Company challenging the Company’s
then-proposed Merger with Parent. The stockholder actions were filed in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware
(Llorens v. Rural/Metro Corporation, et al., filed April 6, 2011 and amended April 21, 2011, (the “Llorens Action”)) and
Joanna Jervis v. Rural/Metro Corporation, et al., filed May 16, 2011, (the “Jervis Delaware Action”)) and in the Superior
Court of the State of Arizona, County of Maricopa (Joanna Jervis v. Rural/Metro Corporation, et al., filed April 6, 2011 and
amended April 14, 2011, (the “Jervis Arizona Action”)).

On February 10, 2012, Lead Plaintiff Jervis (hereinafter referred to as “Lead Plaintiff”) filed an Amended Complaint.
The Amended Complaint named the Company and each member of the Board of Directors, as defendants and sought an
unspecified amount of monetary damages from each. On August 29, 2012, Lead Plaintiff filed a Second-Amended Complaint
against the Company, each member of the Board of Directors, and added RBC Capital Markets, LLC (“RBC”) and Moelis &
Company LLC (“Moelis”) as defendants to an aiding and abetting claim.

In April 2013, shortly before a trial scheduled for May 6-9, the parties to the litigation and Rural/Metro’s insurance
carriers participated in a confidential mediation. Shortly after that mediation, and following a separate settlement reached
with Plaintiff by co-defendant Moelis, the Rural/Metro Defendants and Rural/Metro’s insurance carriers reached an
agreement to settle the case with Plaintiff, pursuant to which $6.6 million was to be paid on behalf of the Rural/Metro
Defendants. The Rural/Metro Defendants entered into funding agreements with the insurance carriers pursuant to which
one carrier agreed to (and ultimately did) fund $5.0 million, a second carrier agreed to (and ultimately did) fund $1.5
million, and Rural/Metro agreed to fund (but has not paid) $0.1 million. Pursuant to a separate agreement, Moelis agreed
to and separately paid $5.0 million. RBC proceeded to trial and is awaiting a decision. A formal settlement agreement was
later entered into on August 3, 2013, and the settlement was ultimately approved by the Court on November 20, 2013. As
noted, $6.5 million of the Rural/Metro contribution was funded by the insurance carriers per agreement, the remaining
$0.1 million was not funded, and the Plaintiffs have filed a proof-of-claim related to that in the Company’s Chapter 11
bankruptcy proceeding (see Note 2). The $6.5 million receivable and $6.5 million of the liability were removed from the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Southwest Ambulance Pension Plan Grievance

On April 14, 2014, an Arbitrator issued a ruling over a grievance filed by the union representing employees covered
by the collective bargaining arrangement. The issue presented to the Arbitrator at the hearing on April 25-26, 2013, was
whether or not the Company violated the collective bargaining agreement by providing benefits under the Company’s
Southwest Ambulance Pension Plan that were less than those benefits required to be provided under the agreement. The
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Arbitrator ruled that the Company violated the collective bargaining agreement by providing a lesser benefit than required
but disagreed with the Union’s interpretation of the level of benefits. The Company is unable to estimate the impact this
decision will have on the consolidated financial statements.

Regulatory Compliance

The Company is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local governments. These laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, matters such as licensure, accreditation, government healthcare program
participation requirements, reimbursement for patient services and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Within the
healthcare industry, government investigations and allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes
and regulations by healthcare providers is ongoing. From time to time, the Company is subject to investigations relating to
Medicare and Medicaid laws pertaining to its industry. The Company cooperates fully with the government agencies that
conduct these investigations. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in exclusion from government healthcare
programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayment obligations for
patient services previously billed. Additionally, the Company initiates its own investigations and conducts audits to examine
compliance with various policies and regulations, including periodic reviews of the levels of service and corresponding rates
the Company bills to various payers. Internal investigations or audits may result in significant repayment obligations for
patient services previously billed or the modification of estimates relating to reimbursements. The Company believes that
it is substantially in compliance with fraud and abuse statutes and their applicable governmental interpretation. Other than
the matters described below, the Company believes the outcome of any of these investigations or audits would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

CID Matters — San Diego, Pacific and Bowers

In November 2011, the Company’s San Diego operation and Bowers Companies, Inc. (“Bowers”) received a Civil
Investigative Demand (“CID”) from the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) requesting documents and information relating
to alleged improper swapping arrangements with healthcare facilities. In March 2012, Pacific Ambulance, Inc. (“Pacific”)
also received a CID in connection with the DOJ’s investigation. Bowers responded to its CID on December 5, 2011, the
Company responded to its San Diego operation’s CID on December 7, 2011, and Pacific responded to its CID on May 3,
2012, all while fully cooperating with the government. The government has informed the Company that its San Diego
operations are no longer part of the government’s review. With respect to Pacific and Bowers, the Company reached an
agreement in principle with the government in May 2013, under which the Company will pay a settlement of $8.0 million,
plus interest. The Company was entitled to reimbursement of the full amount of the settlement payment by the former
owners of Pacific and Bowers pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement and related escrow account established in
connection with the Pacific and Bowers acquisitions. The settlement was paid to the Department of Justice on December
13, 2013 directly from the escrow account.

CID Matter — Southwest Ambulance

The Company and Southwest Ambulance (“Southwest”) received a CID on or around January 16, 2013. The CID
was issued by the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the District of Arizona pursuant to the False Claims Act. The investigation
concerns allegations that Southwest and/or the Company violated the False Claims Act by falsely or fraudulently billing
Medicare for emergency hospital-to-hospital ambulance services which were non-emergency services. The Company met
with the U.S. Attorney’s Office on July 10, 2013 to discuss the investigation and learn more about the scope of allegations.
During the July meeting the Arizona U.S. Attorney’s Office requested that Rural/Metro review hospital-to-hospital claims
across the enterprise to determine if additional overpayments were due; Rural/Metro agreed and conducted an internal
audit. The audit included claims sampled across the enterprise billed as hospital-to-hospital emergencies from 2007-2011.
On December 4, 2013 a final overpayment was identified and negotiations to settle the matter took place with the Arizona
U.S. Attorney’s Office. In December 2013, Southwest and the Company agreed to pay the federal government $2.8 million
to settle the claims related to this matter. Rural/Metro did not admit to any fraudulent activity or wrong doing and did not
receive any additional integrity provisions, and its subsidiaries remain in good standing with the Medicare Program. The
$2.8 million settlement was paid to the Department of Justice by the Company on December 26, 2013, and was recognized
in other operating expenses in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations.
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0IG Investigation — Buffalo

An Office of Inspector General (“OIG”) records request dated December 10, 2012, was sent to Mercy Hospital in
Buffalo, New York pertaining to interfacility specialty care transports provided by the Company. The Company became
aware of the request through Mercy Hospital personnel. The OIG agent confirmed the records were requested in
association with an investigation of the Company and patient files produced by the Company. The Company provided the
requested documentation. Subsequently, on April 14, 2014, the Company received a subpoena from the U.S. Department
of Justice Western District of New York, requesting additional information. The Company is in the process of providing the
additional documents in response to the subpoena and will continue to cooperate with the investigation. The Company is
not aware of any specific action or claims.

U.S. Attorney’s Office Subpoena — Tennessee

The U.S. Attorney’s Office issued a criminal subpoena dated July 9, 2013. The subpoena requested patient care
reports for transports provided in Germantown, Tennessee. The Company produced documents on August 30, 2013, in
response to the subpoena. It is expected that after the U.S. Attorney’s Office reviews the documents, the results will be
shared with the Company.

DEA Diversion Investigation - Louisville, Kentucky

On March 17, 2014, the Louisville, Kentucky operations identified that there were several vials of morphine
missing. The operations management and medical director submitted a timely notice to the DEA reporting the suspected
diversion of a controlled substance. Subsequently, on March 25, 2014, the DEA conducted a sight investigation and the
matter has been forwarded to the U.S. Attorney’s Office in Kentucky. The matter is currently under review and at this time
there has been no determination of civil penalties. As the matter progresses the Company will be updated.

17. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable and letters of credit. The Company places its cash with, and
obtains its letters of credit from, federally insured institutions and monitors the amount of credit exposure with any one
institution. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are limited due to the large number of
customers and their geographical dispersion.

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (“fiscal 2011”), the Company made the decision to exit the fire
protection contract in Louisiana. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 (“fiscal 2010”), the Company made the
decision to exit fire protection contracts in Florida and Wisconsin and ambulance services contracts in Salt Lake City, Utah
and Jefferson County, Georgia. Because the operations in these markets are considered separate components of the
Company, their results of operations are reported as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statement of Operations
for 2013 (Predecessor). Although the decision to exit these markets occurred in fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010, the
Consolidated Statement of Operations for 2013 (Predecessor) continue to reflect these operations as discontinued.

Revenue and loss from discontinued operations for 2013 (Predecessor) were as follows (in thousands):

Predecessor

Year Ended
December 31,2013
Net revenue from discontinued operations S 5
Loss from discontinued operations (150)

Loss from discontinued operations is presented net of income tax benefit of approximately $90,000 for 2013
(Predecessor).
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19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated new information and events through May 12, 2014, which is the date these
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine the need to either update these consolidated
financial statements or to provide additional disclosures about those events. Except for the information and events
disclosed herein, no additional disclosures were deemed necessary by the Company.
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THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

AlIA Document A310
Bid Bond

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THATWE Rural/Metro Corporation of Tennessee

296 E Howe St, Alcoa TN 37701

as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and Platte River Insurance Company

PO Box 5900, Madison, Wl 53705

a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of = Nebraska

as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, are held and firmly bound unto  Blount County Trustee TN

as Cbligee, hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sumof  Twenty Five Thousand Dollars and 00/100

Dollars ($ $25,000 )

for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal and the said Surety, bind ourselves, our heirs,
executors, administrators, successars and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

VWHEREAS, the Principal has submitted a bid for Emergency Medical Services for Blount County TN, RFP No. 2014-2323

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Obligee shall accept the bid of the Principal and the Principal shall enter into a Contract with
the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such bid, and give such bond or bonds as may be specified in the bidding or
Contract Documents with good and sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such Contract and for the prompt
payment of labor and materials fumished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter
such Coniract and give such bond or bonds, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed the
penalty hereof between the amount specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Obligee may in good faith
contract with another parly to perform the Work covered by said bid, then this obligation shall be nult and void, otherwise
to remain in full force and effect.

Signed and sealed this 3rd day of March . 2015

Rural/Metro Corporation of Tennessee

(Principal) (Seal)

{Witness)

By:

{Titie)

! Witness) =~ _ CM

) Platte Rivertstrance Company
%retm/ {Seai)
By

Attorney-in-Factand TN Licensed Non-resident Agent, {Titie)
Eileen C. Heard

AlA DOCUMENT A310 @ BID BOND @ AlA @ FEBRUARY 1970 K1) @ TIIE AMERICAN
INSTITUTF. OF ARCHITRCTS, 1735 N.Y. AVE,, N.W,, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006

Inquiry: Willis of Florida, 813-281-2095
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PLATTE RIVER INSURANCE COMPANY 41305888
POWER OF ATTORNEY '

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That the PLATTE RIVER INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation of the State of Nebraska, having its
principal offices in the City of Middleton, Wisconsin, does make, constitute and appoint

ANETT E CARDINALE; EILEEN C HEARD; MARGARET A GINEM,

its true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver for and on its behalf, as surety, and as its act and deed, any and all bonds,
undertakings and contracts of suretyship, provided that no bond or undertaking or contract of suretyship executed under this authority shall exceed in
amount the sum of

ALL WRITTEN INSTRUMENTS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED: $20,000.000.00

This Power of Attorney is granted and is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following Resolution adopted by the Board
of Directors of PLATTE RIVER INSURANCE COMPANY at a meeting duly called and held on the 8th day of January, 2002.

“RESOLVED, that the President, and Vice-President, the Secretary or Treasurer, acting individually or otherwise, be and they hereby are granted the
power and authorization to appoint by a Power of Attomey for the purposes only of executing and attesting bonds and undertakings and other writings
obligatory in the nature thereof, one or more vice-presidents, assistant secretaries and attorney(s)-in-fact, each appointee to have the powers and duties
usual to such offices to the business of the company; the signature of such officers and the seal of the Corporation may be affixed to such power of
attorney or to any certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any such power of attorney or certificate bearing such facsimile signatures or facsimile
seal shall be valid and binding upon the Corporation in the future with respect to any bond or undertaking or other writing obligatory in the nature
thereof to which it is attached. Any such appointment may be revoked, for cause, or without cause, by any of said officers, at any time.”

In connection with obligations in favor of the Florida Department of Transportation only, it is agreed that the power and authority hereby given to the
Attorney-in-Fact includes any and all consents for the release of retained percentages and/or final estimates on engineering and construction contracts
required by the State of Florida Department of Transportation. It is fully understood that consenting to the State of Florida Department of Transportation
making payment of the final estimate to the Contractor and/or its assignee, shall not relieve this surety company of any of its obligations under its bond.

In connection with obligations in favor of the Kentucky Department of Highways only; it is agreed that the power and authority hereby given to the
Attorney-in-Fact cannot be modified or revoked unless prior written personal notice of such intent has been given to the Commissioner — Departmerit of
Highways of the Commonwealth of Kentucky at least thirty (30) days prior to the modification or revocation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PLATTE RIVER INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed by its officer undersigned and
its corporate seal to be hereto affixed duly attested, this 8th day of January, 2014.

Attest:
) o -
§§‘2§\NSUW?% PLATTE RIVER INSURANCE COMPANY
%
7, -
Richard W. Allen I1I §c§ E’% /‘ .
President % 5 Stephen J. Sllls
Surety & Fidelity Operations > § CEO & President
STATE OF WISCONSIN _ : My, weamon t W
COUNTY OF DANE 58 LT

On the 8th day of January; 2014 before me personally came Stephen J. Stills, to me known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: that he
resides in the County of New York, State of New York; that he is President of PLATTE RIVER INSURANCE COMPANY, the corporation described
herein and which executed the above instrument; that he knows the seal of the said corporation; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate
seal; that it was so affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said corporation and that he signed his name thereto by like order.

Daniel W. Krueger
Notary Public, Dane Co., WI

STATE OF WISCONSIN SS.:
o My Commission Is Permanent

COUNTY OF DANE

I, the undersigned, duly elected to the office stated below, now the incumbent in PLATTE RIVER INSURANCE COMPANY, a Nebraska
Corporation, authorized to make this certificate, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing attached Power of Attorney remains in full force and has
not been revoked; and furthermore, that the Resolution of the Board of Directars, set forth in the Power of Attorney i$ now in force.

Signed and sealed at the City of Middleton, State of Wisconsin this 3' day of ,20 Z:S .

Alan S. Ogilvie
Secretary

THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT VALID UNLESS PRINTED ON GREEN SHADED BACKGROUND WITH A RED SERIAL NUMBER IN THE UPPER RIGHT HAND
CORNER. IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE AUTHENTICITY OF THIS DOCUMENT CALL, 800-475-4450. PR-POA (Rev. 11-13)
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BACKGROUND CHECK COMPLIANCE FORM

BLOUNT COUNTY GOVERNMENT

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
385 COURT STREET
MARYVILLE, TN 37804-5906
(865) 273-5740 Phone
(865) 273-5746 Fax

RFP NUMBER: 2014-2323 CONTRACT NUMBER:
BACKGROUND CHECKS: Contractors shall comply with Public Chapter 587 of 2007, as codified in Tennessee Code Annotated

Section 49-5-413 and amended in Public Chapter 1080, which requires all contractors to facilitate a criminal history records check
conducted by the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation and the Federal Bureau of Investigation for each employee prior to permitting the
employee to have contact with students or enter school grounds when students are present.

Any person, corporation or other entity or any employee of any person, corporation or entity who enters into or renews a contract with
a local board of education or child care program on or after September 1, 2007, must:

(1) Provide a fingerprint sample

(2) Submit to a criminal history records check to be conducted by the Tennessee Bureau of Investigations and the Federal Bureau

of Investigations.
Company or Individuals (Name) Address
Rural/Metro Corporation of Tennessee 296 E. Howe St.
City, State, Zip Code Telephone Number
Alcoa, Tennessee 37701

( 865 ) 977-5420

Contractor License Number (If Applicable)

I agree to abide by Public Chapter 587 of 2007, as codified in Tennessee Code Annotated Section 49-5-413 and amended in Public
Chapter 1080, and certify that I am authorized to sign. The undersigned further agrees if this bid or contract is accepted, to furnish any
and all of the Background Check Information on himself and all of his employees as required by law, at the request of Blount County
Government. 1 hereby agree to release all criminal history and other required information to Blount County Government, the
Tennessee Bureau of Investigation and the Federal Bureau of Investigation in accordance with Tennessee law and I further certify that
all information supplied by me regarding this inquiry is true and accurate. I agree to release and hold harmless the above-mentioned
governmental entities for the use of this information related to the purposes mandated under Tennessee law. I further certify that I have
obtained acceptable criminal history information on all current employees and will obtain said information on future employees
associated with the performance of the .work defined in this bid or contract, pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 49-5-413
and that neither I nor any employee of mine is prohibited from direct contact with school children for the reasons enumerated in

Tennessee Code Annotategd Sgctio
Signature: Title: East Division President

g

Printed Name: ot [aSWe oy Date:  3/3/2015

(Please Print Qlearly) (Month, Day, Year)

Background Check Form-School Dept Contracts 12-5-07
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Title VI

For Title VI Compliance, the County of Blount requests voluntary
disclosure of the following information, related to the owner/operator
of the company:

Company Name: Rural/Metro Corporation of Tennessee

Address: 296 E. Howe St. Alcoa, Tennessee 37701

Phone Number: (865 )977-5420 Fax Number: (865)982-8341

M\/ 3/3/2015

Authorized, Signafure Date

Business Ownership (Check One or More) Ownership Ethnicity (Check Only One)
[ ]p bisabled [ ]~ Non-Minority C Caucasian
(Minority Owned) Owned B Black/African American
I:l G Government I:l F Female H Hispanic
Owned (Minority Owned) A Asian
E Race/Ethnic |:| M Male I American Indian or Alaskan Native
Background (Minority Owned) N Native Hawaiian or other Pacific
(Minority Owned) D P Non-Profit Islander
Organization [ ] o otherSpecify)
RFP No. (if applicable): 2014-2323
RFP Title; Emergency Medical Services for Blount County, TN
Date of RFP Deadline: h 03,2015 at 1:30 cal time

The County of Blount complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Acts of 1964, as codified in 42 U.S.C. 2000D,
which states that: '

No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal
financial assistance.

The County of Blount does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or treatment of
employment in, its program or activities and is in compliance with ADA (American with Disabilities Act of 1990)
42 U.S.C. 12101.
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Page 1 of 2

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
05/ 06/ 2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER . .- _
Willis of Florida,

c/o 26 Century Blvd
P.0. Box 305191
Nashville, TN

Inc.

372305191 USA

CONTACT
NAME:

FA’—/KC)NI\IEO Ext): 1- 877-945- 7378 FAA/é No): 1- 888-467- 2378

E-MAIL e o
ADDRESs: Certificates@illis.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A : Lexi ngton I nsurance Conpany 19437

INSUREDL | a1 /Metro Corporation INSURER B : ACE Anerican | nsurance Conpany 22667
9221 E. Via de Ventura INSURER C :
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 INSURER D :
INSURER E :
INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: V848102

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1, 000, 000
x DAMAGE TO RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 50, 000
A CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5, 000
X | Prof. Liab Clains Made 6797001 05/ 01/ 2014 | 05/ 01/ 2015 | peRsONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1, 000, 000
X | $1, 000, 000 GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 5, 000, 000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 1, 000, 000
POLICY TRO: Loc $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (2 gccdent s 2,000, 000
X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
B [ -
AL OWNED ig;‘ggULED | SA H08820533 05/ 01/ 2014 | 05/ 01/ 2015 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS Per accident)
X |Auto - ACS $
A | X | UMBRELLALIAB X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10,000, 000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 6797002 05/ 01/ 2014 | 05/ 01/ 2015 | AGGREGATE $ 10, 000, 000
DED ‘ ‘ RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION % | WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
B | ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 2, 000, 000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A W.R C47887707 05/ 01/ 2014 |05/ 01/ 2015
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ 2, 000, 000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below. E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 2,000, 000
B |NY Auto Liability | SA H0O871860A 01/01/2014 |01/ 01/ 2015 50, 000 Each Acci dent

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

|[Evidence Only.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

BT,

ACORD 25 (2010/05) e ACORD nar

The ACORD name and logo are re
BAT

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

istered marks of ACORD
[ Batch #: 516




AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC #:

) ]
A'CORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2
AGENCY NAMED INSURED
Willis of Florida, Inc. Rural/Metro Corporation
POLICY NUMBER 9221 E. Via de Ventura
See Page 1 Scottsdale, AZ 85258
CARRIER NAIC CODE
See Page 1 See Page 1 | gppecTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

EORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

INSURER AFFORDING COVERAGE: ACE American Insurance Company NAIC#: 22667
POLICY NUMBER: WCU C47887690 EFF DATE: 05/01/2014 EXP DATE: 05/01/2015

TYPE OF INSURANCE: LIMITS:

Each accident 2,000,000

Disease- policy limit 2,000,000

Disease- each employee 2,000,000

Additional Named Insured(s): Includes all legal entities, subsidiaries and affiliates of Rural/Metro Corporation. (see attached list)

Rural/Metro Legal Entities:

Arizona EMS Holdings, Inc.,Beacon Transportation, Inc., Bowers Companies, Inc., ComTrans Ambulance Service, Inc., Corning Ambulance Service, Inc.,
Donlock, Ltd., E.M.S. Ventures, Inc., Eastern Ambulance Service, Inc., Eastern Paramedics, Inc., Emergency Medical Transport, Inc., EMS Ventures of
South Carolina, Inc., Gold Cross Ambulance Service of PA., Inc., Gold Cross Ambulance Services, Inc., Lasalle Ambulance Inc., Medical Emergency
Devices and Services (MEDS), Inc., Mercury Ambulance Service, Inc., Metro Care Corp., National Ambulance & Oxygen Service, Inc., North Miss. Ambulance
Service, Inc., Pacific Ambulance, Inc., Professional Medical Transport, Inc., R/M Arizona Holdings, Inc., R/M Management Co., Inc., R/M of Tennessee
G.P., Inc., R/M of Tennessee L.P., Inc., RMC Corporate Center, L.L.C., Rural/Metro (Delaware) Inc., Rural/Metro Corporation of Florida, Rural/Metro
Corporation of Tennessee, Rural/Metro Fire Dept., Inc., Rural/Metro Mid-South, L.P., Rural/Metro of Brewerton, Inc., Rural/Metro of California, Inc.,
Rural/Metro of Central Alabama, Inc., Rural/Metro of Central Colorado, Inc., Rural/Metro of Central Ohio, Inc., Rural/Metro of Greater Seattle, Inc.,
Rural/Metro of Indiana, L.P., Rural/Metro of New York, Inc., Rural/Metro of Northern California, Inc., Rural/Metro of Northern Ohio, Inc., Rural/Metro
of Ohio, Inc., Rural/Metro of Oregon, Inc., Rural/Metro of Rochester, Inc., Rural/Metro of San Diego, Inc., Rural/Metro of Southern California, Inc.,
Rural/Metro of Southern Ohio, Inc., Rural/Metro of Tennessee, L.P., Rural/Metro Operating Company, LLC., San Diego Medical Services Enterprise, LLC.,
Sioux Falls Ambulance, Inc., Southwest Ambulance and Rescue of Ariz<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>